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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
@ 331,407 290,279 269,788 248,444 221,037
(6,502,205)  (5,695,274)  (5,293,241)  (4,874,471)  (4,336,746)
148,173 122,440 117,132 106,497 90,680
(2,907,154)  (2,402,273)  (2,298,130)  (2,089,471)  (1,779,142)
119,922 97,342 92,867 80,560 70,150
(2,352,870)  (1,909,850)  (1,822,051)  (1,580,587)  (1,376,343)
25,220 25,220 25,220 25,220 25,220
(494,816) (494,816) (494,816) (494,816) (494,816)
858,745 723,750 611,301 540,118 480,210
(16,848,577)  (14,199,975)  (11,993,726)  (10,597,115)  (9,421,720)
9,249,021 8,361,448 7,417,240 6,745,729 6,297,638
(181,465,792)  (164,051,610) (145,526,249) (132,351,203) (123,559,658)
1.522 1.253 1.20 0.94 0.84
(30) (25) (24) (18) (16)

®

. 4.61 3.79 3.62 3.13 2.78
(90) 74) (@) (61) (55)
. 4.61 3.79 3.62 3.13 2.78
(90) 74) (@) (61) (55)
182,048 421,328 4,432 (35,721) (5.660)
(3,571,782)  (8,266,455) (86,956) (~700,846) (-111,049)
(19,697) (240,753) (70,571) 19,718 (84,471)
(-386,455)  (-4,723,574)  (-1,384,603) (386,867)  (-1,657,321)
89,359 (211,787) 110,450 94,333 22,663
(1,753,224)  (-4,155,261)  (2,167,029)  (1,850,813) (444,648)
12 31 801,754 552,790 589,675 543,683 460,425
(15,730,413)  (10,845,740)  (11,569,424)  (10,667,060)  (9,033,539)
® 103,669 90,867 84,683 74,590 72,530
" 1.36 1.23 1.31 1.24 1.15
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% 16.96 15.73 16.84 16.57 16.54
®)
Tierl
% 12.66 12.29 11.95 11.78 12.06
Tierl
% 14.94 13.98 12.69 12.62 13.02
% 17.48 16.54 15.54 15.68 15.48
o 2018 2017 12 31
@
3) 2017 2020 2021 12
2021
(4) 2021 12 31 CMBFL CMBIC CvMB
CMFM CIGNA CMB CIGNA CMAM MUCFC CMB
CMB 2020 12 31 CMBFL CMBIC CMB
CMFM  CIGNA CMB MUCFC CMB CvB
2019 12 31 CMBFL CMBIC CMB
CMFM  CIGNA CMB MUCFC 2018 12 31
82,241 CIGNA CMB
5) Tierl Tierl
11.17% 13.19% 14.71%
100% 1987 31
100 1989 400 1994
1999 4.2 1994
2002 1.5
4.2
2006
2008 30 53.12% 1933
2008 10
2009 15
2009 16
CSRC 2010 2,007,240,869 449,878,000
2010 19 2010
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CSRC 2013 2,962,813,544 680,423,172
2013 11 2013 10
CBIRC CSRC 2017 10 25 50,000,000
2017 10 26 2017 12 22 275,000,000
2018 12
@
1987
2002 2006
130 143 1,770
2,812 6,592 14,746
76.949 21.07%
14.34% 177.318 58.33%
12.75% 115.991
65.41% 17.46% 61.327
34.59% 57.68%
33.750 30.61%
56.61% 19.228
0.85%
20.85% 61.354
12.35% 131.140
43.14% 7.80% 87.397
66.64%
22.71% 43.743 33.36%

41.15%
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4,129 100%
@
12,000 100%
@
1,161 100%
(©)
1,310 55%
@
5,000 100%
®)
50 100%
S.A. ®
500 )
)
2,800 50.00%
®
10,000 50.00%
®
(1) CMBIC PBOC [1998]405
2014 CMBIC 750 CMBIC 1,000
2015 28
CMBIC 400
2016 20
(2) CMBFL  CBIRC [2008]110 2008
2014 CMBFL 2,000 CMBFL 6,000
2021 CMBFL 6,000 CMBFL
12,000
o) 2008 30 53.12% 2009
15 2009 16
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4 2012 CMFM 21.60% ING B.V.
63,567,567.57 CHFM 2013 33.40%  55.00%
CMFM CMFM 2013 11 28 2017 12
CMEM 605 CMFM 495
CMFM 1,310
(5) CIB CBIRC [2019]981
2019 11
(6) CMB CBIRC [2016]460 2019 11
2021
(7) CIGNA CMAM CBIRC [2020]708 2020 10 18
CIGNA CMB 87.3458% CMBIC
12.6542%
) CIGNA CMB 50.00%
CHLIC 50.00% CHLIC
CIGNA CMB
(©))
CUNC MUCFC CBIRC 2015 MUCFC
CUNC MUCFC 50%
2017 12 CUNC MUCFC 600 MUCFC
2,859 15% 35%
50% 2018 12 MUCFC 1,000 CUNC
MUCFC 24 .15% 25.85%
50% 2021 MUCFC
CUNC MUCFC 50% 2021 10
MUCFC 1,331 4,800 MUCFC
10,000
2021 12 31 103,669 ¢
CMBFL CMBIC CMB CMFM
CIGNA CMB CIGNA CMAM MUCFC CMB CMB
18,058 45,041
6,386 14,597 10,043 1,212
8,332
23,737 65,741
14,191
25,495 12,618
32,216 5.176 11,616 13,366 3,182
4,701 5,214
128 30 5,067 31 40 3,304 41 50
658 51 60 114
2021 51,031
39
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2021
VaR
140 VaR
VaR VaR
99% 250 10
300
PVO1
2021
23 2.24% 10
37 2.78%
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0.39% 10 59 1.52%

37/432



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

ooooooo
NI EVE
NI EVE
CBIRC
LPR LPR
LPR
VaR
VaR VaR 99% 250 10
% 10% 15% 15%
2021 FRB
6.3757 2.29%

2021

38/432



2021

P2P

39/432

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

ooooooo
60(b)
IT
IT
% PBOC
60(c)



Al

CBIRC

2021

40/432

CBIRC

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

2017



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

oOoOooodn
2021
331.407 14.17%
119.922 23.20% 10.21% 203.919
21.13% 127.488
ROAA ROAE 0.13
1.23 1.36% 16.96%
9,249.021 10.62%
5,570.034 10.76% 8,383.340
9.86% 6,347.078 12.77%
50.862 2.753
0.91% 0.16 483.87% 46.19

4.42% 0.25
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21.02%  148.173
18.45% 1.54

2021 2020
203,919 185,031 18,888
94,447 79,486 14,961
29,011 22,881 6,130
(116,879) (102,814) (14,065)
(65,962) (64,871) (1,091)
(393) (154) (239)
4,030 2,881 1,149
148,173 122,440 25,733
(27,339) (24,481) (2,858)
120,834 97,959 22,875
119,922 97,342 22,580

14.17%  331.407
61.53% 2.21
38.47%

6.39% 327.056
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2021 6.17% 250.662
t
2021 2020
(%) (%)
2,095,664 80,575 3.84 2,024,891 80,575 3.98
2,869,358 159,124 5.55 2,506,828 147,704 5.89
399,173 10,963 2.75 291,660 7,825 2.68
5,364,195 250,662 4.67 4,823,379 236,104 4.89
1,940.917
100.850 5. 200 3,423.278
149.812 4.38%
8.13% 56.059
3.350
4.50% 12.543

1.93%
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123.137 0.61%
1.30% 84.332
%
2021 2020
() ()
2,396,802 21,873 0.91 1,964,687 17,052 0.87
1,485,640 39,854 2.68 1,496,594 42,746 2.86
3,882,442 61,727 1.59 3,461,281 59,798 1.73
1,453,378 5,110 0.35 1,261,244 4,377 0.35
637,653 17,495 2.74 654,057 19,077 2.92
2,091,031 22,605 1.08 1,915,301 23,454 1.22
5,973,473 84,332 1.41 5,376,582 83,252 1.55
18.083
16.81%
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203.919 10.21%
%
2021 2020

Q) D)
5,364,195 250,662 4.67 4,823,379 236,104 4.89
1,672,594 56,059 3.35 1,513,824 51,843 3.42
533,863 7,792 1.46 490,092 7,475 1.53
649,046 12,543 1.93 615,316 12,003 1.95
8,219,698 327,056 3.98 7,442,611 307,425 4.13

D) ()
5,973,473 84,332 1.41 5,376,582 83,252 1.55
1,076,618 18,083 1.68 941,182 15,481 1.64
410,711 12,532 3.05 453,885 14,652 3.23
276,773 7,635 2.76 282,976 8,413 2.97
13,977 555 3.97 14,582 596 4.09
7,751,552 123,137 1.59 7,069,207 122,394 1.73
/ 203,919 / / 185,031 /
/ / 2.39 / / 2.40
/ / 2.48 / / 2.49

3.98% 15

1.59% 14
2.3% 2.48%
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2021 2020
25,169 (10,611) 14,558
5,276 (1,060) 4,216
660 (343) 317

663 (123) 540
31,768 (12,137) 19,631
8,607 (7,527) 1,080
2,226 376 2,602
(1,303) (817) (2,120)
(184) (594) (778)
(24) @17 (41)
9,322 (8,579) 743
22,446 (3,558) 18,888
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%

2021 10 12 2021
QD) (%)
5,549,219 64,921 4.64 5,400,330 63,204 4.64
1,777,841 14,902 3.33 1,702,824 14,357 3.35
545,610 1,979 1.44 518,982 1,919 1.47
639,506 3,348 2.08 631,111 3,183 2.00
8,512,176 85,150 3.97 8,253,247 82,663 3.97
D) (%)
6,209,004 22,560 1.44 5,945,087 21,389 1.43
1,044,468 4,396 1.67 1,101,292 4,693 1.69
437,500 3,302 2.99 426,539 3,183 2.96
217,919 1,474 2.68 282,004 1,974 2.78
13,932 137 3.90 13,249 127 3.80
7,922,823 31,869 1.60 7,768,171 31,366 1.60
/ 53,281 / / 51,297 /
/ / 2.37 / / 2.37
/ / 2.48 / / 2.47

2021 2.48% 2021
2.37% 2021
21.13% 127.488
18.82% 94._447
29.00% 35.841
57.52% 10.856 0.89% 19.377
9.89% 13.902
2.10% 6.321
27.75% 5.433 13.08% 10.588
28.25% 33.041
9.47% 17.822
1.752 92

52.18% 3.351
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17.43% 62.173
48.77% 15.12%
45.750 35.89%
55.74% 19.565 15.34%
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2021 2020 %)

102,318 86,684 18.04

35,841 27,783 29.00

10,856 6,892 57.52

19,377 19,551 -0.89

13,902 12,651 9.89

6,321 6,191 2.10

5,433 4,253 27.75

10,588 9,363 13.08

(7,871) (7,198) 9.35

94,447 79,486 18.82

33,041 25,762 28.25

29,011 22,881 26.79

17,822 16,281 9.47

/ 92 (1,660) N/A
3,351 2,202 52.18

7,746 6,058 27.86

4,030 2,881 39.88

127,488 105,248 21.13

2021
CMFM  CMBIC CMB CIGNA CMAM
13.68% 116.879
15.76% 66.028
11.09% 50.851

0.22 33.11%
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2021 2020
66,028 57,040
14,519 13,611
33,249 29,389
311 296
2,772 2,478
116,879 102,814
1.68% 65.962
2021 2020
37,020 46,882
15,848 15,367
6,110 307
5,639 2,147
1,345 168
65,962 64,871
37.020

28.942
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9,249.021 10.62%
"
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

(%) (%)

5,580,885 60.34 5,038,883 60.26

@ (245,494) (2.65) (234,522) (2.80)

5,335,391 57.69 4,804,361 57.46

2,224,041 24.05 2,130,889 25.48

571,847 6.18 546,416 6.53

@ 799,372 8.64 616,516 7.37

9,954 0.11 9,954 0.12

® 308,416 3.33 253,312 3.04

9,249,021 100.00 8,361,448 100.00
@

1.581
22(a)
)
3)
5,570.034 10.76%

60.22% 0.07
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%
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
() )
23,390 1.06 47,272 2.24
348,123 15.82 495,723 23.50
176,764 8.03 177,760 8.43
- - 175,303 8.31
171,359 7.79 142,660 6.76
1,169,652 53.16 1,034,269 49.02
1,078,888 49.03 911,409 43.20
129,851 5.90 148,386 7.03
620 0.03 592 0.03
(39,707) (1.80) (26,118) (1.24)
628,355 28.56 510,307 24.19
6,995 0.32 7,139 0.34
23,654 1.08 14,922 0.71
2,200,169 100.00 2,109,632 100.00
60(F)
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2,641,846 11,877  (11,991) 3,303,805 12,568  (12,389)
1,186,030 10,041  (14,054) 1,266,675 33,166  (36,221)
139,931 1,472 (1,237) 145,190 1,538 (1,451)
3,967,807 23,390  (27,282) 4,715,670 47,272 (50,061)
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2021
1,169.652
23(b)
628.355
23(c)
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1,205,718 943,029
390,387 347,814
168,483 167,553
119,419 141,080
1,884,007 1,599,476
23.654 58.52%
MUCFC
25 26
IFRS CMFM

579 9.954
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8,383.340 9.86%

"

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
(%) (%)
6,385,154 76.16 5.664,135 74.22
@ 1,081,328 12.90 1,009,846 13.23
159,987 1.01 331,622 4.35
91,043 1.09 110,412 1.45
446,645 5.33 346,141 4.54
@ 219,183 2.61 168,938 2.21
8,383,340 100.00 7,631,004 100.00

€Y
@
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6,347.078 12.77%
75.71%
%
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
Q) D)
2,652,817 41.80 2,306,134 40.98
1,406,107 22.15 1,289,556 22.91
4,058,924 63.95 3,595,690 63.89
1,557,861 24.54 1,400,520 24.88
730,293 11.51 632,126 11.23
2,288,154 36.05 2,032,646 36.11
6,347,078 100.00 5,628,336 100.00
2021 — 64.45%
4.45 61.73%
4.97
69.51% 3.66
858.745 18.65%
15.75% 428.592

83.34% 15.047

1.451 2.144
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%

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
Q) D)
5,472,563 98.25 4,934,797 98.12
46,609 0.84 40,716 0.81
17,490 0.31 14,760 0.29
20,755 0.37 22,000 0.44
12,617 0.23 16,855 0.34
5,570,034 100.00 5,029,128 100.00
50,862 0.91 53,615 1.07

2.753 50.862
0.16 0.91% 5.893
46.609 0.03 0.84%

57/432



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

OOooOoOoOoo
"
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
%) @ P %) OB
2,150,938 38.62 26,732 1.24 2,017,232 40.11 31,858 1.58
729,999 13.11 16,755 2.30 744,220 14.80 22,333 3.00
821,259 14.74 7,267 0.88 702,892 13.98 5,412 0.77
257,428 4.63 397 0.15 212,786 4.23 1,010 0.47
@ 342,252 6.14 2,313 0.68 357,334 7.10 3,103 0.87
® 431,305 7.74 - - 330,736 6.58 - -
2,987,791 53.64 24,130 0.81 2,681,160 53.31 21,757 0.81
561,871 10.09 3,500 0.62 475,728 9.46 3,026 0.64
1,374,406 24.68 3,821 0.28 1,274,815 25.35 3,759 0.29
840,371 15.09 13,846 1.65 746,687 14.85 12,424 1.66
® 211,143 3.78 2,963 1.40 183,930 3.65 2,548 1.39
5,570,034  100.00 50,862 0.91 5,029,128  100.00 53,615 1.07
(€)
10 MEA
@A)
(©)
1.49 38.62%
5.126 26.732
0.34 1.24%
0.33 53.64% 2.373
24.130
60
0.81% 1.422
13.846 0.01
1.65%
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
%) OB %) @ @
2,150,938 38.62 26,732 1.24 2,017,232 40.11 31,858 1.58
445,603 8.00 2,045 0.66 412,424 8.20 3,489 0.85
401,704 7.21 5,655 1.41 390,792 7.77 1,190 0.30
333,398 5.99 6,871 2.06 283,135 5.63 10,057 3.55
104,688 3.50 658 0.34 170,413 3.39 842 0.49
174,758 3.14 4,054 2.3 155,028 3.08 6,227 4.02
147,272 2.64 3,726 2.53 149,775 2.98 6,361 4.25
95,333 1.71 90 0.09 114,294 2.27 239 0.21
120,934 2.17 569 0.47 103,619 2.06 890 0.86
I
65,994 1.18 235 0.36 64,135 1.28 824 1.28
65,248 1.17 175 0.27 55,294 1.10 145 0.26
34,505 0.62 786 2.28 40,676 0.81 783 1.92
@ 71,501 1.29 968 1.35 77,647 1.54 811 1.04
431,305 7.74 - - 330,736 6.58 - -
2,087,791 53.64 24,130 0.81 2,681,160 53.31 21,757 0.81
5,570,034  100.00 50,862 0.91 5,029,128  100.00 53,615 1.07

¢
&)
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
%) )P %) O
@ 910,281 16.35 17,862 1.96 858,197 17.06 17,325 2.02
1,200,571 21.55 7,436 0.62 1,037,683 20.63 7,634 0.74
719,187 12.91 4,479 0.62 633,008 12.59 6,942 1.10
1,007,513 18.09 6,358 0.63 882,726 17.56 6,555 0.74
168,974 3.03 2,354 1.39 166,632 3.31 3,772 2.26
569,787 10.23 5,766 1.01 510,537 10.15 4,247 0.83
581,820 10.45 4,275 0.73 512,103 10.18 4,640 0.91
94,153 1.69 218 0.23 129,020 2.57 342 0.27
317,748 5.70 2,114 0.67 299,222 5.95 2,158 0.72
5,570,034 100.00 50,862 0.91 5,029,128 100.00 53,615 1.07

@
)

0.18
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%
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
) O *) O
1,977,014 35.51 19,861 1.00 1,758,502 34.97 18,725 1.06
752,744 13.51 13,272 1.76 696,634 13.85 16,201 2.33
2,075,639 37.26 12,684 0.61 1,914,658 38.07 13,544 0.71
333,332 5.98 5,045 1.51 328,598 6.53 5,145 1.57
431,305 7.74 - - 330,736 6.58 - -
5,570,034 100.00 50,862 0.91 5,029,128 100.00 53,615 1.07
7.39%
8.05% 12.43%
10
%
(
2021 12 31 )

10 %) %)
19,809 2.04 0.36
19,118 1.96 0.34
14,890 1.53 0.27
12,904 1.33 0.23
12,000 1.23 0.22
11,336 1.16 0.20
10,756 1.11 0.19
9,000 0.92 0.16
8,635 0.89 0.16
8,425 0.87 0.15
126,873 13.04 2.28

19.809

2.04% 10 126.873
13.04% 13.68%

2.28%
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
Q) D)
22,327 0.40 15,584 0.31
16,339 0.29 20,112 0.40
10,849 0.19 15,473 0.31
7,911 0.14 5,399 0.10
57,426 1.02 56,568 1.12
5,570,034 100.00 5,029,128 100.00
57.426 858
0.10 1.02%
6.743
0.09 28.69%
15.10% 56.21%
90
1.45
%
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
(%) ()
16,517 0.30 24,878 0.49
90
10,406 0.19 15,169 0.30
0.19 0.30%
654 141

513 1.956
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2021 2020
234,664 223,097
37,020 46,882
(247) (186)
9,893 8,781
(35,105) (43,734)
(121) (176)
246,104 234,664
246.104 11.440 483.87%
46.19 4.42% 0.25
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Tier 1 Tier 1
12.66% 14.94% 17.48% 0.37 0.96 0.94
%
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 )
@
Tier 1 704,337 610,092 15.45
Tier 1 831,380 694,184 19.76
972,606 821,290 18.42
5,037,500 4,298,888 17.18
4,441,186 3,731,603 19.02
60,296 75,595 -20.24
536,018 491,690 9.02
5,563,724 4,964,542 12.07
Tier 1 12.66% 12.29% 0.37
Tier 1 14.94% 13.98% 0.96
17.48% 16.54% 0.94
(@)
10,394,899 9,395,026 10.64
8.00% 7.39% 0.61
[€)) 2012 CBRC
CvBIC CMBFL CMB CMFM  CIGNA & CMAM CvMB
95% 90% 80% 2021
(2)2015 2015 12 CBRC
2021 2021 2021

7.42% 7.15% 7.40%
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Tier 1 Tier 1
12.15% 14.59% 17.23% 0.34 0.97 0.94

%
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 )
Tier 1 617,403 532,209 16.01
Tier 1 741,627 613,444 20.90
875,859 734,022 19.32
4,530,952 3,848,927 17.72
4,002,933 3,336,234 19.98
39,049 62,535 -37.56
488,970 450,158 8.62
5,082,896 4,505,299 12.82

Tier 1 12.15% 11.81% 0.34

Tier 1 14 .59% 13.62% 0.97

17.23% 16.29% 0.94
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Tier 1 Tier 1
11.17% 13.19% 14.71% 0.49 1.03 0.92
%
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 )
)
Tier 1 704,337 610,092 15.45
Tier 1 831,380 694,184 19.76
927,277 787,438 17.76
6,303,544 5,710,544 10.38
Tier 1 11.17% 10.68% 0.49
Tier 1 13.19% 12.16% 1.03
14.71% 13.79% 0.92
2012 CBRC
Tier 1 Tier 1
10.60% 12.73% 14.26% 0.48 1.06 0.95
%
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 %)
Tier 1 617,403 532,209 16.01
Tier 1 741,627 613,444 20.90
830,529 700,171 18.62
5,824,290 5,258,694 10.76
Tier 1 10.60% 10.12% 0.48
Tier 1 12.73% 11.67% 1.06
14.26% 13.31% 0.95

66/432



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O00O(E05986)

oOoOooodn
IRB
2021 12 31
IRB 1,378,969 1,378,969
2,127,347 2,127,347
3,789,714 3,789,714
1,368,280 1,368,280
1,860,320 1,860,320
561,114 561,114
IRB 3,303,130 3,723,921
149,821 163,170
13,886 14,631
60.296
4.824 2.384
2.440
250 99%
10
2021 12 31
1. 547 423
2. 823 677
3. 370 151
4. 437 168
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2021 2020
77,709 179,014 63,834 156,288
63,588 133,895 55,437 122,029
6,876 18,498 3,169 11,962
148,173 331,407 122,440 290,279
77.709 21.74%
52.44% 0.31 14.54%
179.014 54.02% 0.18
1.22 33.43%
56
2021 182,048 2020
421,328
2021 19,697 2020
240,753
2021 89,359 2020
211,787
2021 12 31 801,754 2020 12 31 248,964
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28

28
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(¢))
2021 12 31
@ @
25.544,845,601 P
@
1) 20,628,944 ,429 4,590,901,172 50,000,000 275,000,000
2001 12 31
1.00 25,219,845 ,601
275,000,000
100.00 )
50,000,000
10%
)
46(a)
(@)
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©)]
2016 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
404,740
2017 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
404,740
2018 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
404,740
2019 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
404,740
2020 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
404,740
2021 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
404,740
2016 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
90,073
2017 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
90,073
2018 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
90,073
2019 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
90,073
2020 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
90,073
2021 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172

90,073
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2017 10 25 50,000,000 0 (D)
2017 12 22 275,000,000 0 )
2017 12 31 325,000,000 0
2018 12 31 325,000,000 0
2019 12 31 325,000,000 0
2020 12 31 325,000,000 0
2021 12 31 325,000,000 0

Q) 100 50,000,000 2017 10 25

Q©) 100 275,000,000 2017 12 22
O

521,896 491,920
29,976
14

13

721432



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

OooooOodd
®)
2021 12 31 10
(%)
HKSCC 4,552,406,315 18.05
3,289,470,337 13.04
1,574,729,111 6.24
1,517,455,779 6.02
1,258,542,349 4.99
1,147,377,415 4.55
1,130,991,537 4.48
944,013,171 3.74
815,030,635 3.23
696,450,214 2.76
16,926,466,863 67.12
(1)HKSCC HKSCC
0} 10 HKSCC

®
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10
(%)
50,000,000 100
€Y)
@
®) 10
®
10

(%)

106,000,000 38.55

40,000,000 14.55

25,000,000 9.09

20,000,000 7.27

20,000,000 7.27

15,000,000 5.45

15,000,000 5.45

9,000,000 3.27

8,000,000 2.91

5,000,000 1.82

5,000,000 1.82

5,000,000 1.82
€))
@

®

10

741432
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2020
2021

2016

2016

50%

10%

1.522

2017

2017

1.253

52

76/432

HKsCC
@

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

oOoOooodn
GAAP
GAAP
1.5%
30%

2017

2021 10 25
2017

2021 12 20

46(a)
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L[ mwens
14
14 83 19
30 104 35
17 19 20 31 10 25 12 13 19 10 13
10 19 10 22 11 26 11 21 22 23 24 25

26

27 28

CSRC

[2020] 128

30 31

14

32
14

771432

33

36
10

26
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CSRC

2021 12 31 16

CBIRC CSRC

3.13
3.13

2021

2021 30 139
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2021 12 31

2021 12
31
2021 12 31
2021 12 31

79/432



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

2021 12

2021 12 31 37
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2021 12 31
14 10
36
26

2021

2021 12 31 i

2021 2020

95
1F
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2021 12 31

2021 2021

CBIRC

2021
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@
2022 31 31 t
2022 31
(2021 12
31 )
) ( )

(MIAO Jianmin)
(1965 ) 19

(FU Gangfeng)
(1966 12 )
13

(ZHOU Song)
(1972 )
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(HONG Xiaoyuan)
(1963 )

(ZHANG Jian)
(1964 10 )
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(SU Min)
(1968

)

(WANG Daxiong)

(1960 12

)

1998

2014

(LUO Sheng)
(1970

)
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oooooog
250,000 334.26
(WANG Liang)
(1965 12 )
2012
2013 11
2015
2016 11 2019
2019
2021
CBIRC
- 50.00
(WONG See Hong)
(1953 )
EC
ABN
BOCI
MPF
HDR
- 50.00
(L1 Menggang)
(1967 )
NAES
IEEE
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- 50.00
(LIU Qiao)
(1970 )
ChiNext
CSRC
i? - 50.00
(TIAN Hongqi)
(1957 )
- 18.28
(L1 Chaoxian)
(1958 )
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- 18.28

(SHI Yongdong)
(1968 11 )

335,500 419.83
(TIAN Huiyu)
(1965 12 )

1998 2003
2003 2006 12
2006 12 2011
2011 2013
2013
2013
CmBIC
MUCFC
(2021 12
31 )
) ( )

240,000 321.23
(XIONG EMBA
Liangjun) 2003
(1963 ) 2014

2014
2021
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(PENG Bihong)

(1963 10 )
20
2018
2019
(WU Heng)
(1976 )
2000 2005
2005
2009
2009
2015
2014 2015
2015 2019
GUO Xikun

1965
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ooooooo
- 40.00
(DING Huiping)
(1956 )
2003 2006
- 40.00
(HAN Zirong)
(1963 )
1985 1992 10
1992 10 1997
1997
10 2008 10
2008 10
2012 10
- 40.00
(XU Zhengjun)
(1955 )
True Smart
International Limited
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181,000 279.52
(WANG Wanging)
(1964 )

1986
1991 11 2001
2001 2007
2007
2012
2012
2014
2018

114,050 17.14
(CAl Jin)
(1970 )

1992
1995
2010 2021 12
( (2021 12
31 )
) ( )

250,000 334.26
(WANG Liang)
(1965 12 )

240,200 306.43
(WANG
Jianzhong) 1991 11 2002
(1962 10 ) 10

2019
VISA

245,000 306.65
(SHI' Shunhua)
(1962 12 ) 1996 11 2003

2019
CMBFL
13
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(WANG Yungui)
(1963 )

2008
2016 12
2016 12
2019
2019

210,000

306.43

(LI Delin)
(1974 12 )

2013
10

2019
2021

204,400

306.65

ZHU
Jiangtao
1972 12

2003

2007 12 2020

2020
2021

198,800

75.11

XIONG Kai
1971

1994 2006

2006 2014

2014

2021

225,600

149.12

ZHONG
Desheng
1967

1993

2021 10

177,300

50.31

WANG
Xiaoqing
1971 10

2005
2020

2020
CMFM
2021 10
CMFM  CIGNA CMB
CIGNA  CMAM
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11
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20
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@
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2020 2021
2021
2016
2021 GAAP 2021
IFRS 2021
29.36
1.49 2021
22.51
Q)

®
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12 31
2021 2020
) ( ) ) ( )
6 327,056 6,416,839 307,425 6,031,679
7 (123,137)  (2,415,948) (122,394)  (2,401,370)
203,919 4,000,891 185,031 3,630,308
8 102,318 2,007,479 86,684 1,700,740
(7.871) (154,429) (7,198) (141,225)
94,447 1,853,050 79,486 1,559,515
9 29,011 569,196 22,881 448,925
(657) (12,890) 273) (5,356)
327,377 6,423,137 287,398 5,638,749
10 (116,879)  (2,293,166) (102,814)  (2,017,211)
210,498 4,129,971 184,584 3,621,538
14 (65,962)  (1,294,174) (64,871)  (1,272,769)
(393) (7,711) (154) (3,021)
25 2,877 56,447 2,392 46,931
26 1,153 22,622 489 9,594
148,173 2,907,154 122,440 2,402,273
15 (27,339) (536,391) (24,481) (480,317)
120,834 2,370,763 97,959 1,921,956
119,922 2,352,870 97,342 1,909,850
912 17,893 617 12,106
17 4.61 90.45 3.79 74.36
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12 31
2021 2020
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

120,834 2,370,763 97,959 1,921,956

133 2,609 463 9,084

4,156 81,541 (2,729) (53,543)

3,036 59,566 1,054 20,679

105 2,060 Q@7 (530)
(1,574) (30,882) (2.,483) (48,716)
1,318 25,859 481 9,437

15 294 43 844
16 7,189 141,048 (3.,198) (62,745)
7,298 143,187 (2,967) (58,213)
(109) (2,139) (231) (4,532)
128,023 2,511,811 94,761 1,859,211
127,220 2,496,056 94,375 1,851,638

803 15,755 386 7,573
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12 31
2021 2020
) ) ) )
13,310 261,142 13,088 256,787
4,639 91,017 7,970 156,371
18 553,898 10,867,479 525,358 10,307,524
19 80,350 1,576,467 103,335 2,027,433
20 194,421 3,814,540 226,919 4,452,151
21 524,601 10,292,672 286,262 5,616,460
22 5,335,391 104,680,371 4,804,361 94,261,563
23(a) 348,123 6,830,173 495,723 9,726,085
60(T) 23,390 458,912 47,272 927,477
23(b) 1,185,841 23,266,200 1,049,280 20,586,874
23(c) 636,038 12,479,066 516,553 10,134,770
23(d) 6,995 137,242 7,139 140,067
25 14,779 289,964 12,403 243,347
26 8,875 174,128 2,519 49,423
27 1,372 26,919 1,623 31,843
28 80,415 1,577,742 69,470 1,363,001
29(a) 18,403 361,067 19,104 374,820
30 4,066 79,775 4,763 93,450
31 9,954 195,297 9,954 195,297
32 81,639 1,601,757 72,893 1,430,161
33 122,521 2,403,862 85,459 1,676,706
9,249,021 181,465,792 8,361,448 164,051,610
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12 31
2021 2020
( ) ) ( ) )
159,987 3,138,945 331,622 6,506,424
34 753,018 14,774,213 723,402 14,193,147
35 170,650 3,348,153 143,517 2,815,804
36 63,761 1,250,991 60,351 1,184,087
60(T) 27,282 535,273 50,061 982,197
37 157,660 3,093,289 142,927 2,804,228
38 6,385,154 125,276,721 5,664,135 111,130,329
39(a) 19,761 387,711 15,462 303,364
40 22,491 441,273 18,648 365,874
41 7,536 147,856 6,829 133,985
29(b) 13,812 270,991 14,242 279,428
42 14,660 287,629 8,229 161,453
43 446,645 8,763,175 346,141 6,791,286
32 1,353 26,546 1,073 21,052
44 139,570 2,738,363 104,455 2,049,407
8,383,340 164,481,131 7,631,094 149,722,064
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( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
45 25,220 494,816 25,220 494,816
46 127,043 2,492,584 84,054 1,649,139
46(a) 34,065 668,355 34,065 668,355
46(b) 92,978 1,824,228 49,989 980,784
47 67,523 1,324,801 67,523 1,324,801
48 15,047 295,222 8,207 161,021
49 39 765 (66) (1,295)
50 82,137 1,611,528 71,158 1,396,120
51 115,288 2,261,951 98,082 1,924,369
390,207 7,655,861 338,664 6,644,588
52(b) 38,385 753,114 31,601 620,012
53 (2,144) (42,065) (693) (13,597)
858,745 16,848,577 723,750 14,199,975
6,936 136,084 6,604 129,570
3,300 64,746 2,851 55,937
62(a) 3,636 71,338 3,753 73,634
865,681 16,984,661 730,354 14,329,545

9,249,021 181,465,792 8,361,448 164,051,610

2022 18
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2021 25,220 34,065 49,989 67,523 8,207  (66) 71,158 98,082 338,664 31,601  (693) 723,750 2,851 3,753 730,354
- - 42,989 - 6,840 105 10,979 17,206 51,543 6,784  (1,451) 134,995 449 (U17) 135,327
@ - - - - - - - - 119,922 - - 119,022 685 227 120,834
® 16 - - - - 8,644 105 - - - - (1,451) 7,208 8 (117 7,189
- - - - 8,644 105 - - 119,922 - (1,451) 127,220 693 110 128,023
© - - 42,989 - - - - - - - - 42,989 - - 42,989
46(b) - - 42,989 - - - - - - - - 42,989 - - 42,989
@ - - - - - - 10,979 17,206  (70,183) 6,784 - (35,214)  (248)  (227) (35,685)
)
50 - - - - - - 10,979 - (10,979) - - - - - -
) 51 - - - - - - - 17,206 (17,206) - - - - - -
( )2020
- - - - - - - - - (31,601) - (3L,601)  (244) - (31,845)
) 62 - - - - - - - - - - - - - @ @27
( )2021
; . - - - - - - (38,385) 38,385 - - - - -
)
- - - - - - - - (@.63) - - (1,639) - - (1,638)
[ - - - - - - - - - - - @.975) - - (@,975) - - (1,975)
©
- - - - Q@808 - - - 1,804 - - - - - -
2021 12 31 25,220 34,065 92,978 67,523 15,047 39 82,137 115,288 390,207 38,385 (2,144) 858,745 3,300 3,636 865,681
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25,220 34,065 - 67,523 8,919  (39) 62,291 90,151 291,346 30,264 1,561 611,301 2,427 3,979 617,707
- - 49,989 - (712) (1) 8,867 7,931 47,318 1,337 (2,254) 112,449 424 (226) 112,647
- - - - - - - - 97,342 - - 97,342 383 234 97,959
- - - - (686) (27) - - - - (2,258)  (2,967) G)  (226)  (3,198)
- - - - (886) (27) - - 97,342 - (2,254) 94,375 378 8 94,761
- - 49,989 - - - - - - - - 49,989 218 - 50,207
- - - - - - - - - - - - 218 - 218
- - 49,989 - - - - - - - - 49,989 - - 49,989
- - - - - - 8,87 7,931 (50,050) 1,337 - (31,915)  (172)  (234) (32,321)
- - - - - - 8,867 - (8,867) - - - - - -
- - - - - - - 7,931 (7,931) - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - (30,264) - (30,268)  (172) - (30,436)
- - - - - - - - - - - - - (234) (234)
- - - - - - - - (31,601) 31,601 - - - - -
- - - - - - - - (@,651) - - (1,651) - - (@,651)
- - - - (26) - - - 26 - - - - - -

25,220 34,065 49,989 67,523 8,207  (66) 71,158 98,082 338,664 31,601 (693) 723,750 2,851 3,753 730,354

102/432



2021
(a)
()
16
©
6
(b)
(d)
)
50
)
51
( )2020
([@D)
62
( )2021
([@D)
)
®)
2021 12 31

2021 12

EDINETOOOO

DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

oOoOooodn

(
494,816 668,355 980,784 1,324,801 161,021 (1,295) 1,396,120 1,924,369 6,644,588 620,012 (13,597) 14,199,975 55,937 73,634 14,329,545
- - 843,444 - 134,201 2,060 215,408 337,582 1,011,274 133,102 (28,469) 2,648,602 8,809 (2,296) 2,655,116
- - - - - - - - 2,352,870 - - 2,352,870 13,440 4,454 2,370,763
- - - - 169,595 2,060 - - - - (28,469) 143,187 157 (2,296) 141,048
- - - - 169,595 2,060 - - 2,352,870 - (28,469) 2,496,056 13,597 2,158 2,511,811
- - 843,444 - - - - - - - - 843,444 - - 843,444
- - 843,444 - - - - - - - - 843,444 - - 843,444
- - - - - - 215,408 337,582 (1,376,990) 133,102 - (690,899) (4,787) (4,454)  (700,140)
- - - - - - 215,408 - (215,408) - - - - - -
- - - - - - - 337,582 (337,582) - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - (620,012) - (620,012) (4,787) - (624,799)
- - - - - - - - - - - - - (4,4548) (4,454)
- - - - - - - - (753,114) 753,114 - - - - -
- - - - - - - - (32,138) - - (32,138) - - (32,138)
- - - - - - - - (38,750) - - (38,750) - - (38,750)
- - - - (35,394) - - - 35,394 - - - - - -
494,816 668,355 1,824,228 1,324,801 295,222 765 1,611,528 2,261,951 7,655,861 753,114 (42,065) 16,848,577 64,746 71,338 16,984,661
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2020 12 31
( )

494,816 668,355 - 1,324,801 174,991  (765) 1,222,149 1,768,763 5,716,209 593,780 30,627 11,993,726 47,618 78,068 12,119,411
- - 980,784 - (13,969) (530) 173,971 155,606 928,379 26,232 (44,223) 2,206,249 8,319  (4,434) 2,210,134
- - - - - - - - 1,909,850 - - 1,909,850 7,514 4,591 1,921,956
- - - - (13,459)  (530) - - - - (44,223)  (58,213)  (98) (4,434)  (62,745)
- - - - (13,459)  (530) - - 1,909,850 - (44,223) 1,851,638 7,416 157 1,859,211
- - 980,784 - - - - - - - - 980,784 4,277 - 985,061
- - - - - - - - - - - - 421 - 4,217
- - 980,784 - - - - - - - - 980,784 - - 980,784
- - - - - - 173,971 155,606  (981,981) 26,232 - (626,172) (3,375) (4,591) (634,138)
- - - - - - a3, - (173,971) - - - - - -

- - - - - 155,606  (155,606) - - - - - -

- - - - - - - (593,780) (593,780) (3,375) - (597,154)

- - - - - - - - - - - (4591 (4,591)

- - - - - - (620,012) 620,012 - - - - -

- - - - - - (32,393) - - (32,393) - - (32,393)

- - (510) - - - 510 - - - - - -

494,816 668,355

980,784 1,324,801 161,021 (1,295) 1,396,120 1,924,369 6,644,588 620,012 (13,597) 14,199,975 55,937 73,634 14,329,545
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148,173 2,907,154 122,440 2,402,273
37,020 726,332 46,882 919,825
29,335 575,553 18,143 355,966
(247) (4,846) (186) (3,649)
8,857 173,774 7,715 151,368
4,259 83,562 4,416 86,642
1,389 27,252 1,364 26,762
(15,388) (301,913) (7,208) (141,421)

(56,059)  (1,099,878)

12,532 245,878
(1,153) (22,622)
(2.877) (56,447)
(113) (2,217)

555 10,889
12,874 252,588
(564,924)  (11,083,809)
(37,395) (733,690)

718,742 14,101,718
73,321 1,438,558

2,160 42,379
(170,100)  (3,337,362)
16,596 325,614

(51,843)  (1,017,160)

14,652 287,472
(489) (9,594)
(2,392) (46,931)
(44) (863)
596 11,694

(23,480) (460,678)
(649,434)  (12,741,895)
(45,118) (885,215)
783,914 15,380,393
223,568 4,386,404
(8,766) (171,989)
(26,909) (527,955)
45,151 885,863

217,557 4,268,468

452,972 8,887,311

(35,509) (696,687)

(31,644) (620,855)

182,048 3,571,782

421,328 8,266,455
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12 31
2021 2020
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

(1,225,385) (24,042,054)  (1,385,212) (27,177,859)
1,160,739 22,773,699 1,104,070 21,661,853

71,197 1,396,885 58,038 1,138,706
(5.342) (104,810) (1,460) (28,645)
(24,160) (474,019) (19,125) (375,233)

2,399 47,068 2,354 46,185

855 16,775 582 11,419
(19,697) (386,455) (240,753)  (4,723,574)

55(b) 319,707 6,272,651 213,011 4,179,276
55(b) 14,692 288,257 22,592 443,255
55(b) 63,872 1,253,169 33,606 659,350
42,989 843,444 49,989 980,784

] ; 218 4,277

55(b) 6,860 134,593 14,417 282,862
55(b) (226,012)  (4,434,355) (413,820)  (8,119,148)
55(b) (21,363) (419,142) (28,992) (568,823)
55(b) (55,771)  (1,094,227) (45,486) (892,435)
55(b) (4,835) (94,863) (4,644) (91,115)
27) (4,454) (234) (4,591)
(31,845) (624,799) (30,436) (597,154)
(1,638) (32,138) (1,651) (32,393)

(1,975) (38,750) - -
(11,398) (223,629) (19,490) (382,394)
55(b) (3,697) (72,535) (867) (17,011)
89,359 1,753,224 (211,787)  (4,155,261)
251,710 4,938,550 (31,212) (612,379)

— 552,790 10,845,740 589,675 11,569,424
(2,746) (53,877) (5.673) (111,304)

—12 31 55(a) 801,754 15,730,413 552,790 10,845,740
269,081 5,279,369 255,854 5,019,855

111,177 2,181,293 100,925 1,980,149
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84,332 83,252
7,635 8,413
11,993 9,961
3,519 3,750
2,571 1,770
12,532 14,652
555 596
123,137 122,394

2021 2020
35,841 27,783
10,856 6,892
19,377 19,551
13,902 12,651
6,321 6,191
5,433 4,253
10,588 9,363
102,318 86,684
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12 48
(464) 391
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FVTPL 14,839 13,400
(657) (273)
FVTOCI 3,516 2,970
2,434 1,660
FVTOCI 74 175
50 9
3,351 2,202
6,868 5,708
6,415 5,278
453 430
878 350
29,011 22,881
10
2021 2020
66,028 57,040
51,031 43,257
8,011 6,048
6,986 7,735
2,772 2,478
8,857 7,715
1,153 1,188
4,259 4,416
250 292
311 296
() 33,249 29,389
116,879 102,814
( )2021 12 31 29 2020 28
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6,048 9,072
3,852
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4,000,001 4,500,000
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5,000,001 5,500,000 3
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2020 12 31
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61 54
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2021 2020
37,020 46,882
35,678 46,983

1,342 (101)
6,110 307
15,848 15,367
13,201 13,875
2,647 1,492
5,639 2,147
1,345 168
65,962 64,871

2021 2020
38,141 31,646
37,222 30,574

767 960
152 112
(10,802) (7,165)
27,339 24,481
2021 2020
148,173 122,440
37,043 30,610
1,392 914
(12,603) (10,568)
(258) (458)
1,716 4,055
49 72)
27,339 24,481
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2021 2020

8,382 (2,526) 5,856 (4,379) 657 (3.722)

5,675 (1,519) 4,156 @3.717) 988 (2,729)
4,060 (1,024) 3,036 1,391 (337) 1,054

88 17 105 (33) 6 @n
133 133 463 463

(1,574) (1,574) (2,483) (2,483)
1,176 157 1,333 677 (153) 524
1,158 160 1,318 625 (144) 481
18 3) 15 52 ® 43

9,558 (2,369) 7,189 (3,702) 504 (3,198)
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2021

2017

2020
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2021 2020
6,793 (502)
(2,637) (2,227)
4,156 (2,729)
3,036 1,054
3,036 1,054
1,318 481
1,318 481
74 (36)
31 9
105 @n
2021 2020

119,922 97,342
(1,638) (1,651)

(1,975)
116,309 95,601
25,220 25,220
4.61 3.79

2020 2021
2021 2020 12 31
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( ) PBOC

19

€)

@

@)

2020

EDINETOOOO
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OooooOodd
2021 2020
484,878 472,566
65,819 47,472
2,958 5,080
243 240
553,898 525,358
PBOC
2021 12 31
2021 2020
80,664 103,448
(378) Q17
80,286 103,171
64 164
80,350 103,335
2021 2020
37,453 56,811
35,620 55,117
1,833 1,694
43,211 46,637
41,430 45,942
1,781 695
80,664 103,448
(378) Q17)
(329) (265)
(49) 12)
80,286 103,171
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2021 2020
277 372
109 (93)
® @
378 277
2021 2020
196,351 226,516
(2,860) (376)
193,491 226,140
930 779
194,421 226,919
2021 2020
127,959 136,551
19,213 27,637
108,746 108,914
68,392 89,965
68,102 89,965
290
196,351 226,516
(2,860) (376)
(136) (145)
(2,724) (231)
193,491 226,140
2021 2020
66,842 96,002
115,906 125,969
10,743 4,169
193,491 226,140
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2021 2020
376 338
2,481 53
3 (15)
2,860 376
2021 2020
528,564 286,879
(4,263) (743)
524,301 286,136
300 126
524,601 286,262
2021 2020
528,447 286,382
60,323 29,227
468,124 257,155
117 497
117 497
528,564 286,879
(4,263) (743)
175) (185)
(4,088) (558)
524,301 286,136
2021 2020
524,301 279,446
6,690
524,301 286,136
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©
2021 2020
522,202 278,817
2,099 7,319
524,301 286,136
@
2021 2020
743 396
14 3,520 347
4,263 743
22
@
2021 2020
) 5,075,052 4,647,140
10,548 9,528
5,085,600 4,656,668
() (244,523) (234,426)
(971) (96)
(245,494) (234,522)
4,840,106 4,422,146
FVTOCI () 488,004 375,359
FVTPL () 7,281 6,856
5,335,391 4,804,361
)
2021 2020
2,087,247 1,965,980
2,987,791 2,681,160
14
5,075,052 4,647,140
(244,523) (234,426)
12 ECL (169,347) (159,918)
ECL (32,007) (27,401)
ECL (43,169) (47,107)
4,830,529 4,412,714
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FVTOCI

( ) FVTPL
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ECL
ECL
ECL
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FVTOCI

2021 2020
56,713 44,623
431,291 330,736
488,004 375,359
(1,581) (238)
(1,289) (226)
(292) 12)

2021 2020
6,978 6,629
303 227
7,281 6,856
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2021 2020

412,417 381,898
367,642 342,667
309,635 256,173
187,611 161,777
170,009 143,805
138,352 132,055
117,453 101,442
64,427 52,911
58,267 54,491
57,988 74,892
28,854 31,097
66,364 65,330
1,979,019 1,798,538
431,305 327,479
1,364,534 1,264,466
840,254 746,560
560,657 474,545
173,527 156,713
2,938,972 2,642,284
5,349,296 4,768,301
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(

2021 2020

37,345 39,402

34,062 48,125

33,186 30,526

23,763 26,962

8,920 17,720

IT 7,727 9,644

7,077 8,636

5,651 9,579

4,749 11,223

3,481 2,177

821 2,383

5,137 12,317

171,919 218,694

3,257

9,872 10,349

117 127

1,214 1,183

37,616 27,217

48,819 38,876

220,738 260,827

2021 12 31 90 2020 12 31 90
)
2021 2020

1,977,014 1,758,502
752,744 696,634
2,075,639 1,914,658
333,332 328,598
5,138,729 4,698,392
431,305 330,736
5,570,034 5,029,128
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)
2021
18,097 10,269 2,972 944 32,282
1,141 2,650 3,476 1,403 8,670
2,616 2,733 3,610 2,142 11,101
473 687 701 3,422 5,373
22,327 16,339 10,849 7,911 57,426
2020
11,350 11,753 1,538 688 25,329
737 3,982 6,165 2,268 13,152
3,116 3,901 4,033 1,883 12,933
381 476 3,737 560 5,154
15,584 20,112 15,473 5,399 56,568
2021 2020

1,517 2,308

473 177

1,990 2,485

( ) ECL
2021
P ECL ECL

4,912,836 111,354 50,862 5,075,052

(169,347) (32,007) (43,169) (244,523)

4,743,489 79,347 7.693 4,830,529

FVTOC 485,735 2,269 488,004
FvToCI (1,289) (292) (1,581)
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©
)
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2020
1 EcL ECL ECL
4,517,239 76,286 53,615 4,647,140
(159,918) (27,401) (47,107) (234,426)
4,357,321 48,885 6,508 4,412,714
374,800 559 375,359
(226) (12) (238)
2021
12 EL ECL ECL
159,918 27,401 47,107 234,426
5,848 (5,743) (105)
(1,137) 1,592 (455)
(1,001) (4,972) 5,973
5,766 13,763 16,149 35,678
(35,105) (35,105)
247) 247)
9,893 9,893
7 (34) (41) (122)
169,347 32,007 43,169 244,523
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2020
1 EL ECL ECL
138,803 37,644 46,309 222,756
2,636 (2,571) (65)
(552) 1,398 (846)
(565) (10,698) 11,263
14 19,696 1,652 25,635 46,983
(43,734) (43,734)
(186) (186)
8,781 8,781
(100) (2%) (50) (174)
159,918 27,401 47,107 234,426
( ) FvTOCI
2021 2020
238 341
14 1,342 (101)
1 @)
1,581 238
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@
2021 2020

15,035 20,865
11,225 15,608
8,519 10,720
5,323 8,135
5,580 6,280
13,980 18,890
59,662 80,498
(8,378) (11,206)
51,284 69,292
(3,237) (3,443)
12 ECL (1,872) (1,653)
ECL (632) (931)
ECL (733) (859)
48,047 65,849

23

2021 2020
23(a) 348,123 495,723
23(b) 1,185,841 1,049,280
FVTOCI 23(c) 636,038 516,553
FvTOCI 23(d) 6,995 7,139
2,176,997 2,068,695
@
2021 2020

FVTPL () 318,245 464,466
() 29,878 31,257
348,123 495,723
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(

) FVTPL

2021 2020
129,792 131,130
46,721 32,254
9,861 4,845
21,245 22,636
51,965 71,395
129,792 131,130
113,762 110,561
15,796 20,361
234 208
5,205 4,028
4,067 2,971
1,036 961
102 96
5,205 4,028
111 140
5,094 3,888
134,997 135,158

160/432



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

oOoOooodn
FVTPL
2021 2020
17,094 15,373
9,784 8,706
7,310 6,667
17,094 15,373
15,388 14,244
1,333 995
373 134
166,154 313,935
175,303
4,909 3,410
158,703 133,861
1,360 298
1,182 1,063
166,154 313,935
62 96
1,118 739
164,974 313,100
FVTPL 183,248 329,308
FVTPL 318,245 464,466
)
2021 2020
41 41
17,970 18,431
11,251 10,567
616 2,218
29,878 31,257
28,793 28,533
1,060 2,710
25 14
29,878 31,257
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2021 2020

DIED) 1,209,359 1,060,387

16,368 15,099

1,225,727 1,075,486
CHCHC)H (39,707) (26,118)
(179) (88)
(39,886) (26,206)

1,185,841 1,049,280

2021 2020

1,078,888 911,409

768,537 623,727

280,129 252,996

20,064 28,157

10,158 6,529

1,078,888 911,409

1,068,300 906,053

4,740 2,064

5,848 3,292

1,099,251 916,422

130,471 148,978

12,725

115,022 123,681

100 6,400

14,729 5,580

620 592

130,471 148,978

130,471 148,978

1,209,359 1,060,387
(39,707) (26,118)
ECL (14,974) (11,832)
ECL (712) (326)
ECL (24,021) (13,960)
1,169,652 1,034,269
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2021
12 EcL ECL ECL
1,183,320 1,962 24,077 1,209,359
(14,974) (712) (24,021) (39,707)
1,168,346 1,250 56 1,169,652
2020
1 EcL ECL ECL
1,044,826 971 14,590 1,060,387
(11,832) (326) (13,960) (26,118)
1,032,994 645 630 1,034,269
2021
12 EcL ECL ECL
11,832 326 13,960 26,118
® 5
14 3,156 381 9,664 13,201
(10) (10)
419 419
©) (12) 1)
14,974 712 24,021 39,707
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(
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2020
12 ECL ECL ECL
9,179 283 4,533 13,995
(204) 204

2,858 43 10,974 13,875
(1,822) (1,822)

80 80

@ ©) (10)

11,832 326 13,960 26,118

2021 2020

) 628,355 510,307
7,683 6,246

636,038 516,553
) (6,622) (4,014)
(84) (25)
(6,706) (4,039)

FVTOCI
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( ) FvTOCH
2021 2020
390,419 287,007
82,427 71,542
106,139 97,487
49,370 54,271
628,355 510,307
522,889 400,456
65,439 64,191
40,027 45,660
628,355 510,307
)
2021 2020
4,014 2,600
14 2,647 1,492
(39) (78)
6,622 4,014
() FvTOCI
2021 2020
901 899
6,094 6,240
6,995 7,139
65 52
2,204 2,023
4,726 5,064
6,995 7,139
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2021 12 31 FVOCI
2,186 2020 433
1,804 2020 26
1,796 2021
FVTOCI
26
24
@
) 4,129 100
) 12,000 100
() 1,161 100
) 1,310 55
) 5,000 100
() 50 100
() 500 )
) CMBICHC
PBOC 1998 405 2014 CMBICHC
750 CMBICHC 1,000
2015 28 CMBICHC CMBICHC 400
2016 20
() CMBFLC CBIRC 2008 110
2008 2014 CMBFLC 2,000
CMBFLC 6,000 2021 CMBFLC
6,000 CMBFLC 12,000
) CMB WLB 2008 30 CMB
WLB 53.12 2009 15 CMB WLB CMB WLB 2009
16
( ) 2012 CMFM 21.60 ING
B.V. 63,567,567.57 2013 CMFM
33.40 55.00 CMFM CMFM 2013 11 28
2017 12 CMFM 605 CMFM
495 CMFM 1,310
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0000000
() CMBWM CBIRC 2019 981
2019 11
() CBIRC 2016 460 2019 11
2021
() CBIRC 2020 708
2020 10 18
87.3458 CMBICHC 12.6542
25
2021 2020
14,779 12,403
2,877 2,392
133 456
() 2,800 50.00 50.00
CCy 10,000 50.00 50.00
) 50.00
CHLIC
50.00 CHLIC
() CMB WLB
CUNC MUCFC CBIRC 2015
MUCFC CMB WLB CUNC MUCFC 50
2017 12 CUNC MUCFC 600
MUCFC 2,859 15 CMB WLB
35 50 2018 12 MUCFC 1,000
CUNC CMB WLB  MUCFC
24.15 25.85 50
2021 CMB WLB MUCFL CUNC  MUCFC
50 2021 10 MUCFC 1,331
4,800 MUCFC 10,000
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2021
MUCFC

2020
MUCFC

2021

2020
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108,815 97,686 11,129 26,635 1,174 268 1,442 1,290 151 (43)
54,172 48,843 5,329 13,318 565 133 698 645 76 22)
75,196 65,259 9,937 23,608 1,638 912 2,550 437 56 299
37,386 32,630 4,756 11,804 812 456 1,268 219 28 150

149,698 135,660 14,038 15,933 3,015 3,015 4,655 42 477
74,849 67,830 7,019 7,967 1,507 1,507 2,328 21 239
108,881 97,858 11,023 12,816 1,663 1,663 2,447 44 501
54,441 48,929 5,512 6,408 832 832 1,224 22 251
4,675 (©)) 4,672
805 805
4,349 4,349
748 748
2021 2020
8,875 2,519
1,153 489
7
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1,800 24 .8559 24 .8559%
10 2021 31
14.8559 3,121
24.8559
FVTOCH
2021
316,172 289,731 26,441 6,775 2,215 30 2,245 11,665 287 604
77,536 72,015 5,521 1,684 490 9 499 2,899 71 150
2021 2021 12 31
2021
37,958 (65) 37,893
663 ©) 654
2020
36,557 25 36,582
489 7 496
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12 31

12 31

12 31

2021 12 31
2020

2020 12 31

5,317

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

OooooOodd

2021 2020

3,276 3,558

(86) (173)

(55) (109)

3,135 3,276

1,653 1,633

155 166

) (72

(38) (74)

1,763 1,653

1,372 1,623

1,623 1,925

CMB WLB
2021 12 31 4,978
2021 2020

313 296
170 165
127 71
106 66
105 60
359 364
1,180 ,022
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2021 12 31
2,775 2,775
2,203 2,203
4,978 4,978

2020 12 31
2,927 2,927
2,390 2,390
5,317 5,317
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2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021
2021

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

28,279 3,107 15,149 9,661 48,124 6,299 110,619
539 743 2,420 1,106 17,879 563 23,250
169 (348) 20 223 22 86
19) (698) 18) (3,415) 971) (5,121)
(92) 31) 7 (1,261) @) (1,435)

28,876 3,502 16,860 10,925 61,327 5,909 127,399

11,750 11,489 6,132 6,729 4,813 40,913

1,314 2,097 950 3,822 519 8,702
6 17 16) 7
14) (661) (15) (1,290) (848) (2,828)
(58) 18) (39) (210) ®) (328)
12,998 12,924 7,028 9,051 4,465 46,466
236 236
20 267 287
) )
20 498 518
15,858 3,502 3,936 3,897 51,778 1,444 80,415
16,529 3,107 3,660 3,529 41,159 1,486 69,470
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2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020
2020

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

() 2021 12 31

(b) 2021 12 31

(c) 2021 12 31

©)

EDINETOOOO

DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

oOoOooodn

27,356 2,964 13,750 8,510 43,309 6,351 102,240
290 1,003 2,078 1,081 10,475 777 15,704
841 (860) 25 172 ®) 173
33) (641) 12) (2,613) (821) (4,120)

(175) (63) (90) (3,047) ®) (3,378)
28,279 3,107 15,149 9,661 48,124 6,299 110,619
10,512 10,163 5,441 4,523 5,100 35,739

1,270 1,948 779 3,109 443 7,549
72 23 23) 72
@13) (609) ®) 479) (704) (1,810)
1) (36) (83) (424) ®) (637)
11,750 11,489 6,132 6,729 4,813 40,913
93 93
153 153
(10) (10)
236 236
16,529 3,107 3,660 3,529 41,159 1,486 69,470
16,844 2,964 3,587 3,069 38,693 1,251 66,408
1,026 2020 12 31 1,565
2020 12 31
CMBFLC
15,075 2020 12 31 12,884
2021 2020

7,765 5,851

7,148 5,316

5,796 4,883

4,862 4,303

4,253 3,916

13,357 13,550

43,181 37,819
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2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021
2021

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020
2020

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

10

10

EDINETOOOO

DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

oOoOooodn

5,957 21,122 4 16 27,099
33 4,071 5 1 4,110
©) (2,123) Q@) Q) (2,131)

5,985 23,070 7 16 29,078

1,009 6,978 2 6 7,995

182 4,070 3 4 4,259
@ (1,634) @ @ (1,638)

1,190 9,414 3 9 10,616
59 59
59 59

4,736 13,656 4 7 18,403

4,948 14,144 2 10 19,104

5,968 18,602 3 18 24,591

3,888 4 2 3,894

(11) (1,368) ©) ® (1,386)
5,957 21,122 4 16 27,099
830 3,755 1 5 4,501
183 4,228 2 3 4,416
® (1,005) €Y @ (1,012)

1,009 6,978 2 6 7,995

4,948 14,144 2 10 19,104

5,138 14,847 2 13 20,000
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®)
2021 2020
506 527
536 488
2,989 2,805
3,228 3,395
4,925 5,182
1,628 1,845
13,812 14,242
©
10
() 2021 4,835 2020
4,644

(e) 2021 2020 12 31
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2021

2021

2021

2021

2021
2021

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020
2020

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

10

10

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

9,576 1,118 10,694
479 479
(10) (35) (45)

10,045 1,083 11,128

5,442 489 5,931
1,114 39 1,153
6) (16) 22)
6,550 512 7,062
3,495 571 4,066
4,134 629 4,763
8,161 1,186 9,347
1,419 1,419
O (68) (72)
9,576 1,118 10,694
4,294 478 4,772
1,148 40 1,188
(29 (29

5,442 489 5,931
4,134 629 4,763
3,867 708 4,575
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CMBWLB ()
CMFM ()

)

2008 30
12,898
10,177

2013 11 28

752

355

2015

CGU

12
CGU

32
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2021 2021 2021
2021 12 31 2021 12 2021 12
31
31
10,177 10,177 (579) 9,598
355 355 355
1 1 1
10,533 10,533 (579) 9,954
CMB WLB 53.12 CVB WLB
6,851
CMB WLB 2
CMEM  55.00 CMEM
414 769
CMFN 24
CMBICHC 100
0A IT
cGU
CMB WLB CMFM 10 2020
2021 2020
81,639 72,893
(1,353) (1,073)
80,286 71,820
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FVTOCI
FVTPL

FVTOCI
FVTPL

(®)

2021

2021

2020

2020

12 31

12 31

EDINETOOOO
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2021 2020
C ) C )
284,360 71,191 245,221 61,340
(11,092) (2,763) (6.673) (1,406)
92 23 6,309 1,577
47,928 11,947 37,592 9,363
5,582 1,241 8,665 2,019
326,870 81,639 291,114 72,893
) @ 10 2
(144) @n 8 2
(7,755) (1,325) (6,677) (1,077)
(7,904) (1,353) (6,659) (1,073)
FVTOCI FVTPL
61,340 (1,404) 1,579 9,363 942 71,820
9,850 1,020 (1,584) 2,584 (1,068) 10,802
(2,383) 14 (2.369)
1 3 1 28 33
71,191 (2,764) 4) 11,947 (84) 80,286
FVTOCI FVTPL
59,232 (2.,244) (313) 6,621 899 64,195
2,160 336 1,899 2,742 28 7,165
507 ®) 504
(52) ®) 0) 18 (44)
61,340 (1,404) 1,579 9,363 942 71,820
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2021 2020
78,719 48,423
5,274 3,128
3,013 2,972
257 314
513 612
519 510
186 190
4,987 4,985
135 150
65 60
27,953 24,115
122,521 85,459
2021 2020
623 700
31 14
654 714
(141) (102)
513 612
66 (2020 228 )
2021 2020
751,254 719,764
1,764 3,638
753,018 723,402
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2021 2020
701,085 712,403
77,788 143,846
623,297 568,557
50,169 7,361
48,301 6,964
1,868 397
751,254 719,764

2021 2020
170,257 143,117
393 400
170,650 143,517

2020 2019
114,496 96,910
107,214 75,768
7,282 21,142
55,761 46,207
55,570 46,011
191 196
170,257 143,117

2021 2020
17,017 20,990
) 46,744 39,361
63,761 60,351

2021 2020
16,406 20,361
611 629
17,017 20,990

180/432
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2021 2020
34,677 22,362
11,596 1,589
23,081 20,773
12,067 16,999
377 605
7,600 13,914
4,090 2,480
46,744 39,361
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020 12 31 2021 2020
12 31
37
2021 2020
@) 157,572 142,881
88 46
157,660 142,927
@
2021 2020
155,322 137,228
147,410 136,248
7,912 980
2,250 5,653
1,854 4,868
396 785
157,572 142,881
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2021 2020
152,071 108,352
90,956 45,684
48,833 53,445
2,774 4,872
9,508 4,351
5,501 34,529
157,572 142,881

2021 2020
6,347,078 5,628,336
38,076 35,799
6,385,154 5,664,135

2021 2020
4,058,924 3,595,690
2,652,817 2,306,134
1,406,107 1,289,556
2,288,154 2,032,646
1,557,861 1,400,520
730,293 632,126
6,347,078 5,628,336

2021 2020
134,858 103,858
18,878 19,183
21,574 15,861
32,412 29,463
31,208 25,878
238,930 194,243
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@
2021
() 14,155 53,827 (49,917) 18,065
() 1,240 4,884 (4,495) 1,629
() 67 17 an 67
15,462 58,728 (54,429) 19,761
2020
() 10,872 44,407 (41,124) 14,155
() 699 3,410 (2,869) 1,240
() 67 30 (30) 67
11,638 47,847 (44,023) 15,462
()
2021
11,121 43,716 (40,519) 14,318
24 2,908 (2,913) 19
408 3,158 (3,036) 530
391 3,046 (2,922) 515
6 27 @n 6
11 85 87 9
191 2,119 (2,144) 166
2,411 1,926 (1,305) 3,032
14,155 53,827 (49,917) 18,065
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2020
8,451 34,037 (31,367) 11,121
69 4,156 (4,201) 24
120 2,640 (2,352) 408
107 2,541 (2,257) 391
6 20 (20) 6
7 79 (75) 11
246 1,921 (1,976) 191
1,986 1,653 (1,228) 2,411
10,872 44,407 (41,124) 14,155
2021
130 2,566 (2,539) 157
1,088 2,257 (1,895) 1,450
22 61 (61) 22
1,240 4,884 (4,495) 1,629
2020
69 1,449 (1,388) 130
610 1,916 (1,438) 1,088
20 45 (43) 22
699 3,410 (2,869) 1,240
2021 12 31
14 16 2020 12 16
2021 12 31
0 8.33 2020 0 8.33
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)
2021
67 17 an 67
2020
67 30 (30) 67
10 2021 12 31
10
)
2021 12 31
2014 0.225 10
2015 22 0,453 0
2016 24 0,510 0
2017 25 0.570 0
)
2021 2020
18.34 2.87 18.57 4.14
17.23 (0.42) 14.90 (1.27)
19.11 (0.69)
16.21 1.76 18.34 2.87
14.92 1.35 16.05 1.34
2021 12 31 16.21 2020  18.34

4.36 2020 5.55
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2021
40.54 33.66 33.40 25.98
61.75 61.75 61.75 61.75
7.44 14.59 13.16 23.70
37.41 37.41 37.41 37.41
2.50 3.50 4.58 5.58
3.36 3.36 3.36 3.36
1.43 1.43 1.43 1.43
2020
29.03 22.81 22.91 17.05
48.50 48.50 48.50 48.50
8.94 16.09 14.66 25.20
36.10 36.10 36.10 36.10
3.50 4.50 5.58 6.58
3.51 3.51 3.51 3.51
1.43 1.43 1.43 1.43
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2020
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2021 12 31
123 2020
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2021
/
225 300 300 330 1,155 75
870
157 210 240 607 203
660
225 457 510 570 1,762 1,808
2020
2,131
1,903
225 300 300 330 1,155 75
52 158 240 450 420
157 210 240 607 203
50 180 230 100
52 135 240 427 233
275 741 803 1,050 2,869 5,065
0.42 2020 1.27
14.90
CMB WLB
CMB WLB
1ASB IAS 19
118

187/432
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
349 401
(284) (341)
65 60
12
2022
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
(10) 12)
(10) (12)
2021 12 31 2020 64
2021 2020
341 363
10 12
1 6
42) (25)
(6) 2
(22) 5
10
® (22)

12 31 284 341
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2021 2020
401 385
1 6
1 58
42) (25)
12) (23)
12 31 349 401
2021 2020
202 57.9 259 64.5
71 20.3 64 16.0
76 21.8 78 19.5
349 100.0 401 100.0
2021 12 31 53 2020 65
2021 2020
1.4 0.4
0.4 0.1
5.0 5.0
2021 2020
2021 2020
16,539 13,907
4,399 3,347
1,553 1,394
22,491 18,648
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41
2021 2020
6,065 5,309
1,471 1,520
7,536 6,829
42
2021 2020
12,790 7,236
1,870 993
14,660 8,229
2021
b el ECL ECL
8,210 3,724 856 12,790
2020
1 EL ECL ECL
5,560 1,073 603 7,236
43
2021 2020
@ 34,236 34,302
(b) 159,306 146,559
240,284 144,816
10,715 18,479
2,104 1,985
446,645 346,141
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@
11,700
2012 ’
180 12 08 5.20 11,694 2 11,696
20,000
2018 ’
120 11 15 4.65 19,995 @ 19,994
31,689 1 31,690
CMB WLB
3.75
2017 T*+1.75 400
/ 120 11 22 2,613 (67) 2,546
2,613 (67) 2,546
T
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Ooooooo
®
30,000
36 208 3.95 29,983 17 (30,000)
300
36 20 0.25 2,441 2 (249) 2,164
600
36 2009 Libor + 3,920 1) 3,823
0.74
30,000
36 2019 3.45 29,991 w 29,990
20,000
36 20 3.33 19,996 1 19,997
60
3 2009 Libor + 392 (10) 382
0.74
400
36 202 1.10 2,610 @ (62) 2,546
300
36 2020 0.95 1,955 ®) (41) 1,908
10,000
36 2020 3.48 9,998 9,998
11
10,000
36 202 3.40 9,999 w 9,998
20,000
36 2021 3.18 19,997 @ 19,995
10,000
36 202 2.90 9,999 16 9,998
300
2 2021 1.25 1,912 2 ® 1,912
300
60 2021 0.55 1,912 7 %) 1,912
101,256 43,819 16 (468)  (30,000) 114,623
) CMB WLB 2021 12 31 37 263
2020 12 31 37 293
) CMB WLB 2021 12 31 30 191
2020 12 31 30 196
) CMB WLB 2021 12 31 30 191
2020 12 31 30 196
) CMB WLB 2021 12 31 45 287
2020 12 31
) CMB WLB 2021 12 31 33 210
2020 12 31
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CMBFLC

60 1 3.25 o0 5,873 6 65)  (5.814)

36 Zoii 5.24 4000 3,999 1 (4,000)

36 2018 wso 3,999 1 (4,000)

36 2012 4.50 4000 3,998 2 (4,000)
36 200 ss0 0 1,498 2 1,500
60 2019 4.00 o0 499 499

13

36 209 ses 2,996 3 2,999
60 2019 3.00 o0 5,843 10 (148) 5,705
120 2019 3.63 10 648 1 (16) 633
36 2019 3.60 3000 2,995 3 2,998

12 2020 1.73 @ 261 (261)
120 2020 a0 1,992 1 1,993
60 2020 1.8 500 5,204 6 (132) 5,078
120 zoig 2.75 0 2,588 3 (65) 2,526
36 et ses 3,989 4 3,993

12 P 1.50 # 131 @ (129)
36 202 se0 0 4,000 ®) 3,992
60 2021 2.00 0 2,584 4 (49) 2,539
120 2021 2.88 0 2,588 5 3 2,520
18 20% 1.16 %0 326 ®) 318
36 2z s 0 2,000 @ 1,996
60 202 2.00 2 130 1 1) 126
y 36 20z 1.25 %0 3,876 2 3 3,805
60 20z 1.75 0 1,938 1 (46) 1,893
iy 36 202 0.50 10 760 (39) 721
. 12 o5y Libor + ® 382 382

0.55
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2 122053 0.50 % 216 216
46,513 18,800 44 (721)  (18,204) 46,432
() CMBFLC 2021 12 31 2020 12 31 260
() CMBFLC 2021 12 31 2020 12 31 140
() CMBFLC
CMBILM 2021 12 31 152
967 2020 12 31 98 639 CMB WLB
CMBILM 2021 12 31 30 191 2020 12 31
30 196
() CMBILM 2021 12 31 43 273
2020 12 31 43 282
( ) CvB WLB CMBILM 2021 12 31 2020 12 31 40
261
() CMBILM 2021 12 31 21 132
2020 12 31 CMB WLB CMBILM 2021 12 31
32 204 2020 12 31 32 209
() CMBFLC 2021 12 31 32
2020 12 31
() CMBFLC 2021 12 31 500 2020 12 31
500
() CMBFLC 2021 12 31 800 2020 12 31
() CMBFLC 2021 12 31 24 155
2020 12 31
() CMBFLC 2021 12 31 53 335
2020 12 31
() CMBFLC 2021 12 31 70 2020 12 31
x ) CMBILM 2021 12 31 30 191
2020 12 31 CMB WLB CMBILM 2021 12 31
51 2020 12 31
(xiv) CMB WLB CMBILM 2021 12 31 10 72
2020 12 31
(xv) CMB WLB CMBILM 2021 12 31 60 382
2020 12 31
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CMBICHC
300
36 2018 3.72 1,962 (25) (1,937)
600
36 2021 1.38 3,874 ®) (52) 3,816
1,92 3,874 ®) a7 (1,937) 3,816
( ) CMB WLB CMBICHC 2021 12 31 11 68
2020 12 31
44
2021 2020
50,565 22,557
38,500 31,200
5,274 3,128
2,063 2,021
951 3,610
47 127
42,170 41,812
139,570 104,455
45
2021 2020

20,629

4,591

25,220
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2021 2021 12 31 25,220 25,220
46
@
2017
2017
10 25 4.40 20 50 6,597
2017
2017
12 2 4,81 100 275 27,468
325 34,065
() 2017 10 25 1,000
20 50
4.40 16.68
() 2017 12 22 27,500
100 275
4.81 16.68
)
Tier Tier 5.125
Tier 5.125
Tier
Tier CBIRC
CBIRC
CSRC
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CBIRC
34,065
Tier
®)
2020 3.95 500 49,989
100
15021 3,69 430 42,989
100
930 92,978
2021 2021 12 31
A 500 49,989 500 49,989
15021 430 42,989 430 42,989
500 49,989 430 42,989 930 92,978
) 2020 50,000
2020 Tier 2020
100 2020
2020
() 2021 12 43,000
2021 Tier 2021 2020
100 2021
2021

197/432
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CBIRC

62

EDINETOOOO
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CBIRC
Tier
Tier
2021 2020
858,745 723,750
731,702 639,696
127,043 84,054
3,613 1,651
3,613 1,651
(3,613) (1,651)
6,936 6,604
3,300 2,851
3,636 3,753
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47
2021 2020
12 31 67,523 67,523
48
2021 2020
FVTOCI 11,459 4,281
FVTOCI 2,578 3,064
88 73
922 789
15,047 8,207
49
)
50
MOF
10
2021 2020
71,158 62,291
10,979 8,867
12 31 82,137 71,158
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51
1.5
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
98,082 90,151
17,206 7,931
12 31 115,288 98,082
52
@
2021 2020
2020 1 1.253 31,601
2019 1 1.20 30,264
®)
2021 2020
10,979 8,867
17,206 7,931
1 1.522 2020 1 1.253 38,385 31,601
66,570 48,399
2021 2022 18
2021
53

200/432
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2021 2020
12,794 12,547
4,554 7,873
543,652 508,385
41,632 73,318
188,376 217,325
523,516 282,240
5,023,050 4,510,864
290,941 451,978
23,179 46,526
1,183,662 1,047,040
552,498 449,428
6,392 6,693
49,495 49,495
12,582 7,630
5,521
945 1,057
26,833 26,300
17,701 18,200
3,228 3,961
79,712 71,043
109,871 74,233
8,700,134 7,866,136
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2020 2019

159,987 331,622
732,631 699,161
55,710 59,494
36,105 36,600
26,866 49,624
137,857 126,673
6,150,241 5,443,144
15,853 12,194
20,926 17,205
7,536 6,829
13,164 13,468
14,503 8,201
398,672 291,246
119,395 86,218
7,889,446 7,181,679
25,220 25,220
127,043 84,054
76,681 76,681
14,866 7,951
(26)
82,137 71,158
105,941 94,067
340,271 293,523
38,385 31,601
144 228
810,688 684,457
8,700,134 7,866,136
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2021 25,220 34,065 49,989 76,681 7,951 (26) 71,158 94,067 293,523 31,601 228 684,457
N - 42,989 N 6,915 26 10,979 11,874 46,748 6,784 @4 126,231
- - - - - - - — 100,794 - 100,79
- - - - 8,720 2% - - - - (&%) 8,662
N - _ N 8,720 26 _ — 100,79 _ 84) 118,456
- - 42,989 - - - - - - - _ 42,989
- - - - - - 10,979 11,874  (64.851) 6,784 - (35,219
- - - - - - 10,979 - (0,979 - - -
- - - - - - - 11,874 (11,874) - - -
2020 - - - - - - - - - (31,601) - (31,601)
2021 - - - - - - - - (38,385) 38,385 - -
- - - - - - - - (1,638) - - (1,638)
- - - - - - - - (1,975) - - (1,975)
FVTOCH
- - - - (1,805) - - - 1,805 - - -
2021 12 31 25,220 34,065 92,978 76,661 14,866 N 82,137 105,041 340,271 38,385 144 810,688
2020 25,220 34,065 _ 76,661 8,676 (26) 62,291 85,820 255,155 30,264 206 578,352
N - 49,989 N (725) N 8,867 8,247 38,368 1,337 22 106,105
- _ _ - _ - _ _ 88,674 _ _ 88,674
- - - - (665) - - - - - 2 (643)
N _ _ N (665) N _ _ 88,674 _ 22 88,031
- - 49,989 - - - - - - - - 49,989
- - - - - - 8,867 8,247  (50,366) 1,337 - (31,95)
- - - - - - 8,867 - (8,867) - - -
- - - - - - - 8,47 (8,247) - - -
2019 - - - - - - - - ~ (30,268) - (30,264)
2020 B _ _ _ _ - _ ~ (31,601) 31,601 - -
- - - - - - - - (1,651) - - (1,651)
FVTOCH
- - - - (60) - - - 60 - - -
2020 12 31 25,220 34,065 49,989 76,681 7,951 (26) 71,158 94,067 293523 31,601 228 684,457
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55
@
2021 2020
79,129 37,496
75,919 83,688
65,897 111,706
527,341 282,867
53,468 37,033
801,754 552,790
®
2021 144,816 19,084 194,775 1,985 26 23,047 14,242 397,975
319,707 14,692 63,872 6,860 405,131
(226,012)  (21,363)  (55,771) (3,697) (4,835)  (311,678)
(3,768) (7,630)  (35,685) (47,083)
3,850 3,850
7,749 555 8,304
35,685 35,685
5,541 (811) 53 4,783
(15) (257) 656 384
(495) (1,530) (216) (2,241)
2021 12 31 240,284 11,092 201,142 2,104 26 26,650 13,812 495,110
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26,774

22,592
(28,992)

(88)
43
(1,245)
19,084

209,271

33,606
(45,486)

(278)
179

(2,517)
194,775

2,829 26 9,325

14,417

(867)
(8,820)  (32,321)

7,976

32,321

262

(90)

1,985 26 23,047

14,379 611,888
283,626

(4,644)  (493,809)
(51,811)

3,911 3,911
596 8,572
32,321

6,676

484

(3,883)

14,242 397,975

2020 349,284
213,011

(413,820)

(10,670)

7,042

(1)

2020 12 31 144,816

©

2021 2020 12 31
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CMB WLB
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2021
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2020
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2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

18,923 16,828 135,412 124,362 49,584 43,841 203,919 185,031
« ) 69,222 65,461 (18,571) (21,019) (50,651) (44,442)
88,145 82,289 116,841 103,343 (1,067) (601) 203,919 185,031
24,807 24,017 60,155 51,426 9,485 4,043 94,447 79,486
20,943 15,723 2,018 1,519 6,050 5,639 29,011 22,881
133,895 122,029 179,014 156,288 14,468 9,081 327,377 287,398
(1,917) 1,722) (2,860) (2,653) (4,080) (3,340) (8.857) (7,715)
(1,672) 1,722) (2,367) (2,484) (220) (210) (4,259) (4,416)
(40,772) (34,831) (56,451) (50,677) (6,540) (5,175)  (103,763) (90,683)
89,534 83,754 117,336 100,474 3,628 356 210,498 184,584
(25,946) (28,317) (39,627) (36,640) (782) (68) (66,355) (65,025)
4,030 2,881 4,030 2,881
63,588 55,437 77,709 63,834 6,876 3,169 148,173 122,440
() 2,278 2,550 3,278 3,738 18,206 10,835 23,762 17,123
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 2021 12 31 2020 12 31 2021 12 31 2020 12 31 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
4,954,212 4,489,868 2,908,405 2,617,109 1,286,507 1,163,007 9,149,124 8,269,984
23,654 14,922 23,654 14,922
4,980,618 4,477,918 2,329,192 2,075,680 972,858 994,548 8,282,668 7,548,146
)
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2021 2020
327,377 287,398
148,173 122,440

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
9,149,124 8,269,984
9,954 9,954
571 629
81,639 72,893
7,733 7,988
9,249,021 8,361,448
8,282,668 7,548,146
22,491 18,648
1,353 1,073
76,828 63,227
8,383,340 7,631,094
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CMB WLB CMBICHC CMBFLC CMFM CMBWM

2021 12 31 2020 12 31 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
4,155,509 3,779,914 3,492,876 3,249,998
1,199,329 1,045,508 1,177,342 1,026,332
725,595 640,583 711,389 625,403
997,986 896,144 979,018 871,249
169,282 165,961 166,933 164,666
567,191 513,998 550,499 504,742
590,272 517,523 580,623 508,471
210,633 220,214 208,569 215,032
633,224 581,603 507,001 465,201
9,249,021 8,361,448 8,383,340 7,631,004

5% 2 2021 2020 2021 2020
51,220 40,757 42,939 19,611 145,403 124,809
6,198 6,149 24,002 24,297 41,451 35,897
4,319 4,525 17,971 19,829 31,286 28,261
4,432 4,263 22,252 21,606 35,379 32,568
1,617 1,790 2,919 1,854 6,108 5,785
3,958 4,132 9,744 12,227 19,448 18,040
3,877 4,150 12,191 11,611 20,192 18,321
861 1,053 1,575 1,650 2,632 2,830
61,382 53,017 14,490 9,755 25,478 20,867
137,864 119,836 148,173 122,440 327,377 287,398
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2021 2020

159,357 329,611

7,517 7,080
157,572 142,881
324,446 479,572
29,241 11,201
195,166 345,302
34,441 35,787
81,357 120,238
340,205 512,618
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2021
—— ECL ECL
197,208 7,353 254 204,815
52,198 6,337 3 58,538
145,010 1,016 251 146,277
162,320 1,711 188 164,219
339,155 5,684 790 345,629
141,727 4,896 2 146,625
26,611 2 26,613
115,116 4,896 120,012
1,231,831 7,903 122 1,239,856
126,995 1,555 128,550
2,199,236 29,102 1,356 2,229,694
2020
12 ECL ECL ECL
212,580 508 265 213,353
95,914 399 3 96,316
116,666 109 262 117,037
120,748 241 3 120,992
265,213 1,671 292 267,176
209,483 3,132 45 212,660
120,671 198 45 120,914
88,812 2,934 91,746
1,128,152 6,468 113 1,134,733
100,419 100,419
2,036,595 12,020 718 2,049,333
2021 12 31 16,974 (2020 12 31 12,965
) 9,552 (2020 12 31 6,516 )
137,693 2020 12 31 101,511
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4,441,835

2020

470,782

2020

507
294

801

2021 12 31
2020 12 31 3,606,998
2021
593,062
CBRC
2014 CBIRC
®)
2021
480
234
714
58(e)
©
2021 12 31
1,678 2020 573
@

PBOC
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2021 2020
30,020 27,095
2021 2020
13,750 10,419
7,421 1,884
21,171 12,303
2021 2020
263,589 264,107
(263,589) (264,107)
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CMBWM
2021 2020
2,683,636 2,386,085
2021 2020
86,098
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(

)

COVID-19
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ECL

60(a) (i)

30

90
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OooooOodd
( ) ECL
ECL
P 12
LGD
EAD
)
GDP cPI PPI
M2
GDP cPI
2022 5.34 2021  8.84
2.43 2021 2.11
2021 12 31
10 10 ECL
3.4 2020 12 31
10 10 ECL 1.5
2020 12 31 2.5
12
ECL
COVID-19 2021 12 31

CovID-19
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2021 12 31
2020 12 31

)
AAA
M+ M-
A A
A-

2021 12 31
12 31 1,290,843

24,878

11,235,033
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58
2021 12 31
2020 12 31 10,192,927
16,517
2021 2020
340 710
(228) (428)
112 282
1,345,363 823,803
29,468 242,828
422,427 398,206
28,415 83,314
57,994 50,525
(10,935) (7,047)
1,872,732 1,501,719
1,872,844 1,592,001
1,596,105 2020



)

)

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

2021 2020
4,124 7,358
2021
1 EL ECL ECL
4,517,239 76,286 53,615 4,647,140
468,264 (4,154) (1,093) 463,017
20,436 (20,293) (143)
(69,411) 69,966 (555)
(23,692) (10,451) 34,143
(35,105) (35,105)
4,912,836 111,354 50,862 5,075,052
2020
b L ECL ECL
4,088,065 80,141 52,565 4,220,771
471,854 (8,929) 7,178 470,103
10,882 (10,782) (100)
(31,708) 32,735 (1,027)
(21,854) (16,879) 38,733
(43,734) (43,734)
4,517,239 76,286 53,615 4,647,140
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2021
19 ECL ECL ECL
1,044,826 971 14,590 1,060,387
140,141 (656) 9,487 148,972
(1,647) 1,647
1,183,320 1,962 24,077 1,209,359
2020
12 EcL ECL ECL
916,206 580 4,681 921,467
129,902 (29) 10,869 140,742
(420) 420
(862) 862
(1,822) (1,822)
1,044,826 971 14,590 1,060,387
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0oooooo
22 23
() 60 ( )
58(a) 42
2021
ECL ECL

" ECL " ECL

ECL ECL
553,655 553,655

80,653 1 80,664 (367) ) (378)
196,245 106 196,351 (2,859) W (2,860)
528,424 140 528,564 (4,123) (140)  (4,263)
FvTOCt 626,007 2,236 112 628,355 (4,700) 875)  (1,047)  (6,622)
2020
ECL ECL

" ECL " ECL

ECL ECL
525,118 525,118
103,437 11 103,448 (266) Iety) Q@17
225,411 1,105 226,516 (345) (31) (376)
286,739 140 286,879 (603) (140) (743)

FvTOCt 510,011 14 282 510,307 (2,915) (1,099)  (4,014)
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()
2021
487,777 57,019 18,482 2,787 566,965 9,089 22,611
668,673 108,887 12,162 8,356 798,078 17,085 14,879
4,992,946 156,000 141,605 34,960 5,325,511 24,478 173,238
2,037,147 108,939 20,348 10,081 2,176,515 17,095 24,893
254,488 111,972 10,513 4,979 381,952 17,569 12,862
8,441,031 543,717 203,110 61,163 9,249,021 85,316 248,483
1,115,553 108,820 4,894 9,327 1,238,504 17,075 5,988
5,830,585 346,349 129,300 40,844 6,347,078 54,346 158,184
FVTPL
71,041 18,554 1,438 10 91,043 2,911 1,759
390,550 50,425 221 3,345 444,541 7,912 270
235,507 16,336 9,317 924 262,084 2,565 11,399
7,643,236 540,484 145,170 54,450 8,383,340 84,809 177,600
797,795 3,233 57,940 6,713 865,681 507 70,883
) 2,117,722 71,179 24,448 16,345 2,229,694 11,169 29,909
459,207 451,419 8,554 16,144 935,324 70,833 10,465
(388,786) (395,153) (10,651)  (9.748)  (804,338) (62,004)  (13,030)
(93,522) 38,175 8 3,059 (52,280) 5,990 10
(23,101) 94,441 (2,089) 9,455 78,706 14,819 (2,555)
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FVTPL

(

)

)

)
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OooooOodd
2020

482,885 31,302 21,446 2,573 538,206 4,786 25,419
430,766 142,362 26,582 15,737 615,447 21,769 31,507
4,423,821 193,624 134,443 42,814 4,794,702 29,606 159,350
1,955,095 98,394 27,110 14,111 2,094,710 15,045 32,132
211,776 89,613 13,099 3,895 318,383 13,701 15,525
7,504,343 555,295 222,680 79,130 8,361,448 84,907 263,933
1,222,006 90,234 13,122 10,011 1,335,373 13,798 15,553
5,079,939 354,012 158,228 36,157 5,628,336 54,132 187,541
80,802 26,958 2,432 220 110,412 4,122 2,883
291,536 48,293 902 3,425 344,156 7,384 1,069
185,522 15,592 8,523 3,180 212,817 2,384 10,102
6,859,805 535,089 183,207 52,993 7,631,094 81,820 217,148
644,538 20,206 39,473 26,137 730,354 3,087 46,785
1,920,009 89,591 21,901 17,832 2,049,333 13,699 25,958
524,948 499,708 19,346 13,595 1,057,597 76,410 22,930
(449,079) (425,752) (13,061) (26,723)  (914,615) (65,102)  (15,481)
(46,676) 20,570 18 45,821 19,733 3,145 21
29,193 94,526 6,303 32,693 162,715 14,453 7,470
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020
79) 79 (232) 232
(262) 262 (402) 402
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0000000
2021
(
1
)
566,965 553,655 - - - 13,310
798,078 723,941 63,581 10,507 49 -
() 5,325,511 2,134,671 2,750,245 376,357 64,238 -
2,176,515 159,659 288,349 884,079 795,611 48,817
() 381,952 - - - - 381,952
9,249,021 3,571,926 3,102,175 1,270,943 859,898 444,079
1,238,594 1,081,661 149,900 6,311 722 -
6,347,078 4,820,271 718,509 804,755 348 3,195
FVTPL 91,043 1,428 2,075 8,177 158 79,205
13,812 1,042 2,989 8,153 1,628 -
444,541 96,239 220,608 88,974 38,720 -
) 248,272 84 - - - 248,188
8,383,340 6,000,725 1,094,081 916,370 41,576 330,588
865,681  (2,428,799) 2,008,094 354,573 818,322 113,491
2020
(
1
)
538,206 525,118 - - - 13,088
615,447 524,010 87,213 3,840 384 -
) 4,794,702 1,861,076 2,496,358 365,315 71,953 -
2,094,710 351,146 369,495 781,707 524,737 67,625
) 318,383 - - - - 318,383
8,361,448 3,261,350 2,953,066 1,150,862 597,074 399,096
1,335,373 952,312 351,961 14,152 3,619 13,329
5,628,336 4,387,216 599,077 638,419 292 3,332
FVTPL 110,412 460 6,336 8,367 130 95,119
14,242 1,015 2,805 8,577 1,845 -
344,156 110,389 105,553 120,655 7,559 -
() 198,575 763 15 - 4 197,793
7,631,004 5,452,155 1,065,747 790,170 13,449 300,573
730,354 (2.190,805) 1,887,319 360,692 583,625 89,523
( )2021 12 31 2020 12 31
)
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020
25 25 25 25
(3,605) 3,605 (3,266) 3,266
(6,830) 6,927 (5,373) 5,444
12
ALCO
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2021
. 1

¢ G 79,129 487,836 566,965
59,862 601,897 60,072 65,405 10,793 49 798,078
20,719 545,165 368,482 1,333,756 1,387,033 1,650,468 19,888 5,325,511
» 4,058 88,783 60,315 304,846 912,302 795,813 10,071 237 2,176,515

-FVTPL
4,058 67,580 31,52 95,228 134,821 35,217 3,076 371,513
- 8,882 11,185 133,930 425,327 590,001 237 1,169,652
-FvToct 12,312 17,606 75,688 352,244 170,505 628,355
-Fvroct 6,995 6,995
) 103,999 10,432 13,946 14,551 14,801 6,107 214,113 3,013 381,952
267,767 1,246,277 502,815 1,718,558 2,325,109 2,452,437 712,020 24,08 9,249,021
627,957 313,745 122,210 153,551 18,350 2,781 1,238,504
) 4,185,788 315,077 316,452 719,506 809,176 1,079 6,347,078

FVTPL

12,942 13,301 11,720 13,740 20,629 18,711 91,043
506 536 2,989 8,153 1,628 13,812
21,181 70,472 222,647 88,974 41,267 444,541
) 160,991 37,150 15,455 24,744 9,404 519 248,272
4,987,678 700,969 53,845 1,137,177 954,686 65,985 8,383,340
/ (4,719,911) 545,308 (34,030) 581,381 1,370,423 2,386,452 712,020 24,038 865,681
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2020
. 1
[GRO)) 60,560 477,646 538,206
91,125 360,355 62,201 88,213 4,169 384 615,447
12,178 488,169 311,334 1,201,347 1,298,657 1,469,872 13,145 4,794,702
Cy 5,409 183,039 135,457 383,294 842,201 535,708 7,710 1,802 2,004,710
-FVTPL
5,409 173,666 63,803 203,872 77,242 18,432 571 542,995
- 2,270 31,937 110,511 467,217 420,686 1,648 1,034,269
-Fvroct 7,103 39,717 68,911 297,742 96,590 244 510,307
- Fvtoct 7,139 7,139
) 70,325 6,035 9,720 7,170 26,015 5,842 190,006 3,270 318,383
239,507 1,046,508 518,712 1,680,024 2,171,042 2,011,806 675,362 18,307 8,361,448
542,955 251,299 171,884 351,464 14,152 3,619 1,335,373
) 3,704,751 326,452 354,084 600,003 642,047 909 5,628,336
FVTPL
14,264 8,777 10,745 32,994 20,374 23,258 110,412
527 488 2,805 8,577 1,845 14,242
61,167 45,304 105,552 124,574 7,559 344,156
) 99,722 48,613 15,632 25,081 8,895 632 198,575
4,361,692 696,835 598,137 1,117,989 818,619 37,822 7,631,004
/ (4,122,005) 349,763 (79,425) 562,035 1,352,423 1,073,984 675,362 18,307 730,354
)
) FVTPL
)
)
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2021
X 1
566,965 566,965 79,129 487,836
798,078 800,869 59,862 602,201 62,062 65,229 11,466 49
5,325,511 6,680,629 20,719 560,371 398,738 1,503,759 1,831,318 2,345,796 19,928
2,153,125 2,540,798 3,715 90,330 67,149 339,704 1,050,476 979,116 10,071 237
“FVTPL 348,123 355,501 3,715 64,405 28,852 90,837 127,527 37,089 3,076
- 1,169,652 1,453,059 12,008 17,405 159,993 529,031 734,385 237
-Fvroct 628,355 725,243 13,017 20,892 88,874 393,918 207,642
-FvToct 6,995 6,995 6,995
154,308 154,308 102,918 9,891 13,745 13,795 1,848 528 7,670 3,013
8,997,987 10,743,569 266,343 1,262,793 541,604 1,922,487 2,895,108 3,325,489 505,577 24,078
1,238,504 1,245,870 628,157 315,523 123,610 156,000 19,668 2,012
6,347,018 6,500,805 4,215,760 318,932 323,900 754,023 887,030 1,151
FVTPL 63,761 64,232 12,926 10,408 7,387 4,748 10,068 18,695
13,812 15,087 511 545 3,080 8,974 1,977
444,541 459,323 22,002 70,839 226,189 94,221 46,072
158,001 158,001 74,533 36,128 15,454 23,052 8,406 518
8,265,877 8,443,408 4,931,376 703,504 541,744 1,167,002 1,028,367 71,325

1,386,481 1,386,481

231/432
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2020
. 1
538,206 538,206 60,560 477,646
615,447 617,381 98,748 369,529 55,856 88,847 4,017 384
4,794,702 6,066,759 12,178 506,006 350,584 1,372,740 1,700,755 2,109,999 14,407
2,047,438 2,513,915 5,196 266,655 155,314 464,750 1,031,004 579,923 9,001 1,802
-FVTRL 495,723 503,234 5,196 170,739 56,381 183,702 69,024 17,599 503
- 1,034,269 1,350,789 50,876 40,743 185,488 603,526 467,772 736 1,648
-FvToc 510,307 652,753 45,040 58,190 95,560 358,544 94,552 623 244
-FvToct 7,139 7,139 7,139
126,744 137,759 69,028 25,423 9,732 6,760 12,701 383 10,760 2,972
8,122,537 9,874,020 245,710 1,167,703 571,486 1,933,007 2,748,567 2,690,680 497,497 19,271
1,335,373 1,346,594 543,102 252,465 174,326 357,759 15,160 3,782
5,628,336 5,606,986 3,704,881 316,664 350,989 617,139 706,355 958
FVTPL 60,351 61,043 14,219 6,308 1,008 7,413 8,828 23,177
14,242 15,705 524 484 2,836 9,586 2,275
344,156 366,059 61,274 45,680 111,340 139,139 8,626
125,366 125,366 29,660 47,950 15,629 22,876 8,619 632
7,507,824 7,611,753 4,291,862 685,185 588,206 1,119,363 887,687 39,450

1,344,434 1,344,434

@
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Tier Tier
CBIRC
CBIRC
2021 12 31
CMB WLB CMBICHC CMBFLC CMFM CMBWM
2013 CBIRC

2014 18 CBIRC

CBIRC
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OoooooO
2021
567,612 823,679 1,240,265 4,966 2,636,522 11,831 (11,974)
565,833 823,679 1,240,265 4,966 2,634,743 11,831 (11,974)
391 391
1,388 1,388
647,081 506,850 29,615 1,052 1,184,598 10,041 (13,966)
26,577 14,373 1,517 1,052 43,519 985 (164)
485,140 357,685 20,086 862,911 7,530 (7,048)
587 1,157 1,744
134,777 133,635 8,012 276,424 1,526 (6,754)
134,230 5,424 277 139,931 1,472 (1,237)
62,094 907 63,001 344
62,094 907 63,001 (265)
10,001 3,475 60 13,536 1,128 (751)
41 135 217 393 (221)
2,883 702 3,585 46
2,883 702 3,585 46
FVTPL
191 967 581 1,739 an
191 967 581 1,739 an
72 1,360 1,432 (88)
72 1,360 1,432 (88)
1,349,114 1,336,992 1,274,981 6,720 3,967,807 23,390 (27,282)
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2020
561,831 1,232,396 1,499,175 2,913 3,296,315 12,568 (12,327)
561,522 1,223,977 1,499,110 2,913 3,287,522 12,559 (12,318)
65 65 6 ®)
89 9 98
220 8,410 8,630 3 (6)
630,018 614,205 17,309 3,570 1,265,102 33,098 (36,220)
58,155 31,280 1,452 2,703 93,590 1,691 (1,461)
440,943 477,298 12,789 867 931,897 20,063 (20,136)
17 706 723

130,903 104,921 3,068 238,892 11,344 (14,623)
5,924 138,635 631 145,190 1,538 (1,451)

488 67,353 67,841 490
488 67,353 67,841 (464)
4,948 3,929 631 9,508 1,048 (987)
32 1,030 2,871 819 4,752 (15)
32 1,030 2,871 819 4,752 (15)

FVTPL
471 909 1,358 2,738 @7
471 909 1,358 2,738 @7
1,499 74 1,573 68 @
1,499 74 1,573 68 @
1,198,276 1,988,674 1,521,418 7,302 4,715,670 47,272 (50,061)
2021 2020 12 31
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2021 2020

3,627 9,644
139 266

3,048 5,574
440 3,804

2,382 6,011

6,009 15,655

2019 CBIRC
CBIRC
2014 CBIRC
()]
)
IFRS
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)
2021
FVTPL 20,517 292,849 4,879 318,245
19,102 127,411 373 146,886
102 102
1,180 2 3,727 4,909
133 161,865 772 162,770
2,396 2,396
1,175 7 1,182
FVTPL 1,022 28,856 29,878
1,022 28,856 29,878
23,390 23,390
FVTPL 7,281 7,281
FVTOCI 127,847 508,191 636,038
FVTOCI 431,291 56,713 488,004
FVTOCI 2,269 4,726 6,995
151,655 1,284,577 73,599 1,509,831
16,832 185 17,017
16,406 16,406
426 185 611
FVTPL 19,569 19,028 8,147 46,744
11,596 11,596
377 377
7,600 7,600
373 18,651 8,147 27,171
27,282 27,282
36,401 46,495 8,147 91,043
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2020
FVTPL 25,283 436,470 2,713 464,466
24,267 121,780 456 146,503
96 96
836 836 1,738 3,410
84 136,229 519 136,832
1,259 1,259
175,303 175,303
1,063 1,063
FVTPL 2,618 28,625 14 31,257
2,618 28,625 14 31,257
47,272 47,272
FVTPL 6,856 6,856
FVTOCI 109,282 407,271 516,553
FVTOCI 331,070 44,289 375,359
FVTOCI 2,075 5,064 7,139
139,258 1,250,708 58,936 1,448,902
20,491 499 20,990
20,361 20,361
130 499 629
FVTPL 15,503 18,209 5,649 39,361
1,589 1,589
605 605
13,914 13,914
17,604 5,649 23,253
50,061 50,061
35,994 68,769 5,649 110,412

2021 2020 12 31
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2021 12 31
FVTOCI 873
FVTOCI 3,853
FVTPL 7,281
FVTOCI 56,713
FVTPL
3,491
12
209
15
373
767
5
7
FVTPL 664
FVTPL 7,483
2020 12 31
FvTOCI 1,200
FvTOCI 3,864
FVTPL 6.856
FVTOCI 44,289
FVTPL
456
1,738
502
17
FVTPL 14
FVTPL 206
FVTPL 5,443
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2021 12 31

2020

2020 12 31

12 31
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FVTPL FVTPL FVTOCI FVTOCI
2,727 6,856 44,289 5,064 58,936
339 287 1,365 1,991
48 1,050 1,098

1,832 143 118,229 721 120,925
(68) (107,218) (2,158) (109, 444)

49 (5) 49 93
4,879 7,281 56,713 4,726 73,599
339 287 626
FVTPL FVTPL FVTOCI FVTOCI

2,968 5,779 30,346 3,748 42,841
454 296 1,210 1,960
20 1,469 1,489

539 796 86,003 82 87,420
(1,106) (73,290) (74,396)
(128) (15) (235) (378)
2,727 6,856 44,289 5,064 58,936
454 296 750

2021 2020

5,649 3,105

470 402

3,105 2,686

(860) (453)

217 (91)

8,147 5,649

419 390
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2021

1,169,652 1,235,725 6,659 1,097,435 131,631
2020

1,034,269 1,049,374 3,387 914,025 131,962
2021

34,236 35,173 - 35,173 -

159,306 160,893 - 160,893 -

193,542 196,066 - 196,066 -
2020

34,302 35,243 - 35,243 -

146,559 149,115 - 149,115 -

180,861 184,358 - 184,358 -
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61
@
16,900 29.97
7,559,427,375 -
(CMG ( ( ()))
7,000
3,289,470,337 (13'(04 »
(CMSNCL)
600
1,258,542,349 4.99 -
600
944,013,171 3.74 -
7,778
1,147,377,415 4.55 -
Best Winner 0.05
Investment 386,924,063 1.53 - - -
Co., Ltd.
China
0.06
Merchants
Union (BVI) 477,903,500 1.89 - - -
Limited
10
55,196,540 0.22 - 85
11,000
’ 9.97 (
2,515,193,034 -
«»
16,191
1,574,729,111 6.24 -
3,191

696,450,214 2.76 -
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103,552,616

1,399
75,617,340

500
54,721,930
299 10,121,823

100
815,030,635

30,790
815,030,635
7,214 422,770,418

16,175
301,089,738

21,599
310,125,822

11,683
310,125,822

8,000
296,291,627

4,129

CMBICHC

0.30

0.22

3.23
cCen

100
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12,000
- - 100
CMBFLC
1,161
CMB - - 100
wLB
1,310
- - 55
CMFM
5,000
- - 100
50
- - 100
500 ) ] "
( ) oM 29.97 2020  29.97
( )2021 12 31 CMG CMSNCL 13.04 2020  13.04
() 9.97 2020  9.97
() 98.23
2020 4.11
() ( ) 1.68 2020  1.68
) 1.23
1.23
() 1.17 2020  1.17
() CMG
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
CMG 16,900,000,000 16,900,000,000
CMSNCL 7,000,000,000 7,000,000,000

Best Winner Investment Co., Ltd.

China Merchants Union (BVI) Ltd.

CMBICHC
CMBFLC
CMB WLB
CMFM
CMBWM

600,000,000
600,000,000
7,778,000,000
50,000

60,000
10,000,000
100,000,000
30,790,000,000
11,000,000,000
16,191,351,300
3,191,200,000
2,000,000
1,398,941,000
500,000,000
299,020,000
7,274,023,830
16,174,735,425
21,599,175,737
11,683,461,365
8,000,000,000
4,129,000,000
12,000,000,000
1,160,950,575
1,310,000,000
5,000,000,000
50,000,000
500,000,000

600,000,000
600,000,000
7,777,800,000
50,000

60,000
10,000,000
100,000,000
30,790,000,000
11,000,000,000
16,191,351,300
3,191,200,000
2,000,000
1,398,941,000
500,000,000
299,020,000
7,274,023,830
16,174,735,425
21,599,175,737
11,683,461,365
8,000,000,000
4,129,000,000
6,000,000,000
1,160,950,575
1,310,000,000
5,000,000,000
50,000,000
500,000,000
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2021 12 31

2021 1 1

2021 12 31

2020 1 1

2020 12 31

2020 1 1

2020 12 31

2021

265
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CMSNCL CMBICHC CMBFLC CMB WLB CMFM CMBWM
3,289,470,337 13.04 4,129,000,000 100.00 6,000,000,000 100.00 1,160,950,575 100.00 720,500,000 55.00 5,000,000,000 100.00
6,000,000,000 100.00
3,289,470,337 13.04 4,129,000,000 100.00 12,000,000,000 100.00 1,160,950,575 100.00 720,500,000 55.00 5,000,000,000 100.00
50,000,000 100.00 500,000,000 100.00
50,000,000 100.00 500,000,000 100.00
CMSNCL CMBICHC CMBFLC CMB WLB CMFM CMBWM
3,289,470,337 13.04 4,129,000,000 100.00 6,000,000,000 100.00 1,160,950,575 100.00 720,500,000 55.00 5,000,000,000 100.00
3,289,470,337 13.04 4,129,000,000 100.00 6,000,000,000 100.00 1,160,950,575 100.00 720,500,000 55.00 5,000,000,000 100.00
50,000,000 100.00 500,000,000 100.00
50,000,000 100.00 500,000,000 100.00
24
12 31
2020 12 31 337
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®
PBOC LPR
2021 2020
C D

4.35 4.35

4.75 4.90 4.75 4.90

0.35 0.35

1.10 2.75 1.10 2.75

2020
©
2021 12 31 CMSNCL 29.97 (2020
29.97 ) ( CMSNCL 13.04 (2020  13.04 )) CMSNCL

2021 2020
- 3,000
- 13,967 1,500
B} 42,645 37,411
- 1,147 1,850
- 29,755 2,667
- 45,708 82,558
- 186 o1
- 3,645 3,615
- 251 380
- 188 292
1,738 1,228
(1,599) (1,336)
669 662
(42) (22)
38 (22)
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61(c)
2021 2020

- 285 485
- 13,366 34,467
- 595 733
- 11,137 1,266
- 410
- 41,235 47,840

- 73
- 1,711 395
- 46 22
- 225 56
927 2,428
(984) (259)
273 719
(1,654) (1,349)
7 8

O) 61(c)
2021 2020

- 14,500 14,500
- 6,044 4,690
- 1,251 967
- 693 387
- 8,700 8,700
516 594
(20) (16)
1,695 1,090
(6) ®)
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2021 2020
- 399
- 17,654 38,862
- 2,512 2,478
_ 7,502 5,467
- 19,704 40,062
_ 46 16
- 7,895 32,577
- 337 823
- 5,068 5,454
738 1,145
(585) (529)
1,411 1,811
(10) 122
@
2021 2020
_ 1,950 4,072
- 37,055 37,331
- 477
- 3,454 1,819
- 7,657 8,789
- 4
- 816 668
- 3,546 6,596
- 1,998 1,048
- 81 113
1,124 989
(258) (195)
(1,294) (3,031)
(96) 112)
111 174
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2021 2020
39,264 40,839
13,508
17,312 30,290
567 503
57,143 85,140
39(a)
an
2021 2020 12 31



@
2017
400

2021

2021
2021

2021 12 31

2020

2020
2020

2020 12 31

63

27
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CMB WLB

OooooOodd
CMB WLB 170 2019 24
CMB WLB
3,753 3,753
227 227
27) 27)
17 117
3,636 3,636
3,979 3,979
234 234
(234) (232)
(226) (226)
3,753 3,753
2021 2020 12 31
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15,942

3,128

2021

56,068

2020 12 31

548

2020

20

2021 12 31
20 12 31

17,491

2021 12 31

924

2021 12 31
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72,001

2021 12 31

5,274 2020 12 31
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@

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021
FVTPL FVTOCI

76,978 76,978 76,978

31,897 31,897 31,897

2,537 307 1,205 4,049 4,049

156,112 156,112 156,112

158,649 109,182 1,205 269,036 269,036
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2020
FVTPL FVTOCI
63,453 99,916 163,369 163,369
37,663 37,663 37,663
3,096 2,691 1,442 7,229 7,229
134,828 134,828 134,828
34 34 34
201,411 140,270 1,442 343,123 343,123
®
2021 12 31
2,777,537 2020 12 31 2,445,644
2021 12 31 1,085,813
2020 12 31 785,489
2021 12 31 174,555
2020 12 31 177,750
2021 12 31
30,896 2020 12 31 48,898
2021 12 31 2,396
2020 12 31 1,225
2021 12 31 6,658 2020
12 31 2,004
2021 12 31
11,004 2020 12,629
2021 12 31

11,998

2020 10,162

257/432



2021 12 31
4,223 2020 2,330
2021 12 31
627 2020 537
2021

1,529,874

65

2020

1,924,836
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China Merchants Bank Chapter VI Financial Statements
Annual Report 2021
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 December 2021
Espreased in miliony af Reremnks uriess othensye wted]

Notes 202 2020
Interest income 6 327,056 307,425
Interes expense i {123,137) (122,394)
R I, s s P P TR TR R TI ik I . .. 1
Few and commission income B 102,318 86,684
Fee and commission expense LI {7158}
DRLI00 AL COMPNIEROITREIN . s cn s R S RS S IO il 79485
Other net income 9 80 22,881
- Disposal of financial instruments at_amprhsed cost {657) (273]
Operating income 327,377 287,398
Operating expenses 10 {116,879) (102,814)
Operating profit before impalrment losses and taxation 210,458 184,584
Expactod cradit losses 14 165,962} (64.871)
Impairment losses on other assets {393 (154)
Share af prafits af jaint ventunes 5 2,877 2,392
Share of profits of associates 26 1,153 489
Profit before taxation 148,173 122,440
Income Tax 15 {27,339} (24,481)
Profit for the year 120,834 97,959
attributable te:
Equaty hobders. of the Bank 119,922 97,342
Haon-controlling interests 912 617
Earnings per share
Basic and deluted (RMB Yuan) 17 &.61 379

The notes form part of these consoldated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Espreased in miliony af Reremnks uriess othensye wted]

Mate 2021 2020
Profit for the year B 120,834 97.959
Other comprehemive incame for the year after tax
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Share af other comprehensve incorne from equity-accounted
investess 133 AG3
et Taer value gainiios) on debt nstruments measured at
fair value through other comprehemsive incomsa 4,156 2.729)
HNet changes in expected credit losses of debt instruments
maeasured af fair value through other comprehensive income 3,036 1.054
Net movement in cash flow hedge reserve 105 {271
Exchange difference on translation of financial statements of
~ foreign epesations {1.574) (2,483)
Items that wall not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
et fair value gain on equity instruments designated at
fair value throwgh other comprehensioe incomae 1,318 481
Remeasurement of defined benefit scheme 15 LE]
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 16 7188 13.198)
Attributable to:
Equaty hobders of the Bank 7,298 12,967)
Mon-controlling interests {109) (231)
Total comprehensive income for the year 128,023 94,761
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 127,220 94,375
Mon-controlling interests BO3 g6

The notes form part of thiese consoldated financial statements

260/432
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170 China Merchants Bank Chapter VIl Financial Statements
Annual Report 2021
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 December 2021
Espreased in miliony af Reremnbs uriess othense wted]
Notes 202 2020

Assets
Cash 13,310 13,088
Precious metals 4,639 1.8970
Balances with central banks 18 553,898 525,358
Balanoes with banks and other financial institutions 19 B0,350 103,335
Placements with banks and other financial instituticns 20 194,421 226,919
Amounts held under resale agreemants 21 524 601 286 263
Loans and advances to customers 22 53353 4,804, 361
Financial imestments at faie value through prnhl or loss 23al 348,123 495 7323
Denvative financial assets 6O 23,3590 47,232
Dbt imvestments at amortised cogl 23(k) 1,185,841 1,049,280
Dbt investments at fair value through other comprehensive mcome 230ch 636,038 516,553
Equity investrents designated at fair value thraugh other

comprehensie income 23(d) 6,955 7,139
Inberests in point veniures 5 14,779 12,403
Interests in associates 26 8875 2.519
Investment properties F 1312 1.623
Progerty and squipmieit 8 BO,415 69,470
Right-of-use assets 2Ka) 18,403 19,104
Intangibde assetls 30 4,066 4,763
Goodwill n 9,954 9,954
Deferred tax assots 32 B1,639 72.893
Other assels 1 122,51 A5.459
Total assetd 9,240 021 2261, 448

The notes form part of these consolidated financial statements
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China Merchants Bank Chapter VIl Financial Statements 171
Annual Report 2021
e Notes 2021 1020
Liabilities
Borrowing from central banks 159,987 331,622
Deposits from banks and ather financial institutions 34 753,018 723,402
Placerments from banks and ather financial institutions EL 170,650 14357
Financial labilities a1 fosr value through profit or bass 1 53,761 60,351
Denvative financeal Habilities BOLT 21,282 50,061
Amounts seld under ropurchase agreements En 157,660 142,927
Deposits from customers 38 B,385, 154 5,664,135
Salaries and welfare payable IHa) 19,761 15,462
Tax payable 40 22,481 18.648
Contract Hatnlitbes 41 7,536 6,829
Lease fiabilitses 29(b) 13,812 14,242
Prossions 42 148,660 8,229
Debl securities ssued 43 446,645 346,141
Deferred 1ax Habilites 32 1,353 1,073
Othar Labilities 44 139,570 104,455
Total liabilities B,3B3,340 7,631,094
Equity
Share capital 45 25,220 25,220
Other equity Instruments a6 127,043 84,054

= Pralerence shares A6{a) 34,055 34,065

- Perpetual bonds ABib) 92978 49 989
Capital reserve a7 67,523 67,523
Investment revaluation reserve 48 15,047 8,207
Hedging reserve a9 i9 (G66)
Surplus resarye 50 B2,137 71.158
General reserve 51 115,288 98,082
Retained sarnings 390,207 338,664
Proposed profit appropriation 520y 38,385 31,601
Exchange resenve 53 {2.144) (693)
Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 858,745 723,750
Mon-ceatialling intedeits 65,936 6,604
= Mon-controlling interest 3,300 2,851
- Perpetusl debt capital B2{a) 3,636 3,753
Total equity ) 865,681 730,354
Total equity and liabilities 9,249,021 8,361,448

The notes form part of these consoldated financial statements

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2022,

Miao Jianmin Tian Huiyu
Directar [hrector
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172 China Merchants Bank Chapter VIl Financial Statements
Annual Report 2021

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Espreased in miliony af Reremnks uriess othensye wted]
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The notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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China Merchants Bank Chapter VIl Financial Statements 173
Annual Report 2021
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The notes farm part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Espreased in miliony af Reremnks uriess othensye wted]
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2021 2020
Cperating activities
Profit before taxation 148,172 122,440
Adjustments for;
~ Impairment ledsed an kbans and sdvances 37,020 46, 882
= Impairment |osses on myveitments and other 29,335 18,143
- Unwinding of discount on the allowances of boans and advances {247 (186]
- Depreciation of property and equipment and investment properties BB57 1715
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4,259 4,416
- Amarination of other asiets 1,380 1,364
- Met gains on debi securities and equity investments {15,388} {7,.208)
- Intedest income on imvestmants {56,059) {51,843)
= Interest expense on issued debt secunties 12,532 14,652
— Share of profits of associates {1,153) (439)
= Share of profits of joint ventures {2,877 {2,352]
- Met gains on disposal of properties and equipment and other assets {113} (44}
= |nterest expense on lease liabilities 555 596
Changes in
Balances with central banks 12,674 [23,480)
Loans and advances to customers (564,924) (B49,434)
Other assets {37,395) (45,118)
Depotits from customers T1B, 742 TEI 914
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions 733 21231,568
Amounts due fram banks and other financial institutions with
onginal maturity over 3 months 2,160 {8.766)
Barrowing from central banks {170, 100) (26,909
Dhar liabilities 16,556 45,151
Casn generated Srom operabing Aot ities Do o L I eerrrrmte et IO | eeessrmrmes e e
bl e A 125,309, 144
Net cash generated from operating activities 182,048 421,328
Investing activities
Payment for the purchases of investments 1,225,385) (1,385,212)
Proceeds from diposals and redemptoont of investments 1,160,739 1,104,000
Irvestment income received 71,187 58,038
Payment for the scquesition of subsidianies, associates ar joint venturnes (5,342) {1,460)
Payment for the purchases of property and equipment and other assets {24, 160) (19,125)
Proceeds fram the disposals of property and equipment and other assets 2,399 2,354
Freceeds from the disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures 8B5S 582
Mt cash used in investing activities {19,697) (240, 753)

The notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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China Merchants Bank Chapter VIl Financial Statements 175
Annual Report 2021
Maote 2021 2020

Financing activities
Proceeds from the ssuance of negatiable interbank certificates of

deposit 55k} 319,707 213,011
Proceeds from the issuance of certificates of deposit 55(b) 14,692 22,592
Procesds from the ksuance of debt secunties 55ihb) 63,872 13,606
Proceeds from the issuance of perpetual bonds 42,989 459,989
Procesds from non-conrolling inerests of subsidiaries = 218
Proceeds from other financing actieities 55(b) B, EBO 14,417
Ropayment of negotiable interbank cestificates of deposit 55(b) (226,012) (4138200
Repayment of certificates of deposit 55(b) 121,363) (28,992)
Repayment of doebl securities 55(b) {55,771) (d5,486)
Payment for laasa liabilities 55(b) {4.835) (4.644)
Distribution paid on perpetual debt capital {227} [234)
Payment for dividends distribution {31,845) (30.436)
Distribution paid on preference shares {1,638) {1,651
Digtribution paid on perpetual bonds 1,975) -
Interest paid on financing activities {11,398) (15, 490)
Payment for other financing activities 55(h) {3,697) (B57)
Net cash generated fromfused in) financing activities 59,359 (211,787}
Met increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 251,710 (31,212)
Cash and cash equivalents as al 1 January 552,790 SB9.675
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes {2, 746) (5,673
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 55040 801,754 552,780
Cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received 265,081 255,854
Interest paid 1M,77 100,925

The notes form part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Espreased in miliony af Reremnks uriess othensye wted]

1. Organisation and principal activities

(1) Organisation

Chima Merchants Bank Co., Lid, {the "Bank®) 5 a commarcial bank incorparated in Shenghen, the Peoplo’s Republic
of China (the "PAC"). With the approval of the China Securities Regulatory Commession (the "CSRC" ) of the PRC,
the A-Shares of the Bank waere Imted on Shanghai Steck Exchange on 9 Aprl 2002. On 22 September 2006, the
Bank's H-Shares were listed on the bain Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "HKEx"™)

As an 31 December 2021, apart from the Head Office, the Bank had 51 branches in Manland China, Hang Kong,
Mew York, Sngapore, Luxembourg, London and Sydney. In addition, the Bank has three representative offices in
Beijing, Mew York and Tampes,

{2) Principal activities

Thie principal sctwities of the Bank and i3 subsadiaries (the "Group™) aee providing corpodate and personal banking
services, conducting treaswny business, prowiding asset management and other financial services.

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

(1) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

Thee consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs”) and its interpretations promulgated by the international Accounting Standards Board (" IASB"),
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ovdinance, These consobidated linancial statements
also comply with the applicable disclesure proveskons of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securites on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(2) Basis of measurement

Thete financial statements are prisented in Renminb: ("RMB®) and unless athersse stated, rounded 16 the nearest
million, RMB is the functional currency of the domestic operations of the Group, The functional owrencies of
overiens branches and subtediaries are determined m accomdance with the prumary BConcomic emdiranment in which
they operate, and are translated into RME for the preparation of these financial statements according to Note 4165,

The conselidated financal statements have been prepared on the historscal cost basis except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reparting period and the measurement principhes a5 oxplained
below

Falr walue i the price that would be received to sell an asel or paid 1o transfier a liability in an orderly trandaction
bebween market participants at the measuwrement date, regardiess of whather that price is directly cbservable or
estimated udng another vakeation technique. In estimating the fair valoe of an awset ar a liabikty, the Group takes
into account the charactenistics of the asset or lability f market participants would take those characteristics into
account when peicing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurermnent andlor disclosure
purpases in theie consalidated financial staternents s determined on such a baws, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of IFRS 16 Leases, and measuremants that have some similarities o fair value but are not fair value, such as net
reafizable value in 145 2 inventories or value i use in 1AS 36 impairmeant of Assefs.

267/432



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooooa

China Merchants Bank Chapter VIl Financial Statements 177
Annual Report 2021

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements contines
{2} Basis of measurement jcontmed

In addition, for firancal reporting purposes, fair value messurements are categomsed into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degres to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measuremant in its entirety, which are described as follkows

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) i active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
acceds at the meawsrement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoled prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 2 inguts are unchservable inputs for the asset or hability,

The preparation of the financal statements in conformity with IFRSs reguires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and labilities,
incoma and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptsons are based on historical expenence and vanous
other factors that are believed to be reasonable unders the circumatances, the resuolts of which form the baws of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and fabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions ate reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revislons to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods i the revison alfects both current and future periods

ludgements made by management in the applcation of IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estmates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the future periods are disoussed
in Note 5,

3. Application of new and amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs effective in the current year applied by the Group

Amendments to FRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFR5 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform = Phase 2
Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

Impacts and accounting policies on application of Amendments to IFRS 9. 1AS 35, IFRS 7, IFAS 4 and IFRS 16
“Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 27

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark
refarm

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of & financial asset o financial lisbility 1o which
the amostised cost measurement applies as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies the
practical expedient to account for these changes by updating the effective interest rate, such change in effective
interest rate normally has no significant effect on the carrying amount of the relevant financal asset or financial
liahility.
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3. Application of new and amendments to IFRSs wcontinues

Amendments to IFRSs effective in the current year applied by the Group wonsinued)

Impacts and accounting policies on application of Amendments to IFRS 9, 145 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
“Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2° (Cantinuead)

Changes in the basis for determining the contfractual cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform {Cantimed!

A change In the basis for detesmining the contractual cash flows B required by interest rate benchmark reform i
and onky if, both these condstions are met:

- the change i necessary as a direct consequence of interest rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows s economically equivalent 1o the previows basis (e
the basis immediately precedsng the change).

Hedge accounting

Far changes made to the hedged nsk, hedged item or hedging instrument reguired by interest rate benchmark
tefarm, the Group amends the formal designation af a hedging relationship to rellect the changes by the end of the
reporting period during which the relevant changes were made. Such an amendment to the formal designation of
the hedging relationship constitutes neither the discontinuation af the bedging relationship nor the designation of a
new hedging relationship

Cash flows hedges

When a hedged item in a cash flow hedge is amended to reflect the changes that are required by the interest
rate benchmark refarm, the amount accumuolated in the cash flew hedge reserve @8 deermed 1o be based on the
alternative benchmark rate on which the hedged future cash flows are determined.

Trantition and summary of effects

The Group has fmancial imstruments linked to Londen Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR} that are subject to interbank
offered rates (IBOR) reform, These financial instruments maenly include loars and sdvances 1o customers and debt
investrments. The Group has gradially changed the interest rate benchmark for these financial instrumants to other
benchmark rates such as Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) or Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR)
in 2021, In order to reflect the changes that are required by the interest rate benchmark reform, the Group has
recalculated the effective Interest rate af the financial instruments whose change of fulure cash flow is necessary
as a direct consequence of intedest rate benchmark reform, and vied these effective interest rates & the bais of
subsequent measurements. Such changes in effective interest rate have no significant impact on the consofidated
financia statements

Impacts and accounting policies on application of Amendment to IFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Remt
Concessions”

The amendment provides a practical expedient to COVID-19-related rent concessions it certain conditrons are met.
This amendment has no sigaificant impact an the condalbidated linancial statements.
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Application of new and amendments to IFRSS onmed

Standards and amendments that are issued but not yet effective and have not
been adopted by the Group

Effective for
annual period
beginning on or after

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments 1o IFRS 3

Amendments o 1AS 16

Amendmaents to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRS Standards

IFRS 17

Amendments to A5 1

Amendments 1o 1AS 1 and

IFRS Practice Statement 2

Armendments 1o A5 B

Amendments 1o 145 12

Amendments 1o IFR510
and |AS 28

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyand
30 June 2021

felerence 1o the Conceptual Framesork

Property, Plant and Equspment; Proceeds before
Intended Lise

Onerows Contracts — Cost of Fullilling a Contract

Annual Improvernents to IFRS Standards
2018-2020

Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-ourrent

Disclosure af Accounting Policses

Definitan af Accaunting Estimates

Delerred Tax related 1o Assets and
Liabilities arising fram a Single Transaction

Sale or Contribwtion of Assets between
an bnvestor and its Associate or Jaint Veniure

1 Apeil 2021

1 lanuary 2022

1 lanuary 2022

1 lanuary 2022

1 lanuary 2023

1 lanuary 2023

1 January 2023

1 lanuary 2023

1 lanuary 2023

1 lariary 2023

the date to be
determined

The new and amendmants to IFR5s mentioned above are not expected to have material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future
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(n

Business combination

Financial statements include financial statements of the Bank and its subssdianies. Subsidunes are entities controlled
by the Group. The Group contrals an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its invelvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity, When assessing whether
the Graup has power, only substante nights (held by the Group and other partiesh are considered.

An irvestrient in 8 subssdiary is consalidated inta the consolidated financial statements from the date that contrel
commences until the date that control ceases Intra-group balances, transactions and cash tlows and any profits
atising from intra-group transactions are ehmnated m full i preparing the consolidated financial statements

When necessary, adjusiments are made 1o the financial staternents of subssdianies to bring their accounting pelicies
in Bne with the Group's accounting policies,

Morecontralling mterests regrosent tho equity in a sulbssdipry not aftributable directly or mdirecily 1o the Bank, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whale having a contraciual oblsgation in respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes o equity within equaty, separately from equity attributable to the equity holders
of the Bank. Hon-controdling mterests in the results of the Group are presented in the consolidated statement of
prafit or loss and the comsolidated statement of pralit of loss and other comprehentive income as an allacatson of
the net profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controfling interests and the equity
holders of the Bank.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controfling and non-controdling interests within
comolidated equity to reflect the chamnge in relative interests, but no adjustiments are made 1o goodwill and no gaen
or loss s recognised

When the Group lodses contral of a subsidiary, it 5 accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any Interest metained In that former
subsidiary at the date when control is bost is recognised at fair value and thes amount &5 regarded as the fair value
on inttial meognition of a financial asset (see Note 4(5)) o, when spproprate, the cost on inital recognition of an
investrment in a joint venture (see Note 4(2)) oe, an associate (see Note 4(3))

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect 1o apply an optional concentration lest, on & transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits &
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities or assets is not 2 busmess. The concentration test is
met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquered is concentrated in a single identifiable assel s
group of similar identifiable assets, The gros smssets wnder assessment exclude cash and cash equvalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test s met, the set
of actiities or assets is determined net to be a business and no further assessment is needed.

Agget scguisitions

When the Group acquires & group of assety and habilities that do not constitute a business, the Group kdentifies
and recognises the indwidual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first 1o financial assetsfinancial liabilitees at the respective fair values, the remaiming balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and lizbilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain
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4. Principal accounting policies ronnues

(1) Business combination (corpnued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions [confimued
Business combination

Acquintions of businesies are accounted for uilng the ascqueition method, The consideration transferred in &
business combination s measured at fair value, which is caloulated as the sum of the acquisttion date fair value of
the asets trandferred by the Group, liabilities Incurred or assumed by the Group, and any equity interests ssued by
the Group. Acguisition related costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred.

At the acqusition date, srespective of non-contrelling interests, the identifiable assets acquired and habelives and
contingent habilities assumed are recognised a1 their fair values; sxcept that doforred tax ssets or babilitees, and
assets or Eabilites refated 1o employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with 1AS
12 incorte Taxes and IAS 19 Employes Senefits, respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the difference batween (i) the conssderation transferred, the fair value of
any non-controlling interests i the acquiree, and the fair value af the Group's previously held equity interests in
the acguiree (if any) and (i} the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the Eabilities and contingent
liabilities incurred or assurmed as &1 acquisition date

Men-contralling interests that represent ownership interests in the acquiree, and entitle their holders to a
preportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are nitially recognised at either fair wvabue or
the non-contrelling interests’ proportionate shane m the recognised amounts of the acgquires’s identifiable net assets,
The choice of measurement basis is made an a transaction-by-transaction basis

(2) loint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangemant m which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net
assets af the arrangement, rather than rights to 15 assets and obligatean for its liabilnies

Igint control is the contractually sgreed sharing of control of an amangement, which exists only whan decisions
about the relevant actrvities reguire the unanimous consent of the parties shating contrel.

When judging whether there 15 a point control, the Group wssally considers the following cases
- whether any party within the joint arrangement cannot control the relevant activities of the joint ventures;

- wihether the decisiens about the joint venlures’ relevant aclivities require the dnanimous consent af the
parties sharing contral

The conselidated statement of profit or loss includes the Group's share of the results of joint ventures for the
year and the comolidated statement of financial position includes the Group's share of the net assets of the joint
ventures.

Under the equity methed, the investment s nitally recorded a1 cost, adpsted for any excess of the Group's share
of the acquisition-date fair value of the investee’s identfiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquasition change in the Group®s share of the joint ventures' net
assets, Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identilisble assets and liabdlites over the cost of
the investments, |5 recognised immediately in profit o loss in the period in which investment is acquired.

The consolidated statemaent of profit or boss includes post-tax results of the joint ventures for the year, Including any
impairment loss on goodwill relating to the investmant in the joint ventures recognised for the year (see Noles 4(4)
and 4(11}),

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint ventures, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses n discontinued except 1o the extent that the Group has incurred legal ar constructive
obligations of made payments on behall of the joint ventures, For these purposes, the Group's interest i the joint
ventures i the carrying amount of the imvestment under equity method together with the Group's interests that in
substance form part of the Group's net investment in the joint wintures,
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{2} Joint ventures jconfmued)

Unrealsed profits and losses resultmg from transactions between the Group and it joant ventures are elimmated
to the extent of the Group's Interest in the joint veniures, excepl where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transterred, in which case they are recognised immediately o profit or loss

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a poinl venlure and has no significant influence on it, 1t is
sccounted for a5 a doaposal of the entire Interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, preveous other comprehensive income would be redassified 1o profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that fermer investes at the date when joint contral s bast 15 recognesed at faif value
and this amount is regarded as the fair vakee on initial recognition of a fimancal asset (see Note 4(5])

(3) Associates

Asiociate is an enlity in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, or joint control, including
participation m the linancial and operating pobcy decisions.

Significant mfluence s the power o particpate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the wivistes but s
not contral or joint contral of those policies.

When judging whether there is any significant influence, the Group wually considers the following cases
- representation on the Board of Directors or equwvalent governing body of the investee;

- participation in policy-maksng processes;

- material transactions between the entity and its imvestee,

Investrments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment |5 initally recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess af the Group’s share
of the acquititionedate fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if any)
Thereatter, the investrment is adjusted Tor the post acquisition change in the Group's share af the assocates’ el
assets, Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investrments, is recognised immediately in prefit or loss in the penod in which investment is acguired.

The consolsdated statement of profit or loss Includes the Group's post-tax results of the assockates for the year,
including any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the investment in the associates recognised for the year (see
Mees i) and 401 14,

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interast in the associates, the Group's interest o reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses m discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal er constructive
obligations of made payments on behalf of the associates. For these purposes, the Group's interest in the associates
is the carrying amount of the investrment under eguity method together with the Group's interests that in substance
form part ¢l the Group's net swetment in thie associates

Unraalised profits and bosses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interesl i the asocales, excepl where unirealbed losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assat transferred, in which case they are recognised immedsately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an assocate entity, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire intesest in that imvestes, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised i the consclidated statement of profi
or loss, previous other comprehensive income would be redlassified to profit er loss. Any interest retained i that
former investes at the date when significant influence is lost i recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financiad asset (see Mote 451
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(4) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i} thie aggregate of the fair value of the consideration ransferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
based on the fair value af net assets acquered in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously
hetd equity interesis in the acquiree; over

iy the net Tair value of the acquires’s identifiable assets and Habilities measured as at the scquisition date,

When (i} is greater than (i}, than this exceis s rocegnised immadiately in profit or lods ax 4 gain on & bargam
puschase.

Goodwill = stated a1 cost bess accumulated imparment. Goodwill ansing on 8 busmess combination i aBocated
to each cash-generating unit ("CGU"} or group of CGUs, that s expected 1o benefit from the sgnergies of the
combination and tested annually for impairment (see Note 4(115)

On disposal of a €GU dunng the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is induded in the calculation
of the profit or loss on disposal,

(5) Financial instruments
Initial recognition

A financial imstrument is any contract that gives rise 1o o financial asset of one enterpsse and a financial lability o
equity instrument of another enterprse.

All regular way purchases or sabes of Ginancial assets are rocognised or derecognned on a trade date baws. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require defivery o assets within the time frame
established by regulation or canwention in the market place

At imtial recognition, fimancial assets and financal labilities are smitially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts wath customers which are mnitially measured In accordance with IFRS 15 Aevenue
from Contracts with Customers, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of fmancial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets o financial fiabélites at fair value throwgh profit or boss)
are sdded 1o o deducted from the fale value of the financial assets o financial labilities, as appropriate, on Initial
recognition. Transaction costs divectly attributable to the acguisition of financial assets o financial liabilites at fair
value through profit oe loss are recognised immediately in profit or less,

The etfective interest method 15 a method of :al:ul.ﬂinq the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of alocatimg interest incosme and interest expense over the relevant perod. The effective interest rate s the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments [inclwfing all fees and points paid or
recefved that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transacton costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asiet or financial liability, ¢, where appropriate, @ shorler peried, 1o the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. When determining the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the
future cash low on the bass of considering all eantract terms of financial assets ar financial labdlities, but does not
consider the expacted credit loss.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categornes at initial recognition: fmancial
assety Al amortised cos, financlal assets st fair value through other comprebensive income and linancial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

Debt instruments that meet the follewing conditions are wbiequently measured at amannsed cosl
. 1he financial asset s held within & busingss model whese abjective i 1o collict contractual cash flews; and

- the contractisal terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount eutstanding (" 5PP7)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subseguently measured at fair value through other
comprehentive income {“FVTOCI™),
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(5) Financial instruments reontmwed)
Classification and measurement of financial assets (continued)
- thi financial asset is held within a business model whose ebjective B achieved by bath collecting contractual
gash flows and selling; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest on the principal amount sutstanding.

All ather financial adsets are subseguently measured at fair value theaugh profil o less (“FUTPL®), except that a1
the date of initial applicationfinitial recognition of a fimnancial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subseguont chamgas in fair value of an equity investment, which is not held for trading, in other comprehensive
income [~ O17 ),

A fnancial asset 5 classified as held for trading i

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of sefling m the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term prafdit-1aking; or

- it s a dervative, except for a derwvative that i a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument

In addition, the Group may irevocably designate a debt investment that meels the amortised cost or FVTOC) criteria
a5 measured at FYTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly redwces an accounting mismatch,

Financial assels at amortised cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured with the effective interest method, and the
gains or losses arising from amortisation or impairment ane recognised in profit or loss. Interest income i calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the grass carmying amount of a financlal azsel, except far financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income i recognised by appiying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. i the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves 3o that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impasred, interest income 5 recognised by applying the elfective interest rate to the gross
carrying armount af the fnancial asiet fram the beginning of the reporting period lallovang the detesminabon that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired

Debt instruments classified a5 at FYTOC

Subsequent changes in the camying amounts for debt instruments classifeed as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated wilng the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and lonses are recognased in profit
or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of debt instruments are recognised in CC1 and accumulated under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying amosmits of deb? mstruments. The amounts that ase recognised
in profit of less are the same as the amounts that would have beaen recognised in profit or less if debi instruments
had been meassured at amortised cost, When debt instrurments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in investment revaluation reserve are reclassified to prafit or loss.
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(5} Financial instruments rconimues)
Classification and measurement of financial assets (continued)
Eguity instruments designated as at FYTOC!

AL the date of initial applicationdinitial recogniten, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an mstrument-
by-instrument basss) to designate iwestments in equity instruments which are not held for trading as at FYTOCL
Investrmints in equity instruments at PYTOCH are initially reasured at Tair value plud transaction codts. Subsequently,
they are maeasured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the investment revalualion reserve; and are not subject 1o impairment assessment. The cumalative
gain ar less will not be reclasssfied to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained earnings.

Dividends from these investments in aquity instruments are recognised in prolit or loss when the Group's right
to receive the dividends is established, unbess the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investrment, Dividends are included in the “other net income” ling item in prafn or loss,

Financial assets at FYTPL

Finanzial maets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FYTOC! or designated as
FYTOC! are measured at FYTPL. Financial assets at FYTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
periad, with any fair valus gaind or lotses recognised in prafit or loss The net gain or loss recagnised in prafit or
loss includes fair value gaine or losses, any dividend or intevest eamed an the financial asset, and is included
“other net incame”

Impairment under ECL model

The Group pefforms impairment assessment under expected credit loss (TECL”) model on financial assets which
are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 Fpancal struments, including financial assets at amorised cost, debl
instrument assets at fair value through other comprehensive inoome, leases recelvable, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date 1o reflect changes in credit risk
sinee initial recognition.

The Group asesses the ECL af Ginancial assets wath forward-looking Information. 12-moanth ECL (" 12m ECL")
represents the portion of kfetime ECL that s expected to resuft from default events that ase possible within 12
maonths after the reporting date. In contrast, lifetime ECL represenis the ECL that will result fram all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. Assessment are done based on the factors that are specific
to the debtars, general economic conditions and an assessment of Both the current condithens at the reporting date
as well a5 the forecast of future conditions,

Far the above financial instrumments that apply the ECL model, an assessment of whether credit rsk has increased
significantly since initial recognitkon 15 performed al sach reporing period by the Group 10 determine whether
to recognise fifetime ECL VWhen the credit risk of these financial instruments does not increase significantly after
the initial recogration, the Group makes prowisen for credit losses accarding 1o 12-month ECL; i the event of &
significant increase in credit risk, the Group makes provision for the credit losses in accordance with the ECL for the
entire duration.

Significant fnerease in credit risk

In assesaing whether the credit risk has increased sgnificantly since intial recognition, the Group compates the sk
of a default occurring on the financial mstrument as at the reparting date with the risk of a defaull ocourning on
the financial nstrument as at the date of initial recogniteon, in making this assessment, the Group considers beth
guantitative and qualitatrve information that is reasonable and supportable, mcluding histosical experience and
forward-looking information that is avaifable without undue cost or effart. The assessment of whether the credit risk
has increased signidicantly i detailed = Note 60(al
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(s)

Financial instruments (eonemged
Impairment under ECL model (contimeed
Credit-impaired financial assets

The Group defines whether there i credit impaitment based on the wmtemal evalustion results af the eredit nsk
management system for relevant financial assets. The Group considers that financial assets have been credit impaired
when 14 lean dassification s whstandard, doubtiul or less or 15 more than 90 days everdus.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

ECL i+ measured based on the probability of default, less given default and the exposure a1 default. The
measurement and recognition of ECL are detailed in Note 60{a}

Generally, ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Graup in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to recewve, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recogndtion.

For & lease recewable, the cash flows used for determining the ECL 12 consistent with the cash flows used m
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with IFRS 16 (eases

For a financal guarantee contract, the Group B required 10 make payments only in the event of a defauh by the
debtor in accordance with the ferms of the mstrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected credit bosses is
the present value of the expected payments 1o reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group epecis 1o recetve fram the halder, the debtor or any athet party.

For undrawmn loan commitments, ECL is the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows that
are due 1o the Group:

. if the holder of the loan commatmaents draws down the loan, and
- the cash flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan s drawn down.

The losa allewasnce for loan commitments and financial guarantes contracti s recognised in profit or leds and
accumulated in provisions. As for debt instruments measured at FYTOC!, the loss allowance is recognised in OC1 and
accurnulated in the investmaent rovaluation rederve without reducing the carrying amounts of these hnancial aswets,
The loss allowance for aother financial assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 Finencial Instraments is
recognised in profit o loas threwsgh a loss allewance acoount.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial Kabilities at FUTPL

Financial labilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabilsty is () held for trading er (i) designated as at
FVTRL

A Fnancial liability is elasatied as held for trading of:
- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it s part of a pertfolio of Mentified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of shart-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative, except for a denwvative that is a financial guarantee contract of a designated and effective
hedging Instrument.
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(5} Financial instruments reom i)
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities (contrmued)
Financial Habilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financal lability held for trading may be dedgnated at at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designaton eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement of recognition mconsistency that would
atherwise are; or

- the financial lability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and it performance is evaluated on a lair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented nsk
management or investmant strategy, and information about the grouping is prowided intemally on that basis;
af

- it forms part of a contract contaiming one or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 Financal fnstrurments
permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at PVTPL.

Qther financial Nabilities

Except for financial liabilives at FVTPL, financal habilinies formed by the transfer of financial assers thar do not meet
the conditions for derecognition or by contnued involvernent in transferred financial assets and financial labilities,
and financal guaraniee contract, other financial liabikties are dassifsed as financial labilities at amortised cost, which
are subsequently measured at amartied cost and the gains or losses arising from derecognition of amartisation are
included in the current profits and losses.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments for cash flow hedge. The Group documests
thie relationship between the hedging imtruments and hedged items, as well a3 s risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. at the inception of a hedging relationship The Group also requires
documentation af the amsessment, both at hedge inceplion and on an ongoing basis, of whether the denvatves that
are wsed in hedging transacticns are highly effective in offsetting changes. in cash flows of hedged items attributable
te the hedged nsks.

Far the purpose of determining whether a forecast transaction [or a component thereol} is highly probable, the
Group assumes that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows (contractually o non-contractually
specified) are based is not altered as a result af interest rate benchmask reform

Cash flow hedge

The effective partions of charges in the far value of dervatives that are designated and gualified as cash llow
hedge are recognised in olther comprehensive income and accumulated separately in hedging reserve. Any gain of
loss relating 1o an melfective portion is recognised immedsately in the consobdated statemont of profit or koss,

For the purpose of reclassifying the amount of gams and losses accumadated in the cash flow hedge reserve 1n order
1o detesming whether the hedged future cash Bows sé expecied to accur, the Group assumes the inferest rate
benchmark on which the hedged cash flows {contractually or non-contractually specified) are based is not altered as
& result of interest rate benchmark refarm

For cashi flow hedoge of 4 recognised assat or hability, the associated cumulative gain of lods & reclassified fram
hedging reserve to the consolidated statement of profit or boss in the same peniod duning which the hedged cash
flows atfect profit and loss. When a hedging irstrument expires or |3 sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
critesia for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss at that time remains in hedging reserve until the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the consolidated statements of profit or loss. When & forecast transaction is
no longer expected 1o occur, the cumulative gain or loss i immediately reclassified to the consolidated statement of
prodit or los.
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(s)

Financial instruments (eonemged
Hedge accounting {comfinued)
Hedge effectiveness testing

The Group has elected lo adopt the general hedge accounting in IFRS 9 Fimamoal lnstrerments. This requites the
Group to ensure that hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its risk management objectives and strategy
and to apply a more qualitatve and lonward-looking approach ta asiesing hedge effectveness,

For hedge eflectivaness assetament, the Group consden whether the hedging mtrumaent is elfective in affsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged resk, which is when the hedgng
relationships meet all ol the following hedge offectveness regquirements:

- there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hadging instrument,

- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship;
and

- the hedge ratio aof the hedging refatsanship is the same as that resulting from the guantity of the hedged
item that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the entity actually wes
to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to mest the hedge eifectivensss requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the
risk management objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge
ratio of the hedging relatonship (i e rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying critena agakn.

In asessing the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, the Group assumes
that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash fiows andfor the hedged nsk (contractually or non-
comractually specifid) are based, or the interest rate benchmark on which the cash flows of the hedging mstrument
are based, 15 not altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

Specific items
Cash equivalents

Cath equivalents comprise imedtments thal are shoet term, highly liquid, readily convertible inte known amaunts of
cash and subject 1o insignificant risk of changes in value, and unrestricted balances with the central banks, banks
and ather financial mstitutions, and amounts held undes resale agresments, with origenal maturity of 3 moaths or
less

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

Banks refer 1o those approved by the People's Bank of China ("PBOCT) and other authorties. Other financial
institutions represent finance companies, insurance companies, investment trust companies and leasing companies
which are registered with and under the superviien of the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (the
"CHIRC™) and securities firms and imvestment fund companies which are registered with and under the supervision
of other regulatory authonitios, Balances and placements with banks and other financal institutions are measured at
amortised cost.

Resale and repurchase agreements

Amounts for purchase of financial assets under resale agreements are accounted for under “amounts held undes
resale agreements”, Amounts from sale of financial assets under repurchase agreements are accounted for wnder
“amaounts sald under repurchase agreements”.

The difference between the purchase and resale considerathon or sale and repurchase consideration s amortised
aver the period of the transaction wsing the etfective interest method and is included in interest income or expense
(8% appropHate).
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(5} Fimancial instruments o tmmea)
Specific items (contiued)
Financial investmeants

Equilty investments aré accounted for & Tinancial assets at fair value through profit or lodd or equity ervestments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income. Debt investments are chassified as financial assets at
fair value threugh profit or loas, debt mvestments a1 amortised cost, debi myvestments @ fair value through other
comprehensive income in accordance with the entity’s business mode!, confractual cash flow characteristics and the
fair value option.

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances deectly granted by the Group to customers and finance leases recevables are accounted lor a3
loans and advances 1o customers.

Loans and advances to customers are classified as loans and advances to customers at fair value throogh profit or
loss (loans and advances to customers at FVTPL), loans and advances 1o customers at amortised cost, loans and
advances 1o cusfomers at fair value through other comprehensive income (loans and advances to customers at
FVTOCH in accordance wath the entiy's business model, contractual cash flow charactenstics and the fair value
aption

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's derrvative finangal instruments mainly include forward, foreign currency swaps, interest rate swaps and
optan contracts undertaken in response to custormens’ needs or for the Group's own asset and lability management
purposes. The Group anters into demvative contracts with other banks to hedge against nsks arising from dervative
transactions undertaken for customers.

Except for those used in cash flow hedge, dervative financial mstruments are stated at fair value, with gains and
lasses arising recognised o the consalidated statement of profit of loss. For those used in cash flow hedge, the
gains and losses arising from the effectve hedging partion are recognesed in other comprehensive income.

Embaddead derivatives

Derivatives. embedded in hybrid contracts that contain fmancial assat hosts within the scope of IFRS 9 Financal
Instrevnants are nol separated. The entire hiybrd contract is classified and subsequently measured in its entirety as
either amortised cost or fair value as appropnate. Derivatives embedded m non-dermwative host contracts that are not
financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 financial mstruments are treated as separate derivatives with the same
terrres when they meet the definibion of a derwvative, thelr risks and charactesstics are nol closely related to those
of the host contracts and the hybrid contracts are not measured ai FVTPL Separated embadded denvatives are
measured at Tar value, with all changes in lair value recognised in prafit or loss unless they form part of a gualifymng
cash flow hadging relationship.

Equity Instruments

The consderation received from the issuance of equity mstruments net of transaction costs is recognised in
sharehalders’ equity. Comideration and trantaction costs paid by the Group for repurchasing self-issusd equity
instruments are deducted from shaseholders’ equity
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(5} Financial instruments feontinuedl
Specific items [continued?
Eguity instruments {continsed)
A Bnancial instrument 15 an equity instrument o, and anly if, bath conditions (1) and (u) belew are met:
iy the financial instrument includes no contractual obligation to delver cash or another financial asset to

anather entity, of to exchange financial assets or financial labilites with another entity under conditions that
are potentially unfaverable 1o the Group; and

[y if the femancial instrument will of may be settled in the Group's own equity instruments, it is a non-dervative
mstrument that includes no contractual obligations for the Group to delrer @ varable number of it5 own
equity instruments; or a derivative that waill be settled only by the Group exchanging a fed amount of cash
or anather financial asset for a fixed number of s own equity instruments.

At inihial recognition, the Group dassifies the perpetual bonds and perpetual debt capitals issued or their
components as financial habilities or equity instruments based on their contractual terms and their economic
substance after considering the definition of financial liabilities and equity instruments

For perpetual bonds and perpetual debt capitals issued that classifed as equity instruments, any distribubion
of imerests during the instruments’ durastion o treated a3 profit appropration, When the perpetual bonds and
perpetual debt capitals are redeemed, the redeemed amount is charged to equity, Refevant transacton expenses are
deducted fram equsty.

At initial recognition of preference shares, the Group classifies the preference shares issued or their components
a5 financial liabilities or equity instruments based on their contractual terms and their economic substance after
condidening the definition of financial habilitses and equity matiuments.

When the Group classifies preference shares issued as an equity instrument, fees, commissions and other transacticn
costs of preference shares issuance are deducted from equity. The dwvidends on preference shares are recognised as
profit distribution at the time of declaration

Derecognition of financial instruments
fa) Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
i derecognised when;

- the rights to recetve cash flows from the asset have expired; o
. the Group has transferred its nghts to recenve cash flows fram the asset; o

. has retained its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset bt has assumed an obligateon to pay them
In full wathout material delay to a thied party under a “pass-through”™ arrangement; and either the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownersip of the financial asset; or
the Group has neither transferred mor retained substantially all the risks and resvards of cwnership of
the financial asset, but has transferred controd of the asset

Where the Group has transferred its nghts to recerve cash flows from an asset or has retained its nghts
1o recetee cash flowd from the assel bul has entered nte a pas-threugh arfangement, and has neither
transtermed nor retained substantially all the risks and réwards of the asset nor transferred control of the
assel, the xset 4 recognised 1o the extent of the Group's continuing nvalvement in the aset.

Continuing imvolvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the traniferred ssset B measured at the
lower of the enginal carrying ameunt of the asset and the maximam amount of consideration that the Group
could be requered 1o repay.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severs
Tinancial difficulty and there i no realsstic praspect of recovery, A write-off constitutes a desecognition event,
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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(5} Financial instruments rconimues)
Derecognition of financial instruments (comfnued)
() Securitisation

As part of it operational activities, the Graup securtises credit assets, generally through the wale of these
assets to structured enfrties which issue securities to Investors. Interests in the seouritised financiad assets may
be retained in the form of seniar or junios tranches, or ather resdual interests (retained intesests)

When applying the policies on decuntised Ginancal asiels, the Group has considered both the degme of
transfer of risks and rewards on the transfesred financial assets and the degree of controd exercised by the
Group over the transferred financial assets:

. when the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets,
the Group shall derecognise the financial asets;

. when the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets,
the Group shall continwe to recegnise the financial assets; and

. when the Group neither transfers nor retams substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
aof the financial assets, the Group would determine whether it has retained control of the financial
awsets, I the Group has not retained contral, it shall derecognise the financial assets and recognise
separately as assets or Dabilities any rights and obligatsons created or retasned in the transfer. If the
Group has retained contral, it shall continue ta récognise the financial assets to the extent af its
continung involvement in the financial assets.

When a securitisation of financial assets does not gualify for derecognition, the relevant financal assets are
nat defecogned, and the cansideration collected from third parties are fecarded as 4 linancal liability,

When the securitisation results in derecognition or partal derecognition of financial assets, the Group
allocates the carrying amount of the tramsferred financial msets between the financial assets derecognised
and the retained interests based on their relative fair values at the date of transfer. Gains or losses on
securitisation, whech is the difference between the consideration received and the allocated camying amount
of the financial assets derecognised. are recorded in “other net income”. The retained interests continue 1o
be recognised on the sarme basis before the secutitisation,

fe) Sales of assets on condition of repurchase

Derecognition of financial assets sold on condition of repurchase is determined by the economic substance
of the transaction. H a financial asset is sold under an agreement to repuschase the same or substantially
the same awet at a fiwed price or at the sale prece plus a8 reasonable return, the Group will not derecognise
the asset. If a financial asset is sold together with an option 1o repurchase the financial asset at its fair value
at the time of repurchase (in case of transferor sells such financial asset), the Group will derecognise the
financial aset.

el Financial abilities

A finanoad habdity {or part of #) 15 derecognised when the obligation under the hability {or part of th
discharged, cancefled or expired.

Offsetting financial instruments

Fimancial assets and labilities are offset and the net amount |s reported in the consoldated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable rght 1o offsel the recegnised amounts and there is an intention 1o settle
on a net basis of realise the asset and settle the liability ssnultaneouwsly.
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(6} Property, equipment, investment property and depreciation

Property, equipment and investment property, are stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciations and
accumulated impasrment losses. These also include land held under operating leases and bulldings therean, where
the faw value of the leasehold interest in the land and buwildings cannot be measured separately at the inception of
the lease and the building is not cleadly held under an operating lease.

Depreciation i caleulated to write aff the cost of property, equpment and investment property over the following
estimated useful lwes, after taking into account an estimated residual value on a strasght-line basis:

Land and buildings 20 years
Inwestrment praperies 20 years
Computer equspment 3 years
Leasehold improvements (leased property) 3 ymars
Leasehold improvements (self-owned property) the estimated useful lives
Aircratt, vessels and professional equipment ni mare than 25 years
Moter vehiclos and other 3 - 5 yoars

Construction in progress represents property under construction and is stated a1 cost less impairment |osses. Cost
compraes the direct and indirect cost of construction. Comtruction in progress o transferred 1o an approprate class
of property or other asset when the asset o ready for its intended wse. No depreciation is provided for construction
in phogress

Subsequent expenditure relating to a property, equipment and investment propedy B capitafived only when it s
probabée that future economic benefits associated with the property and equipment will flow to the Group. All other
expenditure i recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as an expense a3 incusred

Profits or losses on disposal of property, equipment and investment property are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carming amount of the property. equipment and investment propedty,
and are accounted for in the consolidated statement of profit or koss as they anise,

(7) Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take possession of assets held as collateral through
court procesdings of voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers Repossessed assets other than equity
instrumaent are reporied in "other assets”™,

Repossessed assets of equity instruements are detailed in Note 4(5).
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(8} Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated a1 cost bess accumulated amortisation (only mtangible assets with finite wseful lives) and
accurmulated impairment losses [see Note 4(11). Amortisation of intangible assets wath finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-lme basis over the assets’ estimated useful Irves

Intangible assets are nol amartised while their useful lives are assessed 1o be indefinite. The Group does not have
intangible sssets wath useful lwes aisessed to be indefimite as at the end of the reporting penod.

The amorisation period of intangible assets is as follows:
Software and Other Sore depoalt
& = 20 years 28 yoars

Both the penods and method of amortisation are reviewed annually,

(9) Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a kease 1 the confract comeys the nght to contred the wse of an identified asset for a
periad af time in exchange for consideration. The Group assesses whether a contract i5 of contains a lease based on
the definition under IFRS 16 Leazes at mception or modification date, Such contract will net be reassessed unleds the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed,

As a lessen
fa)  Allocation of consideration te components of a cantract

For a contract that containg 4 lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract 1o each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease companent and the aggregate stand-alone price of the nan-lease compoanents,

{t} Short-term leases and leases of low-value assers

The Group recogrises a nght-of-use assel and o corresponding bease hability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, eacept for short-lerm leases (lease term of 12 months or less and
do not contain a purchase option) and leases af low value assets (the value of aswts is equivalent to bebow
RKABIS, 000,

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
fine basis over the kease term,

fe)  Right-of-use assets
The right-ol-uie assets are presented a4 & separate ling in the contolidated statement of financial pasition

The right-of-use asset is inttially measured at cost. This cost includes:

. the amount of the nitlal measurement bease Hablity,
. amy lease payments made at or belore the commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
. any inrtial direct oosts incurred by the lessee; and

. whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the
site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condrtion required by the terms and
conditions af the lease, a provivon s recognised and measwred under S 37 Proswons, Contingent
Liabitties and Contingent Assets. The costs are included in the related right-of-use assel, unless those
costs ane incurned 1o produce imentores,
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(9)

Leases jcontrued)
As a lessen fcontimedl

fe)

fa}

e}

Right-of-use assets [continued)

After the cormmencerent date, the right-of-use aisets are mexured a1 eodt (subject to certmn exceptions)
less acoumulated depreciation and impairment bosses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The Group recognises the depreciaton of right-of-use asiels as an aperating expenie on a straght-line basis
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and wseful life of the underlying
asset If a lease transfers the ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group expects to exerciie a purchane option, the related right-ol-use awet i depreciated aver the
useful life of the underlying asset

Accounting policy for any identified right-of-use ssset impairmant boss are disclosed in Note 4(11)

Leasahold land and bullding

For payments of a property interest which inchudes both leasehold land and building elerments, the entire
property is presented as properly and equipment of the Greup when the paymenis cannot be allocated
refiatly between the leasehold land and building elements, except for those that ane classified and accounted
far as investiment properties.

Lease liabilities
Lease lability is presenied as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease Rability i mitially measuned &t the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencemant date using lessea’s incremantal borrowing rate as the discount rate

Lease payrments refer to the payment made by the lessee 1o the lestar in connection with the nght 1o use
the leased aswets dunng the lease term. Lease payments Included in the measurement of the lease liability
COMprise:

. fimed lease payments (including in-substance foed paymants), less any bease incentives,

- variable lease payments that degend on an index ar rate, initially measured using the index o rate at
the commencement date,

. the exercise price of puschase options, if the lessee i reasonably certain 1o exerciie the aphons;

. paymenis of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reffects the exercise of an option to

terminate the lease, and
. the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under remaining value guarantees

After the commencement date, the Group remeasures the lease liability accordwng to the present value
caleulated by the revised leate payment amount and the reveed discount rate and makes a corréipanding
adjustment to the related nght-of-use asset whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there 15 a change m the assessment of exercise of a purchase optian, e
which case the lease Habilty is romeasured by discoamting the revised leaie payments using & revised
discount rate; of

. the lease payments change due 1o changes in an index or rate or 4 change in sxpected payment
urider a guaranteed remaining walue, in which cases the lease Hability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initkal discount rate, But of the change in lease payments results
from a change in floating interest rates, the lesses shall use a revised discount rate that reflects
changes in the intesest rate.
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{9} Leases jcontimued)

As a lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor ase dassified as finance or operating leases. 'When the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease,
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Whete the Group B & lessor under Tinance leases, an amount representing the net investment in the lease i included
in the consofidated statement of hnancial position as “foans and advances to customens”™. Unrecognised finance
income under finance leases are amortned using the effective interest method over the lease term. Accounting
poficy lor impairment kosses are disclosed in Note 4(5)

When the Group & a lessor of an operating lease, income derived from operating lease s recognised in the
comolidated statorment of profit of low wing the straaight-line method over the lease term, If initial direct costs
incurred in respect of the assets leased out are material, the costs are initially capitalised and subsequently amortised
in profit or loss over the lease 1erm on the same basis as the lease income. Contingent lease income 5 charged 1o
profit or koss in the accounting perniod in which it is incurred.

‘When a contract indludes lease and non-lease components, the Group applies IFRS 15 Revenus fram Confracts with
Custormuers 10 allocate the consideration under the contract 1o each component

As & buyer-lesiar in a sale and leaseback transasctions

For a transfer of asset that does not meet the requirements of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
te account for a sale of asser, the Group acting as a buyer-lessar does not recognise the transferred asset and
recognises loan and advancs te custamens al an amount that equals the transfer preceed within the scope af IFRS 9
Financial lnstruments,

(10} Insurance contracts
Insurance contracis classification

Insurance contracts ane those contracts under which the Group has accepied significant insurance risk, relative 1o an
insured event of cccurrence. YWhen necessary, the Group enlers inte reinsurance coniracts to transfer insurance nsks
o reinsurers. A sigmficant msurance risk test 5 performed at inception af the insurance contracts,

Insurance income recognition

Premiurms {rom long-term lfe insurance contracts are recognised as revenue when due from policy hobders,
Premivms related to short-term non-life insurarice contracts are recognised when recerved at the mception of the
pabey, as unearned insurance premiums in labilites, and are amorssed on a straight-line basis into the consolidated
statement of profit or joss over the term of the policy. When the Group has transferved insurance risk through
reinsurance contracts, the Group caloulates the amount of premium ceded and the reinsurers' share of expenses
and recognises them through the consolidated statement of profit or loss in sccordance with the terms of the
reinsurance contiacts.

Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabifites are measured based on a reasonable estimate of the amownt of payments that the
Group will be required to make to fullill its obligations wnder the insurance contracis, which represenis the
difference between expected future cash outflows and inflows related to such contracts. A reasonable estumate of
expected utuie el cadh flows is determined baed on mformation currently availabli as at the end of the wporting
periad.

The Group has conssdered the impact of ume value in the lability caleulanon for long-term life insurance. The
Group perfarms liability adequacy tests based on information currently available as at the reporting date. Additional
insurance contract labilities should be recorded if any deficiency earts
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(11) Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than impairment under

ECL madel

The carrying amount of tangible and imtangible assets including property and equipment, nght-of-use assets,
intangible assels, myestment properties, interests in joimt ventures, interests in asociates, goodwill and other none
current assets are reviewed penodically in order 1o assess whether the recoverable amount has dedined below the
carrying amount. Whan such a dechne has accurred, the carrpng amount is reduced to the recoverable amount. The
amount of impairment less is recogaised in the consolidated statement of prafit or loss. The recoverable amount
of an asset i the greater of its fair value less disposal expense and predent value of future expected cash flows In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed &t the end af the reporting period to identify any
indscations that other assets may be impaired

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwall, intangible assets
that are fet yot avalable for uie and intangible adsets that have indefinite uielul lves, the mecoverable amount s
estimated by the Group at the end of the reportsng period whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recowerable amaunt of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the greater of its fair value less disposal
expnse and the present value of futune cash flows. In assessong value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present values using a pre-tan discount fate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the roks specific to the asset. Whene an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets; the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest growp
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impasrment boss 5 recognised in the comolidated staternent of profin or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, ar the cash-generating unit to which it belongs exceeds its recoverable amount
Impairment losses recognised i resgect of cash-generating wnits are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allecated 1o the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, 1o reduce the
carrying amount of the othér assets in the unit {or group of units) on a pro rata bass, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its indwidual fair value less costs 1o sell, or value in use,
if determinahle

(12) Precious metals

Precious metals that are not related to the Group's trading activities are mitially measused at acquisition cost
and subsequently measured at the lewer of cost and net realisable value, Preciows metals that are related 10 the
Group's trading activitees are initiafly recognised at fair value, with changes in fair value ansing from remeasurement
recognised directly in the conswolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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{13} Financial guarantee issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees issuod

Financial guarantess are contracts that reguise the issuer (ie. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficany of the guarantes (the halder) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtar fails 1o
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. The prowision of financial guarantees
lssued is conlirmed In the consalidated statement of linancial poution In accordance with accounting palicy set out
in Mate 45

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for Kabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obbgation ameng as a result of a past event, 1 is highly probable that an outflow of econamic benefits will be
required 1o settle the obligation and & refiable estimate can be made. Whaere the time value of money is material,
prosivons ane stated at the present value of the expenditures expected 1o settle the abligatson,

‘Whese i is not probable that an cutflow of economic benelits will be reguared, or the amount cannol be estimated
reliably, the abligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of eutflow of econamic benefits is
remate,

(14) Income recognition

Revenue is the inflow of economic benefits that the Group has formed in fts daily activities that will result in an
Increase in sharehciders” eguity and have nothing to do with the capital invested by shareholders

Met interest incoma

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments except for those classified as at FVTPL are recognited
“Interest income” and “Interest expense” n the profit or lows acount using the effectve interest method. Interest
on financial instruments measured as at FYTPL is included within the fair value movement during the percd, which
Is recognised in “Other net mcome” .

Dividend incame
Dividend income fram investments i mecognised when the dividend is declared and approved by the investes

Rental income

Income dernved from operating leases is recogrised in the consolidated statement of prafit or loss wsing the straight-
line method ower the lease term.

Premium income

Fremium income represents Qross insurance premiam weitten less reinswance ceded, as adpusied for unearned
pramium, Gross premiums written ane recognized at date of mik inception
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{(14) Income recognition costnued)

Fee and commission income

Under IFRS 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers, the Group recognises revenue when (of as) a performance
obligation is satistied, 1. when “contral® of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligatian
is transferred to the customer

A perlormance obligation represents a good and sesvice (or a bundle af goods or serviced) that is detinet of a senes
of distinct goeds or services that are substantially the same. For contracts that contain more than one performance
obfigation, the Group allecates the transaction price 1o each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling
price basls, except for the allocation of discounts and variable consideration,

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or service underlying each performance oblgation is determined
at contract inceplion. N repeesents the price al which the Group would sell a promised goods or senvice separately
to a customer, il a stand-alone selling price is not directly cbservable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
technegues such that the transaction prce ultemately allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
comsideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services
fo thi customer

Foe contracts that contain vanable consideration, the Group estimates the amount of consderation to which i will
be entitled using either (a) the expected value method or (b) the most likely amount, depending on which method
better predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group will be entitled, The estimated amount of variable
considerateon i included in the transaction price only to the axtent that it i highly probable that such an inclusion
will not result in a sgnificant revenwe reversal m the future when the uncertainty associated with the vanable
comsideration is subsequently mesolved. At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated
transaction price (includimg updating its assessment of whether an estimate of variable conssderation is constrained)
to represent faithfully the circumstances present al the end of the reporting period and the changes in circumstances
dunimg the reporting peried,

Contral w translerred over time and revenue 15 recognined over time by relerence 1o the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance cbligation if one of the following criteria i met:

. the custamer simultaneously receives and contumes the benofits provided by the Group's performance s the
Group performs;

- the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group performs,
or
- the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has

an enforceable pght 1o payment for perfarmance completed to date,
Otherwise, revenue s recognised at a poin? m time

If the revenue s recognised over time, the Group recognises revenue in accordance with the pregress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation. The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation s measured based on output method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the goods or sendces transferred to the customer lo date rélative 1o the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract, that best depicts the Group's performance in transferring contrel of goods or sennces.
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“4} Income rE:ugni‘tiun feontmanpal)
Fee and commission income (contmued)

If revenue s recognised at a point in time, the Group recognises the revenue when the customer obtains contral
of the distinet good or service, To determine the point in time at which a customer obtains contral of a promised
service, the following indicators of the transfer of control should abo be considered. They include, but are not
limited ta:

- the Group has a present right to payment lor the goods or services;

- the Group has ransferred physcal possession of the goods,

. the customar has the significant risks and rewards of ewnership of the goods;
- the customer has accepted the goods or services.

When another party is invalved in prowding goods or services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promize is a perfformance obligation to provde the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is &
principal) or o arrange for those goods or services to be pressded by the other party {l.e. the Group is an agenth

Thie Group 14 & prncipal f 11 can contral the goods or service befare trandleiring it to cuttemers, The Group i an
agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of the specified goods or service by another party.
In this ease, the Group does nat contral the specified goods or service provided by anathes party befare that goods
or service s transferred to the customer, When the Group acls as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services 10 be provided by the other party,

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in exchange for goods or sefvices that the Group has
transferred to a customer that i not yet unconditional. In contrast, a recervable represents the Group's uncanditianal
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is requered before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s abhgation 1o transfer goods or services to a custamer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer,

{15) Taxation

Cumrent income tax and movements in deferred tax balances are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or lods except to the extent that i1 relates to iterns recognised directly in equity, in which case it = recognised in

equity,

Cufrent tax i the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted 91 the end of the reporting period, and any sdjustment to tax payablo in respect of previous years,

Deferred tax & recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Fakalities in
the consolidated financial statements and the cormesponding tax base used in the computaton of tasable prohit
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. The amount of defesred tax provided is
based an the expected manner of realsation or settlernent of the carrying amount af assets and Habilities, using tax
rates of expected relurns of the asiets or the repayment of the tabilites. Deferred ta assets and liabilities are not
discaunted.

A deterred tax asset i recognned only fo the extent that it iz probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced by the extent that it is no lenger probable
that the related tax benelit will be realmed.

The Group shall recognise a deferred tax asset for all deductible temporary differences asseciated with investments
in subsidiaries and interests in associates and joint ventures that both af the following conditions are satisfied: the
temporary differences are likely to be reversed in the foresesable future, and it is probably to obtain the taxable
income used to offset the deductible temporary diffesence in the future. The Group shall recognise a deferred tax
liability for all taxable temporary differences assocated with imvestments in subsidianies and interests in associates
and joint wentures, except where both of the following conditions are satisfied: the investor & able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference; and it i prabable that the temporary difference vall nat reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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(15)

(16)

Taxation jonfimued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances. and movenants theresn, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax asseis are offset against current tan Mabilitles, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabiktios if the Group has the legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current i
liabilities and the follewing additional conditions are met:

. i the case of current tan assets and liabilties, the Group intends either to settle on a net bass, o to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

. in the case of deferred tax assets and labilities, if they relate 1o income taxes levied by the same tazation
autharity on sither

- the same taxable entity, or

- different taxable entities, which, i each future penod in which significant ameunts of deferred tax
liabdities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the curent fax assets and
wettle the current tax Habdlises on a net baus of realne and settle simultaneawly.

Foreign currencies translations

In preparng the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions (n currencies other than the
entity's functional currency (fareign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Al the end of sach reporting period, monetary items denomenated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing a1 that date. Nom-monetary dems carried at fair yalue that are denominated in fareign
cumencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value & determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of histerical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated,

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they atise except fon

- enchange differences on Wansactions entered Into as part of the effective portion of a hedge on certam
tareign currency risks; or

- exchange differences on monetary items receiable from or payable to a forelgn operation for which
settlernent s neither planned nor ikely to ocowr (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit
arf loss an repayment of the monetary ilems,

For the purposes of presenting these conschdated financial statements, the assets and liabelities of the Group’s
foreign aperations are translated inte corrency units using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporing
period, Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that pesiod, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions ase used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in exchange
reserve (and attributed to nan-controlling interests as appropnate).

On the disposal of a foreign aperation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in exchange reserve in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Bank are reclassified 1o profit or loss.
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{(17) Employee benefits
Salaries and staff welfare

Salares, bonuses and other benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by
employess

Past-employment benefits

The Group participates in a number of delined contribution setirement benefit schemes managed by different
prowincial gevernments or independent insurance companes. Obbgation for contributions 1o these schemes are
jointly borme by the Group and the staff, and contributions. pisd by the Group are recognised a3 an expense in the
comolidated staternent of profit or boss as incurred

The Group's net obligatsan in respect of defined benefit plans (s calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount
and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of delined benefnt obligations s performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. ‘When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to
the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds frem the plan or reductions i
future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration s given to any
applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assefs (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling Of any, exchiding interest), are recognised emmediately
in athet campeshensve income. The Group determings the nel interest expense lincome) on the net delined benelit
liability (asset} for the period by applying the discount rate used te measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning af the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), toking nte account any changes
in the net defined benefit lability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other sxpende: related 1o defined benefit plans are recognised in personnel expenses in the
comalidated staternent of profit or b

‘When the benefits of a plan are changed o when a plan s curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss an curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss, The Group recognises gains
and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Share-based payment

The Group offers H shase appreciation nighls to its employes, namely H Share Appreciation Rights Scheme far the
Senior Management {“the Schame®), which is settled in cash. Cash-settled share-based payments are measured al
the fair value of the liabilities incurred by the Group, which are determmed based on the price of the share. The
Group recogniied the seraces for the period as rélated costs o expenses, with & cerreiponding increase in Liabilty,
at an amount equal to the fair value of the liabdity based on the best estimate of the outcome of vesting at the end
of each reporting penod within the vesting peried. Untsl the llability i settled, the Group remeasures the fair value
of the liability at each reporting pericd end and at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised
in prafit or loss for the period

The fair value of the H share appreciation rights it wsing Black-Schales model, taking into account the terms and
condition upon which the H share apgreciation rights were granted,
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(18} Related parties

For the purposes of These comolidated financal staterments, parties are considered 10 be related to the Group if the
Group has the abslity, directly, indirectly or j@intly, 1o controd the party or exercise significant influence over the party
n making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party ane subgect to contral,
common contrel of common sghifecant influence (except that the Group and the party are subject to commean
significant influence of the other party). Related parties may be individuals (being members of key management
personnel, significant shareholders andfor their cose family membersh or other entities and include entities which
are under the signilicant influence of related parties of the Group where these parties are ndinduals, and post-
employment benefit plans which are for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that 5 a related
party of the Group.

{19} Segmental reporting

Operating segments, and the amounis af each segment em reported in the consobdated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating rescurces 1o, and assessing the perfarmance of, the Group's vanous hines of business and
geographical |locations. Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unbess the segments have simiar ecenomsc charactenstics and are similar in respect of the natwe of preducts and
services, the nature of production prodesses, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distnbute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory enviconment. Operating segments which are not
iniividually material may be aggregated if they meet most of thew criteria,

(20) Fiduciary activities

The Group acts i a fiduciary capacity in entrusted loan and entrusted investment business. Assets held by the Group
and the related undertakings 1o return sueh assels to customeds are excluded from the consolidated statement of
financal postion as the risks and rewards of the assets reside with the customers, The Group only charges & relevant
COMITHSSIoN,

{21) Dividends or profit distributions
Dissdends or profit distributions are recognused as a lability i the year in which they are approved and declared.

(22} General reserve

According 1o the relevant regulations of the Ministry of Finance, in addition to the impairment allowances, the
Bank maintaing a general reserve according o @ certain proportion of the balance of risk assets to make up for
unsdentified patential losses. The general reserve is treated as profit distribution and is an integral part of equty.
In principle, the balance of general reserve shall not be less than 1.5% of the ending balance of sk assets, The
general reserve of the Group also includes the general reserve maintained by the subsidiaries of the Group according
to the applhcable laws and regulations of thelr industry or region.
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In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and labilives, the Group makes assumphions for the effects
of uncertain {uture events on the aiseis and liabilities &t the end of the reporting penod. These estimates invalve
assurnptions about cash flows and the discount rates used. The Group's estimates and assumptions are based on
histarical sxperignce and expectations of future events and are reviewed penodically, In addition ta the avumplions
and estimations of future events, judgements are also made during the process of applying the Group's accounting
podicles.

(1) Control over structured entity

Where the Group acts as asset manager of structured entities, the Group makes judagement on whether 11 1 the
principal or an agent to assess whether the Group controls the structured entities and should consolidate them.
When performing this assessment, the Group conssdess several factors including, among others, the scope of its
decision=making authority over the structured entities, the righis held by other parties, the remuneration to which it
is entitled in accordance with the related agreements for the assels management services, the Group's exposure 1o
variabifity of retwrns from interests that it hobds i the structured entities,

{2) Classification of financial assets

Business model assessment: Classification and measurement of financial assets of the Group involves significant
judgement on business model, The Group determines the busness model at a level that reflects how groups of
financial assets are managed together 10 achieve a particular business objective. Specific considerations includa how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and
hews thiede ane managed and hew the manageis af the assets are cofmpensated

{3) Derecognition of financial assets transferred

In ity normal course of business, the Group transfers ns financial assets through vanous types of transactions
including reqular way sales and transfers, securitisation, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements. The
Group applies sigrilicant judgement and estimate in aveiung whether it has translerred these Hinancial assets and
qualified for a full derecognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it tramfers financial assels to stroctured entities, the
Group analyses whether the substance of the relationship between the Group and these structured entities indicates
that it controfs these structured entities and the Group needs to censalidate them. This will determine whether the
following derecognition analysis showld be conducied a1 the consobdated level or at the entity level from which the
financial assets are transfesred,

The Group analyses the contractual rights and obligations i connection with such tranifers o determine whether
derecognition criteria are met based on the followang considerations:

- wehether it has vranslerred the nahts to receve contractual cash flows fram the financial assets or the transfer
guadifies for the "pass through™ of those cash flows to independent third parties;
- the extent to which the associated risks and reswards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred.

Significant judgerment and estimate i3 applied m the Group's estimation with regard to the cash flows before
and after the wransfers and other factors that affect the outcomes of the Group's assessment on the extent
that risks and rewards are ransferred,
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(4)

aﬂﬂﬂunting estimates ientnued

Impairment under ECL model

- Significant incredse in credit rik: ECL 18 measuted as an allowance equal te 12-manth ECL for stage 1 assels,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
sigrificantly since initial recognition. I assessing whether the eredit risk of an asset has significantly
increased, the Group takes into account gualitatee and guantitative reasonable and supportable forward
looking infarmation. Refer to Note 60{ahi) for more details,

. Establishing groups of assets with similar credit risk characteristics: When ECLs are measured on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped on the basis of shared risk charactenistecs. Hefer to Mote B0(aliv)
for details of the characteristics considened in this judgement. The Group monitors the appropristeness of The
credit risk characteristics on an ongoing basis to assess whether they continue to be similar, This is required
m arder to ensure that should credit risk characteristics change there is appropriate re-segmentation of the
assels. This may result in new portfolios being created or assets moving to an existing portfolio that better
reflects the similar credit risk charactenistics of that group of assets. Assets move fram 12-month (o ldelme
ECLs when there is a significant increase In credit risk, but it can also occur within portfolics that continue
1o be meatured on the same basis of 12-manth or lfetime ECLs but the amount of ECL changes because the
crodit risk af the portfolios differ

- Models and assumptions used: The Group uses various models and assumptions in estimating ECL. Judgement
i apphed in identifying the most appropriate model for each type of asset, as well as for determining the
assumptions used in these models, including assumptions that relate to key drivers of credit risk. Refer to
Hate 60(a){iilfor mote details on ECL

. Forward-booking mfarmation: When measuring ECL the Group wses reasonable and supportable forwand
looking informatson, which is based an assumgtions for the future movement of different economic drivers
and how these drivers will affect each other. Reler 1o MNote 80{aliv Tor more detasls

- Probability of Default ("PD™): PD constitutes a key input in measuring ECL PD is an estimate of the likelihood
of default over a given time horizen, the calculation of which includes historcal data, assumptions and
sxpectations of future conditions. Refer to Note 60¢{a) (i) for more details.

- Loss Gven Default ("LGD") LGD is an estimate of the loss arsing on default. It 1s based on the difference
betwean the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking inlo
account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements. Refer to Note 60{alii) for more details.

- Due to greater financial uncertasnty triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic, there s hegher ngk that a
prolonged pandemsc could lead to increased credit default rates. The Group considered the impact of
COVID-19 in the ECL model which are drdosed in Note 60(akiv)

In 2021, in arder 1o increase the Group”s resshence and guard itselt against losses, the Group refined and optimised
the measurement system of loss allowance for financial instruments in the principle of prudence and robustness.
The Group made a change in ECL accounting estimate as of 30 June 2021, and such change in accounting estimate
wat mainly about enhancing the risk differentiation of the model in order to optimise the fineness and foresight
of loss allowance for financial instruments, Among which, when determining whether there w any ssgnificant
increase in credit risk, the application of early waming signal is further deepaned, when considering forwand-looking
informatson, the macroeconomic index database ks expanded; n terms of the classification of ridk characteristics,
the reterence index of grouping s optimsed. The change in accounting estimate resulted in an increase in the
Group's lows allowance by RMBES2 million ai at 31 December 2021, and a decrease in the Groups prafit belare
taxation by RMBG32 millien in 2021 compared with those under the previous ECL estimates, In 2021, the expected
credit losses of the Group were RMBGES5.962 milkon, représenting a year-of-year increase of 1.68%. The change i
accounting estimate has no sgnificant impact an the net prolit, total assets and net assets of the Group in current
periad. The change in accounting estimate is applied prospectively for future periods, and do not require to adjust
the announced financial reports retrospectively. Therelore, the change will not have any Impact on the comofidated
financiad conditions and consobdated operating results of the Group in previows persods.
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5. Significant accounting estimates and judgements, changes in
aﬂﬂﬂunting estimates ientnued

{5) Fair value of financial instruments

For a number of financial instruments, no quoted prices s an active marke? exist. The fair value fod thede Tnancial
Instruments are establshed by using valuation fechmésgues. These technigues include wsing recent arm’s length
market trantactions, reference to the current Tair value of sirmilar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis or
option pricegy models, The Group has established a process to ensure that valuation techniques are constructed by
qualified persannel and are validated and reviewed by personnel independent of the business unit that constructed
the valuation techmiques. Valuation techniques are certified belore being implemented lor valuation and are
calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual masket conditions, Valuation medels established by the Growp
make the mixmum vie of market inputs and rely as lttle as possible on the Group's specilic data. However, it
should ke noted that some inputs, such as credit and counterparty rsk and nisk correlateons, requee management
estimates. Whilit the Group considers these valuations are the best estimates, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has
resulted in greater market volatily and may cause further disruptions to the investees'fissuer's basinesses, which
have led to higher degres al uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the current year, Management estimates
and assumptions are reviewed perrodically and adjusted if necessary. If the fair walue is measured using third party
informateon such as beoker quetes or pricang services, the valuation team will evaluate the evidence abtained from
third party to support the conclusion that the relevant valuation meets the requirements of IFRS, including the
categary af the relevant valuation at the appropriate level i the fair value hierarchy

(6) Income taxes

Determaning income tax provisons involves judgerment on the fulure tax treatment of ceértan tramsactons. The
Group carefully evalwates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are sel up accordingly. The tax
treatment of wch transactions i reviewed periodically to take into account all ehanges in tax leguslations, Deferred
tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that if is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management's ppdgement s requered to sssess the probability of future
taxable profits: Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the delerred tax asset 1o be recovered.

(7) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill s impaired at least on an annual basis and when circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU or
group of CGUS ta which the goodwaill is allocated. Estimating the recoverable amount requites the Group 1o make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from CGU or group of CGlUs and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in arder to calculate the present value of those cash Nows. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in downward revision of future cash flows or upward
revision of discoun? rate, a matedal impairment loss or further impalrment lods may arlse, Furthermode, the estmated
cash flows and discount rate are subject to higher degree of estimation undertainties due 1o the COVID=19 pandemic
and volatility in financial markets
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6. Interest income
2021 2080
Loans and advances to customsers 250,662 236,104
- Corporate |oans B0,575 80,575
= Retail loans 158,124 147,704
= Discounted bills 10,963 1.825
Balances with central banks 7,792 1,475
Balances with banks and other financal institutions G02 1.695
Placements with banks and ather financial institutions 5,526 5,906
Amounts held under resale agreements B, 115 4,402
Financial investmeants 56,059 51.843
= Debt investments at FYTOC| 15,875 14.023
- Debt investments at amortised cost 40,184 37820
Tatal 327,056 307,425

Mot Thi Gioife Presaratid 50 el ot of BWB12 337 millan o kant sl SOVBREEL 1 cLANERSH Gt e value Deicdigh ot Jomisabierins

Ingeme (POF0; AMES NTS milion),

Interest expense

2021 2020
Deposits from customers B4,332 83,252
Bamawing from central banks 7,635 8413
Deposits from banks and other financial institutsons 11,9932 9,961
Placements fram banks and other Tinancial instrtutions 1,519 3,750
Amounts sold under repurchase agreamants 2,571 1,770
Debt securities isswed 12,532 14,652
Lease labilties 335 396
Tatal 123,137 122,384
Fee and commission income

2021 2020
Commissions from wealth management 35641 27,783
Codnmistions fram assel management 10,856 6,897
Bank cands fees 18,377 19,551
Clearing and settlement fees 13,902 12,651
Commissions from credit commitment and lending business 6321 6,191
Commimssions on custadian busingss 5,433 4,253
Other 10,588 9,363
Total 102,318 B6, 684

In 2021, the Group adjusted the disclosure of fee and commisson income by regrouping the components thiat
were previously included in “Agent service fees”, “Commistions on trust and fiduciary activties” and ©Other”,
and present them under the category of wealth management, asset management, custodian business and aother,
The comparatre figures were restated accordimgly. After the adjustments, commbsions from wealth management
contain agency funds income, agency insurance income, agency trust schemes income, agency wealth management
income, agency securities transaction wncame and agency precious metal income; commissions Tram asset
management contain income from ssuance snd management of variows asset management products such as funds,
wealth management products, asset management schemes, et comemissions on custodian business contain income
abtained fram providing basic services and valueadded services of custody assets; other items contain bond and
equity underwriting income, oredit asset securitisation service fee income, consulting income and other intermediany

business imcarmi.
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9. Other net income
201 2020
Profitiioss) fram fasr value change a2 {1, 660)
- financial instruments at fair value through peafit of loss Sdd (2,09%)
= derivatives instruments 12 48
- precious mefals {464) s
Investrment incame 17,822 16,281
= financial instruments at FYTPL 14,839 13,400
- boss on digposal af financial assets at amortised cosl (65T} (273
= gdin on di:pm:ﬂ of debt instrurments at FVTOC! 3,516 2,970
—of which: gain on disposal of bills 2,434 1.660
- dividend incame from equity imvestments designated at FYTOCH 74 175
- ather 50 9
Foreign exchange gain 3,331 2.202
Other incame B,B6E 5,708
= rental income B415 5,278
= iNsurance income 453 430
Cithet B7E 3sa
Total 25,011 22,881
10. Operating expenses
021 2020
Staff costs BB, 028 57,040
- Salaries and bonuses 51,03 43,257
= Socul insurance and corparate supplemental insurance BN 6,048
- Oithar B, 9B6 1,735
Tax and surcharges 2,772 2,478
Depreciation of progeny, equipment and investment properties 857 1715
Amaortaation of intangible assets 1,153 1.188
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4,259 4416
Short-term leases expense and leases of low-value assets expense 250 292
Charge for insurance claims in 296
Other geneval and administratve expenses (note (i) 33,249 29.389
Total 116,879 102814
Haole
il Auditery inmateratian smeuniing ta AMBZE milisn for the pear anded 31 Degembe: 2001 (OO0 RMBZR millien] 1 intheorl in cshar gersral

afiil adrk IS e
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11. Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
The emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors during the year were a5 fallows:
0
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fres in kind bonuses  contributions Total
RME'000 RME'000 RME D00 RME'D00 RMEB D00
1
Executive directors
Tean Huiyy - 4,158 = 40 4,188
Wang Liang - 3,302 - 40 3,342
Sublotal - 746D - =1i] 1,540
The executive directors’ emoluments shewn above were Tor thest sénices in connection with the management of the
aflairs of the Bank and the Group
Man-executive directors
Mg Jianmin - = - - -
Fu Gangfeng - - - - -
Ihou Sang = - - - -
Hong Xiaoyuan - - - - -
Zhang Juan - - - - -
5u Min - - - - -
Wang Daxiang - - - - -
Luo Sheng - - - - -
Sublotal - - - - -
The nan-execulive deectors shown shove did nol recelve remuneration {am the Bank.
Indegendent non-executive
directars and supervisons
‘Wong See Hong 500 - - - 500
Li Menpgang 500 - - - 500
Liu Qian 500 - - - 500
Tuan Hongaqi 500 - - - 500
Li Chacxian [i) 1B3 - - - 183
Shi Yongdong (i) 183 - - - 183
Miang Lianagin (i) H: 3,164 - 48 3,212
Peng Bihong - - - - -
Wu Heng - - - - -
Guo Kikun (iv) - - - - -
Ding Huiping 400 - - - ADD
Han Zwang 400 - - - 400
su Zhengjun 400 - - - 400
Wang Wanging - 2,747 - 48 2,785
Cai lin (v) z 123 2 .l m
Subtotal 3,566 6,024 - 144 9,744

The independent non-exmecutive directors” and supenmsors’ emoluments shown above were for thelr services and
employment as directors of supervisors of the Bank,
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11. Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments consined

201
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees i kinad bonuses  contributions Tatal
RMEB'000 RMBE‘000 RME‘OOD RME'DDD RME‘0DD
1
Former executive, non-executive
directars and supervisors
Liu Hanjun (v} - 1,373 - 19 1,392
Leung Kam Chung, Antany (i} ny - = - n7
Zhao Jun (i) nz - - - M7
Liu Yuan [viip - 2,368 - n 2,298
Ween languo (viii) - - - - -
Liu ¥isomimg {ix) - 1,979 - 48 2.027
Subiotsl 634 5720 - G8 6,452
The former executive, non-executwe diractors’ and supervisors’ emoluments shown above were Tor thelr services as
directons or superasors of the Bank,
Total 4,200 19,214 - Er 23,736
bt
il The tofal femuneration bedors ta for the tull-me dweciors, sopersscrs and auscutive ofhicers of the Groop s mot gt lnakoed. Details of thes
mmwnmﬂ b it H'FH’I[“FM Ahvir ol pETnLEeEtien o ool e

" W fune 2021, accordng to the relevant resclutions pesed a the 2020 anrial anenal meeting of the Bank, W Lt Chaosan and M 5hi

Yonpdong were slecied s the Independen] Non-Ivecutive Dimttors of the Bnk, whies gualdicptions. s the independend Non-Laemitee
Directory were spproved by the CBRC in dggust POF1. AL the seme time, Mr. Leung Kam Chung, Antony snd ke Bhes in cessed 1o be the
Indepandent Mon-Leecutve Dwecion of Se Bank due {0 the sxpiry of their sppointments

fim} i Anspat 2021, Wr Mong Langrus wis slecied 5 the Esployss Sepanmor of Bhe Bank 5t B 1411 congrens ol the Bank. Accoiding 1o the
rrsclutions passed at tha 7t meeong of g |t wesion of e Bosed of Saperencn of the Bank, M. Kong Langjun was slecied as the
Chasrman of 1 Boaid of Supsreace ol the Bank

{11 In June 1021, scoonding To the relesant resohations passed ab the 2020 annual genecsl meeting af the Rank, M. Gio Xiun wa elecied a the
Sheawhclder Supervisor of ihe Bank.

dwd I Detembes 100 8, Whi. Col b vemn elecied i the Imployes Smperwiise of the Bant at the stall congress of the ek

il i Rl 131 NI, L Napuh deaiid 10 B Bhi Easdufve Dictoe, Bnbtuthd eoe Preudsnt shd Secritery of e Baand of Diretodn of S Bank
dhow B chasegs of werl srmangemenl.

{will i August 2020, Wi Uiy Yusn cessed io be the Chaimen of Board o Supersiuons sesd Employes Superviser of the Bani dus &0 changs of wesl
AT

fwikd i dpnl 2027, Br Wen lisnsgues cerarped fo be the Sharsholder Seperescr ol the Benk due to dange of work arsngemend

fiml in Decambar 12 1, Mr. Liu Kisoming cemed (o B the [ mployes Supermar of the Back dis to chinge of syonk arengement

(1] A3 ol 31 Decormbar 2021, the Geoup had olfered 10 phases. ol H shate appreciation nght undas (he Scheers, Datails of the Scheme are sl
£ b Mo 30 G pel
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11. Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments consined
2010
Salaries,
allowances Retiement
Duwectors’  and bepefits  Dmcretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  coninbutions Total
RMEB'000 RME 000 RME'DOOD RME°000 RME D00
]
Executive directars
Tian Huiyu - 4,158 1,766 40 5,964
Liu Hanjun - 3,024 1.284 43 4,351
‘Wang Liang - 3,024 1.284 40 4,348
Subiaral - 10,206 4,334 123 14,663
The executeve directors’ emoluments shonwn above were Tor thesr sernces in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Bank and the Group
Mon-executive directors
ino Jianmmindinl - - = - =
Fu Gangieng - - - - -
Zhau Sang - - - - -
Hong Xiaoyuan - - - - -
Zhang lan - - - - -
Su Min - - = - =
Wang Daxitng - - - - -
Luo Sheng - - . - -
Subtotal - - - - -
The non-executive deectors shown above did nol receive remuneration from the Bank.
Independent nan-executive
directars and supervisors

Leung Kam Chung, Antony 500 - - - 500
Thao Jun 500 - - - 500
Wong See Hong 00 - - - 500
Li Menggang 00 - - E 500
Liu Qlae 500 - - - 500
Tran Hongai SO0 - - - 500
Liu ¥uan - 3,402 1,445 &3 4, B8
Peng Bihang - - - E -
Wen liangue - - - - -
Wu Hing = = = - =
Dimg Huiping 400 - - - A0D
Han Zwong 400 - - - 400
Ay Zhengjun 400 - - - 400
Wikng Wandging - 2.942 - 43 2,785
Liu Xizoming - 1986 - 43 2039
Sulbtatal 4 200 8,140 1,245 129 13,914

The independent non-executive directon’ and supenssors’ emoluments shown above were far thelr services and
employment as directons os suparvisors of the Bank,
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11. Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments consined
2020
Salaries,
allowances Reviremnent
Dwectors”  and benefits  Decrotonary schame
tees in kind bonuses  coninbutions Total
RME'DDD RIE'DOD REME'DDD REMB'000 RMB DDD
i
Farmer executive, non-executive
directars and supervisors
Li Nanhanglinh - - - - -
Sublotal - - - - -
The former emecutive, nom-executive directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments shown above were Tor their services as
directons of superdsors of the Bank,
Total 4,200 18,346 5779 152 28,577
Maites
il Cny 29 Sapiember 3021, the Bomd ol Direcios spproved the dacebonary bonuaes of the Bank’s duector, supenison and execuiner offcers
far Jogo
[ in Sepiember JOI0, scoording tin the sebevant resalutiom paasd #1 the 2000 first extraordinery genersl meetirg of the Bank. Mr. Mis Hanmin

vears lecied a5 the Chabman and Hon-Eseculive Descior of the Bank, whase qualifications as the Direcios and the Chasrmman were approved by
the CHIRC on 34 Septpmbe 1GI0G,

iy iy Septersber 3000, Wi Ll Renkong osased 1o be the Chsnman and Non-Esscurties Dinscior of the Rant doe S0 changs of work srnangemaend

fial 45 o 30 Devemiber 2020, the Gioap had ofieed 10 phases of H share apprecistion rights scheme o ity senior mansgemen (e Sceme)
Dty o (b St are st oul i Beote 39 Caliil

Duning the year of 2021 and 2020, no emoluments wene pasd by the Group to any of the persons whe are directors

OF SUpSiviters as an inducement to jein ar upan joining the Group of as compensation for loss of office.

Duning the year of 2021 and 2020, there was no arrangement wnder which a director or a supervisor waived of
agreed 1o waive any remuneration

12. Five highest paid individuals

Of the five highest paid indviduals for the year ended 31 December 2021, three (2020! four] were directors or
supervisors of the Bank whose emoluments were induded in Mote 11 above. The aggregate emolument af the
remaining bwo (2020; threw) highest paid indviduals who were neither disectors nor supervisors of the Bank iz as

Tedlaws:
2021 2020
RME"DD0 RBAB 000
Salarwes and other emoluments 6,048 9,072
Diseretiohary boruwes - 31,852
Contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes BS 123
Tatal 6,132 13,047

The top five hughest pasd individuals who were neither directars nor supencisors of the Bank whose emofuments fell
within the following bands i set out below:

2021 2020
HED

3,500,001 - 4,000,000 : -
4,000,001 — 4,500,000 i T
4,500,001 - 5,000,000 = :

5,000,001 = 5,500,000 =

Dunng the year ended 31 Decermbier 20217, the five highest paid individuals included five persons in 1otal, two of
them wese with the same emoluments and besng the fourth highest paid ndiveduals.

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2020, the five highest paid individuals incleded seven persons in total, two of
them ware with the same emoluments and being the third highest paid individuals, three of them were with the
same emoluments and being the fourth highest paid indiveduals
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13. Loans to directors, supervisors and executive officers
Leans to deectors, supervisars and exscutve officers of the Group are a5 follows
021 2020
Aggregate amount of relevant loams made by the Group outstanding at
year ond &1 54
Masimum aggregate amount of relevant koans made by the Group
outstanding durng the year Gi& 59
14. Expected credit losses
B 202 2020
Loans and advances 1o customars 37,020 46,882
- Loans and advances at amortised cost (Note 22{c)i)} 35,678 46,983
- Loans and advances at FVTOCH (Note 22 (i) 1,342 (101]
Amounts due from banks and other financal institutions B,110 EL T
Fimancal investments 15,848 15,367
= Dedl investments at amortised cost (Note 2 3Tk 13,201 13.875
— Delst irvestments at FYTOC! (Mate 2 3cling 2,647 1,492
Fimancial guarantees and loan commitments 5,638 2.147
Eher 15" e
Tatal BE 962 64,871
15. Income tax
{a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:
E Ry £0h
Current income tax expense 38,141 31,646
- Mainland China 37222 30,574
- Hang Kang TEY 980
_= Oy i 12
Deferred tasation R ) (19.802) (7,165
Tatal 27,339 24,481
(b) A reconciliation of income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and that calculated at the applicable statutory tax rate is as follows:

202 2020

Prafit before taxation 148,172 122,440
Tax at the PRC statutory income tax rate of 25% (20200 25%) 37,043 0,610
Tax effects of the fallowing items

- Effects of non-deductible expenses 1,392 914

- Effects of non-tazable income {12,603) (10,568)

= Effects of different applicable rates in othes junsdictions (258) (458)

- Transfer out of previowsly recognised defesred tax assets 1,716 4,055

- Dthar &9 172)
Income tax expense 27,339 24,481
hate
il Famation Ior ihore Kong and overseay oprration sne charged af the spplicable ratey of lax prevaiing in relrvant regiom

303/432



EDINETOOOO

DO000ooOoOOoooo(eos9se)
ooooood
China Merchants Bank Chapter VIl Financial Statements 213
Annual Report 2021
16. Other comprehensive income
{a) Income tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income
— MW
Bofore-tox  Taxbenefitt  Net-ofdax  Beforetar  Tax benefit/ Net-al-tax
- - i amaunt {eapense] amaunt amodnl (erpeie] amoant
lems thal may ke reclassdied to pralit of loss L& H {2,526) 5856 4379 B57 3.1
= Nt fair walue gasnflous) on detit
instrumants maasured 81 FVTOC) 3675 (1,519) 4,156 anmn 988 [Farrs ]
- Net changes in expected credit losses of
dabt instruments meavured a8 FYTOC) 4,080 {1,024} 1036 1301 [EEN] 1,054
= et movement in cash flow hedge resenve & 17 105 3 & @n
- Shate ol aiher compeehenine income Trom
equity-aroounied investees 133 - 133 453 - dE3
- Enchursge difference on ansistion
of financial statements of foreign
pperalions (1514 = [1.574) a3} z {2 483
tems that well not be meclassied subsequently
ta prald er loss 1,176 157 1,333 B 1153} 534
= Net Tair value gan on eguity Fstruments
designated a1 FVTACH 1,158 160 1318 625 a4y 431
= Remoasurement of delined berefn schome 18 (3 15 5 ] 43
Other compeehesnieve income 4,558 {2,368} 7189 3,702 504 {3,198
(b} Movements relating to components of other comprehensive income are as

follows:
021 2020
Met fair value gainAloss) on debt instruments measured at FYTOC)
Changes in fair value recognised during the year 65,793 (50]
Reclasssfication adjustmenis for amounts transferred to profit
of boss upon disposal (2,637} 12,227
Net movement in investment revaluation reserve during the year
recognised in other comprehensve income 4,156 (2,729
Met changes in expected credit losses of debt instruments measured at
FYTOCI
Changes in expected credit losses recognised during the year 3,038 1.054
Net mévement (0 imvestment revaluation reserve duting the year
recognised in other comprehenssve income 3,036 1.054
Met fair value gain on equity instruments designated a1 FVTOC)
Changes in fair value recognised during the year 1,318 481
Wet movement in investment movaluation reserve duning the year
recognised in other comprehensive income 1,318 481
Met movemant in cash low hedge resarve
Effective partion of changes in fair value of hedging instruments T4 {36)
Reclassification adjustment for realised gain o profit or loss n 2]
Met movement in hedging reserve dunng the year recognised i other
comprahensive income 105 (27
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17. Earnings per share

18.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the net profit attributable to ordinary sharehalders of the
Bank and the weighted average number of shares in nsue for the year. As there were no diluted potential ordimany
shares for the years of 2021 and 2020, there was no difference between basic and diluted earnings per share for
both years.

2021 2020

Wiy prafin attributable 1o equity halders of the Bank 119,922 97,342
Less: Net profit attnbutable to preference shareholders of the Bank {1,638) {1,651)
Met profit attributable to holders of perpetual bonds (1,975) -

Met profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank 116,308 95,691
Welghted sverage number of shares i (s (in millon shanes) 25,220 25,220
Basic and diluted earnings per share {in RM8 Yuan) 461 379

Haie

Tha Eanik daused hon-cusslsl e preleisnce shaee m M7 #nd non-cumilatnes Serpiiusl Bonds in 3000 and 102 1. For the purpens ol caloulaling Bdsac
sarings per shane, dyvidersh on non -oumulstiee pred hares and OF O il bonds declared during he yeer should be
deducied from the smoons stinbotsble to eguity Folden. of the Bank

The conwerson Testure of praf # sharey 5 ¢ dered 10 bee corvtingently miusble ordrary shares. The triggering ewents of conversion did not oooor
= ool 31 Decesber 1000 anad 2020, Theselore She converson leature of preference shares ha rd eflect on the déded sarnngs per share calodstion for
barth praii

Balances with central banks

2021 2020
Statutory deposit reserve (note (i) 484,E78 472,566
Surplus depasit reserve (note (s} 65,819 47,472
Fiscal deposits 2,958 5,080
Interest receivable 243 240
Tatal 553,898 525,358
Haie
l The Geoup pace stulory depowl reverves with the Peopie's Rank ol Chng (“FI0C™) and ovenem canirdd basiy where il ha opesation

Thie SLatAery deponit drsress are ot svailabie for the Group's dely operatiorn. The satulony depout reierve fungh ol the Bank's mitsutions
Igcated in Mailand Chana ate caloulabed at 8% and B% o wlgilie RAME deposils and forsign curenty depeseh reapictively in at 31 Dadember
02 {31 Decorsber MM 5% ard 5% of slgble AME deposits and {oreign uﬂmq-dlpmrl.l reapectively). Elegble degait indude dspowis

fram govemmen suthonbes and obher oeg vi, revml| deposits, © s, sl nat credkd bhalaroes of entrutied Buames and
ARAE deposity placed by financial inatsution oulside Menlesd Crina Tm-mnmncd satutony depout restrers placed wish the omnanad Banks
of ooarine are d d by locsd jumdicbons

i Surpluy diepind rearive mardened weth the FIOC and dentrad hinks putaide the Mainleng Ching ee mainly lor deanng and selSemend
T Py
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19. Balances with banks and other financial institutions

2021 2020
Principad {a) B, G654 103,448
Impairment allowances (ajb) 1378 @
e Boas 1w
Interest recelvable 64 164
Tatal 80,350 103,335
{a) Analysed by nature of counterparties
2021 2020
Balances in Mainland China 37,453 56811
= Banks 35,620 55,117
- Oither fimancial i_n_slltutif.:ms_ l,._ﬂ!! TISEM :
Balances outtide Mainland China 43,211 46,637
- Banks 41,430 45,942
= Other financial institutions 1,781 635
Tatal B0,664 103,448
Less: Impairment allowances {378) (2771
- Banks (329) (265)
= Other Tinancial institutions (45 1132)
Met carnng amaunt BD,2B6 13,17

(b} Movements of allowances for impairment losses are as follows:

2021 2020
Balamce a3 at the beginning af the yoear 2m an
Charged{refease) for the year (note 14) 108 {93)
Exchange diffesence (B) {2
Balance as at the end of the year EF-| 217
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20. Placements with banks and other financial institutions

2021 2020
Principal {a) 196,351 226,516
Impairment allowances (ajcl (2,860) __ (376)
e WA 126,140
Interest recelvable a930 T
Tatal 164,421 226,919
{a) Analysed by nature of counterparties
2021 2020
Placements in Mainland China 127,959 136,551
- Banks 19,213 27,637
- Oithear ‘f-narn:i_al inslltutim 'II}_B,.M_E II}B.,BN
Flacements outside Mainland China GE, 352 829,965
- Banks 68,102 89,965
= Other financial institutions 230 =
Total 196,351 226,516
Less: Impairment allowances {2,860) (376l
- Banks {136) (145)
- Othear fimancial institutions {,E.?l!‘ﬂ (231}
Miet carrying amownt 193,49 126,140
(b) Analysed by remaining maturity
2021 2020
Maturing
- Within ane month (inclusivel o6, B42 96,002
- Botwesn one month and one year (inclusive) 115,906 125,969
- Qu-er e year 10, 743 4,165
Tatal 193,491 226,140

(e Movements of allowances for impairment losses are as follows:

202 2020
Balance as at the beginning of the year 376 338
Charge for the year inote 14) 2,481 53
Exchange difference 3 151
Balance as at the end of the yoar 2,8E0 e
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21. Amounts held under resale agreements
2021 2020
Principad {a) 52E 564 286,879
Impairment allowances (akd) 14,263) (743
e saad 285,130
Interest recelvable 300 126
Tatal S24,601 286,262
{a) Analysed by nature of counterparties
2021 2020
Amounts held under resale agreements in Mainland China G28,447 286,382
= Banks 0,323 29.227
- Other fimancial institutions A58, 124 257,155
Amounts held under resale agreaments outside Manland China 117 497
- Other financial institutions 117 497
Total 528,564 286,879
Less: Impairment allowances {4.263) (743)
= Banks {175) (185)
— Other fimancial institutions (4,086) (558]
Met carrying amount 524,301 286,136
(b) Analysed by remaining maturity
2021 2020
Maturing
= Within one manth (inclusive) 524,301 179,446
- Between one month and ane year (imelusive) - 6,690
Total 524,300 286,136
{c) Analysed by underlying assets
2021 2020
Bands 522,202 ITRE1T
Bills 2,089 s
Tatal 524,301 286,136
(d) Movements of allowances for impairment losses are as follows:
2021 2020
Balance a4 at the beginning of the pear 743 196
Charge for the year inote 14) 3,520 a7
Balance as at the end of the year 4,163 743
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22. Loans and advances to customers

{a) Loans and advances to customers

e @ ___0E0
Gross amount of loans and advances to customers a1 amortsed cost () 5,075,052 4,647,140
Interest recevable m.,_m 95,{528
S 085800 4,856,608
Less: Loss albowances of loans and advances to customers al amortsed
cast (i) {244,523) (234,428)
Loss allowances of interest receivable {971} (6]
kit )248,095) A4S )
Loans and advances to custamers at amartised cost 4 840 106 44232146
Loans and advances to customers at FvTOC] (i) 488,004 375,359
Loans and advances 1o customers at FWTPL Gl 7,281 6,856
Tatal 5,335,391 4,804,361
(i} Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost
2021 2020
Cosporate loans and advances 2087, 247 1,965,980
Retail loans and advances 2,987,791 2,681,160
Discounted bilts 14 -
Grtoss amount of loans and advances to cuttomers at amortised cost 2073082 4847140
Less: Loss allowances {244,523) (234,426)
= Stage 1 (12-month ECL) (169,347) (159,918)
= Stage 2 (Lifetime ECL-not credit-impaired) {32,007) (27.401)
= Stage 3 (Lifetsme ECL-credi-impaired) {43,169) {47,107]
Met amount of loans and advances to customers at amortised cost 4,830,529 4412714
{ii} Loans and advances to customers at FYTOC!
2021 2020
Cosporate loans and advances 56,713 44,623
Discounted bills 431,33 330,736
Loans and advances to customers at FYTOC) 4B, 004 375,359
Loss aflowances (1,581) (238)
= Stage 1 (12-month ECL) {1,285) (226)
- 5tage 7 (Lifetime ECL-not credit-empaingd) {292) 12
= Stage 3 (Lifetime EL L-credit-impaired) - -

Mo boss allowance 5 recognised in the consolidated statement of financal position for loans and advances 1o
customers at FVTOCH as the carrying amount is at fair value,

{iii}  Loans and advances to customers at FYTPL

2021 2020
Coporate loans and advances 5,978 6,629
Interest receivable 303 227
Total 7,281 6,856
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22. Loans and advances to customers continues)

(b) Analysis of loans and advances to customers

{iy  Analysed by industry sector and category:
Operations in Mainland China

2021 2020
Transportation, storage and postal services 412417 381,898
Property divelopment 6T, 682 342,667
Manufacturing 309,635 256,173
Praduction and supply of electne power, heating power, gas and water 187,611 161,777
Leasing and commercial services 170,008 143,805
Whalewale and retail 138,352 132,055
Construction 117,452 101,442
Water, environment and public utilities management Ba,427 52,911
Telecommunications, software and IT services 5B, 267 54,491
Finance 57,988 74,852
Mining 28,B54 1,097
Gither 66,364 65,330
Subtatal of comorate loans and advamems i i LwenRae 179858
CRConmE IS e e e e T AL T 431,305 327479
Residential martgage 1,364,534 1,264,466
Credit cards 840,254 746,560
Micra-finance loans 560,657 474,545
Other 173,527 156,713
Subtotal of retaél loans and advances 2,938,972 2,642,284
Gross amount of loens and advances to customers 5,349,206 4,768 301
Operations outside Mainfand China
2021 2020

Finance 37,345 39,402
Property development 34,062 48,125
Transportation, storage and postal wenvices 33,1B6 10,526
Manufacturing 23,763 26,962
Wholesale and retail 8,920 17,720
Telecommunications, saftware and IT services 1727 9,644
Production and supply of electnc power, heating power, gas and water T.077 8,636
Mining 5,651 9579
Leasing and commercial services 4,749 11,223
C omninuctnod 3481 2177
‘Water, environmant and public utilities management B2 2,383
Cithier 5137 12,317
Subtetal of corporate loans and advanes - LGP L AR 116,694
Discownted bills - 3,257
Residential mortgage 9,872 10,349
Credil cards 17 127
Micro-finance koans 1214 1.183
Other 37,616 21,27
Subtotal of retail loans and advances 48,819 8876
Gross amount of loans and advances to customers 220,738 160,827

As at 31 Decornber 2021, over 930% of the Group's loans and advances to customers were conducted in Mainland
China (31 December 2020: aver 90%).
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22. Loans and advances to customers iontinwes
(b} Analysis of loans and advances to customers feantined)
{ii}  Analysed by type of guaranteos:
B L ——
Credit loams 1.977,014 1,758,502
Guaranteed loans 152,744 6O, 634
Collateralsed loans 2,075,638 1,914,658
Pledged loans 333,332 328,558
e Lt L 4,698,392
Discounted bils o 431,305 330,136
Grozs amount of loans and advances to cutomers 5,570,024 5,029,128
fiiiy  Analysed by overdue term:
ALY
Overdue Overdue
Overdue from from Cverdue Tatal
within Imonthi 1 yesrupte  mone than averdue
Imonths  up to | year 3 years 3 years loans
Credit [oans 18,087 10,269 2,972 244 12,282
Guaranteed koans 1,041 2,650 3476 1,403 8,670
Collaterafeied baans 1,616 1731 1,610 2,142 11,1m
Plediped laans 473 BBT Tail 3422 5,313
Gross amount of lodrs and sdvances to custamens 22327 16,338 10,848 1am 37,426
2020
Crerdue Creerdus
Overdlue fram fram Owerdise Tanal
within 3 Imanths 1 yearup 10 mare than owerdue
months  wp 1o 1 pear 3 yoan 3 yean loans
Credit loans 11,350 11,753 1538 GBE 25,329
Guaranteed loans 137 3,582 6,165 1,268 13,152
Cofateralned loans ing 3,901 4033 1,883 12,933
Plariged lnany L AP 3,731 0l 134
Gross ameunt of loar and advances to cunlomens. 15,584 10,112 15473 5289 56,568

Hale! Loans are clrisfiod oy overdus whei e principel of inbenel & cvidel mon than ors day,

Amaong the above-mentioned everdue loans and advances 1o customers, callateralised loans and pledged loans that
are overdue but not impaired at the reporting date are as follows:

0 2020
Collateralmed loans that are overdue but not impaired 1,517 2,308
Pledged loans that are overdue but not impainoed 473 177
Total 1,990 2,485
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22. Loans and advances to customers iontinwes
(b} Analysis of loans and advances to customers feantinwed)
{iv)  Analysed by ECL
- 20n
=Stage 2
(Lifetime -Stage 3
-Stage 1 ECL-nat [Lifetime
{12-manth credit- ECL-credit-
ECL) impaired) impaired) Total
Loans and advances measured at amortised cost 4,912,836 111,354 50,862 5,075,052
Less: Losas albowances of loans and advances to
customers at amortised cost (169,347} (22.007) (43,169} (244,523}
Mot amount of [cans and advances 1o customers. at
amortised cost 4,743,485 74,347 7693 4,830,529
Loans and advances 1o customers at FVTOC) 485,735 2,269 - 488,004
Loss allowances of lpans and advances to antomars
at FYToCH {1,289) (292) - {1,581}
200
~Stage 2
(Lifetime ~Stage 3
-Stage 1 ECL-not {Litatime
{12-month credit- ECL-credit-
ECL) impaired) impaired) Total
Loans and advances measured at amortised cost 4,517,239 76,286 53615 4,647,140
Less: Loss allewances of loans and advances to
customers at amortsed cost (159, 918) (27.401) (47,107 (234,426)
Met amount of loans and advances 1o customers at
amortised cost 4,357,321 A8 8RS 65,508 aaa 74
Loans and advances to customers al FyTOC| 374,800 559 - 375,359
Loss allowances of loans and advances to customars
at FYTOCI (226} {12} - (238)
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22. Loans and advances to customers ionmves)

{c)
ik

i)

Movements of allowance for expected credit loss
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Reconciliation of allowance for expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers measurad at

amartised cost!
2021
—Stage 2
(Lifetime -Stage 3
—Stage 1 ECL-nat [Lifetime
{12-month credit- ECL-credit-
ECL) impaired) impaired) Tatal
Balance as at the beginnmng af the year 159,918 27,401 47,107 234,426
Transfer to
- Stage 1 5,848 {5, 743) {105} -
= Stage 2 {1,137 1.592 (455} -
- Stage 3 {1.001) (4,972 5,973 -
Charge for the year inote 14) 5,766 13,763 16,14% 35,678
Wirite-oifs/disposals - - (35.105) {35,105}
Unwinding of discount on allowance - - (247} (247}
Recavery of lnans and advances written off - - 9,893 9,893
Exchange diffesance {47} {34} {41} {122}
Balance as at the end of the year 169,347 32,007 43,169 244 523
2000
~Shage 2
{Lifetime ~Stage 3
=Stage 1 ECL-not (Lifetime
{12-manth cradit- ECL-credit-
ECL) impaired) impalred) Tatal
Balance as at the beginning of the year 138,803 7,644 46,305 222,756
Trarmsfer 1o
= Stage 1 2,636 (2.571) {65]
- Stage 2 (552} 1,398 (Bd&) 4
= Stage 3 {S&5) 110,698) 11,263 -
Charge for the year (note 14) 19,696 1,652 25,635 46,983
Wiite-olfu/disposals - - (43,734} (43,734)
Unwanding of discownt on allowance - - {186} {186}
Recovery of loans and advances writlen aff - - 8731 8,781
Exchange difference {100) (24) {500 {174)
Balance as at the end of the yeat 159,918 27,401 47,107 234,426

Recanciliation of allowance for expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers measured at

FYTOC:

2021 2020
Balance as at the beginning of the year 238 ERA
Chargetrebease) for the year (note 14) 1,342 (101
Exchange differance 1 21
Balance as at the end af the year 1,581 238
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22. Loans and advances to customers ionmves)
{d) Finance leases receivable

The table below provides an analysis of finance leases receivable included in loans and advances to customers for
leases of assets in which the Group is a lessor

021 2020
Tatal minimum leases recaivable

Within 1 year finclusivel 15,035 20,865
Oret 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive) 11,225 15,608
Ower 2 years but within 3 yeans (inclusive) £,519 10,720
Creer 3 years but within 4 years (inclusive) 5,323 8.135
Over d years but within 5 years (inclusve) 5,580 6,280
Crver 5 years 13,980 18.8%0
Subitotal 50,662 80,498
Unearned finance incoms {8,378) (11,206)
Present value of minimum |eases recessable 51,284 69,292
Less: Impairment allowances (3.237) (3,443)
- Stage 1 (12-month ECL {1.872) 11.653)

= Stage 2 (Lifetime ECL-not credit-impaired) {632) (931]
—Stage 3 [Lifetime ECL-credit-impaired) {733} (859
Met carrying amount of finance leases receivable 48 047 65 849

23. Financial investments
[ [ Hofes 2021 2020
Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss 2 3al 348,123 495,723
Debt investrents al amortised cast 13(bh 1,185,841 1,049,280
Debt investments a1 FTOCH 23l 636,028 516,553
Equity investments dessgnated at FVTOC| 230dh 6995 138
Total 2,176,997 2,068,695
{a) Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss

Hotes 2021 2020

Fimancial investments measured at FYTPL {il 318, 245 464, 466
Financial asses designated ot fair value threugh profit of bass (i 19,E78 11,257
Total 348,123 495,723
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23. Financial investments wontnues
{a) Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss costnuwed)
(i} Financial imvestments measured at FVTPL
Financial Investments held for trading
202 2020
Bonds:
Classified by isswer 129,792 131,130
= Government bonds 46,721 32,254
- Bonds issued by policy banks 9,861 4,845
= Bonds issued by commercial banks and other financal institutions 21,245 22.636
— Dther debt secunties 51,965 71,395
Classifred by fistimg 129,792 131,130
— Lested in Mainland China 113,762 110,561
= Listed putside Mainland China 15,796 20,361
= Unlisted 234 208
Orher investmeants!
Classifved by underlying assets 5,205 4,028
= Fund investments 4,067 2.971
= Wealth management products 1.036 961
= Lang podition in predious metal contracts 102 sl
Classified by hstimg 5,205 4,028
= Listed in Mainland China S i
= Listed outside Maknland China 1 140
= Unlisted 5,094 3 H8E
Tatal financal investments held for trading 134,997 135,158
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23. Financial investments iconnued
{a) Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss costnwed)
(i} Financial imvestments measured at FVTPL (confwued!
Other financial investments measured at FYTPL
202 2020
Bonds:
Classified by isswer 17,094 15,373
= Bonds issued by commercial banks and ather finanoal institutions 9,784 8,706
— Other debt securities 7,310 6,667
Classifeed by lsting 17,054 15.373
— Liwted in Manland China 15,388 14, 244
= Listed outside Mainland China 1,333 995
— Unlisted 37 134
COrher investmants:
Classifred by underlying assets 166, 154 313,935
= Mon-standard assets - Bils - 175,303
— Equity investmens 4,909 3410
= Fund investments 158,703 133881
= Wealth management products 1,360 298
= Othaer 1,182 1,063
Classiffad by fstimg 166,154 313,935
= Lsted in Mainland China &2 96
- Listed putside Mainland China 1,118 7349
= Unlisted 164,974 N300
Total other financial investments measured at PVTRL 183288 . 329,308
Taotal financal investments measured at FYTPL 318,245 464, 466
fii}  Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
2021 2020
Bonds:
Classified by issuwer
- Government Bondd 41 1
= Bands issued by policy banks 17,970 18,431
- Bands iswued by commerclal banks and ather financal instilutions 11,251 10,567
= Gthar debl secunties B16 2,218
Tatal 29,878 31,257
Classified by lating
= Listed in Mainland China 28,793 18,533
- Listed outside Manland China 1,060 2,10
- Unlisted 25 14
Tatal 29,878 31,257
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23. Financial investments wontnues
() Debt investments at amortised cost
S 2021 2020
Debt investments at armartised cost i) 1,209,359 1,060,387
Interest recevable 1-&,_358 15&99
e O, Laaagar | MRTSARE
Impairrnent losses of prncipal (i) {39, 707) [26,118)
Impairmiont losies of interest receivable {179} 1841
Subtetal {39,886) (26, 206)
Tatal 1. 185,841 1.04%, 280
iy Debt investments at amortised cost:
2021 2020
Honds:
Classefid by igsuer 1,078 BBB 811,409
- Government bonds 768,537 623,727
- Bands isswed by policy banks 280,129 252,096
- Bonds issued by commercial banks and other financal institutions 20,064 28157
- Other deb? secunties 10,158 6,529
Classified by lsting 1.076.888 911,409
= Leited m Mainland China 1,068,300 906,053
= Listed cutside Mainland China 4,740 2,064
— Unlisted 5,848 3,292
Fair value for the isted bonds 1,099,251 916,422
Other invesimeants;
Classifved by underlying assels 130,471 148,978
— Mon-standard assets - Bdls - 12,725
- Mon-standard assets - Loans and advances 1o customens 115,022 123,681
— Mon-standard assets - Creditar’s benefaciary rights to ather
commercial banks 100 &,400
= MNon-standard assets = Other 14,729 5.580
= Other 620 592
Classified by lating 130,471 148,978
= Unilisted 130,471 148978
Total 1,200,359 1,060,387
Less: fpss allowances {39,707) (26.118)
Stage 1 {12-month ECL) {14,974) (11,832)
Stage 2 (Lifetme ECL = not credit-impaired) [ (326)
Stage 3 (Lifetme ECL — credit-impaired) {24,021} {13,960)
Met debt iwestrments at amortised cost 1,165,652 1,034, 2659
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23. Financial investments continued
(b) Debt investments at amaortised cost jcontinued
{ii}  Analysed by stage of ECL:
2021
=Stage 2
(Lifetime -Stage 3
-Stage 1 ECL-nat [Lifetime
{12-manth credit- ECL-credit-
ECL) impaired) impaired) Total
Debt investments al amortised cost 1,183,320 1,962 24,077 1,209,359
Less: Loss albowances of debt investments
at amaortised cost (14.974) 712) [24.021) (39,707}
Mot debt investrments a1 amortised cost 1,168,346 1,250 56 1,169,652
2000
~Stage 2
(Lifetime -Stage 3
~Stage | ECL-not {Lifetime
{(12-month credit- ECL-credii-
ECL) Impaired) impaired) Tatal
Debt investments at armoarnised cost 1,044, 826 ar 14,530 1,060,387
Less: Loss allowances of debt investments
at amartised cost {11,832} {326} (13,960) (26,118)
Net debt investrments al amortised cost 1.032,994 645 630 1,034,269
{iii}  Movements of allowances for expected credit loss
L
=5Stage 2
(Lifetime —Stage 3
~Stage 1 ECL-not {Lifetime
{12-month credit- ECL-credit-
ECL) impaired) impaired) Tatal
Balance as at the beginning of the year 11,832 326 13,960 26,118
Tranaler 1o,
= Stage 1 - - - -
- Stage 2 {5} 5 - -
= Stage 3 - - - -
Charge for the year (note 14) 3,156 am 9,664 13,201
Write-oifs 7 disposals - - {10} (180}
Recovery of debt previowsly written aoff - - 419 419
Exchange differeance 9 - {12} (21}
Balance as at the end of the year 14,5974 T2 24,021 39,707
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23. Financial investments iconnued
{b) Debt investments at amortised cost contimed
{iii}  Movements of allowances for expected credit loss jconfnued)
2020
~Stage 2
{Litetime ~Stage 3
=Stage 1 ECL-not (Litetime
{12-manth cradit- ECL-credit-
ECL) mpalred) impaired) Total
Balance as at the beginning of the year @917 283 4,533 13,995
Transfer 1o
= Stage 1 - - - -
- Stage 2 — — - —
= Stage 3 {204} - 204 -
Charge for the year (note 14) 2 BRE 43 10,974 13,875
Write-offs / disposals - - {1,822} {1,822)
Recovery of debt previcwsly written off - - 80 &0
Exchange difference i - 9 {100
Balance as at the end aof the year 11,832 26 13,960 26,118
(c) Debt investments at FYTOCI
2021 2020
Debt investments a1 PVTOCH (i 628,355 510,307
Interest receivable 7,683 6,246
Total 636,038 516.553
Impanrrment losies of debt imvestments a1 FVTOC] (n) (6.622) 14,014)
Impairment losses of interest receivable (B4} {25)
Tatal (6, 708) 14.03%)
Mo impairment allewances are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial postion for debt ivestments at
FVWTQC! as the carrying amount is at fair value.
{i}  Debt investments at FUTOCI:

202 2020
Bonds
Classifed &y issuwer
- Government bonds 350,419 287,007
= Bands issued by policy banks B2 427 71,542
- Bonds issued by commercial banks and ather finanaal institutions 106,139 97,487
- Other debt securities 49,370 54,271
Total 628,355 510,307
Classifred by fsting
— Listed in Mainland China 522,889 400,456
= Listed outside Mainland China 65,439 64191
— Unlisted 40,027 45,660
Tatal 628,355 510,307
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23. Financial investments wontnues
{c) Debt investments at FVTOCI fcontinued)
(i}  Movements of allowances for expected credit loss
— ) 2021 2020
Balanice a3 at the beginnmg of the year 4,014 2,600
Charge for the year (note 14) 2,647 1.492
Exchange ditferance (39) 78]
Balance as at the end of the year B,B22 4,014
{d) Equity investments designated at FVTOCI
2021 2020
Repossessed equily instruments a01 ol ]
Cither 6054 6,240
Tatal 6,905 1138
Classified by listing
= Listed in Mainland China 65 52
- Listed outside Mainland China 2,204 2,023
- Unlisted 4,726 5,084
Tatal 5,995 1.139

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group dsposed of part of the equity investments designated at
FVTOCL The fair value of the equity investments disposed of at the date of derecogmition was RMEB2, 186 mallicn
(2020: RMBA33 million), The cumulative net of tax gain on disposal of AKMB1,804 million (2020; cumulative net of
tax gain of RMB2E& million) was transferred from mvestiment revaluation reserve to retained earnings on disposal,
amaong which RMB1, 796 million was due to the completion of the stake acqussition of Bank of Tazhow Co,, Lid, in
2021, The investment in Bank of Taizhou Co., Ltd. was converted from equety smvestments designated at FUTOC! te
intetests in assocsates, refer 1o Note 26 for detasls

24, Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the bank

The following list contains particulars of subsidiaries which principally atfected the financial results, assety or
liabilities of the Group. Unless athersise stated, the class of all shares held is ordinary. All of these companies are
subsidiaries as defined under Note 4(1) and have been included in the scope of The comiolidated financial statements

of the Group,
%ol
Mace ol Particulas of  cwnesship
intadparation the isued and held by Evaniomic Legal
hame of company andoperation  paidupcapitel  theBank  Principal acivities nature regrHentative
o o)
CME imlemacional Capital Holdings Horg Kosg HEDa iE V% Iventment bank Limited Rabdty  Tian Humu
Corperation Limsed (note (il ] mwesimant
manapEments
CME Financil Lessing Company Shanghal RIE1E 000 100%  Firance loauing Lirsted Babsbty  Shi Shunba
Limied inate [5)
[CME Wing Limg Bank Limited inote (]| Heng Kipng R bR 1%  Baniing Limfed Rabdty  Thu i
China Meschants Fund Management Co, A1d.  Shenchen FMB1310 W% Furd management Linsied habdty  Wing Maogng
|t vl
CME Wealth Massgement Co., Lid {note [vf}  Fhenahen FARRE, 000 I0% Aot maragement  Limied Rabdty  Chen Yiong
Ching Merchants Eueaga 5.8, {ncte () Lexenissuig FRSD 100% Ranieg Lomsed abslty  LiBise
Cigria & CME Avset Mnagement Cospary  Begng EMESDO  fnote fwill  Assel mansgenent Limited Ratelty ~ Wiang Xuoging
Limited (note (v}
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24. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the bank rentined

Matet

4l EME inlemational Capaal Holdings Comparation Limited ["CMBICHC ™), Tormeily bedven da Rangren Feunce Compary Limited and CAAR
ntarratignal Cagetl Coporatas Lanitid, i the Bank'y vihalp-dvned ibdudany sgpeomd lor satting up by the FIOGC theough it Yin Fu [196E)
by, 405, In PO14, the Bank mude an sddsonal capitsl coninbuton of HEDTS0 milion i CMEICHT. The capitel of CRMBCHE increatd i
HEDY,000 mifion, snd tha Bank's shashalding peitentags mesuned wrohanged

The Bamd of Dinécton peget “The Reolubon regerdag the Capitsl woesss snd Ammciunng of CMBECHC® whith sgiedd that the Sank
made capitel coniribwdion of USHH0G mllion (or i equivelenti fo CMBICHE on 18 july 2014 The capital contribution was completed on 20
lsrazary F1G

= CME Financial Leasng Cormpany Limited (" CRBBFLE "1 0 b whollp-cwned subnidiary of she Rink app | for nartting up By tFe CRIRC through
its ¥in fan Fu [3008] o, 000 and commended it operation in Apeil PO0E. I 3014, the Bani made an addebional cigetel cortribution of
EMET 000 milioh ® CMBAC. The capilel of CMEFIC wcrsased 1o BMBS000 silion &nd the Banl's sharebelihng peiveilages fefmiifn
weehunged. h Augian 1021, CMBAL commbed ARARE 000 ervlbony ol (i srimred Barfursgi s dhave cagetal, and b caplial of CARBALE
increatsd i ARMBT2, 000 milson. The Bank™ s 'uﬂdhl'qﬂ‘.l

w "

i} CMEB Wing Lung Bank Limsted ("CME WLE) was formerdy inown as Wing Lurey Bank Uesited. On 30 SepSember 2006, the Banl azquined
# SL13% egaty interesls m CAA WAL CWE Wil became & wholy owned sutnidiary of the Benk on 1% Ramury 2009, CHB WL had
weithdrawn frors Bsting on She S0Ex m of 146 Jamusry JO0S.

i I 0L, the Back actpered 10 G0% ety intereits in Ching Merchunty Fund Mansgemen Ca, Ll TPCWPM"L i formes aocials, Trom

NG Asset Mandgemet BV, al @ & of FUMER 567,567 57, Feflowing the sefllicssnt &l the sbdvg onidoralion in cash, thi Rink's
shaighabding n CREF inermmed lrom 33 40% to 55.00% o 2003, A & reault, e Bank chtaned the contel over CMPML which became
it Bank's subrschary on 28 N kit A b D b J047, the Hark made an sdditons capital contrdamon of RMBSOS milion in
CNFW, and other shareholders of CHMFN slso made capitsl contritetion of AMBA9S mllon proportionally. The capdal of CMIM noessed o
WAAET 310 wrellan, and the Bank s o Ay TN d uncharged

i CE VWeslth Maragement Ca L {“CWMIWA® | n & srholiy-owned whsidiary of the Bk, spproved or setting up by the CBAC wish Yinbao
lanfu [2015] Mo, 881 it wn § by binhed on N er 1 2015

iwl Ching Merchants Eursgs §A, ("CME Bursge SA ") 5 & wholy-oweed sibsidury of whach the exablishement wat approved By the CRIRC wesh
¥in Manilis [2016] fe. 460, B Ve | Ity eutabiished in Movernber JO0E ared chitasted & commarcial hinking bornae ih Lusesburg Som the

Furopssn Cenmal Bank ws May 2021,

il Cigne & CNWE Amet Mansgemend Company Limied ["CiGhA & CHAKMF was regiiieed and establahed on 18 Ocicber 2030 verth the
approval for sefting up by the CBSC with Yinbao lianfu [2020) Mo, 708 CIGWA B CMAM i an mditectly controtisd subwidiary ol the Bank,
weith E7_3450% beld by C30MNA & CME Lile murancs Co., Ud, & joint venhure of the Bank, and 12.6542% held by CMSEHT, & subsidry of
the Hank.
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25. Interests in joint ventures

Share of net assets

Share of profits for the year
Share of other comprehensive income for the year

Details aof the Group®s interesls i major joint ventures are as follows:
Hace of

Particulan of

Imorporation

Kame of joint veatures

Feonomic nature  and cperaticn  paid up capital

2021 2020
14,779 12,403
2,877 2,392
123 456
Group's  Percentage of

effective  awmerthip hald

interest bytheBank  Principal activity

CIGNA B CNG Lite Iroutance Co., U1d. (notelill Limsted labitty Sharhen

Werchants Lson Comumes France Company  Limibed lubaiity Sherhen

Limsad inotele}

NolE

s 2.00%  Lide mutanoe
Buriireis
£0,00% S.00%  Comumer e

il The Growp hodds 50.00% egquily evieets in CIGHNA & CME Lile bwaeance o, Ud. ("CIGNA & CME Lile™|, and Cigna Hralth and Lile
Ingurancy Company {°CHLC ") holdh, the other 50 (0% wquisy mbsreshs. The Bank and CHLIC thare the jond wenbare’s sk, prodite and louies
based on thesr sharebalding propoctipnally. The Bank™s syvestment in CIGKA § Chil e & sccopmded lor g3 an invegment n @ oint wentee

il CHEl WA, orw of the Group's wholy-owned mrchsie, and China Urited Metwori § ommunstatmond Limited {"CUNC "L & subaidhary of Chins
Unicom Limeted, peintly 8t up Mechanis Union Comumat fnancs Company Limited ["MUCH ™). CEAC appioved the opstation of MUCH on
3 March 7075 CMB WA and CUKC sach haid 50% equiny seres in MUCFC andi share The riske, piodts and losaes proportionally Based on
heir shie ebclifings. In Decembes F017T, the Bank and CUNC mide & cagtal costiibution of EWSE00 milliss in MUCFC repectively, AFe the
capital injecon, the caprial of IARCHC mncreased bo RMB2,B5S millon, with the Bank’s sharsholding percentage becomng 15%, CME WiE'S
sharehoiding percentage becoming 35%, and the Group's 1ot shareholding percentage remained at %0%. in December 2018, the Bank made
snathey capetal comnbuton al BWNT 000 milion in MUCEC, and CUNE mads the seme amount of caprisl injection, The Nark and TR WIB
Thers hald 28 15% and 25 B5% of equity imieeests o MUCIC repeectavely, and the Group™s 1otal sharsholding perceriage remaned al S0%

i ey OGN, CWB WLR tranaferied all My sharei ol MUCF 19 the Rack. Afee the iraraber, the Bank and CLRC mich held 0% of equity
intareil m MUCFL, and the Gioup'd tolsl shanthaolieg perteritige Pitharwd unchanged. in Odtober BIX1. MUCK conweited BIET.251
milion of i the capaal redares dnd PSS B00 el ol 05 iebarad aamings ive shaes capilsl, and the share cagatal of MUCFC inciemsd o

WARE 10,000 millan afier She Dofrsrrpon
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25. Interests in joint ventures iontinued

Summarised financal information with necessary adjutments in accordance with the Group's sccounting polices of
the joint venturas which are indivichwally matorial to the Group is as foflows:

1] CIGMA & CMB Life:

Dt Tetal

{nh Depiecation
Net omprehersse  ompreberse aad cah

and  iniome

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooooa

Aueti Labdles  Equity  Bewnee  prodil it intore equmilesh  imottiaten i
Fury
£ 5 0 Lie MEMS  EE N BES LM b} 142 L 151 i
Grong’s effecthe et i &My R 133 555 i 5] L] H*
fil
G4 & 08 Lie N B 8 B 153 51 1550 i % 1
Groug's eflectrve mtpor T3E mE 4T N5 LY 1 1168 ] . 150
] MUCFC:
Tetal Cash  Depreciation
Het comprehnsive  and eash and  leieme
Avets  Liabikties Equity  Reveme predit incame  eguivalenls  amcetination tax
e
NUCH 45,658 135660 1408 15933 M5 305 4,655 4 4
Grous's elfectve milens T4 ETEM 1010 1967 1,507 1507 118 wooom
ik
MUH 108, 81 R N 12,816 1463 1663 147 o ]
Greug's effecthe intere LY Ll r] 5562 6,804 B3l £z 1,14 n m

Sumenarised financal smformation of the joint ventures that are not individually matenial to the Group i as Tollows:

Other Total
comprehensive comprehensive
Net profit EXpENSE income
2021
Other joint ventures 4,675 [E3] 4,672
Group’s etfective interest 205 - 805
2020
Other joint ventures 4,349 - 4,349
Group’s ol fective interest 748 - 748

323/432



EDINETOOOO

o s =053 125
ooooooo
China Merchants Bank Chapter VIl Financial Statements 233
Annual Report 2021
26. Interests in associates
. 2021 2020
Share of net assets BETS 2519
Share of profits for the yeas 1,153 ARG
Share of other comprehensive income for the year - 7

Details aof the Group®s interest in mapor associate are as follows,

Place of Particulars of Group's  Percentage of
incorgeration iedand  efiective  cwnerthip held
Economic nature  and operation paid up cagital interest by the Bank  Principal activity
(i mrslieons] B
Bark of Taithou Co.. Lbd. INata) Limvied Rabity Tathey Fa AR 1455 SR Commenial ek

Mote Thie Bank, whwch angeally held & 10% stike o Sank of Taiey, sotquered 4 1otal ol 14 B555% wake Iroem Ping An Tiat Ca, (e ad Ping &6
e raurance Company ol Ching, Lbd. i a total comsderation of AMB3, 121 milion o 31 May 2021, Upon the complation of the tramsaction,
the Hank held 34 8559% stabe of Hank of Taishou. The Bank can swercse sugnicent infusnce on Bark of Tachou and therelone this

i iy oo Yrom equity te deugnaled &l FYTOC) by mferets w ass00ie

summarised financial mformation of the associate which is individually matenal to the Group 15 a3 follows:

Other Tetsl Cash  Depreciation
ompretansive  compeehenshee  and cash and lacome
fasets Liabdities  Equify Revenue Netprofiy income income egeivalents amortmation  tax
021 (nore
Bark of Taidhou Co.

Lod. BERTE 2ERTI 26440 6,175 215 ] L5 10,65 I8 L]
Gooup's eflpcthe imtevest 71536 TLOTS 550 1634 L § 493 1 mn 150
Mot Thee periced lor pafs o boss end other comprekenses incoms & froey 1 fune 2027 o 31 December 2021
Summarised financial mformation of the associates that are not indradually matenal to the Group s as lollows

Other Tatal
comprehensive comprehensive
Met profit  (expenselincome income
20
Cther amsociates 37,958 (B5) 37,893
Group’s effective interest A63 {9) fi54
2020
Other associates 36.557 25 36,582
Group’s effective interest 439 7 A%
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2021 2020
Costi

At 1 January 3,276 3,558

Tranafers out {BE) (173
Exchange differance {55) (10%)
< s L R L g e Sy e PO S P LT S .4
Accumulated depreciation:

AL 1 Janwary 1,653 1,633

Depreciation 155 166

Transfers out in {72
Exchange difference (38) {74}
A1 31 Daecermber 1,763 1.653

Met carrying amount:

At 31 Decermber 1,372 1.623

At 1 January 1,623 1.925

Ag At 31 December 2021, no imparment allowance was consdered necessary for invesiment propertes by the

Group (Z2020: Nil),

Investrment propenies of the Group mainky represent the leased properties of CVB WLE and the Bank that have
been leased out under operating leases. The fair value of the Group's investment properties is determined by the
method of capitatisation of net rental income. There has been no change to the valuation methodofogy during
the yoar. Ay at 31 December 2021, the far value of thesws properties was RMB4,978 million (31 December 2020

RBABS, 317 million).

The Group's total future minimum leases recelvable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

0 2020

Within 1 year {inclusive) nz 296

1 year to 2 years (inclusive) 170 165

2 year to 3 years {inclusive) 127 il |

3 year to 4 years {inclusive) 106 66

& yvear to 5 years (inclusive) 105 &0

Over 5 years 359 354

Total 1,180 1,022
The tair value hierarchy of the investment properties of the Group are listed as follows:

Fakr Value

a5 at

31 December

Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 021

Located in Mainland China - - 2,115 2,175

Located overseas - - 2,203 2,203

Total - - 4,978 4978

Fair Value

as at

31 December

Leved 1 Livel 2 Level 3 2020

Located in Mainland China - - 2527 2.527

Located overseas - - 2.380 2.390

Toral - - 537 5317

I extimating the fair valee of the propertes,

thie highest and best use of the propertios i thet current use
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28. Property and equipment
Alrerafy,

vessel wnd Matat
lamd and  Corsdructiom  Computer Leasehald  professional wehicles

buildingt s progress  equipment  improwements  egquipment  and ather Tobsl
Ceat:
AT lanuary 2021 BITR 3,107 15,140 9,661 £E024 ] 110,619
Adkfitan b 43 2,420 1106 17,813 583 FERE
Reclasifiention and trandlen 188 (345) 0 Fril - n BB
Deposats 0% 5 |6%E] 118] 415} En 51
Exchange difference (52} - 131] (L1} (5,261} (4 {1.435)
M e Y ey o e ... Wny Mem Ay
Bccimulated depreciation:
A1 1 Januaey 2021 11,750 - 11,888 E132 CRFL] L4811 40913
Deprecisbion 1.3 - 1,097 950 1502 8% [: K]
Reclaification and transfers ] - 17 - - (15} T
Disposals (14 - 1561 {151 {1,290} (48} (LA
Exchange difference (8} - 1181 i3 (210 3 (38
A1 31 Decamber 2021 12,958 - 12,924 7,028 805 & LES 5,466
Impairment leds:
A1 1 Januery 2021 - - - - 136 - 236
Charge fis] - - - 25 - 287
Exchange ditference - = - - {5} - 821
8131 Decmbe 201 i : - W -
Net carrying amount:
Al 31 December 1001 15,858 3,502 1,936 1897 51,178 1444 BO415
Al T lanuary 2021 16,578 3,107 1,660 1529 41,158 1488 A9.470
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28. Property and equipment iontinued
hircradt,
wveusels and Halar

Land ard  Construction  Computer Leasehold  professional vebicles

buidings  inpogress  equpment impiovesenls  equipment  and othe Total
Ceat:
ALY laniiary 2020 3% 2964 13,750 8510 43308 £351 102,240
Adfbons Fot] 1.003 1,078 1,081 10475 T 15,704
Rechusificstion and tranfory L] (Bah bl in - i) 173
Drsporsake 03 - {B41) {12 2,813 (&2} 41200
Exthange difference {175 - 163) 150) {3,047 (3 3318
MU Droemberdlly wiw LU 3. pes e L L UL
Accumulated depreciation:
A1 1 danuary 2020 14,512 - V163 5441 4513 5100 ELNEL]
Depreciabion 1,178 = 1,048 bl 1108 T 7,54
Redaaification and transfers T - FE] - - Pk mn
[hsposals (13 - 15608 [ [am) (oa) L]
fxhange diflerence 1] - 36 {831 1424) 3 [CEL]
AL 31 December 2000 11,750 - 11,889 5132 5,128 4813 40,913
IR ity o v+ Pt e\ e L0 b 1St T e 31 S LA T4 = T8I A o F i | o bt
Al | lanuery 2020 - - - - 1 - 9
Chage - - - - 15 - 153
Exchange diflerence - - - - ] - L]
A1 31 December 2020 B W E T 56 L.
Net carrying amount:
Al 31 Decermber 1000 18509 ERLI 1,660 1509 41,154 1,486 [ ]
Al | lanuarey 2020 16,844 L1064 1,587 1,069 A 1.5 B6,608
ful #s at ) Decenbeer 2031, the prooess of obtaineg the regstration koense for the Group's propertes vwath an sggregate nel camying watue of

a1, 28 million (31 Decersber 2020; WE1, 565 milon) was 329 o progres. Mansgemend o of tae view Thal the sdoeeiaid eatier would
rasilhes aMeci Bhe righty of tha Groog 1o Shese suels or e any dgnilicend impact on Bhe buniness cperation of the Group

i A1 al 30 Deceenbar M2 the Group had nd gnificant urased plepety and ppip a1 o bt 2000 Bl

(5] 4 a1 31 Decembe 2071, the camying welue of mocigeged arcrafl and vewsel o plicemenas from basks and other financial insbautions of
ihe CAEFLL s sadnidhiones was RME 15 075 srallon (3] Decembser 2070, AME 12,534 milkonl.

dd The Group's toisl fubure srenimuen bees receissbles under non-cancelable opedaling leases are oy follow:

anan MK
Within 1 yedt (incluteve) 1165 5451
1 wiar 1o ) pwars (inchpie) AR L
¥ yeai 1o 3 pwans (nchsne) 5,706 4,883
3 yrai 164 yeats (nchaber) 4,862 £303
& yrar 15§ prars (nclusie) 4,253 1016
Cher & ppan 13,357 13,550
Tatal 43,181 ar e
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29. Lease contracts
{a) Right-of-use assets
Motor
Land Computer vehicles
usi rights Buildings  equipment and ather Tatal
Cost:
An 1 January 2021 5,957 FAR Frl 4 16 27,099
Additons 13 4,071 5 1 4,110
Decreass (5) {2.123) (2] {1 (2,131)
e s e Eeg A T i TSR L SR == L
Accumulated depreclation;
An 1 January 2031 1008 6,978 1 ] 7,985
Depeeciation (Mete 100 182 4,070 3 4 4,255
Decreass {1 {1,634) (2] (i (1,638)
A1 31 Decemnber 2021 1,190 414 ] g 10,616
Impairment loss:
A2 1 Janusry 2021 - - - - -
Chame 59 - - - 59
At 31 Decernber 2021 54 - - - 54
Met carrying amaount:
A5 31 Decerber 2031 4,736 13,656 4 7 18,403
AL lanuary 2021 4,948 14,144 i L[/] 19,104
Mator
Land Computer wehiches
L2 rights Buildngs egupment and athar Tatal
Coat!
An 1 January 2020 5558 18,602 3 18 24,551
Additions - 3,E88 4 1 3,804
Decreass (1 (1,368} £} [L1] (1,386)
M3 Ocwrber 2000 SUDASTp—— L.\ SR, g e
Agcumulated depreciation:
AL 1 lanuary 2030 E30 3,755 1 5 4,591
Depreciabion (Nete 10) 183 4228 2 3 4,416
Dicredss 4 (1,005} {H 12) 11,012
An 31 Decernber 2020 B B 1009 6578 B 1 & 1955
Net carrying amount:
At 31 Decemnber 2020 4 948 14,144 2 10 19,104
An 1 January 2020 LRE"] 14,847 2 13 20,000

The Group mainty leases land use nghts and buildings for its operations. Lease terms are negotiated on an mdividual
basis and contain a wade range of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group reassesses whiether i1 15 reasonably certain o exercse an extension
option, or not to exercise a termination option, upon the ocourrence of either a significant event or & significant
change in crcumstances that B within the control of the leses
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29. Lease contracts iconsinues
{b) Lease liabilities
Analysis of the Group's lease liabilities by remaining maturity is as follows:
[ 2021 2020
Within 1 month (ncluse) 506 Sa7
1 month to 3 months (inclusive) 536 ABE
3 manths to 1 year (inclusive) 2,989 2.805
1 year to 2 years {inclusiva) 3228 3,385
2 year to 5 years (nclusive) 4,925 5182
Crver 5 yean 1,628 1.845
Toral 13,812 14,242

Interest expense on lease labilites are set out in note 7

(c) Shart-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Short-term lease expense and leases of low-value asiets expense are diselosed in note 10 The Group éntered inlo
short-term leases for nldings, computer equipment, moior vehicles and other,

(d) Dunng the year of 2021, toral cash outflow of the Group’s leases amounted 1o AMBA B35S million 2020: RMBA, 644
millign},

{E} As a1 31 Decembar 2021 and 2020, the leawes committed but not yet commenced were not significant
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30. Intangible assets
Software
and ather Core deposits Total
Costfappraisal value:
A1 Janwary 2021 8,576 1,118 10,694
Additions a9 - 475
Exchange differénce {10} (35) (45)
AL 3 Deembe ] o eiererrereeaeereeean 105 Mo 11,128
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 lanuary 2021 5.442 489 5931
Charge for the year (Nate 10) 1,114 3o 1,153
Exchange differance {6} (163 (22}
A1 31 Decernber 3021 6,550 512 7.062
Met carrying amount:
At 31 Decernber 2021 3,495 51 4,066
At 1 January 2021 4134 629 4,763
Soltware
and other Core deposits Tatal
Costlappraisal value:
At 1 lanuary 2020 8,161 1,186 9,347
Additions 1.419 - 1.419
Exchange difference [E1] (BE) {72)
AT DocmDa 20BD e ieieeiaensatasnsnsesssienasansat IR eabesai L ST TP, 10,64
Accumulated amortisation:
ALY January 2020 4,794 47H 4,772
Charge for the year (Note 100 1.148 40 1.188
Exchange difference - (29 129)
ALY Decembls M0 SR i DA i 4 R -
Met carrying amount:
Al 31 Decernber 2020 4,134 6249 4,763
At 1 January 2020 3,867 To8 4.575
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31. Goodwill
Impalrment
loss at Fet value
1 lanuary  at § January
As Addition Release Ayt 1021 and 2021 snd
1 January during duting 31 December 31 December 37 December
o 021 the year the year g 2021 20
CHE WLE fnote {il} wmin - - LA {5750 0,598
CMFM (nate 1K) 155 - - 155 - 355
Thaoyin Insemet {noge (il i - - 1 - 1
Tatal 10,533 - - 10,533 {5750 9,554
Notex
il On 30 Seplember 7008, the Bank scgained @ 53, 11% equity sierests m CMB WLH, On the acquanstion date, the Rar value of CWD WLE'S

idmiriiliakie Fat atath wies NIARIE ROR millon, of wiech e sk stcounied for ARGE, ST million, A sum of BARIDTTT milion, Beng the
waceis of adguanion cout ower Bhe lar valus of Bhe ideniillatde nel ssiets, was recogrised a8 goodwill. The detaih sbout ClR WIB e el mn
in Mote 34

= Or 78 Novemiber 2013, The Bark sdgpaned & 55 DO%. equty inleiesls in CMEW, On the Sogpasition dalr, e lar value 6l CWFW'S idemiliable
et ety Wil AMBTSD millon, of which the Bank accounted for AMB4T4 mllon. & sum of BMBI5SS milion, being the ouors of sogusdiion
ooat of EMBTES milion over the fair vake of the identdisble net s, was recopresed ay goodwill, The deteds about CRMFM s set ool n

Hote 14

(1] O 1 Ageid M5 CRMDICHE soguired the 100% e@aty mlerets m Thaoyn iniwmel T gy {5henthend Corp Lirnied {" Shaopn
Intainet"] On the soquitition date, the Lk salus of TRabpin Inlsinel's idemliledle ne st wak AMBT milion, A wm of IMEE milban, Being
the sgeis of sigueilion ol geer Bhe lmr vale of (ke identtiahle nel Eaein, wink reosgimed i g il Phagyin interet’s itope of huirari
worprney dewslopmen) and waley of compulel oltwice sl hardwiaie, s of ¢ atoony e aillicm i , and (T

mu}ung

Impairment test for goodwill

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on valug i use cabculations. Thew caleulations use
cash flow projections based on financial forecasts approved by management covering a S-year period. Cash flows
beyond the S-year perrod are estrapolated useng @ steady growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growdh rate for the business in which the CGU operates.

In assessing the impairment of goodwill, the Group assumed that the terminal growth rate is comparable 1o the
forecast long-term cconomic growth rate Bsued by autharitative institutions, & pre-tax discount rates of CME WLE
and CMFM adopted by the Group are 7% and 10% (2020: 9% and 12%) The Group belseves any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amounts are based would not cause the carrying
amounts of the CGUs 1o exceed their recoverable amounts.
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32. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

2021 _ 2020
Deferred tax assets B1,639 72,893
Deferred tax lisbities (1.353) .07
Met amount B0, 286 71.820
(@) Analysed by nature of deferred tax assets and liabilities
The components of deferred tax assetwlabdities are as follows:
201 2020
Deductiblef Dreductibles
{taxable) {raxable)
temporary Deferred tempaosany Deferred
difference tax difference L
Deferred tax assets
Impairment allowances on loans and advances to
customers and other assets at amorised cost 284,360 7119 24522 61,340
Fimancial assets at FWTOCH {11,092} {2,763) {6.6713) {1,406}
Fimanciad instruments at FVTPL 92 23 6,309 1.577
Salares and welfare payable 47,928 11,947 37,592 9,363
Cther 5,582 1,241 8,665 .19
Tatal 326,870 81,639 291,114 72,893
Deferred tax liabilities
Financial assets at FYTOCH {5} {1} 1a '
Financial instruments at FUTPL {144} 27 B 2
Other {7,755} {1,325} {8,677} (1,077
Total (7.904) {1,353) 16, 655) {1,073)
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32. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities comnven
() Movements of deferred tax

Imnpatrment
allowances
an |oans and
advances o
customers and Financial Financial  Salaries ard
athier el &t aviets  Indtruments welfare
amartised cost at VTG at FYTPL payable Other Tetad
At 1 lsnuaty 2071 61,340 {1,404 1,570 9,363 042 71,820
Recogrased in prolit o loss 9.5%0 1,000 {1,584} 2584 [1,068) 10,802
Recogreed in alher compreherine ncome - {2,383) - - 14 (2,369]
Exchange difference 1 3 1 = 8 1
AL 31 Decamber 2001 ALY {2,764} ] 11,947 {Ba) BD,IBA
Impairment
allgwanges
on loans and
advane to
usiomens and Financal Francal — Salanes and
ather ayseds at aels  mabamends welfare
amartiad cost A FVTOC) a RVTRL payabie Osher Toal
At 1 lanuary 2020 58232 §2,244) (313 &6 B9g 64195
Recogrised im profit or loss KA ] 1% (B L1742 8 1,165
Recogrimed im ather comprehenshe income - sar - - 3 S04
Exchange difference [52) 3 m - 18 (441
At 31 December 2000 61,340 {1,404 1.5 %363 942 71,820

Moie By delemred tas lisbdity i been recognased i smpect of demporary difleveroes auooabed with Inesiments m wubaidisnes because the Group
Is in a pawtion 1o contial the timng o She remrial of the emporeny défsience and it & probable that uch differencey will not Be revenied in
the lemsesablie future
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33. Other assets
2021 _2020

Amaunty pendmg for settlement 78,719 48,473

Continuing involvement assets 5,274 3,128

Interest receivable 3912 2.972

Prepaid lease payments 257 ERE

Repossestied asiets (a) 512 612

Guarantee deposits 518 510

Recevable from reinsurers 186 120

Prepayment for leasehold simprovement and other miscellaneous items 4,887 4 985

Premium receivables 135 150

Post-employmant benefits: defned bemelit plan (Mote 39k} 65 &0

Cther 27,953 24,115

Tatal 122,521 B5,459
{a) Repossessed assets

2021 2020

Land and buildings 623 700

Cthet repossossid assats n 14

Tatal B54 T4

Less: Impairmaent allowances {1a1) o)

Met repossessed assafs 513 612

hote: 0 2021, the Group depooed of repowsessed swet with 3 total cermpng velue ol BEWBGE melkon (RO RMIZERE milon]
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34. Deposits from banks and other financial institutions
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2021 2020
Principal {a) 751,254 719,764
Interest payable 1,764 3,638
Tatal 753018 F23402

(@) Analysed by nature of counterparties

2021 2020
In Mainland China T01,085 712,403
- Banks T7.788 143,846

= Dithar fimancial institutions 623,297 558,53]"_
Outside Masnland China 50,160 7,381
- Banks 48,301 6, 56
- Other financial institutiond 1,B68 97
Total 751,254 719,764

35. Placements from banks and other financial institutions
2021 2020
Pringipal {a) 170,257 143,117
Interest payable 393 400
Total 170,650 143,517
{a) Analysed by nature of counterparties

2021 2020
In Mainland China 114,496 96,910
= Banks 17214 75,768
- Other fimancial institutions 7,282 21,142
Qutside Masnland China 55,761 46,207
- Banks 55,570 46,011
= Othar fimancial institutions 191 196
Tatal 170,257 1aing
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36. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2021 _ 2020

Fimancial lisbilsties held for trading (a) 17,017 20,950
Financial liabilities designated at fair value threwgh profit or los (b) b, Tad 39361

Total 63,781 60,351

(a) Financial liabilities held for trading

2021 2020

Fimancial liabilities related to precious metal 16,406 20,361

Short poution on bonds 611 629

Total 1707 20,990

{b) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

2021 2020

In Maintand China 34,677 12,363
= Precious metal contracts weth other banks 11,5596 1.58%

- Other 23,081 20,773
Cutside Masnland China 12,067 16,999
- Cenificates of deposit lssued T BOS

= Debl securnties ssued 7,600 13.914

- Gther 4,090 2,480
Tatal 46,744 19,361

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the difference betwesn the far values of the Group's financial habilities
desgrated at fair value through prafit or loss and the contractual payable amount at maturiy is not significant, The
amounts of changes in the fair value of these habilities that are attnbutable to changes in credit risk of the Group
are not significant during the years anded 31 Decemnber 2021 and 2020 and as at 31 Decomnber 2021 and 2020,
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37. Amounts sold under repurchase agreements

2021 2020
Principad {a) (b} 157,572 42,881
Interest payable ___ B8 %8
Total 157,660 142,927
(@) Analysed by nature of counterparties
2021 2020
In Kainland China 155,322 137,228
- Banks 147,410 136,248
= Dithar fimancial institutions ?.'!:I! Sﬂ
Outside Masnland China 2,250 5,653
- Banks 1.654 4,868
— Onher financial institutions 396 TES
Total 157,572 142,881
{b) Analysed by underlying assets
021 2020
Debt securitees 152,071 108,352
= Government bonds 50,956 45 684
- Bonds ssued by policy banks 48,833 53,445
= Bands issued by commercial banks and other financial institutions 2,774 4.872
— Other debl securities 9,508 4,351
Discounted bills 5501 34,5329
Tatal 157,572 142,881
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2021 2020
Principal (a) 6,347,078 5,628,336

Interest payable 38,076 _ 35799
Tatal B,3B5, 154 5,664,135

Analysed by nature of counterparties

2021 2020
Cosporate customers 4,056,924 3,595,690
= Demand deposits 2,652,817 2,306,134

= Time deposts 1,406,107 1,285,556
Rotail customprs 2,2EB, 154 2,032,646
- Demand deposits 1,557,861 1,400,520
- Time depouts 730,293 632,128
Total 6,347,078 5.628.336

The deposits taken from customers as collateral or for the purpose of

guarantees are as follows:

2021 2020
Guarantee for acceptance bills 134 B58 103,858
Guarantes for loans 18,678 19,183
Guarantes for ssuing letters of credit 21,574 15.861
Deposit for letters of guarantes 32412 29,463
Crther 31,208 25878
Total 238,930 194,243
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39. staff welfare scheme
{a) Salaries and welfare payable
M1 ———— S—
Payment!
Beginning Charge transfers Ending
balance  for the year in the year balance
Short-term employee benefits (i) 14,155 53827 {49,917} 18,065
Pest-employmaent benefits = defined
coniribution plans (i) 1,240 4,884 {4,445) 1.629
Other bong-term smployes benetits (i) 67 17 {17} &7
Total 15,462 58,728 {54,429) 19,761
2020
Paymeny/
Beginning Charge translers Ending
balance for the year in th year balance
Short-term employee benefits (i) 10,872 44,407 {41,124) 14,155
Post-employment benéfits - defined
cantribution plans (i) B35 3410 12,869 1240
Other lang-term employes benafits (i) BT 30 (30) &7
Tatal 11,638 47847 144.023) 15462
{i} Short-term employes banefits
w2
Payment!
Beginning Charge transfers Ending
balance  for the year  in the year balance
Salaties and banus 11,11 43,716 {40,519) 14,318
Weltare expense 24 1,908 {2,913) 1%
Social insurance A0E 3,158 (3,036} 530
= Medical insurance 20 3,046 (2,522} 5
~— Injury msurance B 7 27 6
- Matemnity insurance n BS &n L]
Housing resene 191 2,119 (2,144) 166
Labaur union and employes education experses 241 1,926 {1,305) 3,032
Total 14,158 53,827 149,917} 18,065
020
Payment!
Baginning Charge transfers Ending
balance for the year In the year balance
Salaries and bonus B.451 34,027 131,367 A
Weelfare expense 69 4,156 {4,201) 24
Social insurance 120 2,640 {2,352) 408
— Medical insuranoe a7 2.541 {2,257 391
= Injury msurance & bi (20 13
- Matemity inssirance T T4 (751 Lh}
Howsing resese 246 1,921 {1,976) 191
Labaur union and employee education expenses 1,966 1653 11,228 241
Total 10,872 44 407 41,124) 14155
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39. Staff welfare scheme (continvea
{a} Salaries and welfare payable ontmed
{ii}  Post-employment benefits-defined contribution plans
o -
Payment/
Beginning Charge transfers Ending
balance  for the year in the year balance
Basic retirement insurance 130 2,566 (2,539 157
Supplemeniary ponsion 1,0BE 2,257 {1,895) 1,450
Unemplayment insurance 22 &1 (i3} F-
Total 1,240 48B4 {4,495} 1,629
2020
Payment’
Beglnning Charge tranifers Ending
balance for the year in the year balance
Basic retimement insurance (] 1,448 {1,388) 120
Supplemeniary pension 610 1,916 {1,438 1,068
Unemployment (nsurance 20 L (43} 22
Total 694 1410 2,869 1,240

iy

In accordance with the regulations n the PRC, the Group participates in stalutory pension schemes cegamsed by
the municipal and provindal gewemments for 15 employees (endowment insurancel. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group's contributions to these pension schemes are determined by local governments and wary

at a range of 14% to 16% (2020: 12% 1o 16%) of the stall salaries.

In addition to the above statutary pension schemes, the Group has established a supplementary defined contribution
plan for its employess {annuity insurancel in accordance with relevant annuity policies for corparate entities in the
PR, During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s annual contributions te this plan are determined based
on 0% 1o B.33% of the staff salaries and bonuses (2020: 0% to B,33%),

For its employees outside Mainland China, the Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes at
funding rates determined n accordance with the local practsces and regulateons,

Other lang-term employes benefits

2021

Beginning Charge Paymient Ending

balance  for the year in the year balance

Cash settled share-based transactions &7 17 (] &7
2020

Beglnning Charge Payment Ending

balance for the year I the year balance

Cash settled share-based transactions 67 in (30 &7

The Group has offered 10 phases of H share appreciation rights under the Scheme, the remaining seventh to tenth
phases have not been emercised as of 31 Decamber 2021, The share appreciation rghts of the Scheme vest after 3
years from the grant date and are then exercisable within a period of 7 years. Each of the share appreciation right is

linked o one H-share.
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39. staff welfare scheme conmnuea
(a} Salaries and welfare payable jcontinued
{iii}  Other long-term employee benefits (continued)
i All share appreciation rights shall be settled in cash, The terms and conditions of the scheme ane listed below:
Humber of
unexercised share Contract peried of
appreciation rights share appreciation
at the end of 2021 Evercise conditions rights
(im mifians)
Share apprecation nghts granted on 7 Jul 2014 {Phase Vil 0.225 3 years after the grant date 10 years
Share spprecation righls granted on 22 Jul 2005 (Phase VIl 0458 3 years after the grant date 10 yeary
Share apprecation rights granted on 24 Aug 2016 (Phaswe IX) 0510 3 years after the grant date 10 years
Share apprecation rights granted on 25 Aug 2017 (Phase X) 0570 3 years after the grant date 10 years
12} The number and weighted average exercise prices of share appreciatean rights are as follows:
2021 020
Number Hurmier
Weighted of share Waeasghted of ihare
average appreciation verage appreciation
exercise price rights  exprcine price rights
(HED) {in millian) (HED) (i millian)
Du!:undinq ai at the haqinnihg af the yoear 1834 2.B7 1857 454
Exercised dunng the year 17.23 (0.42) 14.890 1127
Forferted during the yeir 19.11 10.69% - -
Quistanding at the end of the year 16.21 1.76 18.34 .87
Exarcisable at the end of the yeas 14.92 1.35 16.05 1.34

The share appreciation rights cutstanding at 31 December 2021 had a weighted average exercise price of HED16.21
(2020 HKD18.34) and a wesghted avetage rermaining contractual life of 4,36 years (2020: 5,55 years),

Pursuant 1o the requirerments 481 out in the Scheme, if there are any dividends distnbuted, capital reserve converted
into shares, share split or dilution, adjustments to the exercise prce wall be applied.
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39. Staff welfare scheme conmnuea)

{a} Salaries and welfare payable ontmed
{iii}  Other long-term employee benefits (contnued)
3} Fair value of share appreciation rights and assumpticn

The fair value of services recelved in return for share appreciation rghts granted are measured by relerence to the
fair value of share appreciation rights granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share appreciation rights granted
is meawred based an the Black-Schales model. The contractual e of the rights are used as an input 1o the madel,

202
Phase Vil Phase Vill Phase IX Phase X
Fair value at measurement date (in EME Yuan) A0.54 1366 33.40 25.98
Share price (in HED) 61.75 61.75 61.75 61.75
Exercise price (in HED) 7.44 14.59 13.16 23.70
Expectad volatlity ITd1% ITd4%m R ERC i
Share appreciation rights remaining e {year] 2.30 .50 4.58 5.58
Expected dividends yield 31.36% 1.36% 136% 336%
Risk-free imtorest rate 1.43% 1.43% 1.43% 1.42%
2020
Phase Vil Phiase Vil Phase X Phase X
Faw walue a1 measuremaent date (in RMB Yaan) 22.03 2.8 2.9 17.05
Share price {in HKD) A48.50 4850 48.50 48,50
Exercise price {in HED) go4 16.09 14.66 25.20
Expectad volatifity 36.10% 36.10% 36.10% 36.10%
Share appreciation rghts remaining ke {year) 3150 4.50 5.58 6.58
Expected dividends yield 351% 3151% 31.51% 351%
Risk-free interest rate 1.43% 1.43% 1.43% 1.43%

The expected valatility i based on the historical volatility (calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share appreciation rights) and adpested for amy expected changes to future volanlity based on pullicly
available information, Expected dwvidend yield i based on historical dividend yields. Changes in the subjective input
assurnptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Shate appreciation rights wee granted under service conditions. The conditions have not been taken into account m
the grani date fair value measuremant of the services recaived. There were no marketl conditions associated with the
share appreciation rights granted,
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39. Staff welfare scheme iconinuea)
{a} Salaries and welfare payable ontmed
{iii}  Other long-term employee benefits (continued)
4] The number af share appreciatien rights granted:
021
Exercised
Phase VI Phase Vil Phase I Phase X Total Farfeited
{in thowsandsh  (in thousands)  (in thousands)  (in thousands)  (in thousands)  (in thousands)
Thart Huryu 135 00 100 130 1,155 75
Liu fianpun - - - - - im
Wiang Lang - 157 210 20 BT Lok}
Horg Liangjun - - - . % B0
Tatal i35 as57 510 570 1,762 1,808
2020
FPhase Vil Phase VI Phase [X Phase X Total Exercised
o {in thowsands)  [in thewsands)  (in thousands)  (in thowsands) (in thousands) nmhu.m_a@_l
Li Hag - - - - - FRE]]
Tarsy Thihong - - - - - 1,903
Tean Hurpu 115 300 L] 30 1,155 b
Liu Jianjun - 52 158 240 450 40
Wang Liang - 157 nm 240 BOT plik)
¥u Shiging 50 180 - - 30 ]
ey Liandjun - 5 13% 240 a7 433
Tatal 75 T B 1,050 1864 5,05

Motk

i 2021, wniot management fad ensicsed 047 mmdlen thares ol apprecistion rght (2020: 1,27 million) and The weighted et sge soercse prce wa
HED T2 T {ROR: HED1S D0

(b) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plan

The Group's subsidiary CMB WLEB operates a defined benefit plan (the “plan®) for the stafl, which includes a
defined benefit sctheme and a defined benefit pension scheme. Contributions to the plan are determined based an
periadic valuations by qualified actuaries en the assets and liabilites of the plan. The plan provedes benefits based
on members® final salary, The costs are solely funded by CMB WLB.

The latest actuanal valuaven of the plan as at 31 December 2021 was performed by Towers Watson Hong Kong
Limited, a professsonal actuarial firm in accardance with 145 19 Emplopes Berelits. The present values of the defined
benefit obligation and current service cost of the plan are calculated based on the projected wmit credit method. At
the valuation date, the plan had & funding level af 123% (2020: 118%).
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39. Staff welfare scheme connnue)

(b) Post-employment benefits - defined benefit plan conmmueal

The amounts recogised in the consolidated statement of finanaal position as a1 31 Decernber 2021 and 2020 are
analysed as follows:

2021 1020
Fair value of the plan assets 349 Ao
Present walue of the funded defined benefit obligation {2B4) {341)
Met asset recognised in the consolidated staterment of financial position 65 &0

A portion of the above assat is expected to be recovered after more than one year. However, it 5 not practicable
to segregate this amount from the amounts recelvable In the nest twelve months, a3 future contributions will
alyo refate 1o future services rendered and futwre changes in actuwaral assumplions and market conditions. No
contribution to the plan is expected to be paid in 2022,

There was no plan amendment, curtailment or settlement impact for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
The amounts recognised in the consoledated statement of profit or loss are as follows:

202 2020
Cument service cost {10) 112)
Net interest income - -
Met expense for the year included in retirement benelil costs () {12)

The actual gain on the plan assets for the year ended 31 Decembar 2071 was RMBEZ million (2020: RMBES million)
The moverments sn the defined benefit obligation dunng the year are as follows:

- . ) 2021 Zﬂiq :
Present walue of obligation at 1 January ELY 363
Cument service cost 10 12
Interast cost 1 1
Actual benefits paid (42) 125)
Actuarial gains or losses due to bty expersence 1{8) 2
Actuanal gains or losses due to financial assumption changes (22} 5
Actuarial gasns or losses due to demographic assumption changes 10 -
Exchange difference 8} (22)
Actual ebligatian o 31 December 28B4 an
Thie mowements in the fair value of the plan assets during the year are as Tollows:

2021 2020
Fair value of the plan assets at 1 January 401 385
Intorest income 1 [
Expected return on plan assets 1 58
Actual benefity pakd {42} 125)
Exchange differance (12} 23]
Fair value of the plan aswets at 31 December 349 401
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(b)

Post-employment benefits - defined benefit plan (connnued
The major categones of the plan assets are as follows,

021 2020 .
Amount " Amount k.
Equitees 202 57.9 259 64.5
Bard 71 20.3 ] 16.0
Tash 75 e, . TR
Total 248 1040.0 401 100.0

As a1 31 Decernber 2027, deposit with the Bank included in the amount of the plan assets was RMBS3 million (2020;

RBABES million)

The principal actuanal assumptions adopted in the valuation are as fellows:

0 2020
e %

Discownl rate
- Defined benefit scheme 1.4 04
= Dwlined benefit pension scheme 0.4 01
Long-term average rate of salary ncrease for the plan 5.0 50

Pension increase rate for the defined benefit pension plan

In 2021 and 2020, there were no significant change in the amount of retirement benefit plan liabikties due to

changes in the above-mentioned actuarial assumptsans,

40. Tax payable

2021 1020
Cosporate income tax 16,539 13,907
Vabue added tax 4,353 3,347
Other 1,553 1,304
Tatal 22,491 18,648
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41. Contract liabilities

2021 _ 2020
Credil card points B, 065 5,309
Other defesred fee and commission income 1471 1.520
Tuatal 7,536 6,829

42. Provisions

2021 2020
Expectied credit kow on provisicns 12,720 71.236
Other 1870 993
Total 14,660 B.229

The expected credit logs for loan commitments and financial guaraniee contracts by stages ane as follows

2021
-Stage 2
(Lifetime -Stage 3
Stage 1 ECL-not [Lifetime
(12-month credit- ECL-credit-
ECL) Impaired) impaired) Taotal
Expectod crodit low on prosesions B.210 3,724 BSE 12,790
2020
=S1age 2
(Liletime Stagi 3
ECL-not {Ldetime
~Stage 1 credit- ECL-eredit-
{1Z=-monih ECL) impaired) impaired) Total
Eapected credit loss on prosssions 5,560 1.073 603 1.236
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43. Debt securities issued

Notes 2021 2020
Subardinated notes msued al 34 236 34,302
Lomg-term debt securities ssued (b} 159,306 146,559
Wegotiable interbank certificates of deposit 240,284 144816
Certificates of deposit isswed 10,715 18,479
Interest payable 2,104 1,985
Total A46,645 348,141

{a) Subordinated notes issued
As at the end of the repariing period, subordinated notes wsued by the Bank were as follows:

Disooent or
Date of el Homird  Begrrieg ™ pemior Repuyment
Debitype  Teimin mubuity  imuince iterent rate unlgr balsge durngtheyesr  amoriation dorisg the yerr  Ending balince
L0 fnricr) OMlamnlice) AMamilor) OMEnmdlicn) (M elice)  RM e miion)
Fosd e bond 10 month Hoc Nl LB AT [ - 1 . 155
faed it bord 2 monthn. Vil E  dES LS00 1395 . il - 193
Tatal L - 1 . L

Ad at the end aof the reporting period, subsrdinated note ssued by CRMB WLB was b fallows:

Discourt or
Tems Date of Nerml Begpntang e Entunge  Repaymem

Dot type mtrity Fuanoe  Ansyal intereit rabe vl balnoe  amortiation dffprence during the yeer Eading Balance

L iyt WMuniel WAEalal MUsEs GNauicy S kuin)
Foueé 13 ficating 120 mentn T Mo 21T 175 o the st § prant. It 1613 : 1] - 154
it bond THa1 79% o Gtk e

awards, il the notes iy
. ol e ) - o .
ol 163 . L1l - 155

T ity this § year LS Trasey iete
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43. Debt securities issued wontinuen
(b) Long-term debt securities issued

As a1 the end of reporting period, debt securities nsued by the Bank were as follows:

Disceunt o
Temtn  Datest  Aerwal Wenizal  Begirning W pemim Emhange  Meprpmest
Db e matwdy  imarr  eesiote wle balie dwingtheywr  amertnation  eifimence dering the year Ending halinos
L1} nmiber] BV ndion) @08 o nllor) (B e rdlot| (FME i milioed BNE o min) (A e milln)

Finel i bond Woroet  |TAg Ol 19 300 1953 - 7 - (30,00 -

Usbembemrois (| Bront (D 2013 15 BRI 1 - 1 e J LIs

lefgmumne  Mowln B bl USSR L] = . LBl - 38

e g bered ey SMNE 18 Vs 32000 kS - il = = 0

Fine s b mmt  MSpHI 13 TR 1555 - [ - . 1557

Medumremnte Hoeowt  7Sepd08 Il Lboed ™ [ ki - - [} - -}

Medomwmnaie (i Mmool MNiep XN LI 02 L8] - ] ] L5

ledom tem note 2] JEmoet  MSep MOD 095 [lak 1] 1555 - i (1] - 1.5

o e bend nptn GhNwil 18 MR 000 th ] - - - - 458

Fined ride buoend moete || Mu RN 180 00 3 LE ] i - - 4.5

Foune st bord ot W 1 LR 000 - 19,987 ] - 19555

e rate bord oot MAg il 190 1003 - 99 i} - - 5

Medum emnale ) Nowds |l 10 s - 1812 1 o - 1,812

penmnoie ) Mool 1Sl 05 S - 1513 1 m 151

Fatd 0,25 LER 1§ ) {30,000 118583

Mot

1] Fnancial borsds issusd by the Bank that wees held by CMB WLE amounted 5o EUR 27 milion g ol 31 December 300 1, sgoivaient b FMBIE3
mlign (11 Decersber J036 (LR JF milion, squealert b RBPSS milend

i Feraniclal Boradn masied by the Bank that wers held by C08 WUB amoumed to USOAD millen e ol 3 December 300 1, squsalent 1a RWR101
millon 131 Decombar JO00 IR0 mlbon, scutaafenl 1o AME 9 milkon)

dim Francial bomds nsued by the Bank thal wate held by CWVE WL amounied i LSD30 milion & ol 31 December 2021, sguivalent 1o RME1S1
milion (31 Decersber J000 USD30 melbon, squivaienl 10 AME 1SS milionk

el Faranoidl bords msued by the Sank thai were held by CME WLE amounied to UE04S méion a5 of 31 Cecemiber 2021, equiveent to AMBZET
milion (31 December 2000 )

L[7] Farancial o maued by the Bani that wem held by C020 WLR amounied o USR03 millon e of 31 December 200 |, squieaient 1o KMBT10
milian (11 Decwsbed JON Al)
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43. Debt securities issued wontnues
{b) Long-term debt securities issued rconmmued)
As a1 the end of the reporting period, debl secunties nsued by CMBFLC were as follows:
Disnoust o
Temtn  Qatesf Aol Weminal  Begining =) peemigm Ehange  Repapmeest
Dt type miteiyy it ieestae mie balince deingiheywsr  amortition  ciffeence dering the year Ending halinee
[ 1] Inmien] B8 A mlor) FUSnallo] (LS rdkoe) (FME D ndon) BN s WL ol
Fixid vane bl Bmetn  Sbed B 1R \SER00 580 - ] o [LER =
Fdrmebond [} Mromtn  [AMEINE S e i - [ - 00 -
fedrdetond il Moo IMml0A AE e 000 15 = [ . 142000 -
faeduebond  Emed GMEE 49 asm i : 2 T E
Funeed sie bone] Erontin AN 05 15 naisn 1458 = i - . 1,500
Fraee 1ane bond Bmnth AN IS 40 RS ] = = = - )
Fomed vt bored roalm  ITMey 0l 181 LUt 15 - E] = ¥
Foedncebond (] Emostm W NME 10 15,01 4] LEE] - i} 1481 - L]
Fosditebond (] THmonfyy JMANE 18 [z ] M - | (L] - Ea
Fineel rate booeed Broots [TANNE 180 L b 1% - i = = ]
fadrrbond iy Wmosks  TAp XN 1R i5bay b " 5 . 1) .
Fine 1zee boned Nhroei 40NN 42 a0 15 - I - - 1.3
ford e bend ] Emts (D Aeq 0 183 Listiany 52 - § LlEr]] - 500
Frdrfetond fwl  1Hmenis DA N0 LTS [ LI - 3 Wl 158
Fopd e bord o) Emoete 1T Ree 2N 183 LT i 4 = L]
Foed tae boned Nmoats Hlx i 1R 12" it (H] - @ (L] -
Faed e boed (] et Mua I 180 T34 000 - L0 -1 - - iwn
Fudvairbord ) Dmostn ARRINT 100 e . 158 [ i . 159
Fopdmiebond (il 10meetn SREN 18 Ity - 158 5 [151] 15
fodimebond  TEoels MR LE 1505 - il = & E 118
Foedivake bond [} Emooths M Mw NI 19 LT » Flii] 1] & . 1.5
T iaté bond Wi MM NI 10 {21k - L] I 1] - 1%
Fonedd ke bored [} FEomoodhs  1ESep 001 139 bt ] - 15 i L] = 155
Toneel g bered Himotn |§5%p NI 175 S0 - 1,558 I ] - 1E83
fadutrbond i) Wmosds  SSp XTI 0W BRI . T8 . [ . m
Fosd s bond (] TImoathi  130ec 021 3l Lol 5 5hs - ) - - - k1)
Fouwd 1tz bond Mmooty 2] 0wc HOI 253 ER3} - ki1 - - - &
Tl 450 18,800 H ) 18,24 L1
MoEE
il Fined rate boreh snued by CMIFLE St ware heid by the Bank amounted B ol o of 31 Gecember 2021 (11 Desember 3630 G20
miliont
0 P rte Bedeh igusd by CMBFLC Shat were heid Sy the Bank amounted ta nl o of 31 Degemibes 2021 (31 December 20200 BAR14Q
milian),
(1] Pt rate Beoiatn imsued By CME Iviesnatioedl LeRing Mansgamant LHHH['CMBILM'i.jMMHlMH‘FHEmE thal witds

MHHT“MMMLIE}IEI mulben g1 o 31 Decemnber 2071, squisslent o AMBSST melliors (31 December JOI0 LS098 million,
equisalent 10 AMBGIE million). Feed rate bords nsued by CMEHM that wers held by CME WB smounded to US030 millon s of 31
December 1011, squivalent 1o AMBESE millon 111 Decesber 20200 WS030 mellion, equialent 10 W08158 milkon)

il Foed rate Bonels imeupd By CRIBLAA Bl were held by the Bark amounted to UEEED million i of 11 Owceebei 2071, equisalen) 16 KMBITH
milion (11 Decermber JOJ0 URDAY melbsr, eqavafent ig AMIIAD malion)

(] Fasid rae Bt riauedd by CRIBIDM il weie held by CWE WLE atousted 10 il i ol 3T Oecembe 100 0 031 Decmmedar FII90 US040 million,
wgurialberm o RMB2G1 milioni.

iwil Forel vain bonds msied by CREBRLLA that veers held by the Bark amounted io USDXY million s of 31 December 2071, squivilent i SW4B132
malion (00 Decendser 2000 nill Fiaed rase borch maued by CMBILM that were held By CWB WLE amounted 80 US037 milion o of 51
Dwcembar JOI1, spdvalent 1o AMEI0E millon (1 Decermber 7030 USDET mdlion, squavalent 1o N0 mallon)

L] Fmed 1w honsds sisued By CMEFL Pl weee Bild By the Bank smounted’ o UE05 millipn e el 39 December 3031, equeivafend fo BdREE
rilion (11 Dwcersber 3000 nl)
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43. Debt securities issued iontinuag)

(b) Long-term debt securities issued rcommmues)
[ R e T

i Faed raie pondsy peesed by CBELC that were Fuld by the Bank amounied to 8BS0 milion s oof 31 December 3931030 Deosmber 2050:
ArAEECD milkon)

fin) Fiawd 1atm bond isssed by CRIBILC thet were held by the Bank amounied 1o BMERES milion s of 1 December 3035000 December 1030
rill

(o] el vl buonls Husiid Ly CRMEFLE Shq werrd Bl Bry the Bark aimounited 16 USDI4 milliss s of 31 Decembar 2021, sgubolent 15 SMB155
mifion (31 December 3030 md)

iai) Feopdd vaie bonds issued by CREFLC Bhat veers held by the Barkl amounted io USDS3 mellion o of 31 Oecembst 2071, squislent 1o SWBIS
milion (11 December J030 ral)

Amiil Viooedd rate borech, e by CWIBILE $hat were held by the Bank smounted to RWMBNI million (31 Decamber 2020¢ nill

i Foed farte Bonads insuied by CRABILLA $hat vesrw held bry She Bark smounbed fa USDI0 million & of 31 Decambar 2071, squrnilent 1o BLWE191
milion (31 Degcember 20200 nill Fiagd rade bahdy skl By CMBLM than wiete heid by CAE WLE amounied w0 USDE milbon s ol 31
Decombsi 1011, squivalent 10 AMEE] milien (31 Decrsber J030. fl)

LT Foord vaie bonds weued by CMBEILM that weie held by CWE WLE amounted o EUR 10 milion au of 30 Decervber 2021, squisslent 1o S4ETT
milton (31 December 2030 il

i Fivedt rarie bonds nosred by CRABEI hat weere held by CRB WD amassied to USBED milion o af 31 Cecembed 100 1, epdvalent b RLBEIEE
reulion (11 Detembar 7030 A}

As at the end of the reporting period, leng-term debt securities issuwed by CMBICHC were as follows:

Diicaurrt ar
Temts  Dwmwaf  Aenal Hesmiral Beginning L primie Edarge  Repaymem
Debt type milufy  hasnce  nleed ol ki balasce dunng the year  amertartion difeeree durngthe jer Ending halings
i inmlicr) OMBerilior] AUEimlie] RVE mmiicr) (MBmflor) [(Emmedce) MM is i
foedrieebord  3Gmoviw SMMNM 1R 50 306 1961 = = ri} 1.4 =
Fedufebond B} Jomonfn 2ime 2l 132 B0 . EL [ m - 1818
Yeud L 3ETL ] m {1.937) 1816

L] o rate bonds ived by CMBCHE that wene held g CMEB LB smounted to LISD0 T malion as of 31 December 1021, sguivakent to RWBGE
milion (11 December 2000 )
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44. Other liabilities
2021 2020
Clearing and settlement accounts 50,565 22,557
Salary risk allowances (note) 38,500 31,200
Continuing involvement ltability 5274 3.128
Insurance labilities 2,063 2.021
Callecting on behall of customers a51 3,610
Cheques and remittances retumed a7 127
Other payable 43,170 41,812
Tatal 139,570 104,455

Mte Salaiy ik allowanter are wpecifs fundy withheld lrom the emplopee’ denedd emunetiton ol wheh e payinents o deleyed o the
prrpiris ol ekl manapemiet. The dlocstion ol the funth it bated on parlormance asarisment asd sk management idaits, taking Nt
accound the thoft serm and long tem Eeneli in the event of & declies i the aaset qualay, & vhanp deisnorition of il profies and
prafitalifity. the oiowdents of lagal Coae, &0 @ agiihoant iegilitoey velalion shentilied by oy Fegulilon authoslied, the rliaast smplove
welll b vestrected from the sllocation of thews aliowanors

45. Share capital

By type of thares:
2021 and 2020
No. of shares
{in millkan}

Listed shares

= A Shares 20,629
- H Shares 4,591
Total 25,220

All H Shares are ordinary shares and rank pail passu wath the A Shares. Thefe B no restriction on theie shares.

Capital
MNa. of shared Amsunt
{m millian)
A4 1 January 2021 and &t 31 December 2021 25,220 235,220
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46. Other equity instruments
{a} Preference Shares

Birountieg Dividend Cormergion  Con-
fereioes of shanes) U i el
Qlihory Freleemar Surs n 017 5002007 fquly threminty. A40%  LS0DShu ] BET Prpmud mztinor Moie (S Mo
et (1
Domwstic Frferesce Shars i Wl 0T lgelpimbementy  ER1%  EMEFOThiy ] T4 Peptudeeime  Hol(d e
017 frcte 1)
Tl 1] R

il Fummuani fo the spprovals by the relevant regolaiony suthontes in China, the Bank maved US Dollar sraded srd seitied nonecumlaties
Oifshare Prefeenoe Shares in the agpregate nomeral value of USDY,000 milion o 15 October 2007, Each Offshive Frederenor Share has 3
rominsl walue of USDI0 and 50 milion Ctishom Preference Shares were masued i bolad The divdend rate 8 mbaly a1 4 480% end subpect S0
reet per sgrrament wutsequenily, but not exiesdy 16 55%

1] Funuant 10 the spprovals by the mlevan] reguiilory authentien in China the Bank naued nen-comdative Domisbc Frefecence Share in
the aggiegite nomerul value of IR 500 millisn en 22 Dedembsi 3007, Tach O L] Wharé ha & | il &l RMB100
and IT5 smlion Domeitis Proleenie Shices weie s o tolal The dvidesd rae |8 isitialy al 4.81% sred subject by reus per agresmient
fusbpgantly, B fod sscred 16 GBS,

(1 Both Domeshc and Oifshors Preference Shares have dauses that state oertsn svents would tngger mandatony comnion, Shote daumes ane as
ipdowws

48] Wipon tre ocpurrence of any addibonall Tier-1 Capdal Falnement Tigges Lvent, that w, the Core Tiers | Capial Acdequacy Rabo drops
B 5. 125% or below, the Dacik whall have the nghd 1o comeert, washout the coment of the holdery of Preference Shaiew, afl or part
ol the Frelerese Shatet then hased and ouiitandisg evio Orlinary A Thaies (Doswilic Prelerence Whanen) or Ordnay # Shatey
{Ofishose Fraference Sarei) bised on the tlel nominal valie o tha Preferencs Bhanes i order 1o restone the Core Tier-1 Capital
Adequacy Rt of the Bark 1o abow 5.135%. I the cre of pariial cofmmeseon, the Prefereros Shared shall be corvenied on s pro
1508 b and o0 et corolitons.

ir Upon @ ocowrenoe of 8 Tier2 Capitsl Tripger Evenl, the Bank shall have the nght to corvert, withoot the consent of the holden
of Preleence Shares, ol o part of the Preference Shares then imcetl snd ouistanding into Drdnary A Shares (Domeste Prefemnce
Sharesh or Drdnaty W Shaies (Ofhhoie Frelerence thaiedl haed on S tobal nomessl value of (ke Pielwienoe thaes. & Tiei-} Capital
Triggar Everrl eelen the eadier of the following events 1) CHIRE hamng conclurded Sl wathoul @ convenion or wiite-olf, the Bank
wogll becoms non-wable, e 2} the relevant mihontes hawng conduded $hat withoul @ miblic scior miechon ol Capital o
egavalifil bt (e Baek wiuld Bedome noh-viable,

Uiz thié poourtencs of 1he sbowe mandMnly convemion seni, o Bk whall prport to the CBRC for riveew sni SbEmination
Tha Bank shull Tullill the melevant el oemaiion doek el of the Secuntes Law, the CSAC and Hong Kong's relevant liws
el wpguibiations. such. a8 makng prosisonal npoms o announcesents in accondance wath nelant regulatory requiEmEnts

Dwiderdy on the Otfshors and Domevtic Predereres Shares shall be pald ;o cash Save Tor such deadend 34 the sgreed desdiend rate, the holden of
the pboree Preference Sharey are nof enfllnd to share the emining pofits of the ok weth the ordngry sharehclders. Doadend m non-curmdative
Th Bank Fay the right to cancel any daidend on Predereres Shanm, and duch cancelalion thall not be desmed as o defalt. Afser the cancellstion of
dll or part ol the dwdend o preleence sharebclden, the Band shall not malie any oidinery shaes dsinkagon, unbl the Preleenoe Thanes dadend b
terirend i hill. A4 B doodendy o e Offihore and Demeviic Freference Shates s non-cumulatie, B Rark will nel diilriliicte the deadiench that
velw canceile in ptor pran 10 Peleence Shane holden.

Trer Cllshore @nd Domestc Frelerence Shanes have ro sanaeny date. However, afee the fcih annierrsary of the nauance dase, subyect 1o e snistarnon
of the redempiion condéons and hasing obvtened the pior appeovsl of the CERC, the Offshore and Domesac Prelsience Shares may be isdeamed in
while or in pait at the dacretion of the Bank, but the Bank does not have She cbligston o redees preleence shares. The bolden of Preleience Shane
do not huve S right 1o demsand the Bank 1e redesr the Freference Shares and shall not sxpect that Fredevence Shares will be redermed

Alber deductiog 1he ipbuande sxperies from s Domeic Frelererss Thades aod Oihkoer Fradiverce Thatet above, the (o4l net fundy raved amouhied
e WA i 6l which han been incloded in agdiionsl Teer 1 cagital gf the Rark
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46. Other equity instruments ronnnved
{(b) Perpetual Bonds
Amournt
Lioounting Irpeest {INB in Camriian
hsuance date - clasification by e price Ne.  millien] Due dite cenditiarns  Convenion
Voo ol aads)
Demetic erpetuial Bonch (note ) Sl Equtyreamens B85 RSO 50 B Pessudesene  Nete e
Diorart; Farpaetussl Borch ot i TOm 0 Egutyeshemenh  1EF%  ELEVOUm 4 RS Pepeud mehma  Bore orw
fotdl -l
The changes of Perpetual Bonds issued were as follows:
1lanuary 2021 Increase 1 Decemboer 1021
Amagunt Amaunt Amount
(RME in {AMEE ini {RME i
Isuance date Ko, millicn) Ho,  millign) No.  million)
[milliors of unsti] (milions of unitsh [millsens af writs)
Domeitic Perpetusd Bonds (nale ) 9 M 2020 500 45989 - - 50 43,983
el Beipyhuad Ronds inoka W, ¥ Dee 7801 - § £ o £0: -aE
Teasl 500 45,589 430 42989 930 52978
Haie
il ‘it the approvel of she relevant regulatony muthontes in Chena, the Bank soeed ARES0, 000 millon o 2020 Chine Meschants Bank Cao, Lhd

Unidated Additional Tier-1 Capital Bonds (Series 11 (the “Perpanssl Bomds JO207) in e natoral inter-hank borsf market on 9 My 2030 The
wnt lpce valym m AMIIIO0. The coupon rele sdpunied period noevery § ywam from the miuance of she Perpeiual Bondh 2020, = any coupon
Fle St peniod, thi coupos 1ibE of B Papotis Bosdp ol semain 416 preerbed feed cate, Thie Perpdtial Bands 2020 wall contis 4
be putsipeding so long & the Berk contreey bo operaie.

(5] Wik the spprovel ol the relevant regulatory suthoiites in Chona, the Bank sed AR 600 madlon of 2001 Ching Meschants Bank Co L,
Undated Additional Tier-1 Capital Donds (the “Perpehasl Bonds 202§, together with Perpetusl Bonds 2000, Perpetusl Borch ™) in the natonal
inter-hark bond marked on T December 2021, The undt fece value o ABNGD The coupon rate sdunted peniod i ey 5 yeens rom The
Insuanse of she Feipeiual Bongy 2071 In aiy cougon sale adnted paried, the teupon rate of the Perpatusl Bends will remim 8 4 preseribed
Frud dwin . Tho Porpartiuad Bondh 3031 wall dontma ta be cutulandeg 1o hong aa ke Rani ctsnitinue 10 opetais

Frem the fifth annwersary since the rsuance of the Perpetual Bonds, the Bank has the right to redeem in whale
or in part the Perpetual Bonds on the annual interest payment date Gncluding the interest payment date en the
fifth year since the issuance date) subject 1o the approval of the CBIRC and the satisfaction of the redemption
preconditions. [, after the issuance, the Perpetual Bonds no longer qualify as additional Tier 1 capital as a result
of an unforeseeable change to refevant provisions of supervisory regulation, the Bank has the night to redeem the
whole but not part of the Perpetual Bonds. The investors do not have the right to sell back the Perpetual Bonds to
the Bank,

The claims in respect of the Perpetual Bonds will be subordinated to the claims of depositors, general creditors,
and subordinated debts that rank senior to the Perpetual Bonds, and will rank in prionity 10 all classes of shares
leld by the Bank's shareholders and rank par passu with the claims in respect of any other additional Tier-1 capital
instruments of the Bank that rank parl pasiu wath the Perpetual Bonds.

The coupan rate will be reset on each benchmark rate reset date (Le. the date of every five years fram the ssuance
date}. The adjusted coupan rale will be determined based on the benchmark interest rate at adjustment date plus
the fixed spread as determined at the time of lssuance. The Perpetual Bonds do not contain interest rate step-up
mechanism or any other redemption incentives. The Bank has the right to cancel, in whole or in part, distributions
on the Perpetual Bonds and any such cancellation will not constitute an event of default. The bond interests are
non-cumulative, and any cancellad distribution is not carried 1o the following year. The Bank will fully consider the
interests of bondholders when exercising this right. The Bank can use the cancelled bond interest for the cument
periad at its discration to repay other due debts. Cancellation of any distributions 1o the Perpetual Bonds, no matter
in whale or in part, will nat imgose any other restoction on the Bank, except in relation to dividend distributions 1o
ardimary shares,

Upon the accurrence of a Non-Viability Trigger Event, the Bank has the right te write off in whale or in part, wathout
the need for the consent of the bond holders, the principal amount of the Perpetual Bonds A Mon-Viability Tregger
Event refers to the earlier of the folbowing events: () the CBIRC having concluded that without a write-off, the Bank
would become non-viable; (i) the relevant authorities having concluded that withaut a public secier injection of
capital or equivalent support, the Bank would become nen-viable. The wite-off will not be restored.

After deducting the issuance expenses, the funds rased by the bonds have been used 1o supplement additsonal Tier
1 capital of the Bank in accordance with applicable laws and the approval of the relevant authoritios,
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46. Other equity instruments ronnnved
{c) Relative Information Attributed to Equity Instrument Holders
— L B0 2020
Equity attributed to sharehobders of the Bank 858,745 ¥23,750
- Equity attnbuted to ordinary shareholders of the Bank 3,702 639,696
- Equaty attributed to other equity instrument holders of the Bank 127,042 84,054
Including: Nat peofit 3,613 1.651
Total comprehensive incoma 3,612 1,651
Destributions in current year {3.613) {1,651)
Cumulatve undistrnibuted dividends - -
Equity attributed to non-controdling interests 6,936 6,604
- Equaty attrnibuted to non-controlling halders of ardinary shared 3,300 2,851
= Equity attributed to non-controlling haoldess of perpetual debt
capital (Mote 62) 3,636 3,753
47, Capital reserve
Capital reserve primarily represents share premium of the Bank and can be converted into share capital with the
shareholders' approval
02 2020
At 1 lanuary and 31 December 67,523 67,523
48. Investment revaluation reserve
02 2020
Debt instruments measured at FVTOCE investment revaluation reserve 11,459 4,281
Fair value gain on equity instruments designated at FVTOCI 2,578 1,084
Remeasurement of defined benefit scheme B8 73
Share of ather camprehensive income of squity-sccounted mvestess o022 TED
Total 15,047 8,207
49. Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve camprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
instruments used In cash flow hedges Subsequent recognitron of the hedged cash flow 15 accounted for in

accordance with the accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedge in Note 4(5)
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Statutory surplus reserog |5 calculated sccording to the requirements of the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and other relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance ("MOF™) and i provided at 10% of the
audited profit after tax of the Bank. Surplus reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-

up capital with the approval of shareholders.,

_— _2m 2020
Ar 1 January 71,158 62,291
Provided for the year L L 8867
At 31 December 82,127 71.158

51. General reserve

Accarding 1o the relevant regulations of the Ministry of Finance, in addstion to the impairment allowances, the
Bank maintans a general reserve according o a certain proportion of the balance of risk assets to make up for
unidentified patential losses. The general reserve is treated as profit distribution and is an integral part of equaty.
In grincigle, the balance of general reserve shall not be less than 1.5% of the ending balance of risk assets, The
generad reserve of the Group also includes the general reserve maintained by the subsidiares of the Group according
to the applicable laws and regulations of their industry or region, The Bank and the Group's subsidianies have
maintaned general reserves m accordance with the regulatory requirements as of 31 December 2021 and 2020

021 oo
At 1 January 96,082 90,151
Provided for the year 17,206 1.931
At 31 December 115,288 98.082
52. Profit appropriations
{a) Dividends approved/declared by shareholders
2021 2020
Cirdinary share dividends in 2020, approved and declared
RMB1.253 per share 31,60 -
Crdinary share dividends in 2019, approved and declared:
RMEB 120 per share - 30,264
{b) Proposed profit appropriations
Pl 2020
Statutory surplus resemnve 10,979 8867
General resemve 17,206 7.931
Dividends
- cash dwidend: RMEB1.522 per shares (20:20: RMB1.253 per shares) 36,385 31,601
Total 66,570 48 355

2021 final doedends (s proposed in accordance with the resalution passed at the mestng of the Board o Direclors

held on 18 March 2022 and will be submitted to the 2021 annual general meeting for approval.

53. Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements

of opevations outside Mainland China,
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54. The bank's statement of financial position and changes in the
bank's equity
2021 2020
Assens
Cash 12,754 12,547
Precious metals 4,554 1.873
Balances wath eentral banks 543,652 508,385
Balances with banks and ather finanoal nstitutions 41,632 73318
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 1EB, 376 217,325
Amournts held under resale agreements 523,518 282,240
Loans and advances 1o customaers 5,023,050 4510884
Fimaricial assets at fair value through profit or loss 260,541 451,978
Derivatree Tinancial assets 23,179 46,526
Debt investiments at amortised cost 1183662 1,047,040
Debt investments at far value through ather comprehenshve incame 552498 449 478
Equity invesiments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive incame 6,392 6,693
Irvestments in subsdiarios 49,495 43,435
Intérests in joint ventures 12,582 1.630
Interests in asociles 3,521 -
Investrment propearties G945 1.057
Property and equipmant 26,832 26,300
Right-of-use assats 17,710 18,200
Intangible assets 3,228 3,961
Deferred tax assets 79,712 71.043
Oiher assets 108,871 14,233
Total assets B700,134 7,866,136
Liabilities
Bamrowing from central banks 156,987 3316822
Deposits from banks and other financeal imstitutsans 732,631 699,161
Plagements from banks and other financial institutions 55710 59,494
Fimanciad liabilsties at fair value through profit or loss 36,105 36,600
Derivative financial labilities 26,866 49,624
Amounts sold under repurchase agreements 137,857 126,673
Deposits from customers B, 150,247 5443144
Salares and welfare payable 15,853 12,194
Tax payable 20,926 17,205
Contriact liabifities 7.536 6,829
Lease labilities 13,164 13,468
Provisicns 14,503 B.201
Debt securitbes (ssued 30E, 672 291,246
Crther liabifities 115,355 86,218
Total linbilities 7,BE9, 446 7,181,679
Equity
Share capital 25,220 25,230
Crther equity instruments 127,043 34,054
Capital reserve 76,681 76,681
Investrment revaluation reserve 14,866 1.951
Hedging reserve - {26}
Surphﬂ. FlsRrvE B2,137 71,158
General reserve 105,941 94,067
Retained sarnings 340,371 193,523
Proposed profit appropeiations 3B,385 31,601
Exchange reserve 44 118
Tolwiequity, o B B 008 v el
Total equity and liabilities 6,700,134 7,866,136
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54. The bank's statement of financial position and changes in the
bank’s equity onmmes
Details of the changes in the Bank's eqguity are as follows:
Other equety irtramenty
vl

Propesied
Shate  Prelerence Pepeisel  Cosital revelustion  Wedging  Surphn Genenal Retsined prode  Enchange
captal sthams  bord resre rERE (R TEEE TEBCW RMINgE appropristien  rese Towl

421 Jasgary 01 /N MDES  dssE TeEAl TS [O8) 108 SM0E B8RSR gl e
Charges i ety for the e - - v - B W AT RN &M RTM @ IRai
Wit profi For the o = a - P = - - - e - - 108,784
e iz S o R : = = WM W - o o - M e
Sod it o ke by - . . . L. - s
oot of perpetsal Bonds - - A1 - - - . . - T
Kok ppopeiaticns = 3 5 P = - WA OILEM ST 6784 - [EI)
Aopragraben |o statstory wurphn rene - - . - = I = - - -
Faragraton [ gered e - - - - - - = LM (A - - -
Devndends mad 1o the yar 011 - - - - - - - - - (31,601 [21, 80y
P e ot your 001 - . - - - - - - g oAm - .
Dindends maed lon prafersnce sharss - - - = - - - = s = - (LEE
irbion + prpetal bons - . - - S R T . -
Freabers withan eguty aon Sl

of ety imsiromens desigraied of

L = = e=r = UMY s e e WME s o=t
B2 31 Db 200 i bl MEF A e WA = BT iEs eI s LT ]
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54. The bank's statement of financial position and changes in the
bank’s equity conmmes

D gy ety
reraTer] Fropesed
Srae  Felweone  Pepetsd  (apfdl  malition  Hedgrg  Sepln Gesel  Retaned poft  Euchasge

B Lt el bk rewrw P TEETE  THEW  oReH BETR  gpopbon e T:d_
B faary M0 B M - THES Li & W EAN  B51S Wi NE W
Chirsgen = ety for the yeae - - - fris - EET AN HME 1387 oM
Vet prekit for the = = = L - 2 - - B = - BEM
Db pompreherane reame | the per - - - - | - - - - - n (75
lowdessimebeber - - - - ¥ - - - WW -3 kA
ot of perpetud hoad - - 4 - . - - - - - - B
1 gerratenn 3 . - - - BN AMT (03 L3 - g
hopemraton o shatutory werphal resene - - - - - - BT - [mE7 - . =
Sgpran Lo geoed wime - = - 3 = - - BN EMT - - =
Dovides e for e e 1019 - . . - - - - - E 30,168 B
Fropoued dvdenst for the yewr 0N - - - - - - - - g g0 - -
Teadench, zad 28 profernnce shares - - . - - - B - (1557 - - (LT
Tearrslers wathin ety g Sponal

of gty ot deiraied o

D - - - - ] - - - ] - - =
31 Decender W B0 MM 598 TER e 08 MpsE s peasn e B

55. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

{a) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents (including assets with
original maturity within 3 months):

2021 2020
Cash and Balances with central banks 9,129 37,496
Balarce with banks and ather financial institutions 75,919 83,688
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 65,897 111,706
Amounts held under resale agreements 527,341 282,867
Debt securities investments 53,468 37.033
Tatal 801,754 552,790
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55. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement roninuea

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
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The table below details changes in the Group”s liabilities from financing actratios, including bath cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from fenancing activites are those for which cash flows were classified in the Group’s

comocfidated cash flows staterment a3 cash flows from financing actrities,

Hegotiable  Certificates Debt
irerbank  of depoyt  securified Ozher
certificates e Ased Interest  Dividend finangial Lease
of depanit (eate] [Nate} payable payable  llabitien  Eabilities Tatal
At Jargary 2010 144516 15,084 154,775 1585 5 FELCH ALFLH] W85
Canh changes
Froceads from the swe 35,7 14,652 63412 - - 5,650 - LoRE
Repayrrert EEY (10,353 (55,771} - - (3,657 B35} (TR
Intarestidndend pad 13,768 - - T530 (35685 - = (47,085
hr-cash changes:
Addtions of loau labine - - - - - - hEd 1E
Asered intarest - - - AL - - 555 B
Devidend declaned - - - - 35,685 - - 15,685
[escnunt or premiam amortation 558 e 51 - - - - 4.1
Fiir wtlue adurstments - [£h] (257} - - 33 - =1
Exchange diffecence = 1453) 1530} - - 1216] - 2240
A 31 Decenber 2001 40,234 14,082 FUTRTH 10 1 26,650 13,812 45,11
Megatiabie  Cernificates Dbt
miwhark ol depemit  secwite Db
et Ees ] ased Irnerest Dicend fnancel Leas
ol depoett (Moe] {Hale) parpabie payible lulbslzem habeirtet Tarul
A Y January 2000 M FLA W8 FEx: ] 15 8315 AT B11558
Canh changes
Froveads from the swe man s 31608 - - 14417 - 366
Repapment LLEER ] agEn |45, 458 - - BT} L T
Interestidsidend pad (0.0 = = Lk 323 a3 = (51,811
harcash changes:
Addtines of lagse labiftes - - - - r s a0
Aaenued st - - - 19% - - 558 RTH
Drwdend declared - - - - 2an . nan
Drucnunt of premiam amaftuation Tz [} st - - - - (7] ]
Fair walue adprisments - 4 173 - - 161 434
Exchangs &iffernce (L] [.145) @517 - - [} - (3,383
Mr 3] December 2000 144516 15,024 194775 158 1B kz ity 1420 37875

moter  includeng finsesoal batelines desgraced at lar vake Bvough profn or los

Significant non-cash transactions
There were no significant non-cash transactions during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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56. Operating segments

The Group's principal activities are providing corporate and personal banking wervices, conducting treasury busirness,
prowiding astel management and other financial services

The Greup manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by both busimess lines and geography.

(1) Wholesale finance business

The finanoial serveces for corporate clients, government agencies, and financial institutions nclude: loan and deposit
tervice, setllerment and cash management service, trade linance and affshore business, imvestment banking business,
inter-bank business such as placement and repurchase, asset custody business, financial market business, and other
services

(2} Retail finance business

The financial seevices provided 1o retarl customers smclude; loan and deposit service, bank card service, wealth
management services, private banking and other services.

(3} Other Business

Other business includes: property leasing and businesses operated by subsidiares other than CMB WLE, associates
and joint ventures. Mone of these segments meet any of the quantitative thresholds so far for segment division

For the purpose of operating segment analysis, external net interest income/espense represents the net interest
income samed of expense incurred on banking services provided to external partees. Internal net mterest incorme’
expense represents the assumed profit or loss by the internal funds transfer pricing mechanism which has taken into
account the structure and market returns of the asiets and liabilities porticlio. Cost allocation s based on direct
costs attributable to each reporting segment and apportion according to the relevant factors

The accounting palicies of the operating segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies as stated in Nate
4. Operating segment income represents income generated from external custamers, inter-segment transachions are
offsat. No customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue for 2021 and 2020. Internal transactons are
conducted at fair value.
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56. Operating segments ronsined

{a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

Whalssale Retail
finance butinew finance beainen Other butines. Tatal
| 2020 W Pl 1] X ik | 2020
Exterrial net intenes? income: 18923 16528 135an 128383 49,584 g 03N: Es0
Intedmial et briefest incomefieaparsel B8 ESA8  ASM) Mg (S0851) daal - -
it SRR . i AN i T e O o OO LSOOI ) A, SO e L0
Kt T and commeniien income 24,307 o B.155 5141 9435 43 o8 447 19,436
ek it (o TR PO L ARSI 1L ORI SYOIR ot AROUN. n RSP o
Opetating income: LEE .. S P ] 173,014 156288 14,458 #081  MIam T
Ceeratig mpemes
= Peoperty, equipment and inesttment
Eroperies depreiaiion 1.9 (.72 (2,650 {1653 46840 {3,340 BT (7715
- Night-cluse sasts degricistion W& LN BT (s {10 o s e
= Qther (88772 Q4831 (SEAST)  (SDETT) 6,550 5,175 (603763 (W58
Repeostable egmend profit belore
Impairment loises 83534 3,054 N13Mm 100404 158 /6 N04eE saL
Fxpecied cred bosset and mpament
ko on oiher ety 5345  QBIMm (RET BRES a8 8 B3N (SRS
Share of profity of suncanes and i veruses - - - - 4030 1881 £030 221
Repecetalele sagment prodit bedore baxation 63,568 55437 nma LEEE] L] I MBITI 112440
Capital expenituee [natsh 1im 1550 12m 378 18,206 10835 15781 19,128
Whleihe linante buifnes Retail finarste bininess Diher butinest Tatal
30 Decenber 30 Decomber 11 December 31 December 30 Decomber 30 Decamber 31 December 31 December
o i o] o aun Hry Fo nn
Reportatie ugmest ety A LURES 1500408 15010 1,286,507 116300 EALCAR LR
O which: leteresl i aisocule and
o veehee - - - - FEL] M5 HEA 1aan
Feporiable et habites LORDENE  LATTEIE LIMOE 200seED Lard maE EMLEER TMAME
Nale
il Capaal axpercisuie ispresenty the ewcund ncurmed o scguining |long-Serm segmes] aiueh.
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56. Operating segments ronsined

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities
and other material items

2021 2020
Operating income for reportable segments 327,317 287,398
Tatal profit before income tax for reportable segments 148,173 122.440

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Assels

Tatal assets lor reportable segments 9,149,124 8,269,984
Goodwall 5,554 5,954
Intangible sssets 571 529
Deferred tax assets 81,639 72.893
Other unallocated assets 7,731 7.988
Consolidated total assets 9,245,021 8,361 448
Liabifities

Tatal labilities far reportable segments E,2B2,668 7.548,146
Tax payable 22,491 18.64E
Deferred tax liabilities 1,353 1,073
Cther unallocated labilities T6,E28 63,227
Consolidated total liabilities B.383, 340 7.631.094
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56. Operating segments ronsined

{¢) Geographical segments

The Group operates principally in the PRC with branches located m major provinges, aulonomous regions and
municipalities ditectly under the central government in Mainland China, The Group also has branches operating
in Hong Kong, New York, Singapore, London, Sydney and Luxembourg, subsdiaries operating in Hong Kong,
Shenzhen, Shanghai, Beijing and Luxemnbourg and representative offices i Besjing, Mew York and Taipei.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, operating kncome s allocated based on the
lecatron of the bramches and subsidiaries that generate the revenue. Segment assets and non-current assefs are
allacated based on the geographical location of the underlying ansets

To support the Bank's operations and management's assessments, the geographical segments are defined as follows:
- “Headguarte:™ refers 1o the Group headguarter and credit card centres,

- “Yangire River Delta region”™ refers to branches in Shangha municipality, Zhepang province and langsu
province;

- “Bohai Rim region™ refers to branches and representatve offices in Beijing municipality, Tianjin municipality,
Shandang prosince and Hebe pravince;

- “Pearl River Defta and West Coast region” refers to branches in Guangdong province and Fujian province;
- “Northeast region” refers 1o branches in Liaoning provinee, Hellangjiang province and Jilin prevince;

- “Central region” refers to branches in Henan province, Anhai provinge, Hunan provinge, Hubs province,
Hangxi province, Shanxi province and Hainan province;

- “Wistern region” refers to branches in Sichuan province, Chongging munscipality, Guizhou province, Yunnan
province, Shaanad province, Gansu province, Mingmia Hul Autonomous region, Xinglang Uyghur autonomous
region, Guangsi Zhuang autonomeans regean, Inner Mongalia autonomeus regeon, Qingha provinge and Tibet
AUToNOMoUs region;

- "Owerseas” refers 1o overseas branches in Hong Kong, New Yaek, Singapore, Luxembourg, London, Sydnrey
and regresentative offices in Hew Yok and Tapei; and

- “Subsidiaries” refers to subsidiaries wholly owned or controlled by the Growp, incduding CMB WLB,
CMBICHC, CMBFLC, CMFM, CHMEWM, CMB Eurcpe 5.4, and CIGNA & CMAM, etc

Tortal et Tatal atifties Kon-urient aises Proficbefore tan  Cperating income
i December ¥ Decesbwr 31 Decormber 31 Devember 31 Devember 31 Docesber

Geographial informazion Hil biu] an k] i o A o an i
Heatkquurtes LUESE RN JARAN M 120 M O3 1960 MM |JEE
Yarggrae Fiver Defia regim VR LNERE 1M Lk [AE] B MM MBET M4 HEN
Sokas B megor: T5S o4 maus a5 axn 455 WA 9Em I Ml
P Rover ety e Woest ot regun BT, 5 Al e i LA 4 Nl NE B N
Homes e 6 8 188561 16630 184,568 1617 IR 19 1P BN 4T
Cerisal rogeon ST,181 i FLiEE] F 15 CREVRR Vo T T E
iede et 550,172 LA S601 B g L8 M e AM
Tt 1I0ER HH ok wm 1] LE \E LB A IEm
Seiduns BRI 54,608 M A e BET WA 935 54 HES
Totil M EMAME MM TEN 137, 11986 WEN e M
haite Han-cuwiant avieli Scliabs inbereili B joesd wenboed, BRey i f and propsita, nghl-ol-we

amsens, wviargbile assets ard Qoo
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57. Assets pledged as security

The following assets have been pledged s collateral for borrowing from central banks and habilities under
repurchate ar placement arrangements:

2021 1020
Borrowing fram central banks 159,357 329,611
Placements fram Banks and other financial institutions 7.517 1.080
Amounts sold under repurchase agreemants 157,572 142,881
Sublotal 32445 ARSTE.
Assets pledged
- Financial assets at fabr value through profit or loss ol | 11,291
= Dbl irvestments al amortised cost 195,166 245,302
- Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive ncome 34,441 35,787
- Loans and advances to customers B1,357 120,238
Total 340,205 512,618

The transactions urder repurchase or placement agreements are conducted under terms that are wswal and
customary to standard borrowing and placing activitees,

58. Contingent liabilities and commitments
{a) Credit commitments

At ary given time the Group has outstanding commidments to extend credit. These commitments take the form of
appioved loans and eredit card limits.

The Group provides financial guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the perdormance of customers to third
parties. Accepiances comprise undertakings by the Group to pay bells of exchange drawn on customers. The Growp
expects moat accoplances to be seliled wmultaneously with the meimburtement fram the custamess

The centractual amounts of commitments and contingent liabifities are set out in the following table by category.
The amounts reflected n the table tor commitments assume that amounts are fully sdvanced. The amounts reflected
in the lable for guarantees and lefters of credit represent the maximum potential loss that weould be recognised at
the end of the repoerting perod if counterpartes default.

2021
-Stage 2

(Lifetime -Stage 3

Stage 1 ECL-not [Lifetime

(12-menth credite ECL-credit-
ECL) impaired) impaired) Taotal
Irrevecable guarantees 197,208 7.353 254 204.E15
Of which: Financial guarantees 52,198 6337 3 58,538
Mon-financing letters of quarantess 145,010 1.016 251 146,277
Ierevocable letters of credit 162,320 1,71 188 164,219
Eills of acceptances 139,155 5,6E4 790 145,629
Irrevecable loan commitments 141,727 48596 F 145,625
— with an anginal matursty within 1 year (inclusse) 26,611 - 2 26,613
= with an original maturity over 1 year 115,116 48596 - 120,012
Credit card unused commitments 1,231,831 1.903 122 1,239,856
Ot 126,955 1,555 - 128,550
Total 2,199,236 28102 1,356 2,129,694
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58. Contingent liabilities and commitments «ontnuem
(a} Credit commitments jromimoed)
N
=Sage 2
{Lifetime ~Stage 3
~5tage 1 ECL-nat {Lifetime
(12-manth credit- ECL-credit-
ECL) impaired) impaired) Tafal
Irrevecable guarantees 212 580 508 265 213,353
Of which: Financial guarantees 95,914 399 3 96,316
Mon-fimancing letters of quarantees 116,666 108 2162 117,037
Irrevocable |letters of credit 120,746 241 i 120,892
Bills of acceptances 265,213 1671 152 261176
Irrevecable loan commitments 209,453 EREF) 45 212,660
= with an ariginal matursty within 1 year (inclusee) 120,671 198 45 120514
—with an ariginal maturiy over 1 y=ar BBBI12 2,934 - 91,746
Credit card unused commitments 1,128,152 [ 113 1,134,733
Other 100,419 - - 100,419
Total 2,036,555 12,020 TiE 2,049,333

As at 31 December 20210, the Group's itrevocable letters of eredit included sght letters of credit of AMB16,974
millign {31 December 2020: RMB12,965 million), usance letters of credit of AMBS, 552 million (31 Decernber 2020
RMBE, 576 million), and ather cammitments of RMBE137,693 million (31 December 2020: RMB101,511 million)

Irrevecable loan commitments include oredit limits granted to offshore custamers by overseas branches, subsidiaries
and onshoee and offshore sndicated loans etc.

Apart from the irrevocable loan commitments, the Group had loan commitments of RMBS 447 B3S million a1 31
December 2021 {31 December 2020 RMEB3I, 606,998 million] which are unconditionally cancellable by the Group
or automatcally cancellable due to deteriaration in the creditwoarthiness of the bommewer as stipulated in respective

lending agreements. The Group will not assume any risks on the unused credit imits for these loan customers. As a
result, swch balances are not included in the above contimgent Labilities and commitments.

202 2020
Credi sk wenghted amounts of contingent liabilities and commitments 593,062 70,782

The Group caloulated the credit risk weighted amount of its contingent liabilities and commitments i accordance
with the requirements of the Administrative Measunes on Capaal of Commercial Banks (Provisonal) isseed by the
CBRC, The amount vethin the scope approved by the CBIRC in April 2014 i calculated wsing the Internal Ratings-
Based Approach, and the Weighted Approach is wsed to caloulate those that ase not eligible for the Internal Ratengs-
Based Approach

365/432



EDINETOOOO

DO000ooOoOOoooo(eos9se)
ooooood
China Merchants Bank Chapter VIl Financial Statements 275
Annual Report 2021
58. Contingent liabilities and commitments rontnuem
(b) Capital commitments
The authorised capital commitments of the Group were as follows:
I 2021 2020
= Contracted for 480 s07
= Murihinelsed bt ok contraried for ol 9.
Total T4 801

The kease commitments of the Group as a lessor ane detailed in note 58 (e,

(c) Outstanding litigations

At 31 December 2021, the Bank ar other group entities was a defendant in cerfain outstanding litigatons with total
grass claims of RMB1.678 million (2020: RMB573 million]). The Group considers that no material losses would be
incurred by the Group as 4 result of theswe sutstanding litigations and therelode no pravaion has been made (n the
comsafidated financial statements.

{d) Redemption obligations
As an underwnting agent of PRC gowernment bonds, the Group has the responsibility to make advances to bond
hedders i the holders decide 1o early redeem the bonds held. The redermption price for the bonds at any time before
thair maturity date is based on the nominal value plis any interest unpaid and accrued up to the redemption date.
Accrued interest payabiles to the band holders are calculated in accordance with refevant requirements et by the
MOF or the PEOC. The redemption price may be different from the fair value of similar instruments traded at the
redemption date

The redemption oblgations below represent the nominal value of government bonds underwritten and sold by the
Group, but not yet matured at the end of the reporting period:

2021 2020
Redemption cbligations 30,020 27,0495

The Group expects that the amoumt of redemgtion before the maturity date of these government bonds through the
Group will not be matesial

(e} Lease commitments

Operating lease commitments and financial lease commitments where the Group 15 a lessor at the end of the
reporting pericd are as follows:

2021 2020
Operating lease commitments 13,750 10,419
Fimancial lease commitments T421 1,884
Tatal FAM S 12,303
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59. Transactions on behalf of customers

{a) Entrusted lending business

The Group's entrusted lending business refers to actiaties where peincipabi such as government departrents,
business entities and indwiduals prowde capital for loan advances through the Group to their specified targets
on ther behall in accordance with specific terms and conditions, with the help of the Group in manitenng loan
usage and seeking loan recovery. The entrusted lendmg busness does not expose the Group to any credit risk. As
instructed by thewe principals, the Group holds and manages underdying assets and lrabslities only in the capaaty of
an agent, and charges handling fees for refated senvices.

Entrusted lending are not assets of the Group and are not recognised in the consolidated statement af financial
positian, Income received and recervable for providing these sevvices are recognised in the consolidated statement of
prodit or loss as fee and commission income.

At the ond of the mpoiting penod, the entruited ssets and labiities wore i follaws:

2021 2020
Entrusted loans 263,589 264,107
Entrusted funds (263, 569) (264,107)

(b) Wealth management services

The Group's wealth management serdices 10 custarness mainly represent sales of wealth management products 1o
cosporate and persenal bankng customers by the Bank and CMBWM, The funds obtained from wealth management
servicos are invested in investment products, including government bonds, policy bank bonds, short term cofporate
debt instruments and trust loans. The Group injtsated the launch of wealth management products. The investment
sk associated wath these products |5 borne by the custamers who invest in these products. The Group does net
comsolidate these wealth management products. The Group earns commission which represents the charges on
customers in relation to the provision of custedy, sales and management services

The woralth management products and funds obtained are nol assets and liabilities of the Group and are not
recognised in the comsclidated statement of financal position. The funds received from customer for wealth
management business that yet 1o be invested ane recorded under other labilities,

At the end of the reporting period, funds recered from customers under unconsalidated nonsprincpal-guaranteed
wealth management services were as follows:

021 2020
Funds received from customers under wealth management services 2,683,636 2,386,085

Mole:  Fanch srorived Brom oatomen ender wealth management semaces s the funds ieceived from ousbormen, wnder uncomsolidated non=prncpass
[ d wemalth Fransg G

{c) Entrusted management of insurance funds

The entrusted management of insurance funds mainly refers to the business that the Group camies out Investment
activities on fumds entrusted by insurance companies according 1o the regulatary policies and the mvestment
guidelines from mnsurance companses, and charges fees for previding such services

At the end of the reporting period, the balance of entrusted funds was as follows:

2021 2020
Entrusted management of insurance funds 86,098 -
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B0. Risk management
{a} Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential losses that may ame from the failure of a counterparty or a debtor to meet its
obbgation or commitment to the Group. Credit risk ncreases when all counterparties are concenirated in a single
industry or a geographical region, as different counterparties in the same regeon or industry may be affected by the
same economic factors, which may eventually affect thesr repayment abilities.

The Group designs its arganisation Tramework, credit pobcles and processes with an objective to Identily, evaluate
and manage its credit nisk effectively, The Risk and Capital Management Committee, set up and appointed by the
baard of directors is respondible for supendieng and evaluating the sel-up, organisational structure, work process
and effectiveness of vasious risk management functions

With respect to daly operations, the Risk Management Depariment, as directed by the Rusk and Capital Management
Committee, participates in, coordinates and manitars the wark of ather nsk management functions, including aach
business unit and the Legal and Compliance Department. The Group manages credst nisk throughout the entire
crodit process including pre-lending evaluations, credit approval and post-lending menitaring,

With respect to the credst sk management of corporate financal business, the Group formulates oredst palicy
gusdehnes, enhances the standards en credit acceptance and managerment requirements for corporate, interbank
and institutional clients, and implements limits in key nisk areas (o improve the guality of credit exposure,

With respect 1o credit risk management of retail financal business, the Group mainly relies on the oedit assessment
of agplicants as the basis for loan approval, which takes into conssderation the income level, credit history, and
repayment ability of the applcant. The Group monitors past-lending conditions by focusing on borrowers’ repayment
ability, the status of collateral and any changes 1o coflateral value, Once a lsan becomes overdue, the Group starts
the collection process according 1o standard retail loans collection procedures,

Ta mitigate risks, the Group reguests canstomers o provide collateral and guaramtess when necessary. Cerain
gusdeiines have been set for the acceptabilily of specific types of collateral or risks migrating measures. Collateral
posifole and legal covenants are reviewed regularly 1o ensure that they remain sufficient for the given risks and be
contistent with market practices

In respect of loan classfdication, the Group adopts a nisk based loan dassfication methedology. Currently, the Group
categotises it laans on & ter-grade loan classification baws i arder 10 refine internal risk classification managerment
[normal {grades 1-5), special mention grades 1-2), substandard, doubtiul and Iossh

The nsks involved in contingent liabilities and commitments are essentally the same as the credit risk imvolved
Isans and advances to customers. These transactions are, therefore, subject 1o the same credil application, post-
lending menitoring and collateral requarements as for customers applying for loans,

Concentration of credit ritk: when certmn number of cuitomers cary oul the same business actites, lacate
the same geographicad region or their Industries share simslar economic characteristics, their abifity to meet their
obligations may be affected by the same economic factors The bevel of concentration of credit nsk reflects the
sensitivity of the Group’s operating result to a specific industry or geographical region, To prevent concentration of
credit risk, the Group has formulated a limit management policy to monitor and analyse its loan poertfolio,

Analysis of loans and advances by induwstry and loan portfolio are presanted in Note 22
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B0. Risk management icontinued

{a} Cred'rt fiik fronnnuedl
{i¥ Internal crodit risk rating

The Group classiies credst risk based on probability of default. The internal credit rsk rating b based on the
forecasted default risk, taking into comsideration qualitative and guantitative factors. For customens of whalesale
business, such factors include net profit growth rate, sales growth rate, industry, etc. For customers of retail
business, such faciors include matunty, ageing, collateral ratio, ele.

i} Slgnificant increase in credit risk
A describe in Nove 4(5), the Group recogrises lifetime ECL if there are significant mcreases in credit nsk

In assessing whather the oredit nisk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the
sk of default occurring an the financial instrument and other items a1 the reporting date with that at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial mstrument's intémal credit nisk rating (Note G020}, as well as internal early warning signal, the
result of boan classfication and averdue information, The Group regulary revws whether the evaluation criters are
applicable to the cusrent situation. Dufing the reporting period, the Group further deepened the application of the
early warning signal and improved the ability of the model to distinguish risks,

For whelesale business, credit risk is consdered as significantly mncreased if any of the following conditions 15 met:
the loan classificaton s special-mentioned, mose than 30 days (inclusive) overdus, the internal eredit risk rating of
the customar has been downgraded to certain level; the early warning signal of the customer has reached a certain
level; or the customer has athes significant risk signals identified by the Group,

For tetail and credit card budsnids, crodt sk |3 condbdered & signifecantly incroased I any of the lollowing
conditions Is met: the loan classifecation is special-mentioned; more than 30 days linchusve) overdue; the customer
or the debst has credit nsk early warning signal; er the customer has other significant risk sigrals [dentified by the
Group

The Group has made deferred repayment amd interest payment arrangements for some debtors affected by the
COVID-19. Howaver, the deferred repaymaent and interest payment arrangements will not directly fead to the
conclusion that the debtors’ credit risk has increased significantly. Instead, the Group will make a comprehensive
judgement based on the risk indicators.

A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i} it has a low risk of default, i) the bomrewer has a strong
capability to mest its contractual cash flow obligations in the near tesm and i) adverie changes i economic and
business conditions in the longer term may not necessarily reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual
cash (low obligations.

For loan commitment and financial guarantee, the date when the commitment becomes irevocable iz considered as
the initial recognition date.

The Group considers that a deb? instrument i impasted when (14 loan elassdication is substandard, deubtiul or loss
[debt instrements with more than 90 days overdue are induded In these 3 categories).

{iiiy  Measurement of ECL
The key inputs used for measunng ECL are:
- probability of default (PD); ks an estimate of the lhkelshood of default over 12 manths o lifetime horizon;
- bows gven defaudt (LGD): |5 the propartion ol the loss arsing on default 1o the exposure at default;
- exposure at default (EAD); & the risk exposure on a debt

These figures are generally derved from imernally developed statstecal models and other histoncal data and they are
adjusted to reflect forward-looking information.
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B0. Risk management icontinued

{a} Credit fiik fronnnuedl
{iv)  Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group divides financial assets inte different asset groups based on their different risk eharacteristics. According
1o the risk characteristics of the asset group, the Group collects external data released by authortatve mstitutons
and internal risk data without undue cost er effort for modedling. Duning the reporting period, in addition 1o the
common economee indicators such as Gross Domestie Product ("GDP®), Consumer Price Index ("CPI*), Producer
Price Index ("PP”) and Broad Money Supply ("M27), the Group expands its macroeconomec index database by
including vanout categaned of indicators such a8 Industry index, interest and exchange rate, and durvey index.
Based on statistical analysis and expert judgements, the Group sets up multiple forward-looking scenarios to predict
macroeconomic indicatoss and risk parameters. The Group will firstly refer to the forecasts issued by external
authositative institutions a3 the lorecasts of ecanomic mdicatons under the baseline scenario. Il there &5 no external
forecasts, the Group wall refer to the forecasts issued by the professicnals of the Bank and the cutpuls of the
models, For the forecasts of economic indicators under the remaining scenarias, the Group will refer to the actual
histarical data for analysis and forecast. Taking GODP (year-on-year growth rate) and CP1 imenth-on-manth increase)
a4 an example, the ferecasts adopted by the Greup foi 2022 under the baselne scenana are 5 24% (2021 B.84%)
and 2.43% (2021: 2.11%) respectively

Combined wath quantitative measurement and expert judgement, the Group sets the weighting ef multiple scenanos
based on the prnciple of taking the baselne scenario as the main and the other scenarios as supplement. The
weight of the baseline scenare ol the Group as af 31 December 2021 & the highest. Accarding 1o the senstivity
tost results af the Group, when the weighting of the eptimistic scenano mereases by 10% and the weighting of the
baseline scenario decreases by 10%, the ECL amount at 31 December 2021 will decrease by approximately 3.4%
compared 1o the current result (a1 31 Decernber 2020: will decrease by approomately 13, When the weighting of
the pessimistic scenario increases by 10% and the weighting of the bassline scenario decreases by 10%, the ECL
amount at 31 December 2021 will increase by approxemately 1.5% companed to the current resull (at 31 Decernber
2020; wall increase by approxamately 2.5%).

The Group periodically forecasts macrosconomic indicators, and caleulates the ECL based on a weighted 12-month
expected credit boss (stage 1) or a weighted hfetime expected credit |oss (stage 2 and stage 3),

As the COVID-19 is still evolving, the Group’™s expected credit loss model as at 31 December 20217 fully reflected the
impact of the COVID-19 an the macroecanomic environment through continwous updating of internal and external
data, model oplimisation and other measures

v} Groupings bated on shared risk characteristics

The Group divides the primany business into wholesale business, retail business and credit card business. The models
are divided based on shared risk characteristics, and the reference indicators include the loan classification, business
type and collateral type.

i)  Maximum exposure

The Group's macmum exposure to oredit nisk without taking inte account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancementy (s the carrying amount of the relevant fmancial ssets (ncluding desivatived) as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the contract amount of the irevocable credit commitments
disclosed in Note SBla). At 31 December 2021, the amount of the Group's mazimum credil rak expolsre was
REABTT, 235033 million (31 Decembar 2020; RMB 10,192,927 millicn)

{wii} Renegotiated loans and advances to customers

The carrying amount of loans and advances that were credit impaired and the terms had been renegotiated was
RBMBTE,517 million as st 31 December 20217 (31 Decernber 2020 RMBZ 4,878 millian)
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{a} Credit fiik fronnnuedl
{viii} Credit quality of debt investments
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At the end of the reporting period, the analysis of the credit quality of debt imestmeants by designated extesnal

credil assessment matitution, Standard & Poor's, is a5 follows:

2021 2020
Impaired gross amount af debt investments 340 J1a
Impairment allowances (228) (428]
ol R R T e L B T S R N (P R SR [ T e S a0
Meither overdue nor impaired
AAA 1,345,363 823,833
Al to Ak MG, 468 242,828
A ta b 422,427 338,206
Lower than A- 28,415 83314
Unrated 57,994 50,525
Impairment allowances {10,935) {7,047)
Subtotal 1,872,732 1,591,119

Tn:al.

1,872,644

T sen001

Maie 1
Dwcombat JOIO RUARY 200 BEF milion)

Maie F The repabimim alowancr abeve i lor delil imesiments &1 amaised cosl snly

{ix) Collateral

Bonds insumd by Bw govenmewnty and policy hinka held by the Srep amosed o RRART 586 1005 millen m gt 31 Desembed JOJE (B9

An estmate of the far value of collateral and other credit enhancements held agains: financial assets that are

overdue but not impaired s as {ollows:

Ll 2020
Estimate of the fair vakee of collateral and other oedit enhancements
held against — Loans and advances to customers 4,124 1.358
{x)} Movements of loans and advances and debt investments measured at amortised cost
Loans and advances measured al amotised cost:
2021
-Stage 2
[Lifetime ~Stage 3
Stage 1 ECL-not [Lifetime
(12-month credit- ECL-credit-
ECL) impaired) Impaired) Taotal
Balance as ai the beginning of the year 4517235 16,286 53.615 4,647,140
Net ehanges for the year 46B, 264 {4,154 {1,083) AB3.007
Transter to
- Stage 1 20,436 120,293} (143} =
= Stage 2 69.411) 59,966 1555} =
- Stage 3 {23,652) {10,451} 14,143 -
Write-offs - - {35,105} {35,105)
Balamce as at the end of the year 4,912,836 111,354 50,862 5,075,052
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f_a} Credit risk fronnnued
{x}  Movements of loans and advances and debt investments measured at amortised cost fconfinued)
Loans and advances measured at amodtised cost: (ranfinved)
2020
-Stage 2
(Lifetime ~Stage 3
=51age 1 ECL-not (Lifetime
{12-moanth credit- ECL-credii-
ECL) imgraired) imgaired) Total
Balance as a1 the begenaing of the year 4 DER 065 B0, 141 52.565 4,220,711
Met changes for the year 471,854 {8,929) 7.178 470,003
Transler to
= Stage 1 10882 {10,782) (100} i
—&iage 2 {31, 708) 32,735 {1,027 -
- Stage 3 (21.854) (16,875} 38,733 -
Write-offs - - (43,7341 143,734
Balance as at the end of the year 4517239 16,286 53,615 4,847,140
Debt inwestrments 8t amortised cost:
200
-Stage 2
(Lifetime =5tage 3
-Stage 1 ECL-not (Lifetime
(12-month cradit- ECL=credit-
ECL) impaired) _impaired) Total
Balamce as a1 the beginning of the year 1,044,826 a7 14,550 1,060,287
Net ehanges far the year 140,141 (B5&E) 9 48T 148,872
Transfer to
= Stage 1 = - - N
= 5tage 2 {1,647} 1,647 - -
= Stage 3 - - = !
Write-alls - - - -
Bakamce as at the end of the year 1,183,320 1,962 24077 1,208,355
2020
~Stage 1
{Lifetime =Stage 3
~Stage 1 ECL-pat (Lifetime
{12-month credit- ECL-credit-
. B Impaired) impaired) _ Total
Balanca as a1 the begenning of the year 916,206 S0 4,681 921,467
Met ehanges for the year 129,902 (29} 10,669 140,742
Trarsler to
- Stage 1 - - - -
= Stage 2 (a3 &30 - -
- Stage 3 (B62) = BB2 -
Write-alls - - {1,822 11,822)
Balamce as at the end of the year 1,044,826 9T 14,590 1,060,387
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{a} Cred Itt fiEk fronnnuedl

{xi)

Credit quality of financial instruments
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The staging analysis for loans and advances to customers and debt investments at amortised cost are disclosed in
note 22, note 23kl and BMalixjrespectively. The staging analysis for credit commitments and the expected credit
loss allowances of financal guarantees and loan commitments are disclosed in note 58{a} and 42 respectively. The
staging analysis for other financial instruments is as Tolloves:

m
Principal Expected credit los
Stage 2 Hage
[Liletime Sage 1 {Liferime Stage
Stage 1 EQLnot  (Lifetime Stage | ECLnct  [Lidetime
{12-manth credit-  ECL-credit- {13-manth tredie-  ECL-credd-
ECLl  impaired]  impaired) Tetal E(L)  impaired]  impaired) Toral
Balence with ceesral bask 553655 - - G535 - - - -
Bakances with banks and other francial
imatitem 80,651 - " 80,664 {367 - {1 (378
Fagements with harks and othe
firarcial intsatices 195,245 106 - 18e3m [L45%) ] = 28020
Amaurits held under niale igrements S2EAN - 140 336564 R FE] = [ty {4.363)
Debt immstments at FYTOC! £26,007 1136 1M EIR3sS (4700 1B (1,047} [LE=E
L]
Frisgpal Expectsd crdit loss
fnage 1 Stege
(Lifetira Stage 3 {Lifetme Stage 3
Stage 1 EClnot  (lifesme Sage 1 ECLnol  {Léstime
[Ri-month medt-  ECL-pedi- (12-manth pedit-  ECL-tredil-
ECL paited]  mpained) Tetal Bl impaedl  ipaired) Total
Balaaced with cenneal basky S35 08 - - 525118 - - - -
Batasces with benks and other fnancial
Irstitusiom 103,437 - n 103448 (166) - i m
Flacements with banks and other
firareial invitationg 1541 1,105 - 158 345 an * {376}
Amcurits held under reiale sgrements 1B6TH - 140 IB6ATH &3 - (183 el E
Debt imesements & FYTOC) 500011 1] i K 2915 - 1,058, la g4

Mate The halences dnclosed abowe do not mchuds imeiey recematde
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B0. Risk management icontinued

{B) Market risk

Market rsk refers 1 the rek of loss due to changes in observable market factors such as interest rates, exchange
rates, commadity prices and stock prices, resuling in changes in the fair value ar future cash flows of the Group’s
financial instruments. Interest rate and foreign exchange rate ase the two major market risk factors relevant to the
Group. The Group is exposed to market risk threugh the financial instruments under the trading book and banking
bogk. The financual imstruments and postions under the trading book are held for trading purposes or for the
purposes of hedging the risks arising from the trading book position, and these financial instruments can be traded
withaut any restriction. The fimancial instruments under the banking book are assets and labilities held by the Group
for determinable return with relative stable market value or for the purposes of hedging the risks, which indude
bath the Group's on-balance sheet and ofi-balance shest exposure,

iy Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange nsk anses from the holding of foregn currency assets, Habilities and equaty nems, and the foregn
curmrency and foreign currency derivative positions, which expose the Group to potential losses in the event of
unfavourable foresgn exchange rate movement. The fhinancial assets and liabilities of the Group are denaminated i
RMB, and the other currencies are mainky in USD and HED. The Group segregates the policy setting, execution and
superision of forelgn exchange risk management, and establishes a faresgn currency risk management governance
structure, This structure specifies the roles, responsibilities and reporting lines of the board of directoss, the board of
supervisors, senior management, designated committees and relevant departments of the Bank in the management
of foreign exchange risk. The Group s prodent i its foresgn exchange rsk appetite, and would not valuntarly teke
foreign exchange rsk, which suits the current devefopment stage of the Group. The current foreign exchange risk
management policws and procedures of the Group mest the regulatory requirements and the requarements of the
Group.

(1) Trading book

The Group has established a market rsk structure and system of the trading book, which covers exchange
rate rrik, to quantify the exchange rate ik of the trading book to facilitate centralised management, The
structure, process and method of exchange rate risk management of trading book are consistent with that of
the imterest rate risk management of trading book.

The Group adopts quantitative indicators such & exposure mdicator, market value a1 risk indicator [VaR,
covers interest rate, foreign exchange rate, and cormmoadity rsk factors), exchange rate scemano stress test
loss index, exchange rate sensitivity index, and cumulative fos index in its management of foreign exchange
risk. The management methods include delegation, setting limits, daily manitoring and continuous reparting,
({1
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(b)
(i}

Risk management icontinued

Market risk fcontimues

Foreign exchange risk jcomhnued)

2

£

Banking book

The Graup's fotesgn exchange risk under the banking book w centrally managed by the Head Office. The
Asset and Liabdity Management Department, as the treasurer of the Bank is in charge of the banking book
foreign exchange mk management. The |aternal Audit Department i respondible for auditing this. The
treasurer is responsible for managing the foreign exchange risk under the banking book with a prudent
approach and compliance with the regulatory requirements, and through approaches such as transaction
limits and adjustment of plans,

The banking book foreign exchange risk of the Group arises from the mismatch of the non-RMEB financial
assets and [abilities, The Group strngently monitoss its foreign exchange vk exposures to control it within
an acceptable range.

The Group has adopted foreign exchange sxpoiure analyiis, scenano ssmulabon analyss and stress lesting
tar the measurement and analysis of foreign exchange risk. The Group regularly measures and analyses the
foreign exchange risk exposure fluctuations, manitors and reports foreign exchange risk on a monthly basis
wnder the limit control framework, and adyusts the foreign exchange exposures based on the trend of Tomign
exchange rate movemenis to mitigate the foreign exchange risk on its banking book.

The Group continues 1o strengthen banking book exchange rate risk monitoring and authorisation
management of fimits to ensure that risks are controlled within a reasonable range.

Assets and labilities by aerfginal currency are shown as follows:

N
Equivadent in AME Muain ariginal currenty
RMB 5D HKD Other Total use HED

Bagets
Canhy and balances with central

banks 1T 57,919 1A, 462 2,787 566,265 anes 2261
Amands dut brom hanks and other

finencial institutians bB8ETI 108,887 12,162 8356 Taa078 17,085 14,878

Loars and adwances 1 customin 49516 156,000 141,605 M960  LAREN JEATE 173248
Fnangal investments including

dervatn financl assetil 2,037,147 108,859 20,348 ooar 2176515 17,055 14,893
{nther ety 254 488 11,972 10513 4,979 381,552 17,565 12.862
Total AL 038 ELERAES 03,110 61162 o800 B5.318 248 483
Liakiligies
Borimaing [rom central barks and

#mgunts due 1o banks and other

finsncisd instilutions 1,115,553 108 &M 4,804 8327 1,2585594 17,075 5,088
Depasits from rustomers 5830545 386,345 129,300 40,844 B 347078 54,348 158, 184
Frnanoal hatdaey a1 FYTRL

finchurding demative finanial

hatulities) 71,041 18,554 1,438 o 1,043 2.911 1,758
Dbt secuntses nausd 90,550 S0ATE 21 3,345 LR 1 I
Caher Ratelities 135,500 16.33% 8317 924 262,084 2,565 1,398
i oo PEPER okt O PR o FORTER. 2t SR .o T it
Ket position TET.795 3 57,940 g3 BES E2N =y 70,883
Het off-balence sheet position:

Credit commtments. (nata (i) FALEA .17 24,848 16345 L1956 1,168 25,309
Derivatives

= forward guechaced 455,207 451,41% B,554 16,188 R e 10,465

= orward vold (3537660 {38595 (10.657) {5,748 (804,338} 162,004} 13,0300

= Dk Cutrency option powon (33,522} 38,175 B 3,058 (52,280} 5,950 10
Tatal (23, 1o} 04441 12,088 3,455 18,106 14815 12.555)
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{h] Market risk continued)
{i¥ Foreign exchange risk (comtnued)
(3} Assets and Habilities by original currency are shown as follows: (continued)
2020
Equaalent in RMB Main aviginal curieny
AN usD HED Other Toldl L] HED
Hasets
Cank and balances with central
banks RD 285 1,52 21,448 15713 538 06 & T8 FLE L]
Amaonts dus brom banks and other
finencial institutions 430,786 14k 351 26,582 1507 615447 11,168 31,507
Lo and aances 1o customen a433820 193604 138,843 42818 47000 19,606 159,350
Fnanoal imestments fincluding
deérvatnee finsnoal asgetsh 1,055,095 g, 34 mne uit e ne 15,045 ErNEH
(eher asets 211,776 B9613 LER ] 3,895 314343 13,100 15,525
Total 1,504 343 555,295 121,680 19,530 B,3671.448 Ba80T 263,933
Liahilities
Boreoaang Trem central banks and
armgunts due 1o banks and cther
financtaf inslituion 1,223,006 60,134 LEREH] mmE 1,335 13,158 15,553
Depcsits from cusiomens 5075539 354012 158,218 W57 5638 5413 187,541
Frnancal Rabdaes 21 FYTRL
firechudiesy deriwative financial
lablities) B 16,952 1432 20 110,412 ERFH
Debit seourites Haied 191538 48,13 e 145 W sE 13
Oaher batslities 185522 15,552 B523 3100 112217 21384
T_nu! E._BS'?,!Iﬁ 335083 183,207 32,993 il':ﬁil'l,.':ﬂll B8
Het pasition £44 338 20,06 19,473 mar 70,354 L)
et off-balance sheet pesition:
Credil commet=ents (nate | 1.920.009 89,591 21,901 e eI 13,64 15958
Derivativer:
- fonward porchased EM 5 489, T 19,346 13505  1,0575%7 TeAnn 12830
= fonward wld E0TE WISTRY 1F3.067) 6723 @65 165,100 {15,480
- et CUATENCY opbion pasan (46,6761 20,570 18 458N 197133 3145 n
Total 3.9 B4 51 303 1693 162715 14453 7470
ot

(1] Loeddt commetments generally eapine belnie they se draven dan, therefore the abowe ret poaitinn does not represent the atuwe
ravh oulfigwn

(1] e meoervelde prd imdecent payable gl Sruncial ingingmenty ane mclyded m “ofher maeh ™ and “glker Balalibie” repeciively
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(b)
(i}

i)

Market risk fcontimues

Foreign exchange risk jcomhnued)

i3}

Assets and llabilities by original currency are shown as follows: (contnued)

Under the existing managed (loating exchange rate reqeme, the Group uses sentitiaty snalysis 1o rmeasure
the potential effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on the Group's net profit and equity. The
follewing table sets forth the redults of the Group's foreign exchange sk semiitivity analysis on the assets
and liabilities of all foreign currencies involved at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,

2021 2020
Change in fareign currency exchange rate Down by 1';!e l.I.p h}r 1%  Down b:r 1% Lip"i;f 1%
(DecreaseVncrease In net profit 79} T8 (2321 132
(Decrease)ncrease In equity (262) 262 (4021 an2

Actual changes in the Group’s net profit and equety resulting from increases or decreases i foreign exchange
rates may be different from the results of this sensitivity analyss.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate sk anses from unfavourable changes in interest rates and matenty profiles which may result in lass 10
the income and decline in market value of financal istruments and positions held by the Group,

i

Trading book

According fo the basic pinciples of risk management, the Group has built and continuously emproved the
market fisk management dystem, and established the management process of market risk dentification,
measurement, manioring, control and reporting, covering interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, commodity
and ather risks invalved in the trading book business. Under the market risk preference formulated by the
board of directors, the Group manages the 1rading book by clearly identitying, accurately measuring and
effectively managing the trading book market rick, to ensure that the trading book risk exposure is within an
acceplable range and achieves a reasonable balance of risk and retum, The Group constantly improves the
risk-adpested return level to maximese the shareholders' valuwa.

The tradmg book rmarket rek governance organisation structure deflines the responsibilitees, division af labour
and reporting lines of the board of directors, Risk and Capital Management Committee under the board of
directors, senior managemsent and relevant depariments of the Bank, and safeguasds the achievermnent of
management abjectives, The Market Risk Management Department i responable far the Group's trading
ook market risk, and undertakes the task of nsk policy formulation and management
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{h} Market risk continued)
{ii}  Interest rate risk (contmoed)
fry Trading baok (connhnued)

Accarding 1o the business practices and market risk governance argankation stiucture, the Group establishes
the trading book market nsk limits management system. A top level imit is set based on the msk appetite
determined by the board of directors, and s transmitted from top ta bottom level by level Within the
scope of their authonsation, management departments at all levels allocate and set limits according te nsk
charactesistics, product types and trading strategies, etc. The business departments carry out the business
according 1o the authorisation and limits requirements, and the supesvisory and administrative departments
at all levels continuously monitor and report according to the hmits management regulations.

Thae trading book market fisk management adopts the scale index, stop loss index, sensitivity index, value m
risk indes, stress test indes and other risk measurement indices as the imits index, and sets the limit value
by comprehensively considering the mik appetite, risk tolerance, business operation stralegy, risk refurn,
management conditions and other factors.

The Group wses valuation, sensitivity amalysis, value-at-risk analysis, pressure test and other measurement
methods to identify and quantify rak factors in the mterest rate market. The Group apphies the market
risk measurement model in its dally risk management and takes market risk measurement as the basis for
business planning, rescurce allocation, financial market business operation and rsk management

{2} Banking book

The Gioup has estabhshed the governance and managerment framework accasding 16 the mterds rate nsk
management policy for the banking book, which specifies the rofes, responsibilities and reporting lines of
the board of directors, senior mansgement, designated cormmittees and relevant departments to ensure the
effectiveness of interest rate msk management. Interest rate risk of the banking book is centrally managed by
the Asset and Lishility Mansgement Department. Internal Audit Department i rsponsibde for suditing this

The Group has mainly adopled scenarie smulaton analysis, re-pricing exposufe analbysis, durateon analysis
and stress testing for the measurernent and analysis of interest rate risk under the banking book. Stress test
is a form of scenano simulation used 1o assess the changes in net interest income at risk and economac value
of equity Indicatars when thene s an extreme fluctuation in Interest rates. The Group conducts stress test on
interest rate risk of banking book on a monthly basis, The results of stress test throughout the year of 2021
showed that the interest rale risk of banking book of the Bank was generally stable with variows indicators
staying within the sl limits.

The preference of the Group in respect of the interest rate msk in the banking book s neutrally prudent.
Based on the risk measurement and monitoring results, the Group will propose the correspondng risk
management palicy a1 the regular meetings ansgd through the reporting mechanism of the Assets and
Liabilities Management Committee. Ascets and Liabllities Management Department is responsible for its
imptementation. The kay measures for risk managemant include the adjustmant in business volume, duration
structure and interest rate structure of on-balance sheet asset and liability business and the utilisation of off-
balance sheet derivative to offset mik exposure,

The Group measures and monitors interest rate risk of banking bock through the asset and lability
management syilem, Mapor models and parameler assumplions used in the measurement are verified
independently by the Risk Management Department before official use and reviewed and verfied regularky
after official use.
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{b} Market risk fcontimued)
{ii}  Interest rate risk (contnmued)

The follewing fables indicate the expected next repricing dates for maturity dates whichever are
earlier) for assets and labilities at the end of the reporting period.

]
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o1
1 manths
o less Crver Nan-
{include Imonths  Ower 1 year Over interest
Tatal overdue] tolyear  tof years 5 yeans bearing
AsEts
Cash and balances with cenfral
banks 566,965 553,655 - - - 13,310
Amounts dwe from banks and ather
finanessl matitubons 748,078 723,941 63,581 10,507 49 -
Loars and advances fo customen
{nate (1)) 5,325,501 2,1346M 2,750,245 376,357 54,238 -
Finarsial inveatments (sncuding
derwative financiad assets) 2,176,515 159,659 268,345 834,079 195,611 #8817
Other avsets (note (s} 181,952 - - - - 381,952
Total assets 9,249,011 3,571,926 3102075 1,270,543 54,898 444,075
Liabilities
Borroweing from centrad bards and
amounis due ta banks and otk
financial institutons 1,238, 5%4 1,081,661 149,900 631 T2 -
Depotsts from custamars 6,347.078 4820271 718,509 B4, 755 L] 3,195
Financial habdities at FYTPL
{including derreatie fimanoae
abikting) 91,042 1418 2075 8177 158 79,205
Lease Labiies 13,812 1,042 2,989 8,153 1,628 -
Debt securities issued 444 541 96,239 220,608 BR.9T4 38,720 -
GOther kabdities {nete (il 248272 B4 - - - 248,188
Total liabilities 8,383,340 6,000,725 1,054,081 916,370 41,576 330,583
Assat-liability gap B65.681  [(2428.790) 2,008,094 EERTE AR Fr 113,40
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{h} Market risk fcontimued)
{ii}  Interest rate risk (contnmued)

(3 The follewing fables indicate the expected next repricing dates for maturity dates whichever are
earlier) for assets and Fabilities at the end of the reporting period, (continued)

Fir]
3 months
or less Ot Non-
(nelude Imonths  Over 1 yem Orver imerest
Total cverdae) ol year 105 years 5 years bearing
Asiety
Cash and balances with cenfral
banks 538,206 525,118 - - - 13,088
Amounts dwe from banks and ather
finanesal matitubsons 515,447 534,010 Br2113 3,540 384 -
Loars and advancei fo customen
(e (i) &, T4, 10 1,861,076 24595358 365,315 11,953 -
Finarsial invedtments (snchading
dervative financial assatsy 2,084,710 351,146 364,495 181,707 524,737 67,625
Other aasets [note () 31B.383 - - = - 318,383
Total assets B,361 448 3261350 2953066 1.150,862 597074 190,095
Liabilities
Borroweing from centrad bards and
amounts dus ta banks and olbses
financial institutions 1,335.313 852312 351,861 14,152 3619 13,329
Depeasts from custamars 5628336 4387206 359,077 638,419 iy 1332
Financial habdities a1 FYTPL
{including dervatie fimancial
Eabilties) oA AED 5,336 8,357 130 95,119
Leage Labibdiss 14,242 1,015 2 805 8,577 1,845 -
Debt securites isued 84,1545 110,388 105,553 120,655 1,559 -
Other llabfities (note (il 198,575 763 15 - 4 197,783
Total liabilities 7,631 054 5,452,155 1,065,747 790,970 13,449 309573
Asiet-liability gap 730,354 (2,000,805 1887 1% 360,692 583,625 BR.523
booes: il Foor o and advsors 10 CuooveTL, B 3 months of (e caegony wchedey oveidue amouns @5 an 31 Decembe 3031

anid 31 Decembee 2020, net of alowances for anparmien loomss. Overdue Fsounts repecent iosrs of which the wivole o
pari of the pincipals or mieesis weie overdue.

] interest recetwoble and interest paypsble of linenoal isbruments e mduded & “cther anets” and “other Lib&bes”
ripectily

The Group uses sensitivity analysis to measwre the potental effect of changes v interest rates on the
Group's net nterest mcome and equity. The following table sets forth the results of the Group's interest rate
sensitivity analysis on the assets and labilities as at 31 Decermber 2021 and 31 December 2020

2021 2020
Change in interest rates {in basis points) Upby 25 Down by 25 Upby25  Down by 25
(Decreaselincrease in net intefest meome {3,605) 1,605 {3_266) 31,266
(Decreaselincrease in equity {6,B30) 6,927 15,3731 5444

The above-mentioned interest rate sensitivity analysis shows the changes in net interest income and eguity
in the next 12 months unded the assumption of changes in mierest rates @ the above table. As the actial
sitwation and assumptions may be different, the actual changes in the Group's net interest income and
equity caused by the increase or decrease in interest rates may be different fram the results of this sensitivity
analysis.
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{c)

Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk i3 the risk that the Growp s not able to obtain sufficient funds a1 a reasonable cost and in a timedy
mannes to deal with the apprecation of asset growth, to meet its matunty obligations, or to perform other payment

oblgations.

According 1o the bquidity nsk management policy, the Group segregates the policy setting, execution and superawsson
of hguidity risk management, and puls m place a governance framework which defines the roles, responsibilities and
reparting lines of the board of directors, the board of supervisors, senigr management, designated commitiees and
relévant departmients to endute the effectreness of the lquidity mk management. The board of directors takies the
ultimate responsibility for liguidity rsk management, ensures the Group can effectively identify, measure, monitor
and control liquidity risk and is responsible for determining liguidity risk level which the Group can tolerate. The
Risk and Capaal Management Committes under the board of directors discharges responsibilites i liquidity risk
management on behalf of the board of directors. The board of supendsors s responsible for the superision and
evaluation of the performance of the board of directars and senicr management in the liguidity nsk management
and reports to the general meeting of shareholders: The senior management & responsible for the liquidity risk
management work and develeps a timely onderstanding of changes in lquidity riskes, and reports the tame to
the board of directors. Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCOL, wnder the authonty of the senior management,
exercises the corresponding liquidity risk management functions. The Assets and Liabilities Management Departrment
of the Head Cffice is a day-to-day working body of ALCD, and is respensible for warious concrete management work
including formulating policies and procedures relating to liquidity risk management and conducting qualitative and
guantitative analysis of ligusdity risk. The internal Audit Depastment of the Head Cffice conducts comprehensive
audit e the Group's liguidity risk management

The Group is pradent in managing its liguidity risk, which suits its current dovelopmant stage. The Group™s existing
liquidity risk management policies and systems meet regulatory requirements and its own management needs

The Greup's houidity risk management |s coordinated by Head Office with branches acting i concert. The Asse
and Liability Management Department acting as the teasurer of the Group is in charge of daily liquidity risk
management. Accordeg to & prudent basis under regulatory requirements, the treasurer 4 conducting centralised
liquidity managemant through limits management, budget control, initiative dett management as well as intesnal
fund transfer pricing.

The Group measures, monitors and dentifies liquidity risk by short-term reserves as well as medium and leng-term
structures. It monitors the limit indicators closely at fued ntervals.

The Graup regularly conduwcts stress testing 10 assess its liquidity risk resistance undes extreme ciscurmstances, Except
for the annual stress testng required by the regulatory authonties, the Group conducts monthly stress testing on
the higuidity risk of local and foreign currencies. The Group sets up liguidity contingency plans and conducts liguidity
contingency drlls to continwously improve its capabifity to handle any liquidity crsas.
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{c)

Liguidity risk jcantimued)

Analysis of the Group's msets and habilities by contractual remaining matursty s as follows
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o I
ter Ater After
Tmenth  Imonts 1pear
Repayatie Withn  butwithin  Butwithin bt wittin ver
endemand  menth  Imenth Ty Syean Syen defae O Total
Cieh oo baarcm with ointral birks st 1) 79,18 - - - - . LIk Ft ]
Benonri chos From barks and oiher fingncial
inrtistion e BLEET Wi 505 o L] . = T94,078
Loars vl adearcms o st nm S5 188 ERARY 13N 1 MTER 1M5esl - WER  RuSEN
Fotirncial ivrstrmiest. ind deervidove Frurcud
ety {ocie G A0 Lt W L L 1% LH B o LITESIS
- Frumnckl pvesteeh & PiTRL jnduding
gerisgvve Frasgal gty 405 1,569 35 BN 13 FLFL ELE - ms
- Dbt revestrents o arortied eout & BB 1B mEd 4B s P o oEs
= Do rvwettrteds of PYTOCI . 12312 17806 T5EE IR TS - = REES
~ Equty investmencs desgraiad & FYRO0) = < = = i L ] = ]
ithir et |t (vl 103 =5 o4z 13545 WH L L] & FUAL EL ] B
Vol asseny I LMSET MBS TNESH 1SS Lasian LN LT T T
Sorrzwing b contral ey and acrn
dle hatis and oot frarcl emttors. BIUOST ST 1T 153550 15380 m = 1790584
Pieperits s astoiners [t () ST LSO MEdSE TS BT 197 - - G
Francial it a1 FVTRL [rchding
dernarg Frresl ubslted) P 13300 11,70 1878 nEw wm - - 81,048
Leae Rabsing - ' ] 5] 158 B15 142 - - 13812
Db weeorstien sand - 8 MM EIMT O BIN W - -
Ot kst e [wl I FIAL:] 15,455 pOR BAM i - - am
Total lubiitie AWEM WS SEBS 110UT wSAEE it - - A
[Berilong patition WIS BEEe  SELIE 130041 LIEAR) s FITE 1)
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(e} Liguidity risk fontimed

b0
Kb Kb K
Tmeeth 3 monlhy 1
Fepayatin Wik bawthn  bewin b e
o desuand Tmovty  Jmeethy | Epean Bpan hldab (et Texal
Cocsh i by with omvral il ot (B0 50580 - - . . . A5 . 53106
Aennriss dhe From Banks and pihes Ssanra
Fitiston nmE & BN 455 - . = ST
Lioare ard achvines 89 cxstomast (P R < " O {1 TR 1 T S -0 13 B P 1= 1 - (ER TR
Ftaeidl sty i dirrvition fruncal
ety acte (0 SA8H T8 135,457 L L 5508 1T LS LTI
- Fruncul ivestmenty & VTR induding
derisive rsiecal el A s By PLFH A s - HIESE
~Diebe. rvvesimenty af morined poul - m 3,57 s wnr il - (1 S
= Dbt ivesiments at HTOC] - AL wnr B B 1] - b HLE
- oty inveatmens desigrated &t FYROC1 - - - - - - AL - 118
Difhint gtz | mode (i ns 21 LRy ] EAL] NG 53 130006 m EE
Tots! ety AT ipsiME MAN  TEOEe  Lhal  lmEE e [
Sorrowng o el bank and amcurty
dhoe 12 bk and other rurcal rdtatorn. SLESS ] 17158k 5146 Wi k111 - - L
Despeorets From cvdomens (rote (501 1T AR 2 00,05 LT 0 . - NEIm
Frsancial Eabdites at VTP fincleding
derirtve runcal Ltk 14354 &1 s g i B - - 110417
e i - wm i 1505 ATH 185 - - 14
Db st tsand - 61,167 5N WS wASe 158 - - 1%
Dt bt gt [ am Lk 15,61 150 EEs &1 - - 198575
Total lubilitien A 3R B RS W LT HIEES L] - - TR0
[Shertlieng pouition Winmem T o4 SELDIE LSIAN ORBML ETRE War s
Motes

L] For b and balinoey wilh contral hanksy, the amounts wath indefrité maturibies represend slabetory depaonit resssve andl Facel depont

balance

(o] Fot Tinandial inersents a1 PYTPL eduded in finangial Tt ¥ dates da not he Gifcup’s mbennen 1o koid then
18 MLty

{mij D s from o 4 thal are repaysble on o d includs d time deposns which are pending {or Csiomes’ miciee

il Interest seceivable and inferest payable of finsncul mtnuments s indoded in “other amets” nd “other kabilitie* negpectly.
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The followsng table prowdes an analyis of the contractsal undiscownted cash flow of the non-derivative financial
assets, financial labslities, laase Labilities and gross loan commitments of the Group as at the end of the reporting
penod, The Group's expected cash flows on these instruments and lease Babilitses may vary significantly from this

analysis.
i
M A Aty
Imosth  Imosthy | year
Carvping Fepapable Within  butwithin  betwithin bt within O
amaunt Toul ondemind  Tmonth 3 month 1pea §peany Syeirt  Indefinite  Overdue
Hon-derisative Engecal anes
Cielh ] b weth coviral
by SRS Bams T - - - - - W -
Bencury Ao from hieks ded othet
Fruncl imtitution HENE E0E A HLH LU [1FE ] K] i - -
Lo and sduem i oemen, SI255T1 6806 um MATHE O 18aNe LELIE LM - 135
Finarcial wesimanty LN 1T 1715 50,130 LIAL 1M BT I nen m
oo s g AT METH 35500 ms A0 il | E N P 1 141 -
= Dt vt o amorined
oot (AL ] - 1508 1140 154,553 Ll T - il
et rmyeyineri af ATOC) g TEM - LRI Ful.cH B mIME E - -
- Fyaty imvestmat; desrted
HATEE 5355 (1] - - - - - - £ -
Dt s e 1 BLI 585 174 1 148 5 180 m
Toul BRI ILTELSER IO 1NETE SIREM VHLAN QEBG) 1REM O HEWT MW
Hon-derisutive Eruscial Rabakses
ind b bl
Berrowng rorm teniral banks ind
oty Gom g barks and pthe
Fruncil imsbttions THEEH LR MR 550 (FELL 156000 15,668 Lin - -
Depersts ham cantomems BMIME  GENOES A5 NERR AW Ml E&T 030 L5t - -
Fenancial fisbirbes at FYTRL 1 ki 1% 16,408 1 4 [Lf0] L1 = -
Lo hatnitty 1M 15,087 - in i 1 BET am - -
Tt socanities moed L 5 - 100 FoLE R A L &1 - -
Other habitrs 156,241 15881 [LR1E] 18 1504 it B A6 it - -
Tl ENEET  paade A5 ToiEd RaLTA 1MIMD LHAdeT LA - -
o b pomestrenty - LIBT3 - - - - - - -
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(e} Liguidity risk fontimed
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oien and b omomess. ATRME ROBETH I REME IS LT LTSS LSO = 14,407
Tl rmmesty Tt 15E8E 5. TEhES 153314 W78 0GOS A (R (1]
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Mole:  nterest secrivable and intetest payable of finarcsal esatuments s mduoded in “other sisen” and “cther kahiities” segeectoely
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(d) Operational risk

Cperational nsk anses from the loss due to deficency in internal procedures, staffing or IT structure, as well as
external events which have effect on eperation, including legal resk but not strategy risk and reputation risk.

Dunng the reporting petiod, throwgh stepping up the identification, evaluatian and monitoring of operational rigk
key areas, and by focusing on process, policy, employee system, and existing problems of critical contral segments,
the Group further improves the nik management framewerk and method, appraisal and sssessrment mechankm,
and strengthens economic cagetal allocatson mechanism with the goal of enhancing the atality and effectiveness
ol eperational risk's mansgement af the Growp. All mapr ndexes meet the requitements af the Groug's nsk
preference,

In view of the challenges from intemal and extesnal operations and management, the Group will, based on its nsk
appetite, cantmue 1o upgrade s nsk management capabilities and strengthen operational risk monitarmg and
cantrols, in order to prevent and reduce operational risk losses.

(e} Capital management
The objectives of the Group’s capital management are ta:

- Keep capital adequacy ratios at reasonable bevels, sately capatal-specific requlatory provisions and palicy
requirements on an ongoing basis, and maintain a solid capital base in support of its business expansion,
social responubility and strategic planning mplementation to achieve a comprehensive, coordinated and
sustainable growth;

- Comply with capetal regulatosy requirements, perform procedures to assess internal capital adequacy, openly
disclose information related 1o capital management, fully cover all risks and ensure safe operation of the
entire group;

- Put in place an economic capital-centred banking value management system by fully applying various risk-
specfic quantitatve deliverables, enhance decision-making processes and management application regimes,
strengthen cagital restramt and capital incentive mechanisms, reinforce capabilities to facilitate customer
pricing and decision-makeng, and increase capital deploymant etficiency,

- Reasonably use all kinds of capital instruments, continue to upgrade capital swengths, improve capital
structures, raive capital quality, lower capital costs, and create the best returns for shareholders

The Group manages its capital structure and adjusts it based on the econemic condition and the nisk characteristics
of its operatians, To maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Group may modify its prafit distnbution policy,
issue of repurchase shares, additional tier-1 capital instruments, eligible tier-2 capital mstruments, and convertible
debentures. The Group's management regularly monitors capital adequacy ratvo under an approach stipulated by the
CRIRC, The Group and the Bank submit required imformation 1o the CBIRC every quarter,
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Risk management icontinued

Ca 5] ital ma nagement jconfmuedl

The Group's capital adequacy ratis cabculation covers the Bank and fs subsidsanes. The Bank's capital adequacy ratio
caleulatron covers all branches of the Bank. As at 31 December 2021, the Group's subsidiaries that were waithin the
scope in respect of capital adequacy ratio calculation incleded: CWB WILE, CMBICHC, CMBFLC, CMFM, CMBWM,
ClGNA & CMAM and CMB Europe 5.A.

Since 1 lanuary 2013, the Group has calculated its capital adequacy ratie in accordance with the CRIRC s
Adminstratree Measures on the Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional] and other relevant regulations. Gn 18
Apnl 2014, the CBIRC approved the Bank to adopt the Advanced Messurement Approach. Within the appeoved
scope, the Bank could calculate corporation and finanoal institutions msk exposure using the Foundation Internal
Ratings-Based Approach, retal risk exposure using the Advanced Internal Ratings-Based Approach, market risk
using the Internal Model-Based Approach, and operational risk wsing the Standardised Measurement Approach. At
the same time, the CRIRC implemented a transition period for commercial banks that were approved to adopt the
Advanced Measurement Approach. During the transition period, commercial banks should wie both the Advanced
Measurement Approach and other approaches to calculate capital adequacy ratios, and comply with the capital floor
requirermients,

The Growp's capital management focuses on the capital adequacy ratic management. The capital adequacy
ratla reflects the Group’s capability of sound operations and risk resistance, The Group®s capital adequacy rato
management's objective is to carefully determine capital adequacy ratio, as legally required by regulators, according
te actual risk profifes and with reference to capital adequacy rato levels of globally leading market peers and the
Group’s aperating conditsons,

The Group adopts the scenanio simulation and stress testing methods to forecast, plan and manage its capstal
adequacy ratic with considerations of factors such as strategic development planning, business expansion s1atus,
and risk movement trends.

Use of derivatives

Derivatives include forwards, swaps and option transactions undertaken by the Growp i the foreign exchange and
intereat rate markels.

The Group enters into interest rate, foreign currency and other linancial dersvative transactions for treasury business
and its assets and labilites management purpose. The Group's derwvatives can be divided into financial instruments
that are held for cash flow hedging purpese and that are at fair value through prafil or loss,

The Group formulates appropriate hedging strategies and uses proper tools in light of the rsk profile of interest
rates o foreign exchange rates associated with its assets and habslities, as well a5 115 analysis and judgerment
regarding future movements of interest rates or foreign exchange rates.

The Group s exposed to foreign exchange ek when assets or lishilties are denominated in forelgn currencies. Such
risk can be offset through the use of foreign exchange forwards or foreign sxchange options.
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In cash flow hedges, the Group wses interest rate swaps 43 hedging instruments 1o hedge the imterest rate rsks
arising from RMB loans and interbank assets portiolios.
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The fallewing tables prowde an analysis of the notional amounts and the comresponding fair values of denvatives
of the Group by remaining maturities at the end of the reporting pericd. The notional amounts of the derivatives
indicate the transactson volume that has not been delivered at the end of the reparting peried, and do not represent

the amounts at risk.

2
Hational amaunts with remaining life Fair value
Between Between
Within 3 manths 1 year Cryer
Imenths  and 1 year  and 5 years 5 yeary, Tatal Auets  Liabilithes
Derivatives at fair value through
profit o lois
Interast rate detivaties 51612 BRIETE  1.240,065 4966 1635522 11,81 (11,974
Intirest rate Swigd 565,813 823,679 1,240,365 4966 2634741 11,831 [11,974)
Bond futures m = - - amn - -
Bond opthons 1,348 - - - 1,388 - -
Curmency dechatives 47,081 06,830 19615 1062 1184508 10,041 (13,96&)
Ferwards 26,577 14,373 1,517 1,052 43,519 985 {164)
Feenign machange vwaps 485,140 357,685 20,086 - BEZON1 1.530 (7.048]
Fuatures 587 1157 - - 1.744 - -
Dptions 134,777 133,635 B012 - 176,424 1,526 [6,754]
Other dermaties 134,290 5.4k4 m = 139,931 147 {1237
Equity aptians putchised 62,094 sa7 - - B3,001 44 -
Equity optians witten 62,054 507 - - 53,001 - 265]
Commaday irading vvaps 10,001 1475 &0 - 13,536 1,128 {751
Eequity swaps 4 135 31 - 393 - {221)
Cath flow hedge derivatives
Infedest rate denvatmes - - 1,583 o2 3,565 L1 -
Imlifesd rirle Svemhi - - 2,883 T2 1585 4B -
Detivatives managed in
cenjunction with financial
instruments designated at FYTPL
[nfprest rate derivateery 151 &7 581 - 1.739 - 17
Interest rale sveaps 191 7 581 - 1,739 - n
Camency dertatives - Ti 1,360 - 1432 - 84)
Foreign excharge swaps = T2 IEﬂ - 1.432 _i= tlf]_
Total 1348004 133659 1M Em ET20  35ET.B07 23,290 (27,282]
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{f} Use of derivatives jcontmues)
—
Figtianal amounts with remasnng life Fair vatug
Hetween Hetween
Within 3 manti | year Over
Tmantts and 1 year  2ed § yean 5 yoar, Total fasety Liahilities
Derivatives at fair value through
profit o loss
Indentst rate derivabives SE1B31  1.2313% 1499175 1913 3296315 12.568 (12.327)
Interest rate swags 61,502 1223977 148110 1m3 3287522 12,559 (12,318)
Bend onvaids - - 65 - 5 B 3
Bond futures 4 - - o8 - f
Hond optiom 10 8410 - - 630 3 6
Cumency detisatives 630,008 614,20% 17,309 350 1,285,102 33,092 (36,220
Forwardy 58,155 31,280 1,457 1703 S350 1,681 (1.468)
Fermign encharge swaps &40,943 AT7 ey 12,189 867 531,897 20,063 (20,138)
Futures 7 05 - - 123 = i
Dptions 130,503 104,521 3,068 - 138,892 11,344 (14,623
Otthaer ddmitios 5004 138,635 il . 145,150 1,538 {1,451
Equity opions purchased 42z 7,353 - - 67,841 450 -
Erquity optians witien 458 67,353 - - 67,841 - ()
Commadiy frading nwaps 4542 158 631 - 3,508 1,048 15871
Cath flow hedge derivatives
Intesest rate dervatives ¥y 1,030 18n a1s 4,752 - (15
Interest i Dwahs 1 1,060 1an &19 4,152 - [15)
Detbiatines managed in
conjunction with financial
instruments designated at FYTFL
Injeiesl rate derivatvis 4n 203 1,558 - 1,738 - 47
Interest rate swaDs an ] 1,358 - 1,738 - [an
Cutrendy deriatives - 1,493 4 = 1573 8 n
Foreign encharge vwaps - 1,459 T4 - 1.513 &2 m
Total 1198276 1988674 1571418 T3 4MSEND 47m (50,061)

There was no ineffective portion of cash flow hedges during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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{f} Use of derivatives rcontmues)
The credit nsk weighted amounts in respect of these dervatives are s follows:
[ o 2021 _2020
Defauly rk weighted assets of counterparties 3,627 9,644
Interest rate derivatives 139 266
Currency dervatives 3,048 5574
Other defivatives a40 3,804
Credit valustion adjustment risk weighted sasets 2,382 8011
Tatal 6,009 15,655

Mot Smew D010, e Gicup Ras cabtulated the exprare of derovatsss accoring 16 the Motice of the Measres on Delmdt Rik Wesghied ddiet of
Countepartin. o Reipeit of Dersiateeri and The feléled equiemants ndust by the CBINC. Theis amounti hive 1dken the wlilect of lileial
Fetig atfangermenti inle sctounl. The fek weighted amouhis s espedt ol detvetion o caloulited a scdordaice with the Adminntiative
Abrariurii on Cageis| of Cosrspina Banks (Proviskimnal] mdued by the CHIRC, The amounis satfen the siope appndved by the CHIRE v dipmil
J0b4 are calnulined g the sl Rsngs-Sased Approach, and the Weighted Appicach i adopled Do Cafcudaie Shime that aie not sligble
Yot the beveenal Ratinigs-Based approach

{g) Fair value infarmation
{i} Methods of determining fair value of financial instrurments

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosure requirements stipulate the measurement of far values,
for both financal and non-financial assats and liabilities.

The Group has established & control framewerk to govern the measurement of fair values. This includes a valuation
team that takes the responsbility for oversesing all significant fair valve measurements induding the three fevels of
falr valwes,

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
informatson, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to delermine fair value, then the valuation team
awsesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valustion meets the
requirements of IFRSs, including the chassification of levels in the fair value herarchy.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a lsbility, the Group uses observable markel data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different bevels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techrsgues.

The following tables present the fair value inlormation and the Lair value hierarchy, at the end of the cument
reparting perind, of the Group’s assets and liabilties which are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at each
reporting date. The level m which fair value measurement i3 categorised i determined by the level of the fair value
hiararchy of the lowest level of input that & significant to the entire fair value measurement. The levels are defined
s Tollows:

= Lewswl 1 inputs: wnadjusted guated prices in active markels that are observable at the measurement date for
sdentical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2 inputs: other than quoted prices included in level 1 inputs that are either directly or indirectly
chservable for underlying assets or liabilities inputs;

- Lewel 3 inputs: inputs that are unabiervable for assets or Habilities
Thie Group recognees transfers amang levels of the fair value hierarchy when they occwt,

The Group's assets and liabilities measured at fair vabue are measured on a recurning basis. The Group does not have
ansets nor liabilities measuned at fair value on a non-recurring basis
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(g) Fair value infarmation (coatnued)

(i} Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The tables below analyse financial srstruments, measured at fair value at the end of the reperting period, by the
levels in the fair value hierarchy

2021
- Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assals
Financial irvestments measured at FYTPL 20,517 292,845 4,879 318,245
— Dbt securities 19,102 127,411 373 146, BEG
= Long position in precicus metal contracts 102 = - 102
- Equity investments 1,180 2 727 4,509
= Fund imvestments 133 161,865 e 162,770
- Wealth management products - 2,396 - 2,196
- Qither - 1175 7 1.182
Financial investments dessgnated at FVTPL 1,022 28,856 - 29,878
- Debt securntios 1,022 28,856 - 29,678
Derivative financial assets - 23,350 - 23,3590
Loans and advances to customers at FWTPL - - 7,281 7,281
Debt investments at FYTOL) 127,847 508,191 - 636,038
Loans and advances (o customers at FYTOCI - 431,20 56,713 488 004
Equity invesiments designated at FVTOCI 2.269 = 4,726 6,595
Total 151,655 1,284,577 73,599 1,509,831
Limbhlities
Financial liabities held for trading 16,822 185 - .07
- Financial labilives refated 1o precous metal 16,406 - - 16,406
= Short position on bonds 416 185 - 611
Financial liabilities designated at PVTPL 19,569 19028 8,147 45,744
- Placement of precscus metal Trom financial
Institutions 11.596 - - 11,5596
= Certificates of deposit nsued - ary - 377
= Debt securities ssued 1.600 - - 1.600
— Oither 373 18,651 8147 27.amn
Doreeative financial liabilities - 272682 - 27,282
Total 36,401 46,495 8,147 91,043
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(g) Fair value infarmation (coatnued)
(i} Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (cantinued)
2020
Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Tatal
Agsats
Financsal ireestmenis measured at FYTPL 25 283 436,470 2,713 dBa dB6
= Dbl securitiog 24,267 121,780 456 145,503
- Long position in precous metal centracts 46 - - G5
= Equity investments B3IE L] 1,738 3400
= Fund imvestments Bd 136,225 518 136,832
- Wealth management products - 1,259 - 1,259
= Mon-standard assets = Bills - 175,303 - 175,303
- Oither - 1,063 - 1,063
Financial investmenis designated at FYTPL 1618 28,625 14 31,257
- Debit securties 2,618 28,625 14 11,257
Derweative financial assets - 47,272 - 47271
Loans and advances to customers at FYTPL - - 6,856 6,856
Dbt investments a1 FYTOLC) 109,282 407,27 - 316,533
Loans and advances to customers at FyTOCI - 33.0M0 44,289 375,359
Equity investments designated at FYTOCI 2,075 - 5,064 7,139
Tatal 134,258 1,250,708 58,936 1,448,502
Liabilities
Financial liabidties held for rading 20,491 499 = 20,950
= Finarnicial labilities related to precous metal 20,361 - - 20,361
- Short pesition on bonds 130 499 - 629
Financial liabities designated at FVTPL 15,503 18,209 5,649 39,261
- PMlacement of precsous metal fram financial
institution 1,589 - - 1,588
- Certificates of depaosit isswed - 605 - B05
- Debt securities miued 13,914 - - 13,914
= Other - 17,60 5645 23,253
Derevative Tinancul liabihtes - 50,061 - 50,061
Tatal 35,9594 68,769 5,648 110,412

Dunng the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no significant transfers of financial instruments
between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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(g) Fair value information (continued)

{ii}  Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (continuesd)

(1) Basis of determining the marker prices for recurring fair value measurements categorised as Level |

Bloomberg etc. are used for financial instruments with quoted prices in an active market,

2} Valuation technigues used and the qualitative and quantitative information of key parameters for
recurring fafr value measurement categorized as Level 2

Fair value of RMB denominated bonds whose value 15 available on China Bond websie on the valuation date
B measured using the latest available valuation results

Fair value of foreign ourrency bonds without quoted prices in an active market, is measwred by using the
comprehensive valuations issued by Bloomberg, e1c,

Fair value of foreign exchange forwards contracts in dervative financial assets is measured by descounting the
dilferences betwoen the contract poices and marke? luture prices af the loteign exchange fonwards contracts
The drcount rates used are the applicable RMB denominated swap yeld curve as at the end of the reporting
petiod.

Fair value of option confracts such as horeign exchange options, commodity options and equity optons is
measured by wsing the Black-Scholes model, based on market data such as risk-free interest rate, underlying
market prices and price volatility of foroign exchange, commodities, and oquity contract, The above market
data used are quoted price in an active market, provided by Bloomberg, Refinitiv, Wind and other market
information providers

Fair value of interast rate swaps, foreign exchange swaps, and non-gption commedity contracts in dervative
financial assets s measured by disoounting the expected receivable or payable amounts under the assumiption
that these swaps had been terminated at the end of the reporting period. The discount rates used are the
refated currency denominated swap yield curve as 8t the end of repanting period

Observable quoted poce in market is used a3 the basis of determining the value af investiment funds.

The fair value of loans and advances to customers at FVTOL! in Mainland China is measured based on the
rate of rediscounted bills announced by the Shanghai Commercial Paped Exchange Corporation Lid. The
Group uses 10-day average discount rate as the basis for calculating the value of discounted bills, The fair
value of leans and advances to customers al FVTOC! outside Mainland China is measured by dscounted cash
flaw approach, The discount rates used are determined by factors such as credin rating of the loan customer
provided by 5&F, Moody's or Fitch, custormer industry, term 1o matunty of the loan, loan currency and the
mauer cradil spread

The fair value of non-standard bills at FVTPL in Mainland China is measured based on the rate of
rediscounted bills announced by the Shanghai Commercial Paper Exchange Corpodation Ltd, The Group uses
10-day average discount rate as the basis for calcufating the value of discounted bills.

The fair value of certificates of deposit lssued is measured by wsing the comprehensive valuations on
Bloomberg

The fair walue of other financial liabilities designated at FVTPL is measured based on the net asset values of
the funds, determined with reference to observable (quoted) prices af underlying imestment portfolo and
adjustments of related expenses.
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(g) Fair value infarmation (coatnued)
(i}

basis {cantinued)

(3

measurements categorised as Level 3:
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Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring

Valuation techniques used and the qualitative infarmation of key parameters for recurring fair value

Fair walue
as at
31 December
2021 Waluation technigues Unobservable inputs
Equaty investrments dedignated B73 Market approach Liguidity discaunt, nsk-
at FVTOC! ad|usted discount rate
Equity inwestments designated 3,853 Met asset value approach  Met assets, liguidity
at FYTOLC! discount
Loans and advances to customers 7.281 Discounted cash flow Risk-adjusted discount
at FVTPL approach rate
Loans and advances to cusiomers 56,713 Discounted cash flow Risk-adjusted discount
at FVTOC! approach rate
Financial investments measured
at FVTRL
= Equity inyestmenis 3,491 Market approach Liguidity discount
~ Equity investments 12  Market approach (Pnce-to-  Ligquidity discount
Book Ratio)
= Bquity investmenis 209  Discounted cash flow Risk-adjusted discownt
appraach rate, cash llow
= Equity investments 15  Net asset value approach  Met assets, lquidity
discount
= Debt securities 373 Discounted cash flow Risk-adjusted discount
approach rate
= Fund imvestments 767  Met fund value approach Mat assets
— Fund irmvestmenis 5  Market approach Lbguidity discount
= (Mher 7 Market approach Liguidity discount
Financial habilities designated G664  Market approach Lequidity discount
at FVTPL
Financial labilities designated T.483  Met fund value approach Met assets, lguldity
at FYTRL discount
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Fair value information jcennnued)

Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (cantinued)

i3

Valuation techniques used and the qualitative infarmation of key parameters for recurring fair value

measurements categorised as Level 3: (continued)

Fair wakue
as at
31 December
2020 Waluation techmiques Unobuervable inputs
Equaty investrments dedignated 1,200  Market approach Liguidity discaunt
at FYTOCH
Equity inwestments designated 3,864  Met asset value approach  Met assets, liguidity
at FVTOC discount
Loans and advances to customers 6,856 Discounted cash flow Risk-adjusted discount
at FVTPL approach rate
Loans and advances to cusiomers 44,789 Discounted cash flow Risk-adjusted discount
at FVTOC! approach rate
Financial investments measured
at FVTRL
= Debt securites 456  Discounted cash flow Ruk-adjusted discount
appraach rate
= Equity investments 1,738 Market approach Liquidity discount
= Fund investmenis 502  Met fund value apgroach Mat assets
- Furned ifvestimants 17 Market Gpprosch Legundity discouint
Financial investments designated 14 Discounted cash flow Risk-adjusted discount
at FVTPL approach rate
Financial liabilities designated 106  Market approach Liguidity discount
at FVTRL
Financial kabilities desgnated 5443  MNet fund value approach Mat assets, liquidity

at FVTRL
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(g) Fair value infarmation (coatnued)

(i} Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (cantinued)

2 Valuation techniques used and the qualitative infarmation of key parameters for recurring fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3: (continued)

1 Valwation of financial instruments with sigrificant unobaenable inputs

The follewing tables show the movements from the beginning balances to the ending balances fos
Level 3 financial instruments:

Loars and  Loans and Equity
Finangial advances to  advances to  investments
invedtments  cuitomers customers  designated

Assets at FVTPL at FVTPL  at AWVTOC ae FWTOCI Total
A1 1 January 2021 2.727 6,856 4,289 5,064 58,935
Prafit or koss

—In prafit of hoss k] 287 1,365 - 1,991

= In ather comprehersive mcome - - 48 1,050 1,008
Additan far the year 1,832 143 118,229 m 120,925
Disposals or setthement on maturity {68) - (107.218) {2,158) (109, 444)
Exchange difference 44 (51 - 45 93
A1 31 Docember 2021 4,879 T.281 56,713 4726 73,599

Todtal unrealised gains and losses intluded
in the conscidated statoment of profit
or loss for assets held at the end of the
repariing penod EE] 287 - - 628

Loars andl Loans and Equity
Firarcial  advances to advances fo investments
nvestrnents  customers customers  designated

Suirti at FYTRL al FYTPRL at FYTOC) at FWTOC] Tatal
AL 1 January 2020 2,968 5178 30,326 3,148 43 841
Prafit or faws

= In grofit or kass 454 296 1,210 - 1,960

= |n ather comprehersme ncame - - 0 1,469 1,489
Additian for the yaar 519 196 86,003 a2 87,420
Disposals or settlement on matunty {1,106} - {73,290 - {74,396)
Exthanpe difference (1248} 115 = [235) 1378
A1 31 Degember 2000 217 6,856 44 189 5,064 56,936

Todal unrealised gains and lcoses intluded
im the conscbdated stazement of prafit
or loss for assets held at the end of the
reparting penad 454 296 - - 750
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Assets and liabilities held at the end of reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (cantinued)

i3

Valuation techniques used and the qualitative infarmation of key parameters for recurring fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3: (continued)

1

&I

&t

Vatuation of financial ingtruments with sigmiffcant wvhabsenable inpuls (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or los 201 2020
Balance as at 1 January 5,640 1,108
In prafit of loss 470 407
Addition for the year 1,105 2,686
Disposals and settbement on maturity {8E0) (453)
Exchange difference 217} (91]
Balance as at 31 Decembor 8147 5.649
Total unrealised gains and losses included in the

consoldated statement of profit or loss for liabilities

held at the end of the reporting pernod 418 ELi]

Transfors amang different lovels occwrred duning e repacting perod, the seasons for theses transfess

amnd the principle af determéning the dates of transfers for financal instrurments measured at fair value

O FRCUFRNGg Bass

During the years ended 31 December 1021 and 2020, there were no significant transfers among
different levels for financeal instruments wihich are measured at faie value en a recurring basis.

Changes s virluation fechmgues and the reazons for the changes

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 020, the Group did not change the valuation
l:pthm.quu-l for the fimancial sssets and labilities disclosed abowe which are measured at fair value on

recurring basis,
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(g) Fair value infarmation (coatnued)
{iii}  Financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
f1y Financial Assels

The Group's linancial aisets that ate notl measured at fair value mainky include balanced with central banks,
balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions, amownts held wnder resale agreements,
loams and advances 1o customers 41 armartised cost and investments &1 amonised cost

Excepl for loans and advances measured at amorthied cost and debt mstrument investments mesuied at
amortsed cost, most of the financal assets mature wathin 1 year, and their carrying values apprommate
to their fair values, Loans and advances are stated at amestised costs loss allowances for impairment loss
(Mote 22). Loans and advances at amortised cost are mostly priced at floating rates with reference 1o the
PEOC benchmark intérest rates o Loan Prime Rates (LPRs) and regriced at least annually, and impairmesnt
allowances are made to reduce the carrying amounts o impaired foans to estimated recoverable amounts
Accordingly, the carrying value of koans and advances s close o their fair value.

Dbt investments measured at amortsed cost are carried at amortised cost less allowances for impairment
losses. The fair value of the [sted investments is disclosed in Note 23{b).

The carrying value, fair value and fair value higrarchy of debt investments at amortised cost not mearured at
fair value are listed as below:

The Level 1 fair value measutement i4 based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets using Bloomberg
elc. For Level 2, the |atest valuation results released by China Bond website are used to measure fair value of
bonds denominated in AKE. The Level 2 category also indudes foreign currency bands without active quoted

price, which are measured usng the published comprehensive valuation by Bloomberg, The Level 3 fair value
i measured using discounted cash flow valuation techmigue

un M

Carrying Carpog
anoor  Farmlee  levell Lol lewel)  omi Ferwde leedl Iedl] Leeld

Dbt memments gl amariad oot LEARA L5705 BES . 1mLATE IBESE 10 10BN EE R 1T 1 1]

Yobe:  The abowe lnencal saeh do ngd mchasle nierest rrosvable

2} Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities that are not measured at faer value mainly include deposits from customers, amounts due
1o banks and other financial institutions, amounts sobd under repurchase agreements, and debts securities
msued by the Group, The carrying value of financal Habilities apprommate to their far value at the end of the
roparting peniod, except for the financial labilities et oart below:

A oo
Caimying Carmig
g Firwabe  Loell [0 Lol amouwl  Farmlhe e 1 Ll T el 3
Spbordirated notes nied MU nm - AT - um ma - L] -
longHem bt ot o PRI T6S - Tt - WESE 8T - -
Total A 1R = TS - HEGBY = JE3EE -

L] T aboven sl Labdities do nat inchids e payable
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61. Material related party transactions

{a) Material connected person information
Details of the Bank's magor shareholders and thesr parent companies ane as follows:
Mool Poperson Pezpertion
heed shirm of olim ol the
nd fully thebask  Saniheld  Compesy

Regatered pad  heid by e bythe  helily Relutionihip Leal
Comginy nime laation il Corgary  Company S bant  Sunen withthe Biak  Legalloem  represertatie
Chiea Merchant oo Seng ENEIESO]  TIB4TIN Huy - Tumpotslon, thoong  The lrge Limted My by
[ milign {rofe ey, manboEny wubolde’s  labilly
e kg purest toogen
e acity, e
ol coniracing, s
TN PUHER
ATcE, L
= China Mertharis Steas Begng FMETI00 3285400337 13 08% = Trosporufion, boley  Tae et Limitad M) faremn
Navegation (i, Lid mlion e i e, harwhold hatsidy
JEMEmCL sopply thas maragement
#nd divrion, shipping
By VOR, Bl
~therdher Yaa ey Swerhes EMEER) 12585841 s 195 - I id et g ke, Suureholde Lieted i
Invetirnt and mikion O (T, hpdy
Devekprmesf Cn, LiE. e winsh ad
rarkprg busnem, wir
= Sherchen (hu Yum  Senrhes INER) s3I ins = Imve and et oy rhries, Tharehekder Lirstad Tin
Ivetirores ard mulice: domesic commente, Rty
Development o, Lid el sapgly and
Fuirk ey bsen, et
- Choa Mechaots France Sherhens  RABTITR 1000307405 155% = v il et g e, haehole Lmaed Hong Raeyan
vttt Hoidhag miln) domene o, Ly
{s, ud raterils sy ansd
ety bussen, oir
- Bt e sl Srtsh Vg USDOTE 386304063 153% - Shurholder L
(e, 1d b nien ke
ey
- Chond Meshaers Uiy Bitsh Vg USDO0G 477,903,500 1% - - Sishikie Lomataef -
B ki ki Lty
= China Merhants Sanrhen L] 518 M0 [Fri - vt ard v ks, Shareheider Limwted Weang Kandeg
Ittty Deveioproeet mlon i e katity
[Penurhen) Cn, (14 orvisktine and vestment
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Material related party transactions wontimen
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(a)} Material connected person information fcontinued)
The regesterad caprial of the Group’s related partses a3 at 31 December 2021 and 2070 are as follows:
Name of related party B | B .. &
CMG RMB16,500,000,000  RMBE1E6,900,000.000
CMENCL RMET, 000,000,000 AMEBT, 000,000,000
Shenzhen Yan Qing investment and Development Co., Lid RMEGDD, 000,000 RMBE00,000.000
Shenzhen Chu Yuan Investment and Development Co., Ltd. RMEGDD, 000,000 RMB&00,000,000
China Merchanis Finance nvestment Holdings Co,, Lid. RMEZ, 778,000,000 RMBET, 777,800,000
Best Winner Investment Co., Lid. USDS0,000 USDE0,000
China Merchants Unian (BVI) Lid. UsSDAEO, 000 UsDe0,000
China Merchanis Industry Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. US010,000,000 U501 0,000,000
China Insurance Security Fund Ca,, Ltd RIME100,000,000 RME100,000,000
Dajia Life Inswance Co,, Ltd RMB30,750,000,000  AMB30, 790,000,000

China COSCO Shipping Comparation Limited.

China Dcean Shipping Co, Lid

COSCO Shipping (Guangrhau) Co., Lid.

Guangzhou Haimng Mariteme Technology Service Co., Lid,
COD Shipping (Shanghail Co., Lid.

COSCO Shipping Investment Holdings Co., Lid.
Guangzhou Tr-Dynas O & Shipping Co., Lid,

China Communications Construction Group Limited.
China Communications Comstruction Company Limited
Shanghal Autemetive Industry Corparatsan (Group)
SAIC Moter Corporation Limited

Hebei Port Group Co., Lid.

CHBICHE

CMBFLC

CME WiE

CHIFM

CMEWM

CMB Europe 5.A

Cigna & CMB Asset Management Company Limited

RME11,000,000,000
RME16,191,351,300
RMEB3, 191,200,000
RME2,000,000
RME1, 398,941,000
HEDS00,000,000
RMB299,020,000
RMET, 274,022,830
RMB16,174,735,425
RME21,599,175,737
RMB11,683,461,365
RMEBS, 000,000,000
HKD4,128,000,000
FME12,000,000,000
HKD1, 160,950,575
RME1,310,000,000
RMES,000,000,000
EURSE,000,000
RAMES00,000,000

AME11,000 000,000
AMB1E,191,351,300
AME3, 191,200,000
RMBZ2,000,000
AMIET, 398 941 000
HKDS00,0600,000
RMB299,020,000
HMET 274 023,830
BMB1E,174,735,425
HMB21,500, 175,737
HME11,683,451,265
RMBE, 000,000,000
HKD4, 129,000,000
BB, 000,000,000
HKD1, 160,950,575
RMET, 310,000,000
RMES, 000,000,000
EURS0,000,000
RMBS00,000,000

The change of proportion of the Bank held by the largest shareholder and the portion of the subsidiaries

held by the Bark

Toe ki b by e
[P Thr aisharst held by i Hamk

T ama e P MWL ORR U eweld  CoAACAM

na LY [} LY L & L] L) L7 - [=] LY 1] % HLH &

Oilean LEANT I OUISRNG MO LNOEAND 100D LAIRMLSTS U PANGHND SLE LNGMONN WO MIOND KNE VENENE st

Gt LRINHT (0 CUSNENG W09 TLOLINAN 0000 LELELTY IS TAGN T LOMORGO W03 WEHUD W SCHLEE

 oma e e im0 cume B legeld  CEMLACIY

w o BE % WD % WA % u8 % @ % ma %

Wil ME  LBOUT 08 QSIGNG 00 AN 100 LEELTY 0 NENGXE a0 LUENONG KN SNED | SRNGHE e

-'_'w - = - - = a - = a - - - - - - -

B 11 Ducymber 3000 FHR O N LSRN 0N LMot 1D EaEIT o0 MEWOND T LENELN W0 AN (ol Sonme o L= ]

Mate;  Thivedormation ndetsiled in note 34

As of 31 December 2021, other than those disclosed above, there were 265 companees that shared common
directors, supenisors and senior management ncluding their close famdy members with the Bank and thay can
cantrol of exercise significant influence over the companies. (31 December 2020: 337).
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B1. Material related party transactions jontinwes

(b) Terms and conditions for related-party transactions

The Group enters into transactsons with related parties i the ordinary course of its banking busmass including
lending, investing, deposi taking, securites trading, prowding agency and trust services, and off-balance sheet
transactions. In the pimon of the directors, the Group enters into such matenal related-party fransactions under
naofmal commaercial terms. Interest rates on loans and deposits are set in accordance with such Benchmark rates as
PROC rates and LPR:

2021 2020
Shor-term lgans & 35% 4 35%
Medium to long-term loans 4.75% to £.90% 4.75% 1o 4.90%
Demand depaosits 0.35% 0.35%
Time deposits 1.10% to 2.75% 110% 1o 2.75%

There were no loans and advances granted 1o related parties that were credit impaired during the wear (2020
MNona)

{c) Shareholders and their related companies

The Bank's largest shareholder CMSNCL and its refated companies held 29.979% (2020 29.97%) of the Bank's
shares as at 31 Docomber 7021 (amang them 13.04% of the shames wene directly held by CMSNCL (2020 13.04%)),

The Group's transactions and balances with CMSNCL and its related companies are disclosed a3 follows:

2021 2020
Cni-balance sheat:
— Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 3,000
= Amounts held under resale agreements 13,967 1.500
- Loans and advances to customers 42,645 ir4an
= Financial imvestrments 1,147 1.850
- Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29,755 2,667
- Depots from customers 45,708 82,558
= Lease liabilines 186 9
Off-balance sheat
- Iirevocable guarantees 3,645 3,615
= rrevocable letters of cradi 251 g0
- Bills of acceptances 188 292
Interest income 1,738 1,228
Inberest expense {1,599) {1,336}
Met fee and commission income 1] 662
Operaling expenses {42} 122)
Other net incomatexpenses) EL| (221
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(d) Companies that share common directors, supervisors or senior management
with the Bank (other than those disclosed in Note 61(c)} and they can control
or exercise significant influence over the companies
- 200 2020
On-balance sheat:
— Amounts held undeér resale agreements 285 485
= Loans and advances to customers 13,366 34487
- Financial investrments 5495 733
- Deposits Trom banks and ather financlal institutions 11,137 1,266
= Amounts soid under repurchase agreements - 410
- Depasits from customers 41,235 47,840
= Lease Nabilities 73 -
COff-balance sheat:
- Irrevocable guarantees 1,Mm EL Y
= Irrevocable letters of credit 26 72
- Bills of acceptances 225 L&
Interest incoma G927 2,428
Interast expense {984} (259
Net fee and commission income 273 Ak
Operating expenies {1,654) 1,34%)
Crther net income 7 B
(e} Associates and joint ventures other than those disclosed in Note 61(c)
0 20320
On-balamce sheet:
= Platemants with banks and other financial institutions 14,500 14,5040
= Loans and advances to customers B 0a4 4,690
- Deposats from banks and ather financial institutions 1,251 967
- Deposits from customers 693 387
Off-balance sheet
- Irrevocable guarantees 8,700 8,700
Interest income 516 594
Inferest expenie {209 {16
Net fee and commission inoome 1,695 1,090
Operating expenses {6} {51
(f} Other major shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Bank and

exercising significant influence over the Bank

2021 1020
On-balance sheet:
= Amounts held under resale agreements 358 -
- Loans and advances to customers 17,654 18,862
= Financial investments 2,512 2,478
- Depasits from banks and other fmancial institutions 7,502 5467
= Drpeoriits from customers 19,704 40,062
- Lease Habilitses 46 16
Off-balance sheat
= Irrevacable guarantees 7,895 32,577
- Irrevocahble letters of credit 337 823
- Bills af acceplances 5,068 5,454
Interest income T3B 1,145
Interest expense {585) (529
Met fee and cammission incams 1,411 1.811
Other et (expenseling me (1) 122
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{g) Subsidiaries

- Balances with banks and other financial institutions

- Placemants with banks and other financial institutions
- Loans and advances to customers

= Financial irvestments

= Deposits from banks and other financial institutions

- Placements from banks and ather financial institutions
= Amaunts sobd under repurchase agreements

- Deposits Tram customers
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Off-balance sheat
= Irrevacable lotters of crodd
- Bills of acceptances

Interest income

Interest expene

Net fee and commission
Operating expenses
Crther net income

2021 2020
1,950 4,072
37,055 ran
- ar?
3,454 1,819
1657 8,789
= 4

816 668
3,546 6,506
1,908 1.048
B1 113
1.124 8%
{258) {195)
(1,2594) {3.031)
{@6) 12
m 174

Al significant balances and transactions between the Bank and i3 subsidianies have been eliminated in the

consofidated financial statements.

(h) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authorty and responsibility for planning, directing and
contralling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors, supervisors and executive officers,

in thousands

Salaries and other emoluments

Discretionary bonuses

Shars-based payment

Contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes
Total

2021 2020
m thousands

36,264 40,839
- 13,508
17,312 30,290
567 503
57,143 85,140

Thi above share-based payments represent the estimated fair value of the thare appreciaton rights granted (Note
A%alinll to senéor management under the Bank's H share Apprecation Rights Scheme. The fair value is meassred
by waing the Black-Schales model and according to the accounting poficy se1 out in Note 4017); and the amounts are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. As the share options may
expire without being exercised, the directors consider the amounts disclosed are not representative of actual cash

flows. receved o to be recerved by senior managemant,

iy Annuity scheme

Apart from the obligation for defined contributions te the annusty scheme and normal banking transactions, no
other transactiond were conducted bebween the Group and the annuity scheme for the years ended 31 December

2021 and 2020,
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62. Non-controlling interests

(a)

B3.

Non-contralling intesedts represent the interests that the Group does not hold in the subsidunes. In the apinkon of
the directars of the Bank, the Group does not have any subsidiary with significant nonecontralling interests during
the reparting period,

Perpetual debt capital

CME WLE, the Group's subdideary, lsued perpetual debt of USS170 milion on 27 Apeil 20017 and snother perpetual
debt of US3400 milkon on 24 January 2019, Movements ol perpetual debt capital which were issued by CMB WLE
are as follows:

Principal  Distributionw/Paid Tatal
At January 2021 3,753 - 3,753
Porpeiual debt capital fssued - - -
Distributions in 2021 - 227 227
Pakd in 2021 - {227) {227}
Exchange difference (117} - (117}
A1 31 Decernber 2021 3,636 = 3,636

Prinespal DestributionaPaid Tatal
At 1 January 2020 3.979 - 3,979
Perpetual debt capital ssued - - -
Distributions in 2020 - 3 234
Pabd in 2020 - {234) {234)
Exchange difference (226} - (226)
At 31 December 2020 3,753 - 3,753

There i= no maturity for the instruments and the payments of distribution can be cancelled at the discretion of
the issuer. Cancelled interest is non-cumulative, Thete s no contractual obligation to defiver cash o other parties,
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, CMB WLE did not cancel the payment of distnbution and the
comespanding amounts were pakd to the perpetual debt halders accordingly.

Transfers of financial assets

The Group enfers inta transactions in the normal course af busineis by which it trandfers recognined financial
assets to third parties or to special purpose vehicles. In some cases, such transfers may give nse 1o full or partial
derecognition of the financial asseti concerned, and in other cases the transfers may nat qualify for derecognition as
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these transterred assets. As a resuft, the Group continues
to recognise these translerred assets.

Securitisation of credit assets

The Group enters mto securitisation ransactions in the normal course of business by which it transters credit assets
to special purpose trusts which in turn ssue asset-backed securities o investors. The Group may acquire certain
investmients a1 the subordinated tranche level and accordingly, may retain pans of the rsks and rewards of the
transferred credil assets. The Group would determine whether or not to derecognise the associated credit assets by
evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the assets.

With meapect 1o the credit assets that are securitised and qualified for derecognition, based on the eriteria se out n
Mote (5], the Group derecognises the transfeered credit assets in their entirety. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group transferred loans amounting to RMBSE,068 millsen (2020; RMBE?2,001 million) in securitiation
arrangements, as well as substantially all the risks and rewards associated with the loans. The full amount of such
secufitied laans were then direcognised,
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63. Transfers of financial assets coninuea

Securitisation of credit assets (coatnued)

In the cases that the Group has neither transferred nor retsned substantally all the risks and rewards of the
transferred credit assets, and for which the Group retains control, the Group recognises an assed in the consolidated
statement of financial position to the extent of the Group’s continuing invelvement i the transferred assets,
the remaining portion is derecognised. The extent af the Group's continwing involvemant i the extent of the
risks and rewards exposed by the Group 1o the value changes of the transferred assets. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the carrying amount of the securitised credit assets at the time of tramsfer under the securitisation
arrangements i whech the Group retained a continuing involvement was BMB15,942 milion (20200 RMB17,451
millign). The carrying amount of the continuing involvement asset and the comesponding continuing mvwvolvement
liability amounting te AMBS, 274 million & at 31 Decernber 2021 (2020; RMB3,128 million) are recognised in other
assets and other liabilities in the consolidated statement of financal position,

Transfers of credit assets to third parties

During the year 2021, in addition to secuntisation transactions, the Group transferred credit assets amounting to
RMBSAE million (2020: AMBY24 milkon) 1o independent thend parties directly during the year ended 31 December
2021, The Group determined that these transterred assets qualdied for full derecognition, based on the criteria set
out in Note 445), since the Group has transferred substantally all the rsks and rewards of the transferred assets 1o
tha counterparties.

Repurchase transactions and securities lending transactions

Transterred financial assets that do not qualily for derecognition mamly include debt securities, discounted bills heid
by counterparties as collateral under repurchase agreerments and securities lent 1o counterparies under securities
lending agreements. The counterparties are allowed to sell or repledge those securities sold under agreements to
repurchase in the absence of default by the Group, but has an obligaton to returm the securities at the maturity
of the contract, The Group deterrmines that it retains substantially all the rsks and rewards of these secunties and
therefore does not derecognise them. Instead, it recognises a financial lability for cash received as coflateral.
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64. Interests in unconsolidated structured entities

(a)

The scope of the Group's consolidated financial statements s determined on & control basis, Control mesns that
the investar has the power over the investee, enjoys variable returns by participating i the relevant activitias of the
investes, and has the ability 1o use the power to affect the amount of its return.

The Group has the power ower structured entities, and the other investors have no substantve rights. In the
meanteme, the Group is entitled 1o variable returns, and will comsolidate entites, in which the Group has the right
to affect the amount of its return

In addition to the above-mentioned structured entities that have been included in the Group's comsolidated financial
statements, the Group's equity infoermation on structured entities which is not eovered by the condolidated financial
statements is as Tollows:

Interests in the structured entities sponsored by third parties institutions

The Group holds interests in some structured entities sponsored by third parties through investiments in the units
lssued by these structured entithes. Such interests include investments in weahh management products, asset
management schemes, trust beneficiary rights, assets backed securities and fund investments, and the Group does
not eonsolidate these structured entities. The purpose of the Group holding these structured entities (s to abtakn
nvestment income, copital appreciation or both

The following tables set out an analysis of the balance of interests held by the Group in the struciured entities
spansared by third parties and an analysis of the Ene items i the consolidated statement of financial posinans as
at 31 December 2021 and 31 Decemnber 2020 in which assets are recognised relating to the Group’s interests in
structured entities sponsared by third parties:

Fi]
Balance
Debt

Fimancial  inwvestmenia Deba
investments  at amortised  investments Maximum
&t FYTPL ast &t FUTOC Total BxpasUre
Assel maragement schemses - 76,978 - 76,978 6,978
Trust beneficiary rghts - n.ga - g 31,897
Assel-backed securities 2537 FLk) 1.205 4,049 4,049
Fund investments 156,112 o= - 156,112 156,112
Tatal 158,648 104,182 1,205 269,036 269,038

030
. _ Balance
Debt

Fimanoal  investments Debit

myestments o amostised  invesiments Manmum
at FVTRL st atAvIod Jol  esosure

Aasel management schemes 63,453 93.916 - 163,369 163,369
Trust beneficiary rights - 37,883 - 37,663 37,663
Asart-backed seounties 3,096 1L 1,442 1.129 1129
Fund investments 134,828 - - 134,828 34,828
Wealth mansgement praducts 3 - - u kL
Total 200,411 140,270 1,442 343123 ETERFE]

The maximum exposures of vestments in funds, trust beneficiary rights, asset management schemes, wealth
management products and asset backed securities are the balance of these assets.
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64. Interests in unconsolidated structured entities cominued

(b) Interests in the unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by the Group

The unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by the Group include non-principal-guaranteed wealth
managemenl praducts, funds and assets management schemes. The nature and purpose of these struciured entities
are to generate fees from managing assets on behalf of investors. These structured entities are fnanced through the
issuance of investment praducts 1o investors. Interest of the Group in these uncomsalidated structured entities is fees
and commission charged for the services provided

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of unconsolidated non-panopal-guarantesd wealth management products
wponsared by the Group was AMEB2, 777 537 milan (31 December 2020: RMBZ 445,644 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of uncormsolidated funds sponsseed by the Group was RMBET 085,813 millisn
{31 December 2020: RMB785,489 million),

As at 31 Decomber 2021, the amount of unconsolidated assat management schemas sponsooad by the Group was
RBAB 174,555 million (31 December 2020: RMB177,750 million).

As at 31 December 2021, amounts held under resale agreements transacted between the Group and the
nan-principal-guaranteed wealth management products sponsored by the Group were RMBI0E5E million (31
December 2020 AMB4A 898 millklon). The above transactions were conducted in accordance with normal business
terrd and conditions,

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of unconsolidated non-pencipal-guaranteed wealth management products
held by the Group was RMB 2,396 million {31 Decernber 2020: RME 1,225 millian),

A5 at 31 December 2021, the amount of unconsolidated fund products hald by the Growp was AMEBE,658 milion (31
December 2020; RMEZ.004 millian).

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2021, the amount of wealth manigement products sponicred by the Group
transferred to investments measured at amortsed cost of the Group was RMEB 11,004 millron {2020; RMB12,629
rrilligsr ),

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2021, the amount of fee and commission income the Graup received from such
ne-principal-guarantesd wealth management products was RMB1 1,998 milllon (2020: RME10,162 millian)

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2021, the amount of fee and commismon income the Group received from such
uncansolidated funds was RMB4,223 million (2020;: AMB2,330 millan),

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2021, the amount of lee and commission income the Group received from such
unconsalidated asset management schemes was RMBG2T million (2020 AMBS37 milkon)

The total ameunt of non-princepal-guaranteed wealth management products sponsored by the Group after 1 January
2021 with a matunty date before 31 December 2021 was RMB1,529,874 million (2020. RMB1,924,836 million)

65. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures n the footnotes have been amended to conform to chamges in disclosures in current
year
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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
17.32 17.48 16.75 16.06 18.06
15.75 16.01 14._86 14.79 15.78
16.59 16.64 15.81 15.44 17.10
17.28 16.16 15.60 15.81 18.05
100
2021 2021 2021 2021 10 2021 11 2021 12
17.24 17.05 17.26 17.90 18.05 18.06
16.89 16.86 16.88 17.29 17.66 17.72
17.04 16.96 17.05 17.70 17.85 17.88
100
19.19 2022 31

100
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
(Ajoint stock company incorporated in the People’ s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (the "Bank")
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the Group™) set out on pages 168 to 319, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financia performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAS'). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters
(continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected credit loss allowance of loans and
advances to customers at amortised cost,
debt investments at amortised cost, and
financial guarantees and loan commitments
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We identified expected credit loss (ECL)
allowance of loans and advances to customers
at amortised cost, debt investments at
amortised cost and financial guarantees and
loan commitments as a key audit matter due to
the materiality of these items baance and

significant management  judgement and
estimates involved in deriving the ECL
estimates.

As at 31 December 2021, as set out in Note 22
(@), the Group reported loans and advances to
customers at amortised cost of RMB 5,085,600
million and expected credit loss alowances of
RMB 245,494 million; in Note 23(b), the
Group reported debt investments at amortised
cost of RMB 1,225,727 million and expected
credit loss allowances of RMB 39,886 million;
in note 42, the Group reported the expected
credit loss allowances of financial guarantees
and loan commitments of RMB 12,790 million.

Key judgements and estimates in respect of the
measurement of ECLs include: the significant
management judgement and estimates of model
design and its application; the identification of
a significant increase in credit risk (SICR); the
identification of credit impairment events; the
determination of inputs used in the ECL model,
as well as the determination of the forward-
looking information to incorporate.

Principal accounting policies and significant
accounting estimates and judgement applied in
determining the expected credit loss
allowances of loans and advances to customers
a amortised cost, debt investments at
amortised cost and financial guarantees and
loan commitments are set out in Notes 4(5) and
5(4) to the consolidated financial statements.

EDINETOOOO
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Our audit proceduresin relation to the expected
credit loss allowances of loans and advances to
customers at amortised cost, debt investments
at amortised cost and financial guarantees and
loan commitments included the following:

We understood management’'s process and
tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls across the processes relevant to
the ECL estimation of the Group. These
controls included the development, validation
and review of the ECL model; the controls
over the model data input, including manual
input controls and automated transmission
controls; the automated controls over the ECL
model calculation process; the controls over the
identification of SICR indicators and credit
Impairment events.

We assessed whether the ECL model applied
by the Group has covered all the exposures that
should be taken into consideration. In respect
of different portfolios of loans and advances to
customers at amortised cost, debt investments
at amortised cost and financial guarantees and
loan commitments, we involved our interna
modelling specialist to assist usin assessing the
appropriateness of the Group’s methodology of
ECL modeling. We reviewed relevant
documents and evaluated the appropriateness
and application of the ECL model.

With the support of our internal modelling
specialist, we assessed the key definitions and
application of parameters and assumptions in
the ECL model. This included assessing stage
determination, probability of default, loss given
default, exposure at default, forward-looking
information and COVID-19 impact. We
selected samples to check whether the
calculation in the ECL model is consistent with
the methodology. We selected samples to
conduct credit reviews in order to assess the
appropriateness of the significant judgements
made by the management regarding the
occurrence of SICR and credit impairment
events, and whether the identification of such
events are proper and timely. In addition, we
selected samples and tested their datainput into
the ECL model to evaluate the completeness
and accuracy of the data input. For loans and
advances at amortised cost and debt
investments at amortised cost at stage 3, we
selected samples to test the reasonableness of
future cash flows from the borrowers estimated
by the Group, including the expected
recoverable amount of collateral, to assess
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whether there were material misstatements in

credit loss allowances.
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Key Audit Matters
(continued)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Consolidation of Sructured Entities

We identified consolidation of structured
entities as a key audit matter since significant
judgement is applied by management to
determine whether or not the Group has control
over certain structured entities.

The structured entities of the Group include
wealth management products, asset
management schemes, trust beneficiary rights,
assets-backed securities and funds, as disclosed
in Note 64 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As described in Note 4(1), the consolidation of
structured entities is determined based on
control. Control is achieved when the investor
has power over the investee, the investor is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and the
investor has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns. When performing the
assessment on whether the Group has control
over the structured entities, the Group
considers several factors including, the scope
of its decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the rights held by other
parties, the remuneration for managing the
structured entities and the Group’s exposure to
variability of returns from interests that it holds
in the structured entities.

Our audit procedures in relation to
consolidation of structured entities included the
following:

We understood and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of key controls over the
management process in determining the
consolidation scope for interests in structured
entities as well as understood the purpose for
setting up the structured entities.

We reviewed the relevant contract terms, on a
sample basis, and assessed the power of the
Group over the structured entities, the rights of
the Group to variable returns of the structured
entities and the ability of the Group to use its
power to affect its return, and evauated
management judgement on whether the Group
has control over the structured entities and the
conclusion about whether or not the
consolidation criteria are met.
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Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financia
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Bank determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statementsasa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors of the Bank.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors of the Bank’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financia information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in interna
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report is Shi Chung Fai.
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Dedloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2022
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